
Town of Stoughton 
May 6, 2024 

Book 1 - Articles 

Annual Town Meeting Warrant 

And Report of the Committee on 

Finance & Taxation 

 

Town Meeting Representatives 

Bring This Report to Town Meeting 

Includes Standing Committee Reports 



2024 Annual Town Meeting Session Calendar 
 

All 2024 Annual Town Meeting sessions will be held in person in the 

Stoughton High School auditorium located at 232 Pearl Street 

Sign-in starts at 6:30 p.m. ~ Opening Gavel 7:00 p.m. 

Open Meeting Law prohibit Town Boards meeting while Town Meeting is in session. 

FACE MASKS ARE OPTIONAL 

 

May 
Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday 

6 
ATM 

1ST Session 

 8 
ATM 

2ND Session 

  

13 
ATM 

3RD Session 

 15 
ATM 

4TH Session 

  

20 
ATM 

5TH Session 
(If Needed) 

 22 
ATM 

6TH Session 
(If Needed) 

  

  29 
ATM 

7TH Session 
(If Needed) 

  

 

NOTE: A Special Town Meeting Will Be Held Within the 

 Annual Town Meeting 

ORGANIZATIONAL TOWN MEETING WILL BE ON 

THURSDAY, MAY 2, 202 AT 7:00 PM 

O’DONNELL MIDDLE SCHOOL CAFETERIA 

211 CUSHING STREET 

2



TABLE of CONTENTS 
 

Book 1 – Articles 
 

(See Book 2 for Article Backup Material) 

 

Page 

2 Town Meeting Calendar 

3 Committee on Finance and Taxation Chairman’s Letter 

4 Town Moderator’s Letter 

15 STM Article 1 – Elementary School Project 

18 STM Article 2 – Petitioned Article 

25 Article 1 – Election 

26 Article 2 – Receive Reports 

26 Article 3 – Accept and Contract Funds for Town Roads 

27 Article 4 – Apply for and Accept Federal/State Funding 

27 Article 5 – Disposal of Town Property 

28 Article 6 – Cedar Hill Enterprise Fund Budget 

30 Article 7 – Public Health Association Enterprise Fund Budget 

32 Article 8 – Sewer Department Enterprise Fund Budget 

34 Article 9 – Water Department Enterprise Fund Budget 

36 Article 10 – Cable Public Access Enterprise Fund – Appropriate for FY25 Cable Costs 

38 Article 11 – Reauthorization of Revolving Funds 

42 Article 12 - Collective Bargaining Articles – Superior Officers 

42 Article 13 – Fund the CBA for Patrolmen’s Union 

43 Article 14 – Unpaid Bills 

44 Article 15 – General Fund Operating Budget 

45 Article 16 – Supplemental Fiscal Year 2024 Departmental Budgets 

45 Article 17 – Deposit to Stabilization fund 

46 Article 18 – Community Preservation Committee FY2025 Budget/Report 

47 Article 19 – Appropriate Funds from the Fiscal 2025 Operating Budget to OPEB 

47 Article 20 – Public Works and Facilities Capital 

3



48 Article 21 – Town Buildings and Facilities Maintenance and Upgrades 

49 Article 22 – Police Department Capital 

50 Article 23 – Fire Department Capital 

51 Article 24 – Sewer Capital – Inflow and Infiltration 

52 Article 25 – Water and Sewer Department Capital 

53 Article 26 – Pratt’s Court Water Treatment Improvements 

54 Article 27 – Cedar Hill Capital 

55 Article 28 – Town Pond Management Program 

55 Article 29 – Intersection Improvements Design – Plain and West Street Intersection 

56 Article 30 – Canton & School Street Intersection Improvements Design 

56 Article 31 – Cedar Hill Drainage and Parking Improvements - Design 

57 Article 32 – Police Station Expansion and Renovation Design 

58 Article 33 – Properties Located at 760 Washington Street (Map 54, Lot 285) & Off Rose 

Street (Map 54, Lot 180) 

59 Article 34 – School Safety - Vestibules 

59 Article 35 – School Safety – Lining and Marking of Parking Lots 

60 Article 36 –School Safety – Security Audit 

60 Article 37 – Hebrew Senior Life Affordable Senior Housing – Project Support Funds 

62 Article 38 – Renovation of Town-Owned Barn on West Street 

63 Article 39 – Historic Signage – Group 2 

64 Articles 40 – Stoughton Youth Baseball Field Improvements 

65 Article 41 – Renovation of Marks Field, Construction Phase 

66 Article 42 – Stoughton Motel Conversion 

67 Article 43 – Bird Street Conservation Area Entryway Improvements 

68 Article 44 – Climate Action Plan Committee Consultant 

69 Article 45 – Zoning Bylaw Amendment – Stoughton Center District, Section 9.3.4 SCD 

Table of Use Regulation 

69 Article 46 – Zoning Map Amendment 

70 Article 47 – Zoning Bylaw Amendment – Zoning Bylaw Amendment – proposed 

Industrial-2 (“I-2”) Zoning District, Section 2-1 Establishment of Zoning Districts, 

Section 9.3.4 SCD Table of Use Regulations and Zoning Map Amendment Proposed I2 

zoning district. 

84 Article 48 – Rescind Dedication of Opioid Settlement Funds to Opioid Stabilization Fund 

4



85 Article 49 – Civil Service Revocation 

86 Article 50 – Accept MGL Chapter 41, Section 110A 

87 Article 51 – Single-serving Drinking Water Plastic Bottle Reduction Bylaw (Petitioned 

Article) 

89 Article 52 – Sidewalks on Turnpike Street from Central Street to Park Street – Design 

(Petitioned Article) 

90 Article 53 – Rezone Map 54 Lot 433 from RU (Residential Urban) to GB (General 

Business) (Petitioned Article) 

91 Article 54 – Columbus Day name change to Indigenous Peoples Day (Petitioned Article) 

93 Budget Details 

161 Education 

263 Budget Supplemental Information 

273 Annual Town Meeting Reports 

283 Massachusetts General Laws 

387 Town Meeting Rules of Order 

388 Rules & Regulations for the Governing of Town Meeting’s 

5



6



TOWN MODERATOR 

 

April, 2024 

Dear Town Meeting Representative, 

Welcome to Our Town of Stoughton’s Annual Town Meeting. 

Whether this is your first Town Meeting or one of many, it can still be very exciting and challenging to be part 

of something that has been around for several hundred years.  I thank you all for taking the time to participate in 

the Town Meeting process. 

Officially, on Monday May 6, 2024 at 7:00PM the Town of Stoughton will hold its Annual Town Meeting in 

person at the Stoughton High School Auditorium.  This year, we will also have a Special Town Meeting within 

the Annual Town Meeting.  Upon arrival to the Auditorium, Town Meeting Representatives please check in with 

your respective Precinct Chairs who will mark you present and provide you with your assigned electronic 

voting device.  Your Precinct Chair will inform you if there is any additional documentation that is needed and 

available at the front table.   Once you have completed the checking in process, please feel free to sit anywhere 

in the approved seating sections within the Auditorium.  Face masks are optional. 

For the latest information, please continue to check the Town of Stoughton website at stoughton.org and 

navigate to the Town Meeting page and then click on the Annual Town Meeting 2024 “Virtual Table” on the left 

side bar.  At this location look for updates, motions and any additional items and documentation for Town 

Meeting. 

Please take the time to check and ensure that your Precinct Chair and the Town Clerk’s Office has your most up 

to date email address and phone number.  Also, please bring this book with you so you will have the backup 

documentation for each Article and we will not have to waste paper making copies of documents that you 

already have. 

Town Meeting is scheduled to meet on Mondays and Wednesdays through the month of May.  There are seven 

scheduled sessions in May for Town Meeting and I am hoping we can conclude Town Meeting in less time than 

that.   

ARTICLE PRESENTATION, QUESTIONS AND DEBATE OVERVIEW 

Presentations will be limited to 10 minutes per Article. 

Technical Question Period will begin once the Presentation has concluded.  A limit of two questions per Town 

Meeting Representative per Article. 

Pro/Con Remarks and speeches will be limited to 3 minutes. 

Please remain on topic, relevant, brief and focused. 

Due to time constraints and the number of Articles, the Moderator reserves the right to amend or change any of 

these time limits. 

Again, I would like to thank all of you for your dedication to this process and I will see you Monday night,  

May 6, 2024 at 7:00PM. 

Respectfully, 

Bob Mullen, Town Moderator 

7



8



Special Town Meeting 

And 

Annual Town Meeting 

Warrant 

9



10



11



12



13



14



COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

TOWN OF STOUGHTON 

SPECIAL TOWN MEETING WARRANT 

 

NORFOLK, SS 

 

To any constable in the Town of Stoughton: 

Greetings:  In the name of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, you are hereby directed to 

notify and warn the inhabitants of the Town of Stoughton, qualified to vote on Town affairs, to 

meet at: 

  

STOUGHTON HIGH SCHOOL AUDITORIUM 
232 PEARL STREET, STOUGHTON 

 
ON MONDAY THE SIXTH DAY of MAY, 2024 

 
at seven o'clock in the evening, at which time and place the following articles are to be acted 
upon and determined exclusively by the Town Meeting Members in accordance with the 
provisions of the Town of Stoughton Charter. 

Article 1 - Elementary School Building Project 

To see if the Town of Stoughton will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds 

in the Treasury, if any, and/or borrow a sufficient sum of money for the purpose of designing, 

constructing, originally equipping and furnishing a new K-5 elementary school and undertaking 

any and all related site development on Town-owned property located off Park Street in 

Stoughton, shown as Parcel Nos. 007-002-0, 065-133-0 and 076-006-0 on the Town of 

Stoughton Assessors’ Map, to replace the existing South Elementary School, and all incidental 

and related and related expenses (the “Project”), pursuant to a construction contract procured in 

accordance with the provisions of M.G.L. c. 149, or a contract utilizing construction 

management at risk delivery method in accordance with the provisions of M.G.L. c. 149A, as 

determined by the South Elementary School Building Committee, which school facility shall 

have an anticipated useful life as an educational facility for the instruction of school children of 

at least 50-years, and for which the Town may be eligible for a school construction grant from 

the Massachusetts School Building Authority (“MSBA”), said amount to be expended under the 

direction of the South Elementary School Building Committee; to meet this appropriation, the 

Treasurer, with the approval of the Select Board, is authorized to borrow said amount under 

15



M.G.L. c. 44, or pursuant to any other enabling authority; that the Town of Stoughton 

acknowledges that the MSBA’s grant program is a non-entitlement, discretionary program based 

on need, as determined by the MSBA, and any Project costs the Town of Stoughton incurs in 

excess of any grant approved by and received from the MSBA, shall be the sole responsibility of 

the Town of Stoughton; provided further, that any grant that the Town of Stoughton may receive 

from the MSBA for the Project shall not exceed the lesser of (1) Forty-two (42%) of eligible, 

approved Project costs, as determined by the MSBA, or (2) the total maximum grant amount 

determined by the MSBA; provided that any appropriation hereunder shall be subject to and 

contingent upon an affirmative vote of the Town to exempt the amounts required for the payment 

of interest and principal on said borrowing from the limitations on taxes imposed by M.G.L. c. 

59, §21C (Proposition 2½); and that the amount of borrowing authorized pursuant to this vote 

shall be reduced by any grant amount set forth in the Project Funding Agreement that may be 

executed between the Town of Stoughton and the MSBA, or take any other action relative 

thereto.     

 

Requested by:    South Elementary School Building Committee 
Inserted by:        Select Board   
Date:                  March 19, 2024 
Estimated Costs:    $114,407,888.00   
  

16



PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town of Stoughton appropriate the amount of One Hundred 

Thirteen Million Four Hundred Seven Thousand Eight Hundred Eighty-eight ($113,407,888) 

Dollars, for the purpose of designing, constructing, originally equipping and furnishing a new K-

5 elementary school and undertaking any and all related site development on Town-owned 

property located off Park Street in Stoughton, shown as Parcel Nos. 007-002-0, 065-133-0 and 

076-006-0 on the Town of Stoughton Assessors’ Map, to replace the existing South Elementary 

School, and all incidental and related expenses (the “Project”), pursuant to a construction 

contract procured in accordance with the provisions of M.G.L. c. 149, or a contract utilizing 

construction management at risk delivery method in accordance with the provisions of M.G.L. c. 

149A, as determined by the South Elementary School Building Committee, which school facility 

shall have an anticipated useful life as an educational facility for the instruction of school 

children of at least 50-years, and for which the Town may be eligible for a school construction 

grant from the Massachusetts School Building Authority (“MSBA”), said amount to be expended 

under the direction of the South Elementary School Building Committee; to meet this 

appropriation, the Treasurer, with the approval of the Select Board, is authorized to borrow said 

amount under M.G.L. c. 44, or pursuant to any other enabling authority; that the Town of 

Stoughton acknowledges that the MSBA’s grant program is a non-entitlement, discretionary 

program based on need, as determined by the MSBA, and any Project costs the Town of 

Stoughton incurs in excess of any grant approved by and received from the MSBA, shall be the 

sole responsibility of the Town of Stoughton; provided further, that any grant that the Town of 

Stoughton may receive from the MSBA for the Project shall not exceed the lesser of (1) Forty-

two (42%) of eligible, approved Project costs, as determined by the MSBA, or (2) the total 

maximum grant amount determined by the MSBA; provided that any appropriation hereunder 

shall be subject to and contingent upon an affirmative vote of the Town to exempt the amounts 

required for the payment of interest and principal on said borrowing from the limitations on taxes 

imposed by M.G.L. c. 59, §21C (Proposition 2½); and that the amount of borrowing authorized 

pursuant to this vote shall be reduced by any grant amount set forth in the Project Funding 

Agreement that may be executed between the Town of Stoughton and the MSBA, or take any 

other action relative thereto.     

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 10-3 to recommend the Motion for Article 1 as written in the 
warrant. 
A motion by the dissenting votes to add the following note was approved 11-2. 
NOTE: The Finance Committee has asked the Select Board what amount of this debt could be 
inside the budget. (Similar to the Fire Station split) 
 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS: No vote taken due to not having a quorum at the time 
of the hearing. 
 
MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS: Voted 4-0-1 to Approve Article 1. 

  

17



Article 2 - Petitioned Article 

Article 71 – Climate Action Plan Committee Proposed Motion: That the Town vote to dissolve 
the Climate Action Committee that was established in Town meeting May 2023 and comprised 
of (9) members, as follows: 1. The Town Energy Manager, 2. One member to be a Town 
employee appointed by the Town Manager, 3. One member to be appointed by the Stoughton 
Energy and Sustainability Committee and 4. (6) Sex members to be appointed by the Select 
Board following posting of openings. 
 
PROPOSED ARTICLE: Whereas this is an article proposal to dissolve the Climate Action 
Committee for the following reasons:  
 

(1) Said committee was formed for the purpose of gathering information and reporting 
back to Town meeting at no cost to the taxpayer.  Now said committee is seeking 
$100k of taxpayer monies to hire a consultant to do what the committee was charged 
to do themselves.  Furthermore much of this information is already available in the 
Town Hall. 

(2) This committee is one-sided and completely intolerant of diversity of thought or the 
DEI concept as certain members were prevented from joining. 

(3) Said committee has not conducted itself according to the standards governing Town 
Committees and has condoned behavior that has not met that standard. 

(4) Overstepping the purview of the Article that was passed (71). 
 
Requested by:    Johna Rosenblatt  
Inserted by:        Select Board in accordance with Charter C7-1 and G.L. c. 39, § 10 
Date:                  March 19, 2024 
Estimated Costs:    Zero   
 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS: No vote taken due to not having a quorum at the time 
of the hearing. 
 
MUNICIPAL REGULATIONS: Voted 1-5-1 to Recommend Article 2 to Town Meeting. 
MOTION FAILED 

  

18



19



20



21



22



23



24



 

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
TOWN OF STOUGHTON 

ANNUAL TOWN MEETING WARRANT 
 
 
 

NORFOLK, SS 
 

To any constable in the Town of Stoughton: 
 

Greetings:  In the name of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, you are hereby directed to notify 
and warn the inhabitants of the Town of Stoughton, qualified to vote on Town affairs, to meet at:  
 

STOUGHTON HIGH SCHOOL AUDITORIUM 

232 PEARL STREET, STOUGHTON 
 

ON MONDAY THE SIXTH DAY of MAY, 2024 
 

at seven o'clock in the evening, at which time and place the following articles are to be acted 
upon and determined exclusively by the Town Meeting Members in accordance with the 
provisions of the Town of Stoughton Charter. 
 

Article 1 – Election 
 

To Choose, By Ballot, The Following Town Offices: 
 

Select Board:           Two to be elected for a term of three years. 
School Committee:  Two to be elected for a term of three years. 

Housing Authority: One to be elected for a term of five years. 

Housing Authority: One to be elected for a term of two years. 

Redevelopment Authority: One to be elected for a term of five years. 

Redevelopment Authority: One to be elected for a term of three years 

                    TOWN MEETING REPRESENTATIVES: 

PRECINCT 1  Seven to be elected for a term of three years,  

    Four to be elected for a term of two years; 

PRECINCT 2  Seven to be elected for a term of three years, 

PRECINCT 3  Seven to be elected for a term of three years;  

PRECINCT 4  Seven to be elected for a term of three years; 

PRECINCT 5  Seven to be elected for a term of three years,  

PRECINCT 6  Seven to be elected for a term of three years,  

    Three to be elected for a term of two years,  

PRECINCT 7  Seven to be elected for a term of three years,  

    Four to be elected for a term of two years,  

 

PRECINCT 8  Seven to be elected for a term of three years, 

    Four to be elected for a term of two years 
  

Also, a sufficient number of Representatives to fill any existing vacancies for either a three or 

two year terms, so that each precinct will have 21 voting members.  

25



 

Article 2 - Receive Reports 

 

To see if the Town will vote to receive the reports of any Boards or Town Officers or of any other 
duly established commission, council, or authority of the Town; or take any other action relative 
thereto. 
 
Inserted by:    Select Board 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Cost:  None  
 

PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to receive the reports of any Boards or Town Officers 
or of any other duly established commission, council, or authority of the Town.   
 

Article 3 - Accept and Contract Funds for Town Roads 

 

To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Select Board to accept and enter into contracts for 
the expenditure of any funds allocated or to be allocated by the Commonwealth for the 
construction, reconstruction, and improvements of Town roads; or take any other action relative 
thereto. 
 
Inserted by:    Select Board 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Cost:  Amounts granted to the Town by the General Court may vary from year to 

year.  
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to authorize the Select Board to accept and enter into 
contracts for the expenditure of any funds allocated or to be allocated by the Commonwealth for 
the construction, reconstruction, and improvements of Town roads.  
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 12-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 3 as written in the 
warrant. 
 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS: Voted 6-0 to recommend Article 3 to Town Meeting. 
  

26



 

Article 4 - Apply for and Accept Federal/State Funding 

 

To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Select Board to apply for and accept any federal 
and/or State funding or grants that are or may become available to the Town; or take any other 
action relative thereto. 
 
Inserted by:    Select Board 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Cost:  None in particular, varies by grant and project  
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to authorize the Select Board to apply for and accept 
any federal and/or State funding or grants that are or may become available to the Town.  
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 12-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 4 as written in the 
warrant. 
 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS: Voted 6-0 to recommend Article 4 to Town Meeting. 
 
Article 5 - Disposal of Town Property 

 

To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Select Board, and/or its designee, to dispose by 
auction or otherwise Town-owned property in accordance with G.L. c.30B; or take any other action 
relative thereto. 
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  None in particular, varies from year to year. 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to authorize the Select Board, and/or its designee, to 
dispose by auction or otherwise Town-owned property in accordance with G.L. c.30B. 
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 12-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 5 as written in the 
warrant. 
  

27



 

Article 6 - Cedar Hill Enterprise Fund Budget 

 

To see if the Town will vote pursuant to the provisions of G.L. c.44, Section §53F½ to raise and 
to appropriate, transfer from available funds in the treasury, if any, and/or borrow a sufficient sum 
of money to fund the Cedar Hill Golf Course for Fiscal Year 2025; or take any other action relative 
thereto. 
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $ 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote pursuant to the provisions of G.L. c.44, Section 
§53F½ to appropriate the sum of  $466,001.00 to fund the Cedar Hill Golf Course for Fiscal Year 
2025; with $466,001.00 to be raised from FY2025 Cedar Hill Golf Course revenue.  . 
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 12-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 6 as written in the 
warrant. 
  

28



R
ev

en
u

e
A

ct
u

a
l

E
st

im
a
te

d
 E

st
im

a
te

d
 

E
x

p
en

d
it

u
re

s
A

ct
u

a
l

V
o
te

d
 B

u
d

g
et

S
el

ec
t 

B
o
a
rd

 F
in

a
n

ce
 

C
o
m

m
it

te
e 

F
Y

2
0

2
3

F
Y

2
0

2
4

F
Y

2
0

2
5

F
Y

2
0

2
3

F
Y

2
0

2
4

F
Y

2
0

2
5

F
Y

2
0

2
5

C
ed

a
r 

H
il

l

 
 

O
p

er
a
ti

n
g

 B
u

d
g

et

U
se

r 
F

ee
s

6
3

9
,0

2
9

$
  

  
  

  
 

3
9

5
,6

2
7

$
  

  
  

  
 

4
6

6
,0

0
1

$
  

  
  

  
 

S
al

ar
ie

s
2

2
1

,3
9

8
$

  
  

  
  

 
1

8
9

,7
5

0
$

  
  

  
  

 
1

9
9

,8
1

6
$

  
  

  
  

 
1

9
9

,8
1

6
$

  
  

  
  

 

O
th

er
2

1
,1

4
2

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
E

x
p

en
se

1
7

5
,9

9
0

$
  

  
  

  
 

1
7

9
,0

5
0

$
  

  
  

  
 

1
9

8
,6

2
5

$
  

  
  

  
 

1
9

8
,6

2
5

$
  

  
  

  
 

  
  

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l 

R
ev

en
u

e
6

6
0

,1
7

1
$

  
  

  
  

 
3

9
5

,6
2

7
$

  
  

  
  

 
4

6
6

,0
0

1
$

  
  

  
  

 
D

eb
t 

P
ri

n
ci

p
al

1
4

,4
2

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
0

,0
0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
0

,0
0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
0

,0
0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

O
th

er
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 S

o
u

rc
es

D
eb

t 
In

te
re

st
3

,3
1

7
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
2

,8
2

5
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
2

,3
7

5
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
2

,3
7

5
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

R
et

ai
n

ed
 E

ar
n

in
g
s

4
5

,3
1

2
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
S

h
o

rt
 T

er
m

 I
n

te
re

st
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

In
d

ir
ec

t 
C

o
st

s
5

9
,3

1
4

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
5

5
,1

8
5

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
5

5
,1

8
5

$
  

  
  

  
  

 

 S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l 
O

th
er

 F
u

n
d

in
g
 S

o
u

rc
es

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
4

5
,3

1
2

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

T
o
ta

l 
R

ev
en

u
e

6
6

0
,1

7
1

$
  

  
  

  
 

4
4

0
,9

3
9

$
  

  
  

  
 

4
6

6
,0

0
1

$
  

  
  

  
 

O
p

er
a
ti

n
g

 B
u

d
g

et
4

1
5

,1
2

6
$

  
  

  
  

 
4

4
0

,9
3

9
$

  
  

  
  

 
4

6
6

,0
0

1
$

  
  

  
  

 
4

6
6

,0
0

1
$

  
  

  
  

 

C
E

D
A

R
 H

IL
L

 G
O

L
F

 C
O

U
R

S
E

 E
N

T
E

R
P

R
IS

E
 F

U
N

D
 F

Y
2

0
2

5
 B

U
D

G
E

T
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

 

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 P

U
R

P
O

S
E

S
 O

N
L

Y

29



 

 

Article 7 – Public Health Association Enterprise Fund Budget 

 
To see if the Town will vote pursuant to the provisions of G.L. c.44, Section §53F ½ to raise and 
appropriate, transfer from available funds in the Treasury, if any, and/or borrow a sufficient sum 
of money to fund of Stoughton Public Health Association for Fiscal Year 2025; or take any other 
action relative thereto: 
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $ 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote pursuant to the provisions of G.L. c.44, Section §53F 
½ to appropriate the sum of $1,006,072.00 to fund the Stoughton Public Health Association 
Enterprise for Fiscal Year 2025; with $477,380.00 to be raised from FY2025 Public Health 
revenue and other available funds and $128,692.00 to be transferred from Public Health Fund 
retained earnings and $400,000.00 to be transferred and appropriated from free cash.  
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 12-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 7 as written in the 
warrant. 
  

30



R
ev

en
u

e
A

ct
u

a
l

E
st

im
a
te

d
 E

st
im

a
te

d
 

E
x
p

en
d

it
u

re
s

A
ct

u
a

l 
V

o
te

d
 B

u
d

g
et

S
el

ec
t 

B
o

a
rd

 F
in

a
n

ce
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 

F
Y

2
0

2
3

F
Y

2
0
2
4

F
Y

2
0
2
5

F
Y

2
0

2
3

F
Y

2
0

2
5

F
Y

2
0

2
5

 
 

O
p

er
a
ti

n
g
 B

u
d

g
et

U
se

r 
F

ee
s

4
7

2
,5

0
3

$
  
  
  
  
  

4
7
3
,5

6
8

$
  
  

  
  

  
  
 

4
7
7
,3

8
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

S
al

ar
ie

s
3
7
8

,3
1

8
$
  

  
  

  
  

6
6

3
,0

2
9

$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
5

6
4

,0
1

5
$

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
5

6
4

,0
1

5
$

  
  
  
  
  
  

 

O
th

er
1

8
,9

7
5

$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

E
x
p
en

se
2
8
9

,5
8

5
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
7

4
,0

8
5

$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1

7
5

,2
5

0
$

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1

7
5

,2
5

0
$

  
  
  
  
  
  

 

  
  

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l 

R
ev

en
u

e
4

9
1

,4
7

8
$

  
  
  
  
  

4
7
3
,5

6
8

$
  
  

  
  

  
  
 

4
7
7
,3

8
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

D
eb

t 
P

ri
n
ci

p
al

-
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

O
th

er
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 S

o
u

rc
es

D
eb

t 
In

te
re

st
-

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

R
et

ai
n

ed
 E

ar
n

in
g
s

3
2
1
,0

9
0

$
  
  

  
  

  
  
 

1
2
8
,6

9
2

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

In
d
ir

ec
t 

C
o
st

s
2
5
8

,2
9

2
$
  

  
  

  
  

2
8

6
,0

5
6

$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
2

6
6

,8
0

7
$

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
2

6
6

,8
0

7
$

  
  
  
  
  
  

 

A
R

P
A

 F
u

n
d

in
g

3
3

4
,2

1
8

$
  
  
  
  
  

3
2
8
,5

1
2

$
  
  

  
  

  
  
 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

 S
u

b
si

d
y

4
0
0
,0

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

 S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l 
O

th
er

 F
u

n
d

in
g
 S

o
u

rc
es

3
3

4
,2

1
8

$
  
  
  
  
  

6
4
9
,6

0
2

$
  
  

  
  

  
  
 

5
2
8
,6

9
2

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

T
o

ta
l 

R
ev

en
u

e
8

2
5

,6
9

6
$

  
  
  
  
  

1
,1

2
3
,1

7
0

$
  
  

  
  

  
1
,0

0
6
,0

7
2

$
  

  
  

  
  

O
p

er
a
ti

n
g
 B

u
d

g
et

9
2
6

,1
9

6
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
,1

2
3

,1
7

0
$

  
  
  
  
  

1
,0

0
6

,0
7

2
$

  
  
  
  
  

1
,0

0
6

,0
7

2
$

  
  
  
  
  

P
U

B
L

IC
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

IO
N

 E
N

T
E

R
P

R
IS

E
 F

U
N

D
 F

Y
2
0
2
5
 B

U
D

G
E

T
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

 

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 P

U
R

P
O

S
E

S
 O

N
L

Y

P
u

b
li

c 
H

ea
lt

h

31



 

Article 8 – Sewer Department Enterprise Fund Budget 

 
To see if the Town will vote pursuant to the provision of G.L. c.44, Section §53F ½ to raise and 
appropriate, transfer from available funds in the Treasury, if any, and/or borrow a sufficient sum 
of money to fund the Sewer Department for Fiscal Year 2025; or take any other action relative 
thereto. 
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $  
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote pursuant to the provision of G.L. c.44, §53F½ to 
appropriate the sum of $8,887,548.00 to fund the Sewer Department for Fiscal Year 2025, with 
$8,887,548.00  to be raised from FY2025 Sewer Enterprise revenue. 
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 12-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 8 as written in the 
warrant. 
  

32



R
ev

e
n

u
e

A
ct

u
a

l
 

  
 

E
x
p

en
d

it
u

re
s

A
ct

u
a
l

V
o
te

d
 B

u
d

g
et

S
el

ec
t 

B
o
a
rd

 F
in

a
n

c
e
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

F
Y

2
0

2
3

F
Y

2
0

2
4

F
Y

2
0
2
5

F
Y

2
0
2
3

F
Y

2
0
2
4

F
Y

2
0
2
5

F
Y

2
0
2
5

S
ew

er
 D

ep
a

rt
m

en
t

 
 

O
p

er
a
ti

n
g
 B

u
d

g
et

U
se

r 
F

ee
s

6
,9

7
5

,1
9

7
$

  
  
  
  
  

7
,4

3
7

,2
7

6
$

  
  
  
  
  

8
,8

8
7
,5

4
8

$
  
  
  
  
  

S
al

ar
ie

s
8
0
0
,5

9
4

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
8
3
9
,8

4
5

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
8
6
4
,1

6
2

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
6
4
,1

6
2

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

O
th

er
9

3
6

,8
2

9
$

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
C

ap
it

al
 I

m
p
ro

v
em

en
ts

5
1
,0

0
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
5
0
,0

0
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
0
,0

0
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
S

u
b
-T

o
ta

l 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l 

R
ev

en
u

e
7

,9
1

2
,0

2
6

$
  
  
  
  
  

7
,4

3
7

,2
7

6
$

  
  
  
  
  

8
,8

8
7
,5

4
8

$
  
  
  
  
  

E
x
p
en

se
s

6
,0

4
8
,2

0
2

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
,4

0
7
,8

3
6

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
,5

6
1
,1

0
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
6
,5

6
1
,1

0
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

O
th

er
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 S

o
u

rc
e
s

D
eb

t 
P

ri
n
ci

p
al

3
1
5
,6

9
2

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
4
7
4
,3

8
1

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
5
6
2
,7

9
3

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
6
2
,7

9
3

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

R
et

ai
n

ed
 E

ar
n

in
g
s

3
8

8
,3

8
7

$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
D

eb
t 

In
te

re
st

7
9
,6

0
1

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
2
7
2
,7

7
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
7
6
,4

9
3

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
7
6
,4

9
3

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
S

h
o
rt

 T
er

m
 I

n
te

re
st

1
2
1
,4

4
9

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
1
2
,8

6
3

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
4
3
,0

0
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
4
3
,0

0
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

In
d
ir

ec
t 

C
o
st

s
4
9
6
,9

8
8

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
5
2
5
,5

4
5

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
5
3
0
,0

0
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
3
0
,0

0
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l 
O

th
er

 F
u

n
d

in
g
 S

o
u

rc
es

-
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
3

8
8

,3
8

7
$

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

T
o

ta
l 

R
ev

e
n

u
e

7
,9

1
2

,0
2

6
$

  
  
  
  
  

7
,8

2
5

,6
6

3
$

  
  
  
  
  

8
,8

8
7
,5

4
8

$
  
  
  
  
  

O
p

er
a
ti

n
g
 B

u
d

g
et

7
,8

6
2
,5

2
5

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
,6

8
4
,2

4
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
,8

8
7
,5

4
8

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
8
,8

8
7
,5

4
8

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

S
E

W
E

R
 D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
 E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

 F
U

N
D

 F
Y

2
0
2
5
 B

U
D

G
E

T
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

 

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 P

U
R

P
O

S
E

S
 O

N
L

Y

33



 

 
Article 9 – Water Department Enterprise Fund Budget 

 

To see if the Town will vote pursuant to the provisions of G.L. c.44, §53F ½ to raise and 
appropriate, transfer from available funds in the Treasury, if any, and/or borrow a sufficient sum 
of money to fund the Water Department for Fiscal Year 2025; or take any other action relative 
thereto. 
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $ 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote pursuant to the provisions of G.L. c. 44 §53F ½ to 
appropriate the sum of $6,518,586.00 to fund the Water Department for Fiscal Year 2025, with 
$5,888,586.00 to be raised from FY2025 Water Department Enterprise revenue and $200,000.00 
from retained earnings and $430,000.00 from the MWRA Infrastructure Fund.   
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 12-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 9 as written in the 
warrant. 
  

34



R
ev

en
u

e
A

ct
u

a
l

E
st

im
a
te

d
 E

st
im

a
te

d
 

E
x
p

en
d

it
u

re
s

A
ct

u
a
l

V
o

te
d

 B
u

d
g

et
 

S
el

ec
t 

B
o

a
rd

 F
in

a
n

ce
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

F
Y

2
0
2
3

F
Y

2
0
2
4

F
Y

2
0
2
5

F
Y

2
0
2
3

F
Y

2
0

2
4

F
Y

2
0

2
5

F
Y

2
0

2
5

  
 

O
p

er
a
ti

n
g
 B

u
d

g
et

U
se

r 
F

ee
s

4
,1

8
3
,8

6
3

$
  
  
  
  
  

4
,2

3
4
,7

2
2

$
  
  
  

  
  

5
,8

9
0
,0

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

S
al

ar
ie

s
9
4
8

,5
6

2
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

9
8

2
,9

4
8

$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1

,0
6

0
,9

7
3

$
  
  
  
  
  

1
,0

6
0

,9
7

3
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

O
th

er
6
3
4
,6

5
2

$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
4
0
0
,0

0
0

$
  
  
  

  
  

  
 

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

C
ap

it
al

 I
m

p
ro

v
em

en
ts

-
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
S

u
b
-T

o
ta

l 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l 

R
ev

en
u
e

4
,8

1
8
,5

1
5

$
  
  
  
  
  

4
,6

3
4
,7

2
2

$
  
  
  

  
  

5
,8

9
0
,0

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

E
x
p
en

se
s

1
,6

3
8

,9
0

8
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
,8

4
4

,8
1

2
$

  
  
  
  
  

1
,8

8
6

,3
8

8
$

  
  
  
  
  

1
,8

8
6

,3
8

8
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

O
th

er
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 S

o
u

rc
es

D
eb

t 
P

ri
n
ci

p
al

1
,8

9
5

,7
4

4
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
,7

1
2

,9
5

5
$

  
  
  
  
  

1
,7

6
8

,6
5

0
$

  
  
  
  
  

1
,7

6
8

,6
5

0
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

R
et

ai
n
ed

 E
ar

n
in

g
s

2
0
0
,0

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

D
eb

t 
In

te
re

st
4
3
3

,3
0

3
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

5
3

1
,5

8
8

$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
9

3
6

,0
7

5
$

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
9

3
6

,0
7

5
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

M
W

R
A

 I
n
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

1
,2

8
9
,8

3
6

$
  
  
  

  
  

4
3
0
,0

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

S
h
o
rt

 T
er

m
 I

n
te

re
st

6
8

8
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

5
,2

7
6

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1

6
,5

0
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1

6
,5

0
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

In
d
ir

ec
t 

C
o
st

s
5
9
2

,6
0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

8
4

6
,9

7
9

$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
8

5
0

,0
0

0
$

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
8

5
0

,0
0

0
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l 
O

th
er

 F
u
n
d
in

g
 S

o
u
rc

es
-

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
,2

8
9
,8

3
6

$
  
  
  

  
  

6
3
0
,0

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

T
o

ta
l 

R
ev

en
u

e
4
,8

1
8
,5

1
5

$
  
  
  
  
  

5
,9

2
4
,5

5
8

$
  
  
  

  
  

6
,5

2
0
,0

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

O
p

er
a
ti

n
g
 B

u
d

g
et

5
,5

0
9

,8
0

5
$
  

  
  

  
  

5
,9

2
4

,5
5

8
$

  
  
  
  
  

6
,5

1
8

,5
8

6
$

  
  
  
  
  

6
,5

1
8

,5
8

6
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

W
A

T
E

R
 D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
 E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

 F
U

N
D

 F
Y

2
0
2
5
 B

U
D

G
E

T
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

 

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 P

U
R

P
O

S
E

S
 O

N
L

Y

W
a

te
r 

D
ep

a
rt

m
en

t

35



 

Article 10 - Cable Public Access Enterprise Fund - Appropriate for FY25 Cable Costs 

 

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds in the Treasury, 
if any, or borrow a sufficient sum of money to fund the Cable Public Access Enterprise Fund for 
Fiscal Year 2025; or take any action relative thereto. 
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $  
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote in accordance with the provisions of G.L. c.44, §53F½ 
to appropriate the sum of $491,400.00 to fund the Cable Public Access Enterprise Fund for Fiscal 
Year 2025, with $491,400.00 to be raised from FY2025 Cable Public Access Enterprise Fund 
revenue. 
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 11-0-1 to recommend the Motion for Article 10 as written in the 
warrant. (NOTE: David Lurie recused himself as he is a member of the SMAC Board. 
  

36



R
e
v
en

u
e

A
c
tu

a
l

E
st

im
a
te

d
 E

st
im

a
te

d
 

E
x

p
en

d
it

u
re

s
A

c
tu

a
l

V
o
te

d
 B

u
d

g
et

 
S

el
ec

t 
B

o
a
rd

 F
in

a
n

ce
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

F
Y

2
0
2
3

F
Y

2
0
2
4

F
Y

2
0
2
5

F
Y

2
0

2
3

F
Y

2
0
2
4

F
Y

2
0
2
5

F
Y

2
0
2
5

  
 

O
p

er
a
ti

n
g
 B

u
d

g
et

U
se

r 
F

ee
s

3
6
7
,4

8
7

$
  
  

4
6
7
,3

8
5

$
  
  

4
9
1
,4

0
0

$
  
  

S
al

ar
ie

s
-

$
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

O
th

er
4
0
5

$
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

$
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

$
  
  
  
  
  

 
C

ap
it

al
 I

m
p
ro

v
em

en
ts

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
S

u
b
-T

o
ta

l 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l 

R
ev

en
u
e

3
6
7
,8

9
2

$
  
  

4
6
7
,3

8
5

$
  
  

4
9
1
,4

0
0

$
  
  

E
x
p
en

se
s

3
5
5

,6
6
3

$
  
  

4
6
7
,3

8
5

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
4
9
1
,4

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
4
9
1
,4

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

O
th

er
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 S

o
u

rc
es

D
eb

t 
P

ri
n
ci

p
al

-
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

R
et

ai
n
ed

 E
ar

n
in

g
s

-
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
D

eb
t 

In
te

re
st

-
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

M
W

R
A

 I
n
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

-
$

  
  
  
  
  

 
-

$
  
  
  
  
  

 
S

h
o
rt

 T
er

m
 I

n
te

re
st

-
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

In
d
ir

ec
t 

C
o
st

s
-

$
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 S
u
b
-T

o
ta

l 
O

th
er

 F
u
n
d
in

g
 S

o
u
rc

es
-

$
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

$
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

$
  
  
  
  
  

 

T
o

ta
l 

R
ev

en
u

e
3
6
7
,8

9
2

$
  
  

4
6
7
,3

8
5

$
  
  

4
9
1
,4

0
0

$
  
  

O
p

er
a
ti

n
g
 B

u
d

g
et

3
5
5

,6
6
3

$
  
  

4
6
7
,3

8
5

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
4
9
1
,4

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
4
9
1
,4

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
A

B
L

E
 P

U
B

L
IC

 A
C

C
E

S
S

  
E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

 F
U

N
D

 F
Y

2
0
2
5
 B

U
D

G
E

T
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

 

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 P

U
R

P
O

S
E

S
 O

N
L

Y

W
a
te

r 
D

e
p

a
rt

m
en

t

37



 

 

Article 11 – Reauthorization of Revolving Funds 

 
To see if the Town will vote pursuant to the provisions of M.G.L. Chapter 44, §53E½, as most 
recently amended, to establish fiscal year limitations on expenditures from the revolving funds 
established by the General Bylaws, Section 42, Revolving Funds, with such limitations to remain 
applicable from fiscal year to fiscal year until such time as they are later amended, and to carry 
forward any monies remaining in such funds from year to year unless otherwise transferred by 
Town Meeting; and to amend Section 42-1, entitled “Fund, programs or purposes and revenue,” 
as noted below with the language to be added shown in BOLD, or take any other action relative 
thereto. 
 

FUND  SPENDING LIMIT 

Council on Aging  $50,000 

Recreation  $200,000 

Geographic Information   
Systems 

 $15,000 

Youth Commission  $50,000 

Community Events  $10,000 

Conservation   Commission  $50,000 

Board of Health  $120,000 

Stormwater  $50,000 

Compost bin/Rain barrel   $2,300 

 

  

38



 

 

Fund Programs or Purposes Department Receipts 

Board of Health Continuous training and education; purchase 
of reference materials; equipment purchase, 
training and operating expenses to maintain 
the proper tools to use on site inspections, 
such as a "PID" (photo ionization detector); 
the sampling and testing of soil, surface 
water, groundwater and air in accordance 
with the monitoring for emissions levels of 
hazardous substances; hiring of qualified 
consultants for specialized scientific, 
administrative and advisory support; hiring of 
support including specialists to perform 
seminars to promote public awareness. 

  
Contract for services rendered for the 
implementation of the Municipal Hazardous 
Materials Collection Day Program. 

  
To pay the salary and benefits of a full-time 
Assistant Sanitarian. 

  
Materials and services to be used in the 
implementation of the Tobacco Control 
Program aimed at preventing the sale of 
tobacco products to minors; restricting the sale 
of tobacco products and nicotine delivery 
products; the use of tobacco products on public 
owned property; and to ensure the safe 
distribution of medical marijuana products to 
the public. 

  
Materials to be used in the implementation of 
the dumpster regulations. 

  
Materials and equipment to be used in the 
implementation of the inspection programs 
relative to food establishments, swimming 
pools, recreational day camps and housing. 

  
Contracts for Services to Secure 

Condemned Buildings and Properties, 

Consultants not otherwise covered by G.L. 

c. 44, § 53G.  

  

Annual permit filing 
fees as specified under 
the fee schedule of 
Chapter 113, § 113-24; 
fines collected for 
violations of Chapter 
113, § 113-27; monetary 
penalties collected for 
violations of Chapter 
113 cited under the 
noncriminal disposition 
procedure set forth in 
MGL c. 40, § 21D 
Permit, licensing and 
inspection fees collected 
 

 
 

39



 

Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Town Manager 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $  
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote pursuant to the provisions of M.G.L. Chapter 44, 
§53E½, as most recently amended, to establish fiscal year limitations on expenditures from the 
revolving funds established by the General Bylaws, Section 42, Revolving Funds, with such 
limitations to remain applicable from fiscal year to fiscal year until such time as they are later 
amended, as set forth in the warrant, and to carry forward any monies remaining in such funds 
from year to year unless otherwise transferred by Town Meeting, and to amend Section 42-1, 
entitled “Fund, programs or purposes and revenue,” as printed in the warrant; 
 
 

FUND  SPENDING LIMIT 

Council on Aging  $50,000 

Recreation  $200,000 

Geographic Information   
Systems 

 $15,000 

Youth Commission  $50,000 

Community Events  $10,000 

Conservation   Commission  $50,000 

Board of Health  $120,000 

Stormwater  $50,000 

Compost bin/Rain barrel   $2,300 

 

  

40



 

Fund Programs or Purposes Department Receipts 

Board of Health Continuous training and education; purchase 
of reference materials; equipment purchase, 
training and operating expenses to maintain 
the proper tools to use on site inspections, 
such as a "PID" (photo ionization detector); 
the sampling and testing of soil, surface 
water, groundwater and air in accordance 
with the monitoring for emissions levels of 
hazardous substances; hiring of qualified 
consultants for specialized scientific, 
administrative and advisory support; hiring of 
support including specialists to perform 
seminars to promote public awareness. 

  
Contract for services rendered for the 
implementation of the Municipal Hazardous 
Materials Collection Day Program. 

  
To pay the salary and benefits of a full-time 
Assistant Sanitarian. 

  
Materials and services to be used in the 
implementation of the Tobacco Control 
Program aimed at preventing the sale of 
tobacco products to minors; restricting the sale 
of tobacco products and nicotine delivery 
products; the use of tobacco products on public 
owned property; and to ensure the safe 
distribution of medical marijuana products to 
the public. 

  
Materials to be used in the implementation of 
the dumpster regulations. 

  
Materials and equipment to be used in the 
implementation of the inspection programs 
relative to food establishments, swimming 
pools, recreational day camps and housing. 

  
Contracts for Services to Secure 

Condemned Buildings and Properties, 

Consultants not otherwise covered by G.L. 

c. 44, § 53G.  

  

Annual permit filing 
fees as specified under 
the fee schedule of 
Chapter 113, § 113-24; 
fines collected for 
violations of Chapter 
113, § 113-27; monetary 
penalties collected for 
violations of Chapter 
113 cited under the 
noncriminal disposition 
procedure set forth in 
MGL c. 40, § 21D 
Permit, licensing and 
inspection fees collected 
 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 12-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 11 as written in the 
warrant. 

41



 

Article 12 - Collective Bargaining Articles - Police Superior Officers 

 
To see if the Town will vote to appropriate a sum of money to fund the first year (FY 25) of a 3-
year Collective Bargaining Agreement by and between the Town of Stoughton and the Stoughton 
Police Superior Officers Union, MCOP, LOCAL 461, and to meet such appropriation that said 
sum of money be raised and appropriated, transferred from Free Cash, and/or transferred from 
other available funds, and to authorize the Town Accountant to allocate such sums to the Police 
Department operating budget; or take any other action relative thereto. 
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Town Manager 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs: Funded through FY25 Operating Budget 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to implement the terms of a Collective Bargaining 
Agreement between the Town of Stoughton and the Stoughton Police Superior Officers Union, 
MCOP, LOCAL 461, Council 93 for three years, with the funds needed for the first year (FY25) 
to be appropriated under Article 15.   
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 12-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 12 as written in the 
warrant. 
 

Article 13 - Fund the CBA for Patrolmen’s Union 

 
To see if the Town will vote to appropriate a sum of money to fund the first year (FY 25) of a 3-
year Collective Bargaining Agreement by and between the Town of Stoughton and the Stoughton 
Police Patrolmen’s Union, and to meet such appropriation that said sum of money be raised and 
appropriated, transferred from Free Cash, and/or transferred from other available funds, and to 
authorize the Town Accountant to allocate such sums to the Police Department operating budget; 
or take any other action relative thereto. 
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Town Manager 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  Funded through FY25 Operating Budget  
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to implement the terms of a Collective Bargaining 
Agreement between the Town of Stoughton and the Stoughton Police Patrolmen’s Union for three 
years, with the funds needed for the first year (FY25) to be appropriated under Article 15.   
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 12-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 13 as written in the 
warrant. 
  

42



 

Article 14 – Unpaid Bills 

 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate or transfer from available funds in the 
Treasury, if any, a sufficient sum of money to pay any unpaid bills from prior fiscal years in excess 
of departmental appropriations; or take any other action relative thereto. 
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Town Manager 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $6,517.67 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to appropriate $8,242.67 to pay unpaid bills, as shown 
in the chart below, from prior fiscal year(s) and to meet this appropriation, $1,026.19 be 
appropriated from the FY2024 Water budget, $2,935.96 to be appropriated from the FY2024 
Sewer budget, $2,233.00 appropriated from the FY2024 Snow & Ice budget and $322.52 
appropriated from the FY2024 Cedar Hill budget, and $1,725.00 appropriated from the FY24 
School Department budget. 
 

Department Vendor Invoice # Date  Amount 
Proposed Funding 

Source 

Water 
National 
Grid 53645-10015 5/30/2023 $  542.78 

FY24 Water 
Department 

Water 
National 
Grid 53645-10015 4/28/2023  $  483.41 

FY24 Water 
Department 

Sewer 
National 
Grid 00653-90007 10/27/2022  $  2,244.39 

FY24 Sewer 
Department 

Sewer 
National 
Grid 00653-90007 11/29/2022  $  691.57 

FY24 Sewer 
Department 

Snow & Ice Multiple 
FY2023 
Meals 6/30/2023  $  2,233.00 

FY24 Snow & Ice 
Department 

Cedar Hill 
Golf 

Columbia 
Gas / Now 
Eversource 

990-222-000-
2 4/12/2016  $  322.52 

FY24 Cedar Hill 
Golf Department 

School 
Jennifer 
Raymond A-1001 10/11/2023 $1,725.00 

FY School 
Department 

    $8,242.67  

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 12-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 14 as written in the 
warrant. 

43



 

Article 15 – General Fund Operating Budget 

 
To see what sum of money the Town will vote to raise and support and/or transfer from available 
funds in the Treasury, if any, for the maintenance and support of the several departments of the 
Town and for any other usual or necessary Town charges for the Fiscal Year 2025; or take any 
other action relative thereto. 
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Town Manager 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $  
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to appropriate $131,361,246.00 for the maintenance 
and support of the several departments of the Town for Fiscal 2025 and that such sum be expended 
only for the purposes as described and further, that to meet this appropriation: 

$675,000.00 be transferred and appropriated Free Cash 

$618,725.00 be transferred and appropriated from Overlay Surplus 

$130,067,521.00 to be raised in the tax levy 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Took (5) five votes regarding the General Fund Operating Budget. 
 
Department 161 – Town Clerk: Finance Committee voted 8-0-2 to Accept and Recommend to 
Town Meeting the Department 161 Budget as printed in the warrant ($324,932). 
(Mark Struck and Joel Wolk recused themselves as they work the polls for the clerk.) 
 
Department 541 - Council on Aging: Finance Committee voted 11-0-1 to Accept and Recommend 
to Town Meeting the Department 541 budget as printed in the warrant ($438,356). 
(Lauren Morris recused herself as she serves on the COA Board.) 
 
Department 543 - Veterans Services: Finance Committee voted 11-2 to Accept and Recommend 
to Town Meeting the Department 543 budget as printed in the warrant ($434,710). 
 
Department 300 - Stoughton Public Schools: Finance Committee voted 8-4-1 to Accept and 
Recommend to Town Meeting the Department 300 budget of $62,868,429. 
(Dianne Dolan recused herself as she works for the School department) 
(David Lurie, Lisa Lyons, Johna Rosenblatt, and Elliot Hansen gave the following reason for 
voting against this budget: 
“School budget is dependent on positions created by ESSER III grants from FY2024 to bring 
children back into classrooms during the COVID pandemic. The FY2025 budget converts ESSER 
III positions into unnecessary Special Ed positions since the pandemic ended in the previous year.” 
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 9-3 to Accept and Recommend to Town Meeting the Remaining 
Department Budgets and, including the four Departments above, the maintenance and support of 
the several departments of the Town for Fiscal 2025 not to exceed a total of $131, 261,246. 

44



 

Article 16 – Supplemental Fiscal year 2024 Departmental Budgets 

 
To see if the Town will vote to transfer available funds in the Treasury, if any, a sufficient sum of 
money to supplement FY24 departmental budgets or fund previously approved articles; or take 
any other action relative thereto. 
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs: $ TBD 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: Refer to Town Meeting. 
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 12-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 16 as written in the 
warrant. 
 

Article 17 – Deposit to Stabilization Fund 

 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate and/or transfer available funds, if any, in the 
Treasury, to fund the Stabilization Fund established in accordance with G.L. c. 40, Section 5B; or 
take any other action relative thereto.   
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Town Manager 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $375,000  
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to deposit $850,000 to the Stabilization Fund and that 
to meet this appropriation, $850,000 be transferred from Free Cash. 
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 12-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 17 as written in the 
warrant. 
 

  

45



 

Article 18 – Community Preservation Committee FY2025 Budget/ Report 
 
To see if the Town will vote to hear and act on the report and recommendations of the Community 
Preservation Committee, including to appropriate from the Community Preservation Fund FY 
2025 estimated annual revenues; a sum of money to meet the administrative expenses and all other 
necessary and proper expenses of the Community Preservation Committee for Fiscal Year 2025 
and to reserve for the future appropriation a sum of money for open space, including land for 
recreational use, historic resources, and community housing and further, to Preservation Projects 
of purposes; all as recommended by the Community Preservation Committee; or take any other 
action relative thereto;  
 
Notes: This is the annual article to fund the CPA budget, as prepared by the Town Accountant, 
and presented every year. 
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Community Preservation Committee 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Cost: $ 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to appropriate or reserve from Community 
Preservation Fund FY2025 estimated annual revenues and from the Community Preservation Fund 
the amounts recommended by the Community Preservation Committee for Committee 
administrative expenses in Fiscal Year 2025 and for other CPA purposes, as specified below, with 
each item considered a separate appropriation: 

 

From Community Preservation Fund FY2025 Estimated Annual Revenues 
  

Community Preservation Administrative Expenses                        $58,748 
  

Community Housing Reserve                                                          $117,731 

Historic Resources Reserve                                                             $117,731 

Open Space Reserve                                                                        $117,731 

FY2025 Budgeted Annual Reserve                                                 $765,371 

 

And further, to transfer the sum of $83,835 from the Open Space Reserve, $19,600 from the 
Historic Resources Reserve, $32,500 from the Community Housing Reserve, and $252,513 
from the Undesignated Fund Balance for the following: 

Long-term debt service          $345,298 

Unissued debt service          $43,150 

COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE: Recommended 8-0. 

FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 12-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 18 as written in the 
warrant. 
 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS: Voted 6-0 to recommend Article 18 to Town Meeting. 

46



 

Article 19 – Appropriate Funds from the Fiscal 2025 Operating Budget to OPEB 

 
To see if the Town will appropriate any excess balance from the FY 2025 operating budget, or 
from any other available source, to the Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) trust; or take any 
other action relative thereto. 
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Town Manager 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $10,000  
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town appropriate $10,000 from Free Cash to the Other Post 
Employment Benefits (OPEB) trust.  
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 12-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 19 as written in the 
warrant. 
 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS: Voted 6-0 to recommend Article 19 to Town Meeting. 
 

 

Article 20 - Public Works and Facilities Capital  

 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds in the Treasury, 
if any, including but not limited to any of the Enterprise Funds of the Town, or borrow a sufficient 
sum or sums of money to replace and/or purchase and/or lease purchase for terms of up to or more 
than three years, the following items, including equipping of vehicles and equipment, and, as 
applicable, professional engineering, architectural services, design, site preparation and 
demolition, installation, and all other incidental and related Costs, all as set forth in the chart below; 
or take any other action relative thereto. 
 
Item #1: Rack Truck  $151,000 
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Superintendent of Public Works  
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $151,000 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to appropriate from Free Cash $151,000 to replace 
and/or purchase and/or lease purchase for terms of up to or more than three years, the following 
item, including equipping of vehicles and equipment all other incidental and related Costs, all as 
set forth in the chart below: 
 
Item #1: Rack Truck  $151,000 
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 12-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 20 as written in the 
warrant. 
 
MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS: Voted 6-0 to Approve Article 20. 

47



 

Article  21 - Town Buildings and Facilities Maintenance and Upgrades 

 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds in the Treasury, 
if any, including but not limited to any of the Enterprise Funds of the Town, or borrow a sufficient 
sum or sums of money to undertake maintenance, extraordinary maintenance, improvements, 
repairs, upgrades, modifications and the like at Town-owned buildings and facilities including but 
not limited to, as applicable, professional engineering/architectural services, design, site 
preparation and demolition, installation, and all other incidental and related costs, or take any other 
action relative thereto.  
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Superintendent of Public Works  
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $75,000  
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to appropriate from Free Cash $75,000 to undertake 
maintenance, extraordinary maintenance, improvements, repairs, upgrades, modifications and the 
like at Town-owned buildings and facilities including but not limited to, as applicable, professional 
engineering/architectural services, design, site preparation and demolition, installation, and all 
other incidental and related costs.  
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 12-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 21 as written in the 
warrant. 
 
MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS: Voted 6-0 to Approve Article 21. 
 

  

48



 

Article 22 -  Police Department Capital 

 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds in the Treasury, 
if any, and/or borrow a sufficient sum of money to purchase capital for the Police Department; or 
take any other action relative thereto. 
 
Item #1: Cruisers (3 standard, 1 unmarked) $255,000 
Item #2: Firearms $160,000 
Item #3: Ballistic Vests (49) $72,000 
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Police Chief  
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $487,000  
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to appropriate $487,000 to purchase capital for the 
Police Department, all as set forth in the chart below; and that to meet this appropriation $487,000 
be transferred from Free Cash: 
 
Item #1: Cruisers (3 standard, 1 unmarked) $320,500 
Item #2: Firearms $94,500 
Item #3: Ballistic Vests (49) $72,000 
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 10-2 to recommend the Motion for Article 22 as written in the 
warrant. 
 
MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS: Voted 6-0 to Approve Article 22. 
 

  

49



 

Article 23 - Fire Department Capital                                                 

 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds in the Treasury, 
if any, and/or borrow a sufficient sum of money to purchase capital for the Fire Department; or 
take any other action relative thereto. 
 
Item #1: Ambulance  $450,000 
Item #2: Ladder 2 Refurbishment $200,000 
Item #3: Incident Command Vehicle $90,000 
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Fire Chief 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $740,000  
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to appropriate $740,000  to purchase capital for the 
Fire Department, all as set forth in the chart below, including the payment of costs incidental or 
related thereto, and, to meet this appropriation $740,000 be transferred from Free Cash.     
 
Item #1: Ambulance  $450,000 
Item #2: Ladder 2 Refurbishment $200,000 
Item #3: Incident Command Vehicle $90,000 
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 12-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 23 as written in the 
warrant. 
 
MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS: Voted 6-0 to Approve Article 23. 
  

50



 

Article 24 -  Sewer Capital - Inflow and Infiltration 

 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds in the 
Treasury, if any, or borrow or fund from retained earnings a sufficient sum of money to continue 
improving the sewer system and reduce infiltration and inflow of groundwater and water from 
other sources, including but not limited to investigation of sources of water loading from rain 
leaders, or sump pumps but not limited to, as applicable, professional engineering/architectural 
services, design, site preparation and demolition, installation, and all other incidental and related 
costs, or take any other action relative thereto. 
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Sewer Superintendent 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $400,000  
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to appropriate $400,000.00 to continue improving the 
sewer system and reduce infiltration and inflow of ground water and water from other sources, 
including but not limited to investigation of sources of water loading from rain leaders, or sump 
pumps but not limited to, as applicable, professional engineering/architectural services, design, 
site preparation and demolition, installation, and all other incidental and related costs,  and that to 
meet this appropriation $400,000.00 be transferred from Sewer Enterprise Fund retained earnings.   
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 12-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 24 as written in the 
warrant. 
 
MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS: Voted 6-0 to Approve Article 24. 
  

51



 

Article 25 -  Water and Sewer Department Capital  

 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds in the Treasury, 
if any, and/or borrow or fund from retained earnings a sufficient sum of money to design, permit, 
install and construct, and purchase capital improvement items and projects for the Water and Sewer 
Department Department; or take any other action relative thereto. 
 

Item #1: New Jet Truck $350,000 
Item #2: Two F250 Work Trucks with Plows $154,000 (Replacements) 
Item #3: One (1) New F250 Work Truck with Plow $82,000  
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Water and Sewer Superintendent 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $586,000 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to appropriate $586,000 to design, permit, install and 
construct, and purchase capital improvement items and projects for the Water and Sewer 
Departments, all as set forth in the chart below, including the payment of costs incidental or related 
thereto; and that to meet this appropriation, the Treasurer, with the approval of the Select Board is 
authorized to borrow $586,000 and to issue bonds or notes therefore pursuant to Chapter 44 of the 
General Laws or any other enabling authority, and further, although these bonds and notes will be 
considered general obligations of the Town, the debt service on these obligations is intended to be 
repaid by the Water and Sewer Enterprise Funds. 
 
Item #1: New Jet Truck $350,000 
Item #2: Two F250 Work Trucks with Plows $154,000 (Replacements) 
Item #3: One (1) New F250 Work Truck with Plow $82,000 
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 10-2 to recommend the Motion for Article 25 as written in the 
warrant. 
 
MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS: Voted 6-0 to Approve Article 25. 
  

52



 

Article 26 - Pratt’s Court Water Treatment Improvements 

 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds in the Treasury, 
if any, and/or borrow a sum of money for the purpose of financing the design, permitting and 
construction of upgrades and improvements of the Water Treatment Plant for the Pratt’s Court 
water supply sources, required for the treatment of per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) in 
said water supply sources, filter media change-out for iron and manganese removal, install three 
new well pumps, and all incidental and related costs, or take any other action relative thereto. 
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Water Superintendent 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $4,440,000 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to appropriate $4,440,000 for the purpose of financing 
the design, permitting and construction of upgrades and improvements of the Water Treatment 
Plant for the Pratt’s Court water supply sources, required for the treatment of per- and 
polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) in said water supply sources, filter media change-out for iron 
and manganese removal, install three new well pumps, and all incidental and related costs;  and 
that to meet this appropriation, the Treasurer, with the approval of the Select Board is authorized 
to borrow $4,440,000.00 and to issue bonds or notes therefore pursuant to Chapter 44 and/or 
Chapter 29C of the General Laws or any other enabling authority; that all or a portion of this 
appropriation may be borrowed from the Massachusetts Clean Water Trust and that in connection 
therewith, the Treasurer or the Town Manager, or any other appropriate Town official, is 
authorized to sign a financing agreement, or agreements, and a project regulatory agreement, or 
agreements, and any other documents relating to such borrowing from the Trust,  and further, 
although these bonds and notes will be considered general obligations of the Town, the debt service 
on these obligations is intended to be repaid by the Water Enterprise Fund.   
 
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 10-2 to recommend the Motion for Article 26 as written in the 
warrant. 
 
MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS: Voted 5-0-1 to Approve Article 26. 
  

53



 

Article 27 -  Cedar Hill Capital  

 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds in the Treasury, 
if any, and/or borrow, or fund from retained earnings, a sufficient sum of money to design, permit, 
install and construct and purchase capital improvements projects and items for the Cedar Hill Golf 
Course; and to determine whether this appropriation shall be raised from borrowing or otherwise; 
or take any other action relative thereto. 
 
Item #1: Cart and Equipment Storage Tent $30,000  
Item #2: Course Renovations  $40,000 
Item #3: Greens Roller $18,000 
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Cedar Hill Superintendent 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $88,000 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to appropriate and fund from retained earnings, 
$88,000 to design, permit, install and construct and purchase capital improvements projects and 
items for the Cedar Hill Golf Course, all as set forth in the chart below: 
 
Item #1: Cart and Equipment Storage Tent $30,000 
Item #2: Course Renovations  $40,000 
Item #3: Greens Roller $18,000 
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 12-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 27 as written in the 
warrant. 
 
MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS: Voted 5-0-1 to Approve Article 27. 
Note: Cynthia Walsh abstained due to being a member of Cedar Hill Board. 
 
 

  

54



 

Article 28 - Town Pond Management Program 

 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds in the Treasury, 
if any, and/or borrow a sufficient sum of money for the continuation of the Town of Stoughton’s 
Town-wide lake/pond management program to include engineering, consulting, studies and 
ongoing treatment to control exotic and invasive aquatic vegetation in our Town lakes and ponds, 
including all incidental and related expenses; or take any action relative thereto. 
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Conservation Commission   
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs: $64,000 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to appropriate $67,000 for the continuation of the 
Town of Stoughton’s Town-wide pond management program to include engineering, consulting, 
studies and ongoing treatment to control exotic and invasive aquatic vegetation in our Town ponds, 
including all incidental and related expenses, and that to meet this appropriation, $67,000 be 
transferred from Free Cash. 
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 10-2 to recommend the Motion for Article 28 as written in the 
warrant. 
 
MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS: Voted 5-0-1 to Approve Article 28. 
Note: Michael Horan abstained due to being a member of the Conservation Commission. 
 

Article 29 – Intersection Improvements Design - Plain and West Street Intersection 
 

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds in the Treasury, 
if any, and/or borrow a sufficient sum of money for professional consulting services to provide 
survey, civil engineering, landscape design, and other related consulting services with respect to 
traffic improvements at the West Street/ Plain Street Intersection and surrounding areas, or take 
any action relative thereto. 
 

Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Town Engineer 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $55,000 
 

PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to appropriate $55,000 for professional consulting 
services to provide survey, civil engineering, landscape design, and other related consulting 
services with respect to traffic improvements at the West Street/ Plain Street Intersection and 
surrounding areas, including the payment of costs incidental or related thereto; and that to meet 
this appropriation $55,000 be transferred from Free Cash.  
 

FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 12-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 29 as written in the 
warrant. 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS: Voted 5-1 to recommend Article 29 to Town Meeting. 
 

MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS: Voted 6-0 to Approve Article 29. 

55



 

ARTICLE 30 - Canton & School Street Intersection Improvements Design 

 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds in the Treasury, 
if any, or borrow a sum sufficient for the costs of a consultant to undertake transportation-related 
engineering analysis, design and surveying services for the Canton Street and School Street 
intersection and surrounding areas, including all incidental and related costs, or take any other 
action relative thereto. 
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Town Engineer 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $225,000 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to appropriate $225,000 for the costs of a consultant 
to undertake transportation-related engineering analysis, design and surveying services for the 
Canton Street and School Street intersection and surrounding areas, including all incidental and 
related costs; and that to meet this appropriation $225,000 be transferred from Free Cash.    
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 12-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 30 as written in the 
warrant. 
 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS: Voted 6-0 to recommend Article 30 to Town Meeting. 
 
MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS: Voted 5-0-1 to Approve Article 30: 
 
Article 31 – Cedar Hill Drainage and Parking Improvements - Design 
 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds in the Treasury, 
if any, and/or borrow a sufficient sum of money for professional consulting services to provide 
survey, civil engineering, and other related consulting services with respect to drainage, parking, 
traffic and landscape improvements at the Cedar Hill Golf Course or take any action relative 
thereto. 
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Town Engineer 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $67,000 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to appropriate $67,000 for professional consulting 
services to provide survey, civil engineering, and other related consulting services with respect to 
drainage, parking, traffic and landscape improvements at the Cedar Hill Golf Course, including 
the payment of costs incidental or related thereto; and that to meet this appropriation $67,000 be 
transferred from retained earnings.    
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 12-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 31 as written in the 
warrant. 
MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS: Voted 5-0-1 to Approve Article 31. 
Note: Cynthia Walsh abstained due to being a member of Cedar Hill Board 

56



 

Article 32 – Police Station Expansion and Renovation Design 
 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds in the 
Treasury, if any, or borrow a sum of money for the preparation of design documents for the 
construction, equipping and furnishing of an expansion and renovation of the existing Police 
Station, located at 26 Rose Street (Assessors’ Property ID 054 175 0), including but not limited 
to professional engineering/architectural and owner's project manager services, plans for 
demolition and removal of the existing building(s) or portions thereof, and site preparation, 
including any required testing and/or investigations, and all other incidental and related expenses; 
and to authorize the Board of Selectmen to enter into any agreements, including contracts for 
terms in excess of three years, and to execute all documents necessary to effectuate the purposes 
of the vote taken hereunder; or take any action related thereto. 
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Town Engineer 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $300,000  
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to appropriate the sum of $300,000.00 for the 
preparation of design documents, to include schematic documents, for the construction, equipping 
and furnishing of an expansion and renovation of the existing Police Station, located at 26 Rose 
Street (Assessors’ Property ID 054 175 0), including but not limited to professional 
engineering/architectural and owner's project manager services, plans for demolition and removal 
of the existing building(s) or portions thereof, and site preparation, including any required testing 
and/or investigations, and all other incidental and related expenses, and as funding therefor 
$300,000.00 be transferred from Free Cash.    
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 12-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 32 as written in the 
warrant. 
 
MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS: Voted 6-0 to Approve Article 32. 
 

  

57



 

Article 33 - Properties located at 760 Washington Street (Map 54, Lot 285) & Off Rose Street 

(Map 54, Lot 180)  

 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds in the Treasury, 
if any, or borrow a sufficient sum or sums of money to take by gift, negotiated purchase or eminent 
domain the property located at 760 Washington Street (Map 54, Lot 285) & Off Rose Street (Map 
54, Lot 180) , or take any other action relative thereto.  
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Town Manager  
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $750,000.00  
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to appropriate the sum of $1,193,000.00  to acquire, 
by gift, negotiated purchase or eminent domain, land, together with improvements thereon, the 
property known as the Malcolm Parsons building located at 760 Washington Street, being the same 
property described in Land Court Certificate No. 197218, consisting of approximately 0.293 acres, 
more or less, and property located off Rose Street denoted as Assessor’s Map 54, Lot 180 together 
with improvements thereon, for general municipal purposes; and to authorize the Select Board to 
enter into and/or execute any offers, licenses, temporary or permanent easements, agreements or 
instruments as may be necessary for such conveyance, and to expend funds which may be 
necessary for professional engineering, architectural, legal, design, and/or site investigation/testing 
services, site preparation and/or demolition, installation and all other incidental and related costs, 
on such terms as the Select Board deems appropriate, and, as funding therefor, to authorize the 
Treasurer, with the approval of the Select Board, to borrow said sum under and pursuant to the 
provisions of G.L. c.44, §7 or any other enabling authority.  
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 10-2 to recommend the Motion for Article 33 as written in the 
warrant. 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS: No votes taken at Intergovernmental Relations 

meeting due to lack of information provided at the public hearing.   
 
 
 

  

58



 

Article 34 – School Safety - Vestibules 
 
To see if the Town will vote to appropriate, borrow, and/or transfer from available funds in the 
Treasury, if any, for the upgrade of main entrance vestibules, including doors, frames, locks and 
technology at the Wilkins Elementary School, Jones Elementary School and O’Donnell Middle 
School, or take any other action relative thereto.  
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   School Committee 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $90,000  
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to appropriate $90,000 for the upgrade of main 
entrance vestibules, including doors, frames, locks and technology at the Wilkins Elementary 
School, Jones Elementary School and O’Donnell Middle School, including the payment of costs 
incidental or related thereto; and that to meet this appropriation $90,000 be transferred from Free 
Cash.      
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 8-3-1 to recommend the Motion for Article 34 as written in the 
warrant. (Dianne Dolan recused herself as she works for Stoughton Public Schools.) 
 
 
 

Article 35 – School Safety - Lining and Marking of Parking Lots 
 
To see if the Town will vote to appropriate, borrow, and/or transfer from available funds in the 
Treasury, if any, for the purposes of completing the marking, lines and signage of the parking lots 
at all PreK-8 schools, or take any other action relative thereto. 
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   School Committee 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $55,000  
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to appropriate $55,000 for the purposes of completing 
the marking, lines and signage of the parking lots at all PreK-8 schools, including the payment of 
costs incidental or related thereto; and that to meet this appropriation $55,000  be transferred from 
Free Cash.  
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 7-4-1 to recommend the Motion for Article 35 as written in the 
warrant. (Dianne Dolan recused herself as she works for Stoughton Public Schools.)  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

59



 

 

Article 36 – School Safety - Security Audit 
 
To see if the Town will vote to appropriate, borrow, and/or transfer from available funds in the 
Treasury, if any, for the purposes of hiring a professional school security consultant to complete a 
thorough and comprehensive safety/security audit of all eight (8) school buildings.  
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   School Committee 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $20,000  
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to appropriate $20,000 for the purposes of hiring a 
professional school security consultant to complete a thorough and comprehensive safety/security 
audit of all eight (8) school buildings; and that to meet this appropriation, that $20,000 be 
transferred from Free Cash.  
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 7-4-1 to recommend the Motion for Article 36 as written in the 
warrant. (Dianne Dolan recused herself as she works for Stoughton Public Schools.)  
 
MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS: Voted 6-0 to Approve Article 36 

 

Article 37 – Hebrew Senior Life Affordable Senior Housing - Project Support Funds 
 
To see if the Town will raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds in the Treasury, or 
borrow, pursuant to GL c. 44B, the Community Preservation Act, or pursuant to any other enabling 
authority, a sum of money to support the design, permitting and construction by Hebrew Senior 
Life of a senior housing complex with 200 units of age-restricted affordable housing for seniors on 
Assessor’s Map 043, Parcel 003; or take any other action relative thereto. 
  
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Community Preservation Committee  
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $2,300,000 
 
PROPOSED MOTION:  That the Town vote, pursuant to G.L. c.44B, the Community 

Preservation Act, to borrow from Stoughton Community Preservation Fund anticipated local 

revenue for a bond term of not less than twenty nor more than twenty-five years, the amount of 

$1,300,000.00, and that the treasurer, with the approval of the Select Board, be authorized to 

borrow said sum as authorized under the Community Preservation Program pursuant to 

Massachusetts General Laws, chapter 44B section 11; and to appropriate from the Community 

Preservation Fund Undesignated Fund Balance the sum of $1,000,000.00, to support the design, 

permitting and construction by Hebrew Senior Life of a senior housing complex with 200 units 

of age-restricted affordable housing for seniors on Assessor’s Map 043, Parcel 003. The amount 

of $1,300,000.00 shall be available for Phase I; the remaining $1,000,000,00 shall be available 

for the cost of bonding, and for the construction of Phase II; and provided further that such 

support is subject to and contingent upon construction on Phase I beginning within three years 

60



 

of Town Meeting approval and Phase II construction beginning within five years of Town 

Meeting approval; and to authorize the Community Preservation Committee and the Select Board 

to submit on behalf of the town any and all applications deemed necessary for grants and/or 

reimbursements from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, or the United States, under any state 

or federal programs, for expenditures funded by this Article; said gifts or grants to be deposited 

in the Community Preservation Fund; and to authorize the Select Board to enter into all 

agreements and execute any and all instruments as may be necessary to effectuate said project.    

 
EXPLANATION: This project seeks the funds necessary to support the construction of an 
affordable senior living residential complex on property in Stoughton owned by the applicant, 
Hebrew Senior Life.  The total project cost is estimated at $101 million, of which $2.3 million, or 
approximately 2.3%, would be provided by the Town of Stoughton with the passage of this article.   
This is a two-phase project, with approximately half the units being constructed in each phase.  
Phase I will also include much of the basic infrastructure.  The motion dictates that $1.3 million of 
CPA funds are available for the first phase, and the remaining $1 million will be available to the 
applicant for constructing for the second phase, and to pay the cost of bonding Phase I.  The motion 
also requires Phase I to begin within three years of Town Meeting approval, and Phase II to begin 
within five years.  Additional language to be contained in the Grant Agreement between Hebrew 
Senior Life and the Town requires periodic project updates be given to the CPC, and specifies an 
expiration date on the availability of CPA funds, which is subject to one-year extensions upon 
request by the applicant and approval by the CPC.   

  

The need for affordable housing in Stoughton is tremendous.  It is especially pressing with regard 

to seniors.  All the units in this project will qualify as affordable and will be added to Stoughton’s 

count of affordable housing units.  The Town’s financial participation is required in order for the 

project to be eligible for the state and federal funding which will provide the majority of funding 

for the proposed facility.   That participation will be satisfied by the passage of this article.  In 

addition, the applicant will shoulder a substantial portion of the costs, and will secure funding from 

public and private financial institutions to cover the remainder.  

  

The CPC has unanimously recommended $2,300,000 for this project, with the funding for Phase 

I to be bonded for a term of between 20 and 25 years, and the funding for Phase II to be paid in 

cash. 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 6-6 to recommend the Motion for Article 37 as written in the 
warrant. MOTION FAILED 

 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS: Voted 6-0 to recommend Article 37 to Town Meeting. 
 
COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE: Recommended as a partially bonded article by 
the Community Preservation Committee, 8-0. 
 
 

  

61



 

Article 38 – Renovation of Town-Owned Barn on West Street 

 
To see if the Town will raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds in the Treasury, borrow, 
or fund, pursuant to GL c. 44B, the Community Preservation Act, a sum of money to fund the 
renovation of the barn on the property at Assessor’s Map 37, Parcel 34, or take any other action 
relative thereto. 
  
Inserted by:              Select Board 
Requested by:          Stoughton Historical Commission   
Date:                        February 6, 2024 
Estimated Cost:      $230,000.00 
 

PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote, pursuant to G.L. c.44B, the Community Preservation 
Act, to appropriate from the Community Preservation Fund Historic Preservation Reserve Account 
the sum of $230,000 to fund the renovation of the barn on the property at Assessor’s Map 37, 
Parcel 34.   
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 8-4 to recommend the Motion for Article 38 as written in the 
warrant. 
 
MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS: Voted 5-1 to Approve Article 38. 
 
COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE: Recommended as cash article by the 
Community Preservation Committee, 8-0. 
 
EXPLANATION: This project is the next step in the process begun at a previous Annual Town 
Meeting, where a consultant’s evaluation was authorized in order to determine the cost of the 
renovation.  That evaluation was done, and this article is the result.  The project’s cost of $230,000 
has been recommended by the CPC for inclusion in this warrant as a cash article. 
  

62



 

Article 39 – Historic Signage - Group 2 
 
To see if the Town will raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds in the Treasury, borrow, 
or fund, pursuant to GL c. 44B, the Community Preservation Act, a sum of money for the purchase 
and installation of fifteen (15) historic site signs in Stoughton, or take any other action relative 
thereto.  
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Stoughton Historical Commission 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $17,000 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote, pursuant to G.L. c.44B, the Community Preservation 
Act, to appropriate from the Community Preservation Fund Historic Preservation Account the sum 
of $17,000 for the purchase and installation of fifteen (15) historic site signs in Stoughton.    
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 12-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 39 as written in the 
warrant. 
 
MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS: Voted 5-1 to Approve Article 39. 
 
COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE: Recommended as cash article by the 
Community Preservation Committee, 8-0. 
  

63



 

Article 40 – Stoughton Youth Baseball Field Improvements 

 
To see if the Town will vote to cancel authorization for the expenditure of $145,000.00 for lighting 
at Miller Field and scoreboard replacements at Goff Field and O’Day Field approved under Article 
30 at the 2023 Annual Town Meeting, and to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds 
in the Treasury, borrow, or fund, under G.L. c. 44B, the Community Preservation Act, a sum of 
money for improvements at the Elm Street Complex, including new fences and protective padding, 
dugout renovations, walkway repairs, three new scoreboards and related electrical work, and other 
miscellaneous repairs and enhancements, or take any other action relative thereto. 
 

Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Stoughton Youth Baseball 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  Proposed New Project:                               $241,000.00    
                               Cancel Previous Authorization:         -$145,000.00 

Net Additional Cost Above Prior Appropriation:        $96,000.00  

 
PROPOSED MOTION:  That the Town vote to cancel authorization for the expenditure of 
$145,000.00 for lighting at Miller Field and scoreboard replacements at Goff Field and O’Day 
Field approved under Article 30 at the 2023 Annual Town Meeting, and pursuant to G.L. c.44B, 
the Community Preservation Act, to appropriate from the Community Preservation Fund 
Undesignated Fund Balance the sum of $241,000.00 for improvements at the Elm Street Complex, 
including new fences and protective padding, dugout renovations, walkway repairs, three new 
scoreboards and related electrical work, and other miscellaneous repairs and enhancements. 
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 12-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 40 as written in the 
warrant. 
 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS: Voted 6-0 to recommend Article 40 to Town Meeting. 
 
COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE: Recommended as cash article by the 
Community Preservation Committee, 7-0-1. 

EXPLANATION: Stoughton Youth Baseball was granted $145,000.00 at the 2023 Annual 

Town Meeting for renovations at the Elm Street Complex. This project was found to be impossible 
to proceed with, mainly due to wetlands issues at Miller Field. This is a revised project which 
includes replacing fencing, repairing dugouts, replacing three electronic scoreboards, walkway 
repairs, and renovating the point-of-sale area which generates income to support the organization. 
The project’s cost of $241,000.00, of which $145,000.00 will be available from the funds granted 
last year and canceled in this article, has been recommended by the CPC for inclusion in this 
warrant as a cash article. 

  

64



 

Article 41 – Renovation of Marks Field, Construction Phase 

 
To see if the Town will raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds in the Treasury, borrow, 
or fund, pursuant to GL c. 44B, the Community Preservation Act, a sum of money to fund the 
construction phase of the renovation of Marks Field, or take any other action relative thereto.  
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Stoughton Youth Lacrosse (StoLax) 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $518,000 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote, pursuant to G.L. c.44B, the Community Preservation 
Act, to appropriate from the Community Preservation Fund Undesignated Fund Balance the sum 
of $518,000.00 to fund the construction phase of the renovation of Marks Field.    
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 12-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 41 as written in the 
warrant. 
 
COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE: Recommended as cash article by the 
Community Preservation Committee, 8-0. 
 

EXPLANATION: Marks Field is a Town-owned athletic field which has gone unused for a number 
of years. Stoughton Youth Lacrosse (StoLax) leases the field from the Town, and is proposing to 
renovate it so that it is suitable for use as a lacrosse field. The project will include a new equipment 
shed, new fencing, and landscaping to restore the field to decent condition. Currently, the field is 
hazardous to walk across, much less play sports on, owing to the divots in the surface after years 
of neglect. This article is for the construction phase of the project. The project’s cost of $518,000 
has been recommended by the CPC for inclusion in this warrant as a cash article. 
  

65



 

Article 42 – Stoughton Motel Conversion 

 
To see if the Town will raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds in the Treasury, borrow, 
or fund, under G.L. c. 44B, the Community Preservation Act, a sum of money to support the 
conversion of the Stoughton Motel into twenty-four single-resident studio apartment housing units 
for homeless individuals, or take any other action relative thereto. 
  
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Father Bill’s & Mainspring, Inc. 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $250,000 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote, pursuant to G.L. c.44B, the Community Preservation 
Act, to appropriate from the Community Preservation Fund Community Housing Reserve the sum 
of $250,000 to support the conversion of the Stoughton Motel into twenty-four single-resident 
studio apartment housing units for homeless individuals.  
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 8-4 to recommend the Motion for Article 42 as written in the 
warrant. 
 
COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE: Recommended as cash article by the 
Community Preservation Committee, 4-3-1. 
 
EXPLANATION: Father Bill’s & MainSpring, Inc., a 501(c)3 organization dedicated to providing 
housing for the homeless in Southeastern Massachusetts for over 40 years, purchased the vacant 
Stoughton Motel last June, and seeks to convert it into 24 units of single-resident housing for 
homeless individuals. Father Bill’s & MainSpring has committed to using the CPA funding for 
construction costs as “last dollar in”, meaning it will spend State, Federal and other funding for 
this $11 million project before using Town funds.  
  

66



 

Article 43 – Bird Street Conservation Area Entryway Improvements 

 
To see if the Town will raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds in the Treasury, 
borrow, or fund, pursuant to GL c. 44B, the Community Preservation Act, a sum of money for the 
design and construction of entryway improvements at the Bird Street Conservation Area, to 
include an electronic gate, monitoring camera, utility infrastructure for the gate and camera, 
signage and fencing, and landscaping and tree work, or take any other action relative thereto  
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Conservation Commission 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $110,000 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote, pursuant to G.L. c.44B, the Community Preservation 
Act, to appropriate from the Community Preservation Fund Undesignated Fund Balance the sum 
of $110,000 to fund the design and construction of entryway improvements at the Bird Street 
Conservation Area, to include an electronic gate, monitoring camera, utility infrastructure for the 
gate and camera, signage and fencing, and landscaping and tree work.   
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 12-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 43 as written in the 
warrant. 
 

MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS: Voted 5-0-1 to Approve Article 43. 

Note: Michael Horan abstained due to being a member of the Conservation Commission. 
 
COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE: Recommended as cash article by the 
Community Preservation Committee, 8-0. 
 
EXPLANATION: Bird Street Conservation Area is one of the gems of Stoughton’s public open 
space, but access to it by car has been difficult, due to the lack of a dedicated parking area. That 
parking area will be funded by a MassTrails grant. This project will provide an electronic gate and 
monitoring camera similar to the equipment successfully installed recently at Glen Echo, in order 
to prevent after hours usage of the parking area. Additionally, updated signage and fencing will be 
installed, as well as related landscaping and tree work, which together will allow residents to enjoy 
Bird Street Conservation Area during daylight hours.  
  

67



 

ARTICLE 44 - Climate Action Plan Committee Consultant 

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, and/or transfer from available funds in the 
Treasury, if any, or borrow a sufficient sum of money not to exceed $100,000.00 for the purposes 
of hiring a consultant to assist the Committee in research, analysis, strategic planning, and 
preparation of a written report and recommendation outlining how the Town can efficiently 
minimize greenhouse gas emissions and other activity that contributes to climate change, and 
develop preparedness plans to protect the citizens of the Town, which appropriation may be 
supplemented by any available Federal and/or State grant monies and/or used to contribute 
matching funds toward any such grant, or take any other action relative thereto. 
 
Requested by: Stoughton Climate Action Plan Committee 
Inserted by: The Select Board 
Date: February 6, 2024 
Estimated Cost: $100,000.00 

PROPOSED MOTION: I move that the Town vote to appropriate $100,000.00 for the purposes of 
hiring a consultant or consultants to assist the Climate Action Committee in research, analysis, 
strategic planning, and preparation of a written report and recommendation outlining how the 
Town can efficiently minimize greenhouse gas emissions and other activity that contributes to 
climate change, and develop preparedness plans to protect the citizens of the Town; said hiring 
and expenditures to be subject to approval by the Town Manager, and further to authorize the 
Climate Action Committee together with the Town Manager to apply for and receive any available 
grants which may supplement said appropriation and/or contribute to matching funds toward any 
such grant; and to meet this appropriation that $100,000 be transferred from Free Cash. 

  
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 1-10 to recommend the Motion for Article 44 as written in the 
warrant. MOTION FAILED 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS: Voted 2-2-2 to recommend Article 44 to Town 
Meeting. MOTION FAILED 

Note: Motion failed (no’s & abstentions) due to the funding source of this article. 

EXPLANATION: In alignment with the Commonwealth of Massachusetts’s climate goals, and 
the 2023 Annual Town Meeting Vote approving Article 71, the goal of Stoughton’s climate action 
plan would be for the Town to reach net zero greenhouse gas emissions by 2050 or sooner. Expert 
assistance is critical in order to determine cost-effective steps needed to achieve emissions 
reduction targets, as well as to undertake climate adaptation measures.  

 

  

68



 

Article 45 - Zoning Bylaw Amendment – Stoughton Center District, Section 9.3.4 SCD Table 

of Use Regulations  

 
To see if the Town will vote to amend the Town of Stoughton Zoning Bylaw November 18, 2015 
as amended through May 22, 2022, Section 9.3.4, SCD Table of Use Regulations - A.3, as set forth 
below, with text to be deleted shown in bold strikethrough, and further that the Town Clerk be 
authorized to make clerical, editorial or other adjustments to effectuate the purposes hereof; or 
take any other action relative thereto. 
 
3. Entirely residential multifamily dwelling provided that no more than 10% of the total 

number of units at any one time be units of three or more bedrooms 

 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Town Planner 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $0 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to approve Article 45 as printed in the warrant and 
further that the Town Clerk be authorized to make clerical, editorial or other adjustments to 
effectuate the purposes hereof. 
 
PLANNING BOARD: Voted 5-0 to Recommend Approval of Article 45 to Town Meeting. 
 
MUNICIPAL REGULATIONS: Voted 7-0 to Recommend Article 45 to Town Meeting. 
 
  
Article 46 - Zoning Map Amendment  
 
To see if the Town will vote to amend the Town of Stoughton Zoning Bylaw and the Zoning Map 
as amended through November 6, 2023 by rezoning the following: 
The portion of Parcels identified on Assessors Map 56, Lots 12, 13, 15, 16, 17 & 18 currently 
zoned I (Industrial) Zone to GB (General Business) Zone as shown in Exhibit “A”; and to amend 
the Zoning Map in accordance with the above and as further shown on a plan entitled “Town of 
Stoughton Zoning Map” as amended through November 6, 2023, and further that the Town Clerk 
be authorized to make clerical, editorial or other adjustments to effectuate the purposes hereof; or 
take any action relative thereto. 
 

Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Town Planner 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $0 
 

PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to approve Article 46 as printed in the warrant. 
 

PLANNING BOARD: Voted 5-0 to Recommend Approval of Article 46 to Town Meeting. 
 
MUNICIPAL REGULATIONS: Voted 7-0 to Recommend Article 46 to Town Meeting. 

69



 

Article 47 - Zoning Bylaw Amendment - Zoning Bylaw Amendment – proposed Industrial-

2 (“I-2”) Zoning District, Section 2.1 Establishment of Zoning Districts, Section 9.3.4 SCD 

Table of Use Regulations and Zoning Map Amendment Proposed I2 zoning district.  
 
To see if the Town will vote to amend the Town of Stoughton Zoning Bylaw November 18, 2015 
as amended through May 22, 2022, and amend the Zoning Map dated as amended through 
November 6, 2023, as set forth below, with text to be inserted shown in bold underline, text to be 
deleted shown in bold strikethrough, and attached map, and further that the Town Clerk be 
authorized to make clerical, editorial or other adjustments to effectuate the purposes hereof; or 
take any other action relative thereto. 
  
Section 2.2.1   Division into Districts. 
  

Full Name Abbreviation 

Residential-Suburban A RA 

Residential-Suburban B RB 

Residential-Suburban C RC 

Residential-Urban RU 

Residential-Multifamily RM 

Central Business District CBD 

General Business GB 

Neighborhood Business NB 

Highway Business HB 

Industrial I 

Industrial 2 I-2 

70



 
71



 
72



 
73



 
74



 
75



 
76



 
77



 

 
78



 

4.2.5 SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS – ADDITIONAL DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 

CRITERIA FOR I-2 ZONING DISTRICT PROJECTS 

  

4.2.5.1 FLEXIBLE PARKING STRATEGIES & TRAFFIC DEMAND 

MANAGEMENT 

1.   Shared Use of Required Parking: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 

herein, the use of shared parking to fulfill parking demands that occur at different 

times of day is strongly encouraged. The minimum parking requirements in 

Section 6.1.6 may be reduced by the Planning Board through the Site Plan Review 

process or the Board of Appeals through Special Permit review (whichever is 

applicable) if the Applicant can demonstrate that shared spaces will meet parking 

demands by using acceptable methodologies, (e.g. the Urban Land Institute 

Shared Parking Report, ITE Shared Parking Guidelines, AASHTO A Policy on 

Geometric Design of Highways and Streets, or other approved studies). In 

considering waivers for shared parking strategies, the Planning Board or Board 

of Appeals shall make an express finding that shared parking strategies will meet 

parking demands and the waiver is a benefit to the proposal.  

  

2.   Shared Use of Required Parking allows for mixed industrial/commercial/office 

development and/or single-use developments near other uses to share parking, 

dedicate more of the landscape to usable building footprints and open spaces, and 

reduce the amount of impervious asphalted areas dedicated to cars for limited 

instances throughout the year of maximum car demand. 

  

3.   Flexible Minimum Parking Bank Option allows flexibility to allow a developer 

or property owner to reduce the amount of required parking based upon their 

particular circumstances by performing and submitting the following two 

analyses to the satisfaction and discretion of the Board of Appeals or Planning 

Board (whichever is applicable): (a) “Composition of Tenancy On-Site”; and (b) 

“Peak Parking and Traffic Loads To-Be Encountered”. The criteria for these 

analyses are found in Sec. 4.2.5.1.4.  Should the applicable PB or BA review 

authority allow a decrease in the amount of required off-street parking, that 

authority shall require that a portion of the site be reserved to meet the off-street 

parking spaces required by this Section. This reserved area shall not be developed 

and shall be either landscaped or maintained in a natural state. Said area shall 

not contribute towards the open space requirements set forth in 4.1.2, and §200 

Attachment 3.   

  

4.   Criteria for Analyses for the Flexible Minimum Parking Bank Option.  Should 

a development proponent pursue the flexible parking bank option in Sec. 4.2.5.1.3, 

the following criteria must be met to the discretion and satisfaction of the 

applicable authority: 

  

a.   The intent of Sec. 4.2.5.1.3 is preserved. 

b.   The amount of off-street parking to be provided will be sufficient to 

serve the uses for which it is intended. 

79



 

c.    The decrease in required off-street parking is based on a parking study 

prepared by a registered professional engineer. Said study shall include, at a 

minimum, the following: 

i.    Size and type of uses or activities on site; 

ii.   Composition of tenancy on site; 

iii. Rate of parking turnover. Peak traffic and parking loads to be 

encountered; 

iv. Local parking habits; 

v.   Availability of public transportation. 

  

4.2.5.2 LOW IMPACT DEVELOPMENT (“LID”) REQUIREMENTS 

  

4.2.5.2.1 As part of the Planning Board’s Site Plan Review process, 

development proposals shall be required to incorporate two (2) or more of 

the following Low Impact Development (LID) features. These LID 

requirements are in addition to meeting Town and State environmental 

protection requirements related to stormwater run-off retention, and 

aquifer protection and recharge. The requirement of LID features will 

result in development that treat stormwater management at the site level 

to manage it locally on-site instead of solely discharging off-site. This 

approach improves water quality, minimizes the need for expensive pipe-

and-pond stormwater systems, and creates more attractive developments. 

Requirement #1 for Parking Lot Design is required for all developments. 

Proposals that incorporate three (3) or more LID features may qualify for 

Planning Board Site Plan Review discretionary flexibility with regulatory 

requirements.  

  

1.      Parking Lot Design: (a) Create multiple smaller parking lots 

separated by natural vegetation, vegetated swales and bioretention 

areas; and/or (b) Create hybrid parking lots with conventional paving 

for driveways and aisles, and permeable paving for stalls. Permeable 

paving may also be appropriate for overflow parking areas, which are 

generally used only a few weeks out of the year; and/or (c) A bike rack 

and transit stop help to reduce the number of auto trips to the site. 

2.      Cisterns and Rain Barrels: Store rooftop runoff for reuse for 

landscaping and other non-potable uses. It involves directing each 

downspout to a 50- to 100-gallon rain barrel. A hose is attached to a 

faucet at the bottom of the barrel and water is distributed by gravity 

pressure. 

3.      Permeable Pavers: Permeable pavers when possible for walkways, 

patios, plazas, driveways, parking stalls, and overflow parking areas. 

Materials can include porous asphalt, pervious concrete, paving stones, 

and manufactured “grass pavers” made of concrete or plastic. 

Permeable paving is appropriate for pedestrian-only areas and for low- 

to medium-volume, low-speed areas such as overflow parking areas, 

alleys, and parking stalls.  

80



 

4.      Green Roofs: A low-maintenance vegetated roof system that stores 

rainwater in a lightweight engineered soil medium, where the water is 

taken up by plants and transpired into the air. 

5.      Bioretention “Cell” or “Rain Garden”: Shallow depressions that 

use soil, plants and microbes to treat stormwater before it is infiltrated 

or discharged.  

6.      “Pretreatment” Grass Filter Strips: Low-angle vegetated slopes 

designed to treat sheet flow runoff from adjacent impervious areas by 

slowing runoff velocities, filtering out sediment and other pollutants, 

and providing some infiltration into underlying soils. 

7.   Vegetated Swales: Open, shallow channels that slow and filter 

runoff, and promotes infiltration into the ground. 

  

4.2.5.3 DESIGN & DEVELOPMENT GUIDELINES FOR SITE LAYOUTS 

  

4.2.5.3.1 Sites and Blocks 

1.   Building Placement: Buildings shall be placed on the site to 

define the edges of streets and public spaces with primary facades 

oriented to the street or public space, minimally setback and occupying 

a majority of the lot frontage. Buildings shall be placed to conceal 

parking at the interior or rear of building lots. 

2.   Building Setbacks: Building setbacks shall be in accordance 

with the Dimensional Regulations and context-sensitive. The building 

setback from the front lot line shall be minimized to strengthen 

continuity of the street form. Building setbacks shall also include 

setting aside sufficient right-of-way for multimodal integrated 

sidewalk/bike-lanes.  

3.   Building Orientation: Buildings shall be oriented with the 

primary building façade(s) facing the primary street frontage(s) of the 

site. Buildings should be oriented parallel to the front lot line to 

preserve a consistent façade line with the street unless other compelling 

reasons or design considerations are provided. Primary building 

entrances shall be easily identified and be oriented to the street. 

4.   Street Corners: Projects located at a corner site shall be oriented 

and configured to define both street edges and the corner of the site. 

The corner may be defined positively by placing the building with built 

edges to the corner or defined negatively by framing an open space at 

the corner with built edges setback from the corner around a landscape 

plaza or open space. In order to strengthen and define street form, 

corner buildings shall align to both street frontages. 

5.      Design Treatment of Edges: Landscaping shall be used to define 

street edges and to buffer and screen edges that may have a negative 

visual impact, such as parking or loading areas. Access driveways and 

curb cuts using side yards may be combined between adjoining 

properties to access parking for multiple buildings at the interior of the 

block. 

  

4.2.5.3.2 Building Massing and Form 

81



 

1.   Modulation of Building Mass, Scale and Bulk: Building design 

elements, details and massing shall create a well-proportioned and 

unified building form and exhibit an overall architectural concept. 

2.      Building Roofs: Building mechanical equipment located on building 

roofs, sites, or other locations shall be screened from view from the 

street. 

  

4.2.5.3.3 Landscape 

1.   Landscape Plantings: Shall be governed through the LID 

requirements of this Section 4.2.5.2 so that as much of the site not 

occupied by the building footprint(s) performs concurrent open space 

functions. 

2.      Buffers and Screens: Landscape buffers shall be used to screen 

parking, loading, and service areas that may be visible from public 

streets or open spaces. Screening may include architectural walls, 

fences, or other visual barriers. 

  

4.2.5.3.4 Parking 

1.   Parking Placement: Parking, where feasible, shall be located at 

the interior of lots, behind buildings or at the rear of sites, away from 

prominent site edges, public spaces, and streets. 

2.   Parking Orientation: Parking lots shall be designed to create 

separation between parking areas and the edges of streets and 

sidewalks. Parking areas shall be buffered with landscaping, and 

screened behind buildings or other site components (fences, gates, walls 

or hedges) whenever feasible. 

3.   Parking Landscape:  Landscape medians, islands, and planting 

strips shall be designed and incorporated in accordance with the LID 

Section of 4.2.5.2. 

4.   Curb Cuts: All curb cuts shall be designed so that driveways 

slope up from the street to the level of the sidewalk. Curb cuts shall not 

be designed so that the drive is set at the street elevation. 

5.   Parking Details: Where appropriate, curbs shall be used to 

protect planting areas, and to define sidewalks, walkways, and parking 

area edges. 

6.      Parking Areas: Where possible, parking areas shall be 

interconnected in a manner that allows the unobstructed flow of 

pedestrians between uses and parking areas. Adjacent parking areas 

on abutting properties shall be connected for improved circulation 

where possible. 

  

4.2.5.3.5 Lighting 

1.   Light Placement: Placement of lighting fixtures shall be 

designed to provide adequate, ambient light levels for safety and 

usefulness and shall be configured to highlight pedestrian paths and 

building entrances. 

2.   Site Lighting: Site lighting shall be human-scale and Dark-Skies 

compliant. 

82



 

3.      Building Lighting: Building lighting shall be Dark-Skies compliant. 

 

Section 11.1 – DEFINITIONS 
CREATIVE ECONOMY:  Uses including but not limited to shared co-working offices 

spaces, advertising, architecture, arts and crafts, design, fashion, film, video, photography, 

music, performing arts, publishing, research & development, software, computer games, 

electronic publishing, and TV/radio 

  
GREEN-ECONOMY BUSINESSES:  Businesses that produce/sell goods, create prototypes, 

advance research, and/or provide services related to renewable energy, energy efficiency, 

clean technology, and, eco-friendly products. 

  
INNOVATION MAKER-SPACES AND IDEA LABS:  Shared work spaces that foster 

collaboration, ideas and innovation for product and idea development, and producing 

innovative products for economic and community development. 

  
MIXED-USE/INDUSTRIAL/COMMERCIAL:  A building development that includes two 

or more vertically and/or horizontally integrated non-residential uses. Such non-residential 

mixed-use development is sometimes sited where the introduction of residents or 

leisure/retail shoppers and Class A office visitors can result in conflicts with the operations 

of said businesses. 

  
Zoning Map Amendment: 
The Industrial-2 District (“I-2”) is comprised of 24 parcels totaling approximately 176 gross acres 
of land. The I-2 district shall be comprised of the following twenty-two (22) parcels of record as 
referenced by Town of Stoughton Assessors records’ map and parcel identification numbers: 087-
020; 087-024; 087-025; 087-026; 087-027; 088-135; 088-136; 088-137; 088-138; 088-139; 088-
140; 088-141; 088-142; 088-143; 088-144; 088-145; 088-146; 089-142; 099-008; 099-009; 099-
010; 100-001;  The I2 Zoning District shall be setback 125-feet for the residential properties along 
the north and northwestern boundary as illustrated on Proposed Zoning Exhibit A. 
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Town Planner 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $0 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to approve Article 47 as printed in the warrant and 
further that the Town Clerk be authorized to make clerical, editorial or other adjustments to 
effectuate the purposes hereof. 
 
PLANNING BOARD: Voted 5-0 to Recommend Approval of Article 47 to Town Meeting. 
 
MUNICIPAL REGULATIONS: Voted 7-0 to Recommend Article 47 to Town Meeting. 
  

83



 

Article 48 – Rescind Dedication of Opioid Settlement Funds to Opioid Stabilization Fund 

 

To see if the Town will vote, in accordance with G.L. c. 44, § 53(4) added by Section 9 of Chapter 

77 of the Acts of 2023, to revoke Article 64 of the 2023 Annual Town Meeting which approved 

the dedication of 100% of the opioid settlement funds to be received to the Opioid Settlements 

Stabilization Fund established under Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 40, Section 5B, 

effective for the fiscal year beginning on July 1, 2023, or take any other action relative thereto.  

 

Inserted by:              Select Board 

Requested by:          Town Manager 

Date:                        February 6, 2024 

Estimated Costs:      None  

 

PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote, in accordance with G.L. c. 44, § 53(4) added by 

Section 9 of Chapter 77 of the Acts of 2023, to revoke Article 64 of the 2023 Annual Town Meeting 

which approved the dedication of 100% of the opioid settlement funds to be received to the Opioid 

Settlements Stabilization Fund established under Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 40, Section 

5B, effective for the fiscal year beginning on July 1, 2023. 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 8-3 to recommend the Motion for Article 48 as written in the 

warrant. 

 

EXPLANATION: Prior guidance from the Massachusetts Department of Revenue required 

municipalities to create a stabilization fund and dedicate settlement funds received in the Opioid 

litigation settlement to that fund.  Section 9 of Chapter 77 of the Acts of 2023, signed by the 

Governor on December 4, 2023, amended G.L. c. 40, Section 5B and created a process for Opioid 

Settlement Funds to be deposited in a special revenue fund without the need for a dedication to a 

stabilization fund.  Accordingly, the Opioid Stabilization Fund is no longer needed due to this 

change in State law.  All funds previously dedicated or deposited into the stabilization fund will 

be transferred to the special revenue fund.     

 

  

84



 

Article 49 - Civil Service Revocation 
 

To see if the Town will vote to rescind its affirmative vote pursuant to Article 7 of the June 

4, 1906 Town Meeting by which the Town accepted Chapter 31, Section 48 of the General 

Laws and amendments thereof (Civil Service) for its regular and permanent members of 

the Stoughton Police Department, or take any other action relative thereto. 

And further, to rescind its affirmative vote pursuant to Article 2 of the March 26, 1935 

Town Meeting by which the Town accepted Chapter 31, Section 48 of the General Laws 

and amendments thereof (Civil Service) for its regular and permanent members of the 

Stoughton Fire Department, or take any other action relative thereto. 

And further, to see if the town will vote to authorize the Select Board to submit a proposed Special 
Act to the General Court of the Commonwealth as follows: 

SPECIAL ACT- AN ACT AUTHORIZING THE TOWN OF STOUGHTON TO 
EXEMPT ALL STOUGHTON POLICE OFFICERS AND ALL STOUGHTON 
FIREFIGHTERS AT ALL RANKS FROM CIVIL SERVICE. 

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives in General Court assembled, and 
by the authority of the same as follows: 

“SECTION 1. Notwithstanding any general or special law to the contrary, all of the 
positions of all police officers and firefighters in all ranks in the police and fire departments 
of the Town of Stoughton, excluding the Chief of Police previously exempted through the 
Massachusetts Acts of 1978, Chapter 474 and further excluding the Chief of the Fire 
Department previously exempted through the Massachusetts Acts of 1997, Chapter 30, 
shall be exempt from chapter 31 of the General Laws. 

SECTION 2. Section 1 of this act shall not impair the current civil service status of any 
person holding a position as a sworn member of the police department and a sworn member 
of the fire department of the Town of Stoughton on the effective date of this act and only 
shall be applied to appointments and promotions prospectively as of the date of the Annual 
Town Meeting vote of May,             , 2024. 

SECTION 3. This act shall take effect upon passage.” 

Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Police Chief and Fire Chief 
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $0 
 

PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to approve Article 49 as printed in the warrant. 
 

FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 8-3 to recommend the Motion for Article 49 as written in the warrant. 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS: Voted 6-0 to recommend Article 49 to Town Meeting. 
 

MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS: Voted 6-0 to Approve Article 49. 

85



 

EXPLANATION: This article authorizes the Town to remove all sworn personnel from Civil 
Service from the requirements of Civil Service.  Because the Town changed its form of government 
from Open Town Meeting to Representative Town Meeting, the Town will seek special legislation 
to ratify the Town Meeting’s vote and ensure its efficacy. 
 

 

ARTICLE 50 - Accept MGL Chapter 41, Section 110A  

 
That the Town vote, in accordance with G.L. Chapter 41, §110A, to authorize the Town Clerk’s 
office to remain closed on all Saturdays and to treat Saturdays as a legal holiday for purposes of 
calculating the time frame for filing matters in that office or take any action relative thereto. 
 
Inserted by:   Select Board 
Requested by:   Town Clerk  
Date:    February 6, 2024 
Estimated Costs:  $0 
 
EXPLANATION: Acceptance of this Massachusetts General Law allows the Town Clerk's Office 
to treat Saturdays as a legal holiday when calculating filing deadlines, such as voter registrations 
or submission of nomination papers. 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: That the Town vote to accept G.L. Chapter 41, §110A as printed in the 
warrant.  
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 11-0 to recommend the Motion for Article 50 as written in the 
warrant. 
 
MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS: Voted 6-0 to Approve Article 50. 
 

  

86



 

Article 51 - Single-serving Drinking Water Plastic Bottle Reduction Bylaw (Petitioned 

Article) 

 

To see if the Town will vote to amend the Town Code by adding the Article as printed in the 
warrant below: 
 
Single-serving Drinking Water Plastic Bottle Reduction Bylaw 
 

Purpose and Intent 
 
The production and use of single-serving drinking water plastic bottles has significant impact on 
our environment including: littering, long-term pollution of our land and water, burden to our 
landfills and recycling facilities, clogging of storm drains, death to wildlife and marine animals 
through ingestion, consumption of millions of barrels of crude oil for their manufacture and 
greenhouse gas emissions that impact climate change. The purpose of this bylaw is to eliminate 
the sale of single-serving drinking water plastic bottles by all retail establishments in the Town of 
Stoughton. The purpose is not to prohibit consumption of water in any container within our town. 
 
Definitions 
 
Single-serving Drinking Water Plastic Bottles 
 
Non-sparkling, unflavored drinking water in any variety of plastic bottles of 1 liter (34 ounces) or 
less. 
 
 Retail Establishment 
 
A facility selling new or used goods to an end user within the Town of Stoughton, Massachusetts, 
including, without limitation, restaurants, bakeries, supermarkets, convenience stores and any 
establishment where products or goods are dispensed to a consumer for off-site use or 
consumption. 
 
Use Regulations- 
 
A.   Single-serving drinking water plastic bottles shall not be distributed or 
sold for checkout or other purposes at any retail establishment within the 
Town of Stoughton. 
 
B.   Customers are encouraged to bring their own clean, reusable bottles to 
stores. Retail establishments may provide facilities for refill of customer 
supplied bottles. Retailers are encouraged to make refillable bottles available 
for sale to consumers at a reasonable price. 
 
Administration and Enforcement 
 
A.   The Board of Health and its Health Agent/ Inspector shall have the 
authority to administer and enforce this bylaw. The Board of Health may adopt 
and amend rules and regulations to effect the purposes of this bylaw. 

87



 

 
B.   The Board of Health and its Health Agent/ Inspector shall be responsible 
for enforcing this bylaw through issuance of a non-criminal citation notice. A 
non-criminal citation notice may be re-issued for each day that the activity 
persists until the violation is corrected.  
   
C.   Non-criminal Dispositions -- Fines assessed under Paragraph B. of this 
section of the bylaw may be made through non-criminal process in accordance 
with Massachusetts General Law Chapter 40, Section 21D. Any such fines 
shall be paid to the Town of Stoughton. The availability of non-criminal 
process under this Article shall not preclude the use of criminal process or 
other means of enforcement allowable under law. 
 
 D.   Violations under this Article shall be punishable as follows: 
 

Bylaw Fine Schedule Fine Allowed Enforcement 
Agency 

Single-serving 
Drinking Water 
Plastic Bottle 
Reduction 

1st offense 
2nd 
offense 
3rd and 
each 
subsequent 
offense 

Written 
Warning 

$50.00 
$100.00 

Board of Health 
and 
its Health Agent I 
Inspector 

 
Effective Date 
 
This bylaw shall become effective 90 days after its approval by the Attorney General of the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 
 
Co-Petitioner:     Robin Zoll                   Address:   167 Cross Street 
Petitioner:   Steven Wilkinson        Address:  145 Smith Avenue 
 
 

FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 1-10 to recommend the Motion for Article 51 as written in the 
warrant. MOTION FAILED 
 
MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS: Voted 1-3-2 to Approve Article 51. MOTION FAILED 

 
MUNICIPAL REGULATIONS: Voted 2-5 to Recommend Article 51 to Town Meeting. 
MOTION FAILED 

  

88



 

Article 52 - Sidewalks on Turnpike Street from Central Street to Park Street - Design 

(Petitioned Article) 

 

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds in the Treasury, 
if any, State/federal Grants, or borrow a sufficient sum of money per G.L. c.44, §7 to pay for the 
Engineering survey, design services for Sidewalk(s) on Turnpike Street from Central Street to Park 

Street. Approximately 1.2 Miles, including, if necessary, land acquisition and/ or easements and all 
other work required to complete the design of the new sidewalk, or take any other action relative 
thereto. 
 
This scope of services includes all phases of design including Project Development through 

Construction Engineering for the Intersection Improvements at Central Street at Turnpike Street 

and along Turnpike Street from Central Street to Campanelli Parkway in Stoughton, 

Massachusetts. 

 

Est Cost: One Million Four Hundred One Thousand Four Hundred Forty-Four ($1,401,444)  
This Article to be excluded from Sunset Bylaw Restrictions. 
 
Petitioner: Peter E. Murphy 60 Peters Drive Stoughton, MA 02072  
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: Voted 0-11 to recommend the Motion for Article 52 as written in the 
warrant. MOTION FAILED 
 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS: Voted 5-1 to recommend Article 52 to Town Meeting 
 
MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS: Voted 1-3-2 to Approve Article 52. MOTION FAILED 

  

89



 

Article 53 - Rezone Map 54 Lot 433 from RU (Residential Urban) to GB (General 

Business)(Petitioned Article) 

 

To see if the Town will vote to amend the Town of Stoughton Zoning Bylaw and the 

Zoning Map as amended through November 6, 2023 by rezoning the following:  The Parcel 

identified on Assessors Map 54, Lot 433 currently zoned RU (Residential Urban) Zone to 

GB (General Business) Zone. And to amend the Zoning Map in accordance with the above, 

or take any action relative thereto. 

 

EXPLANATION: I own two adjacent lots on Perry Street (Map 54, Lots 433 and 434). 

Lot 434 is zoned GB and is where a commercial building is located, which my husband 

ran his plumbing business out of for over 45 years. Lot 433 is zoned RU, but has been used 

as part of the business for parking and storage; therefore, has been historically use for the 

business. I am requesting that Lot 433 be rezoned to GB like the adjacent lot. This will 

allow me to combine the lots into one conforming GB lot. I would like to have a mixed 

use development that provides a small scale service commercial space and residences. I 

feel this would be appropriate for this area due to its close proximity to the Commuter Rail 

Station, which is approximately 700-feet from the property. 

 

Petitioner: Beverly A. Angelos  Address: 55 Boylston Street. Stoughton. MA 02072 

 

 

PLANNING BOARD: Voted 5-0 to Recommend Approval of Article 53 to Town Meeting. 

 

MUNICIPAL REGULATIONS: Voted 7-0 to Recommend Article 53 to Town Meeting. 

90



 

Article 54 - Columbus Day name change to Indigenous Peoples Day (Petitioned Article) 

 

To see if the Town will vote to replace the holiday "Christopher Columbus Dav" on the second: 
Monday of October with "Indigenous Peoples Day;" or take any other action relating thereto. 
 
Explanation: Indigenous Peoples Day celebrates and honors the Indigenous peoples of the 
Americas and commemorates their shared history and culture. It began as a counter-celebration to 
honor indigenous peoples in the Americas who were nearly exterminated in the post-contact 
European conquest. Indigenous Peoples Day was initiated in 1989 in South Dakota, where the 
Governor backed a resolution to celebrate Native American Day on the second Monday of 
October. Today dozens of U.S. States, cities and towns celebrate Indigenous Peoples Day, 
including Arizona, Florida, Hawaii, Iowa, Alaska, Vermont, South Dakota, New Mexico, and 
Maine. In Massachusetts, twenty-eight cities and towns have adopted Indigenous Peoples Day 
including Amherst, Cambridge, Salem, Sharon, Somerville, Brookline, Newton, Northampton, 
Marblehead, Pittsfield, Provincetown, Falmouth, Wellesley and Mashpee. 
  
The history of Stoughton as recorded by the Stoughton Historical Society clearly linked Stoughton 
to the Indigenous Peoples who inhabited this area before the arrival of Christopher Columbus. The 
Ponkapoag Indians inhabited the second "Praying Town" established by John Eliot. As early as 
1636, it was recorded that Chief Kitchamakin sold all his land to one Richard Collicut of 
Dorchester, for 28 fathoms of wampum, reserving 40 acres of his choice for himself and his men. 
The Ahauton family, first mentioned in 1667, figured in the area's history right through to the 
1800's. The older Ahauton was an educated Indian; his son William was a teacher, a councilor of 
the sachem, and signed several treaties before 1675. In 1690, he visited Major General Stoughton 
to assure the safety of friendly Indians. But by 1726, the Ponkapoag Indians were reduced to but a 
few families; their remains lie in the Indian cemetery off Indian lane. It was not until 1861 that 
guardians were abolished and the Indians in Massachusetts were given citizenship. 

  
There were several blacks living in Stoughton in colonial days. Isaac Williams was the first 
"colored man" listed in Canton {Stoughton) in 1719. He was a slave of Dr. Williams, subsequently 
married to Elizabeth Wills, a ''pure Ponkapoag," and accepted into the tribe. Isaac bought land on 
which he built a house in 1803. 
Generations of historical trauma have been suffered by indigenous people and persists even today; 
a legacy that we can no longer ignore. It is now time to honor First Nations people who paid so 
dearly in the conquest that brought about our own nation, the United States of America. We ask 
that the second Monday of October be celebrated in Stoughton, MA as "Indigenous Peoples Day" 
henceforth. 
 

Petitioner:   Sylvia Whiting                   Address: 24 Jennifer Lane 

 
 
MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS: Voted 3-2-1 to Approve Article 54. 
 

MUNICIPAL REGULATIONS: Voted 2-5 to Recommend Article 54 to Town Meeting. 
MOTION FAILED  

91



92



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Budget 

Details 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
93



Revenue Per Recap  Estimated Expenditures Select Board

 Finacne 

Committee 

FY2024 FY2025 FY2025 FY2025

Property Taxes  Operating Budget

Levy Limit 78,371,740.88             81,222,832.58             Shared Expenses 32,978,329$               32,978,329$               

New Growth 870,047.00                  800,000.00                  General Government 5,342,846$                 5,342,846$                 

    Sub-Total Property Tax: 79,241,787.88             82,022,832.58             Public Safety 17,590,573.00            17,590,573.00            

Debt Exclusion Public Works 6,221,416.00              6,221,416.00              

High School 4,620,150.00               4,620,150.00               Human Services 1,174,525.00              1,174,525.00              

Fire Station 672,500.00                  672,500.00                  Culture & Recreation 2,297,155.00              2,297,155.00              

Excess Capacity -                               -                               

    Sub-Total Debt Exclusion 5,292,650.00               5,292,650.00               Education-Stoughton Public 62,868,429.00            62,868,429.00            

Regional Schools 1,632,547.00              1,632,547.00              

Total Property Taxes 84,534,437.88             87,315,482.58             

State Aid

Cherry Sheet 31,111,476.00             33,075,339.00             

Less Offsets: (5,329,842.00)              (5,305,287.00)              

     Total State Aid: 25,781,634.00             27,770,052.00             

Local Estimated Receipts

Local Receipts 11,414,543.00             13,212,876.00             

    Total Local Est. Receipts: 11,414,543.00             13,212,876.00             

Total Revenue 121,730,614.88           128,298,410.58           Operating Budget Total 130,105,820 130,105,820

Other Sources of Revenue

Transfer from Free Cash 2,300,000.00               675,000.00                  To be raised on the Recap:

Transferf from Overlay Surplus -                               618,724.20                  Snow & Ice Deficit 433,788                      433,788                      

Transfer from Title V Receipts 71,594.00                    71,594.00                    Overlay 821,638                      821,638                      

Indirect Costs Cedar Hill 59,314.00                    55,185.00                    Other Expenditures Total 1,255,426                   1,255,426                   

Indirect Costs Public Health 286,056.00                  266,807.00                  

Indirect Costs Sewer 525,545.00                  530,000.00                  

Indirect Costs Water 846,979.00                  850,000.00                  

Total Other Revenue: 4,089,488.00               3,067,310.20               

Total GF Sources of Revenue: 125,820,102.88           131,365,720.78           

Total General Fund 

Expenditures: 131,361,246.00          131,361,246.00          

Surplus/Deficit Surplus/Deficit 4,474.78                     4,474.78                     

 

EXCESS CAPACITY AS REPORTED $ (57,708.48)                   

General Fund

TOWN OF STOUGHTON
 FY2025 BUDGET SUMMARY 

INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY

94



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

T
O

T
A

L
 S

H
A

R
E

D
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S:
 (T

O
W

N
 A

N
D

 S
C

H
O

O
L

)
50

71
0

D
EB

T 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

(E
X

C
LU

D
ED

)
4,

62
0,

90
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

29
2,

65
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

5,
49

2,
77

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
3.

8%
5,

49
2,

77
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

3.
8%

50
71

0
D

EB
T 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
 

3,
97

0,
50

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
65

2,
57

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
9.

0%
6,

90
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
88

9,
39

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
6.

5%
3,

88
9,

39
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

6.
5%

51
90

9
H

EA
LT

H
 IN

SU
R

A
N

C
E/

M
ED

IC
A

R
E 

TA
X

ES
10

,6
78

,1
65

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
13

,3
01

,7
89

$ 
   

   
   

   
23

.3
%

4,
58

1,
02

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
13

,3
27

,7
97

$ 
   

   
   

   
0.

2%
13

,3
27

,7
97

$ 
   

   
   

   
0.

2%
52

91
0

LI
A

B
IL

IT
Y

 IN
SU

R
A

N
C

E 
(M

II
A

)
1,

78
4,

95
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

01
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1.
3%

1,
30

8,
87

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
2,

16
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

7.
6%

2,
16

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
7.

6%
54

91
3

U
N

EM
PL

O
Y

M
EN

T
33

,3
71

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
25

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-5
4.

5%
24

,2
26

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

0.
0%

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

0.
0%

53
91

1
R

ET
IR

EM
EN

T
7,

19
2,

28
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
7,

95
7,

33
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

10
.6

%
7,

95
7,

33
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

8,
05

5,
36

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1.

2%
8,

05
5,

36
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1.
2%

55
94

0
TR

A
N

SF
ER

S 
O

U
T

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

55
94

0
PU

B
LI

C
 H

EA
LT

H
 S

U
B

SI
D

Y
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

55
94

0
C

ED
A

R
 H

IL
L 

SU
B

SI
D

Y
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
55

94
0

SE
W

ER
 F

U
N

D
 S

U
B

SI
D

Y
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

85
8,

57
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
 S

H
A

R
E

D
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S
28

,2
80

,1
88

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
33

,0
97

,9
31

$ 
   

   
   

   
15

.5
%

13
,8

78
,3

59
$ 

   
   

   
   

32
,9

78
,3

29
$ 

   
   

   
   

-0
.4

%
32

,9
78

,3
29

$ 
   

   
   

   
-0

.4
%

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
:

6
12

3
TO

W
N

 M
A

N
A

G
ER

35
6,

14
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

44
5,

17
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

00
0

4.
00

26
.6

%
20

0,
28

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

66
6,

16
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
5.

20
0

7.
00

49
.6

%
66

7,
16

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

5.
20

0
7.

00
49

.9
%

8
13

5
TO

W
N

 A
C

C
O

U
N

TA
N

T
29

8,
64

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
44

8,
20

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

4.
54

0
5.

00
31

.8
%

17
5,

17
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
37

7,
84

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

3.
54

0
4.

00
-1

5.
7%

37
7,

84
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

54
0

4.
00

-1
5.

7%

9
13

6
A

U
D

IT
IN

G
 A

N
D

 A
N

A
LY

TI
C

S 
(N

EW
 F

Y
20

23
 R

EM
O

V
ED

 F
Y

20
24

62
,8

35
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

 
12

14
5

TR
EA

SU
R

ER
/C

O
LL

EC
TO

R
54

7,
03

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
57

6,
78

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

6.
00

0
6.

00
5.

1%
20

6,
19

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

60
9,

56
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
6.

00
0

6.
00

5.
7%

60
9,

56
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
6.

00
0

6.
00

5.
7%

3
11

1
TO

W
N

 C
O

U
N

SE
L

30
4,

47
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

29
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

0.
0%

13
2,

48
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
30

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
1.

4%
30

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
1.

4%
33

15
9

FA
C

IL
IT

IE
S 

(M
O

V
ED

 T
O

 P
U

B
LI

C
 W

O
R

K
S)

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
 

14
15

3
PR

O
C

U
R

EM
EN

T
13

1,
86

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

0,
02

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

2.
00

0
2.

00
-2

.9
%

40
,9

53
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
17

5,
66

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

2.
00

0
2.

00
17

.1
%

17
5,

66
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
2.

00
0

2.
00

17
.1

%
10

13
8

C
EN

TR
A

LI
ZE

D
 P

U
R

C
H

A
SI

N
G

54
,8

23
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

93
,6

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0

0.
00

-1
3.

4%
62

,1
64

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
8,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

26
.5

%
11

8,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
26

.5
%

11
14

1
A

SS
ES

SO
R

S
28

7,
18

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
32

9,
78

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

4.
00

0
4.

00
-2

.7
%

12
2,

08
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
36

9,
99

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

4.
00

0
4.

00
12

.2
%

36
9,

99
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
4.

00
0

4.
00

12
.2

%
15

15
5

IN
FO

R
M

A
TI

O
N

 S
Y

ST
EM

S
47

7,
19

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
57

2,
19

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

2.
40

0
4.

00
0.

6%
32

8,
52

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

59
3,

13
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
2.

40
0

4.
00

3.
7%

59
3,

13
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
2.

40
0

4.
00

3.
7%

16
16

1
TO

W
N

 C
LE

R
K

28
3,

14
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

35
4,

18
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
4.

00
0

4.
00

15
.2

%
10

8,
86

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

32
4,

93
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

55
0

4.
00

-8
.3

%
32

4,
93

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

3.
55

0
4.

00
-8

.3
%

4
11

4
M

O
D

ER
A

TO
R

1,
81

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

80
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
00

0
0.

00
-7

0.
0%

1,
68

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
00

0
0.

00
83

.3
%

3,
30

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

00
0

0.
00

83
.3

%
17

17
5

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

60
,9

79
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

17
2,

41
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

17
0

2.
00

34
.4

%
49

,7
73

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

17
8,

01
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

17
0

2.
00

3.
2%

17
8,

01
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

17
0

2.
00

3.
2%

18
17

6
EC

O
N

O
M

IC
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

10
1,

23
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
6,

05
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

1.
9%

46
,7

94
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

3,
60

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
1.

00
6.

5%
12

3,
60

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
1.

00
6.

5%
5

12
2

SE
LE

C
T 

B
O

A
R

D
1,

82
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

14
,8

60
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0

0.
00

-1
7.

3%
11

,6
08

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

14
,8

60
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0

0.
00

0.
0%

14
,8

60
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0

0.
00

0.
0%

13
15

2
H

U
M

A
N

 R
ES

O
U

R
C

ES
16

2,
73

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
17

8,
48

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

2.
00

0
2.

00
9.

0%
71

,5
58

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

26
0,

23
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

00
0

3.
00

45
.8

%
26

0,
23

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

3.
00

0
3.

00
45

.8
%

29
41

1
EN

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

53
8,

91
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

72
2,

57
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
5.

75
0

7.
00

15
.8

%
23

4,
71

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

79
8,

07
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
6.

00
0

7.
00

10
.4

%
79

8,
07

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

6.
00

0
7.

00
10

.4
%

7
13

1
FI

N
A

N
C

E 
C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E

17
,9

13
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

40
7,

80
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

50
0

1.
00

-5
.7

%
7,

43
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

42
7,

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

34
0

1.
00

4.
8%

42
7,

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

34
0

1.
00

4.
8%

46
61

5
H

IS
TO

R
IC

A
L 

C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
0.

0%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
0.

0%
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
0.

0%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

 G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
3,

68
8,

78
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

88
0,

75
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

36
.3

60
42

.0
0

6.
2%

1,
80

0,
30

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
5,

34
1,

84
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

38
.2

00
45

.0
0

9.
4%

5,
34

2,
84

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
38

.2
00

45
.0

0
9.

5%

PU
B

L
IC

 S
A

FE
T

Y
:

19
21

0
PO

LI
C

E
7,

27
1,

60
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
8,

09
8,

17
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

70
.5

00
71

.0
0

4.
7%

3,
19

0,
39

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
8,

82
5,

62
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

72
.5

00
73

.0
0

9.
0%

8,
82

5,
62

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
72

.5
00

73
.0

0
9.

0%
21

21
3

C
R

O
SS

IN
G

 G
U

A
R

D
S 

10
1,

12
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
3,

96
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
18

.0
00

18
.0

0
1.

8%
28

,4
92

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
7,

38
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

.0
00

20
.0

0
2.

8%
12

7,
38

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
.0

00
20

.0
0

2.
8%

22
21

7
C

EN
TR

A
L 

D
IS

PA
TC

H
56

7,
66

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
85

3,
77

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
.0

00
10

.0
0

1.
2%

24
7,

05
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
71

,7
69

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
-9

1.
6%

71
,7

69
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

-9
1.

6%
23

22
0

FI
R

E 
A

N
D

 R
ES

C
U

E
6,

97
4,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
7,

49
8,

14
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

68
.0

00
68

.0
0

4.
6%

2,
76

2,
45

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
8,

05
9,

06
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

68
.5

00
69

.0
0

7.
5%

8,
05

4,
06

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
68

.5
00

69
.0

0
7.

4%
25

24
1

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 &
 C

O
D

E 
EN

FO
R

C
EM

EN
T

37
4,

25
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

39
8,

74
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
5.

08
0

7.
00

-0
.4

%
13

5,
08

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

41
5,

89
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
4.

58
0

6.
00

4.
3%

41
9,

89
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
4.

58
0

6.
00

5.
3%

27
29

2
A

N
IM

A
L 

C
O

N
TR

O
L

52
,7

95
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

68
,5

98
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
00

0
1.

00
0.

8%
36

,4
31

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
91

,8
36

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

00
0

1.
00

33
.9

%
91

,8
36

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

00
0

1.
00

33
.9

%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

 P
U

B
L

IC
 S

A
FE

T
Y

15
,3

41
,4

41
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

17
,0

41
,3

95
$ 

   
   

   
   

17
2.

58
0

17
5.

00
4.

3%
6,

39
9,

91
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

17
,5

91
,5

73
$ 

   
   

   
   

16
7.

58
0

17
0.

00
3.

2%
17

,5
90

,5
73

$ 
   

   
   

   
16

7.
58

0
17

0.
00

3.
2%

Pa
ge
 1

95



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

PU
B

L
IC

 W
O

R
K

S:
30

42
1

G
EN

ER
A

L 
A

N
D

 A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TI

O
N

1,
09

8,
87

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
03

2,
76

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
12

.2
50

18
.0

0
-1

3.
0%

40
1,

41
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

00
2,

54
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

10
.7

50
15

.0
0

-2
.9

%
1,

00
2,

54
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

10
.7

50
15

.0
0

-2
.9

%
34

42
3

SN
O

W
 R

EM
O

V
A

L
50

3,
46

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
0.

0%
32

,3
64

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

40
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

0.
0%

40
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

0.
0%

32
42

2
H

IG
H

W
A

Y
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
31

5,
42

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
38

6,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
-3

.0
%

15
6,

31
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
39

4,
70

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
2.

3%
39

4,
70

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
2.

3%
33

15
9

FA
C

IL
IT

IE
S

85
1,

47
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
06

2,
63

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
4.

60
0

6.
00

11
.6

%
42

2,
89

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
05

5,
42

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
4.

45
0

6.
00

-0
.7

%
1,

05
5,

42
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

4.
45

0
6.

00
-0

.7
%

37
43

3
SA

N
IT

A
TI

O
N

1,
96

8,
59

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
18

3,
40

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
17

.2
50

30
.0

0
2.

8%
88

8,
84

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
16

8,
93

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
16

.9
50

25
.0

0
-0

.7
%

2,
16

8,
93

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
16

.9
50

25
.0

0
-0

.7
%

35
42

4
ST

R
EE

T 
LI

G
H

TI
N

G
19

4,
04

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
21

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
0.

0%
70

,6
99

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
4,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

21
.0

%
25

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
21

.0
%

36
42

6
FL

EE
T 

M
A

IN
TE

N
A

N
C

E
23

4,
54

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
94

0,
92

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
20

0
5.

00
42

.4
%

33
5,

70
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
94

5,
81

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
65

0
5.

00
0.

5%
94

5,
81

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
65

0
5.

00
0.

5%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

 P
U

B
L

IC
 W

O
R

K
S:

5,
16

6,
41

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

6,
21

5,
72

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
38

.3
00

59
.0

0
4.

8%
2,

30
8,

23
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

6,
22

1,
41

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
35

.8
00

51
.0

0
0.

1%
6,

22
1,

41
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

35
.8

00
51

.0
0

0.
1%

H
U

M
A

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S:

39
50

5
H

EA
LT

H
 A

N
D

 H
U

M
A

N
 S

ER
V

IC
ES

12
,2

17
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
,4

15
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

10
0

1.
00

1.
6%

2,
11

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
-1

00
.0

%
40

51
0

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F 
H

EA
LT

H
17

7,
11

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
18

8,
44

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

3.
00

0
4.

00
1.

8%
74

,5
06

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

19
6,

32
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

00
0

4.
00

4.
2%

19
6,

32
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

00
0

4.
00

4.
2%

42
54

3
V

ET
ER

A
N

S'
 S

ER
V

IC
ES

33
8,

82
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

53
5,

59
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
2.

05
0

3.
00

14
.3

%
11

3,
10

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

43
4,

71
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

55
0

3.
00

-1
8.

8%
43

4,
71

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
55

0
3.

00
-1

8.
8%

41
54

1
C

O
U

N
C

IL
 O

N
 A

G
IN

G
35

3,
53

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
38

7,
80

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

9.
50

0
13

.0
0

-4
.5

%
15

2,
61

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

43
8,

35
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
7.

90
0

11
.0

0
13

.0
%

43
8,

35
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
7.

90
0

11
.0

0
13

.0
%

43
54

9
C

O
M

M
IS

SI
O

N
 O

N
 D

IS
A

B
IL

IT
IE

S
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

43
54

4
SU

B
ST

A
N

C
E 

A
B

U
SE

 P
R

EV
EN

TI
O

N
78

,2
89

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

3,
85

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
00

0
3.

00
2.

1%
40

,1
53

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
98

,1
38

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
2.

00
0

2.
00

-5
.5

%
98

,1
38

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
2.

00
0

2.
00

-5
.5

%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

 H
U

M
A

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

95
9,

98
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
23

5,
11

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
16

.6
50

24
.0

0
5.

2%
38

2,
48

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
17

4,
52

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
14

.4
50

20
.0

0
-4

.9
%

1,
17

4,
52

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
14

.4
50

20
.0

0
-4

.9
%

C
U

L
T

U
R

A
L

 A
N

D
 R

E
C

R
E

A
T

IO
N

:
44

61
0

LI
B

R
A

R
Y

1,
07

6,
52

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
11

5,
21

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
17

.3
00

24
.0

0
1.

6%
47

2,
07

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
21

8,
19

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
17

.4
90

26
.0

0
9.

2%
1,

21
8,

19
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

17
.4

90
26

.0
0

9.
2%

47
63

0
R

EC
R

EA
TI

O
N

 A
N

D
 Y

O
U

TH
 D

EP
A

R
TM

EN
T

42
8,

78
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

43
5,

57
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
6.

50
0

14
.0

0
-3

.2
%

21
8,

89
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
47

8,
24

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

4.
19

0
5.

00
9.

8%
47

8,
24

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

4.
19

0
5.

00
9.

8%
49

69
5

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 E
V

EN
TS

80
,9

77
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

91
,4

90
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0

0.
00

6.
6%

75
,6

30
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

0,
59

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
9.

9%
10

0,
59

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
9.

9%
48

65
0

PA
R

K
S

35
6,

09
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

40
2,

79
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

10
0

6.
00

8.
9%

14
0,

31
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

0,
11

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
20

0
7.

00
24

.2
%

50
0,

11
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5.

20
0

7.
00

24
.2

%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

 C
U

L
T

U
R

A
L

 A
N

D
 R

E
C

R
E

A
T

IO
N

1,
94

2,
37

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
04

5,
07

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
27

.9
00

44
.0

0
2.

1%
90

6,
91

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
29

7,
15

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
26

.8
80

38
.0

0
12

.3
%

2,
29

7,
15

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
26

.8
80

38
.0

0
12

.3
%

 
 

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
 M

U
N

IC
IP

A
L

 D
E

PA
R

T
M

E
N

T
S

27
,0

99
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

31
,4

18
,0

51
$ 

   
   

   
   

29
1.

79
0

34
4.

00
4.

6%
11

,7
97

,8
51

$ 
   

   
   

   
32

,6
26

,5
15

$ 
   

   
   

   
28

2.
91

0
32

4.
00

3.
8%

32
,6

26
,5

15
$ 

   
   

   
   

28
2.

91
0

32
4.

00
3.

8%

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

A
L

66
30

0
ST

O
U

G
H

TO
N

 P
U

B
LI

C
 S

C
H

O
O

LS
50

,9
32

,1
06

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
58

,7
00

,6
81

$ 
   

   
   

  
6.

4%
67

,8
82

,8
35

$ 
   

   
   

  
15

.6
%

62
,8

68
,4

29
$ 

   
   

   
  

7.
1%

28
30

1
R

EG
IO

N
A

L 
SC

H
O

O
L S

1,
37

4,
18

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
56

3,
83

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
11

.3
%

1,
40

4,
97

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

63
2,

54
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4.
4%

1,
63

2,
54

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
4.

4%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

A
L

52
,3

06
,2

90
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

60
,2

64
,5

12
$ 

   
   

   
   

6.
6%

1,
40

4,
97

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
69

,5
15

,3
82

$ 
   

   
   

   
15

.4
%

64
,5

00
,9

76
$ 

   
   

   
   

7.
0%

G
R

A
N

D
 T

O
T

A
L

 G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
10

7,
68

5,
47

8
$ 

   
   

  
12

4,
78

0,
49

4
$ 

   
  

8.
3%

27
,0

81
,1

86
$ 

   
   

 
13

5,
12

0,
22

6
$ 

   
  

8.
3%

13
0,

10
5,

82
0

$ 
   

  
4.

3%

T
O

T
A

L
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 F
U

N
D

 L
E

SS
 S

C
H

O
O

L
-B

A
L

A
N

C
E

S 
T

O
 M

U
N

IS

E
N

T
E

R
PR

IS
E

 F
U

N
D

S:
56

44
0

SE
W

ER
7,

75
2,

90
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
8,

68
4,

24
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

10
.3

50
22

.0
0

7.
6%

56
0,

94
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
8,

88
7,

54
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

10
.3

60
21

.0
0

2.
3%

8,
88

7,
54

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
10

.3
60

21
.0

0
2.

3%
59

45
0

W
A

TE
R

5,
44

7,
62

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
92

4,
55

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
12

.4
50

24
.0

0
3.

0%
1,

10
5,

43
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

6,
51

8,
58

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
12

.8
60

23
.0

0
10

.0
%

6,
51

8,
58

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
12

.8
60

23
.0

0
10

.0
%

62
52

2
PU

B
LI

C
 H

EA
LT

H
92

4,
62

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

12
3,

17
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

9.
70

0
23

.0
0

-5
.8

%
27

8,
27

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
00

6,
07

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
7.

16
0

10
.0

0
-1

0.
4%

1,
00

6,
07

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
7.

16
0

10
.0

0
-1

0.
4%

63
65

1
C

ED
A

R
 H

IL
L 

33
3,

48
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

44
0,

93
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

17
0

7.
00

19
.9

%
15

8,
74

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

46
6,

00
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

17
0

7.
00

5.
7%

46
6,

00
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

17
0

7.
00

5.
7%

65
65

2
C

A
B

LE
 (N

EW
 F

O
R

 F
Y

20
20

)
32

3,
33

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
46

7,
38

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0
0.

00
20

.5
%

19
4,

74
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
49

1,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0
0.

00
5.

1%
49

1,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0
0.

00
5.

1%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

 E
N

T
E

R
PR

IS
E

14
,7

81
,9

84
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
,6

40
,2

92
$ 

   
   

   
   

35
.6

70
76

.0
0

5.
5%

2,
29

8,
13

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
17

,3
69

,6
07

$ 
   

   
   

   
33

.5
50

61
.0

0
4.

4%
17

,3
69

,6
07

$ 
   

   
   

   
33

.5
50

61
.0

0
4.

4%

Pa
ge
 2

96



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

T
O

W
N

 C
O

U
N

SE
L

 - 
D

E
PT

 1
11

EX
PE

N
SE

01
11

10
2

53
00

05
   

  
N

EG
O

TI
A

TI
O

N
S 

&
 A

R
B

IT
R

A
TI

O
N

 
48

,9
48

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
80

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

9,
08

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
80

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

80
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
01

11
10

2
53

00
10

1
C

O
N

SU
LT

IN
G

 F
EE

S/
LE

G
A

L 
25

9,
73

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
21

6,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

12
3,

39
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
22

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
9%

22
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

9%
01

11
10

2
57

80
26

G
R

A
N

T 
A

LL
O

C
A

TI
O

N
 E

X
PE

N
SE

(4
,2

13
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
T

O
W

N
 C

O
U

N
SE

L
 T

O
T

A
L

30
4,

47
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

29
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
13

2,
48

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

4%
30

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
4%

N
O

T
E

S:

1
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TE

D
 S

ER
V

IC
ES

 F
O

R
 M

EA
D

 &
 T

A
LL

ER
M

A
N

 
A

N
D

 L
IG

H
TH

O
U

SE
 C

O
U

N
SE

L

Pa
ge
 3

97



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

T
O

W
N

 M
O

D
E

R
A

T
O

R
 - 

D
E

PT
 1

14
M

O
D

E
R

A
T

O
R

 S
A

L
A

R
IE

S
01

11
40

1
51

20
00

2
TE

M
PO

R
A

R
Y

 W
A

G
ES

94
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-1
00

.0
%

83
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
11

40
1

51
30

00
O

V
ER

TI
M

E
26

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
1,

21
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-1

00
.0

%
83

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 

M
O

D
E

R
A

T
O

R
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S
01

11
40

2
57

30
00

   
  

D
U

ES
 &

 S
U

B
SC

R
IP

TI
O

N
S 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
11

40
2

53
40

04
1

A
D

V
ER

TI
SI

N
G

56
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
70

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

56
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

71
.4

%
1,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

71
.4

%
01

11
40

2
54

20
00

O
FF

IC
E 

SU
PP

LI
ES

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
70

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-2

8.
6%

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-2

8.
6%

01
11

40
2

53
03

04
3

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TE
D

 S
ER

V
IC

ES
 (D

A
Y

 C
A

R
E 

FO
R

 A
N

N
U

A
L 

TO
W

N
 

M
TG

)
1,

03
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

01
11

40
2

53
02

04
   

  
C

O
N

FE
R

EN
C

ES
/M

EE
TI

N
G

S 
12

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
01

11
40

2
57

80
26

G
R

A
N

T 
A

LL
O

C
A

TI
O

N
 E

X
PE

N
SE

(8
5)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
60

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

60
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
30

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
83

.3
%

3,
30

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
83

.3
%

 
 

 
T

O
W

N
 M

O
D

E
R

A
T

O
R

 -T
O

T
A

L
1,

81
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-7

0.
0%

1,
68

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3,

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

83
.3

%
3,

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

83
.3

%
 

 
N

O
T

E
S:

 
 

1
IN

C
R

EA
SE

D
 U

N
IT

 C
O

ST
S

 
 

2
M

O
V

ED
 T

O
 T

O
W

N
 C

LE
R

K
S 

D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T
 

 
3

A
D

D
ED

 S
ER

V
IC

ES
 F

O
R

 T
O

W
N

 M
EE

TI
N

G
S

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge
 4

98



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

-D
E

PT
 1

22
 

 
SE

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 A

W
A

R
D

S
 

 
01

12
20

2
57

80
13

   
  

A
W

A
R

D
S 

&
 P

R
ES

EN
TA

TI
O

N
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-5
0.

0%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
SE

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 A

W
A

R
D

S
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-5

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

 
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S

 
 

01
12

20
2

53
00

07
   

  
A

D
V

ER
TI

SI
N

G
 &

 F
R

EI
G

H
T 

83
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-6
1.

5%
75

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
12

20
2

53
00

02
C

O
N

SU
LT

A
N

T 
FE

ES
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

12
20

2
R

ES
ER

V
ED

 F
O

R
 N

EG
O

TI
A

TI
O

N
S

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

12
20

2
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 T
R

A
N

SF
ER

 T
O

 S
TA

B
IL

IZ
A

TI
O

N
 F

U
N

D
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
01

12
20

2
53

00
08

   
  

IN
SE

R
V

IC
E 

TR
A

IN
IN

G
 &

 E
D

U
C

A
TI

O
N

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

12
20

2
53

02
04

   
  

C
O

N
FE

R
EN

C
ES

 
1,

25
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
97

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
12

20
2

53
40

08
   

  
TO

W
N

 R
EP

O
R

T 
PR

IN
TI

N
G

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
95

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
3,

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
95

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
2,

95
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
12

20
2

53
80

34
   

  
C

O
M

M
 O

N
 D

IS
A

B
 C

A
B

LE
 E

X
PE

N
SE

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
12

20
2

54
20

04
PR

IN
TI

N
G

 &
 S

TA
TI

O
N

A
R

Y
 

93
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
01

12
20

2
55

10
03

   
  

B
O

O
K

S 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

80
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

80
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

12
20

2
57

10
00

   
  

TR
A

V
EL

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

12
20

2
58

50
11

O
FF

IC
E 

FU
R

N
IT

U
R

E
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
12

20
2

57
30

00
   

  
D

U
ES

 &
 S

U
B

SC
R

IP
TI

O
N

S 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

6,
11

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
6,

48
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

6,
11

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
6,

11
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
12

20
2

57
80

26
G

R
A

N
T 

A
LL

O
C

A
TI

O
N

(2
56

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

1,
82

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
13

,8
60

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-1

3.
2%

11
,6

08
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

13
,8

60
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

13
,8

60
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

 
 

 
SE

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 -T

O
T

A
L

S
1,

82
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

14
,8

60
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-1
7.

3%
11

,6
08

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
14

,8
60

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
14

,8
60

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
 

 
N

O
T

E
S:

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Pa
ge
 5

99



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

T
O

W
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

R
-D

E
PT

 1
23

 
 

01
12

30
2

53
50

35
   

  
TO

W
N

 M
A

N
A

G
ER

 E
V

EN
TS

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

T
O

W
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

R
 S

A
L

A
R

IE
S

 
 

 
01

12
30

1
51

10
51

   
  

D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
H

EA
D

 
10

5,
55

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
19

3,
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
1.

00
6.

1%
78

,2
65

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

19
9,

41
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

2.
9%

19
9,

41
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

2.
9%

01
12

30
1

51
12

34
A

SS
T.

 T
O

W
N

 M
G

R
 

30
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

,1
15

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
,7

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

20
0

1.
00

2.
5%

30
,7

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

20
0

1.
00

2.
5%

01
12

30
1

51
11

04
 

SE
N

IO
R

 C
LE

R
K

 I 
31

,9
25

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

01
12

30
1

51
12

07
 

A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TI

V
E 

A
SS

T.
 - 

SE
LE

C
T 

B
O

A
R

D
22

,9
29

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
65

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
25

,8
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

65
,8

64
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

1.
3%

65
,8

64
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

1.
3%

01
12

30
1

51
11

08
   

  
EX

EC
U

TI
V

E 
A

SS
IS

TA
N

T 
TO

 T
W

N
 M

N
G

 
89

,5
96

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
91

,0
38

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
1.

6%
36

,7
65

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

95
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

4.
9%

95
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

4.
9%

01
12

30
1

51
11

87
7

IN
TE

R
N

A
L 

A
U

D
IT

O
R

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

10
4,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

 
10

4,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
1.

00
 

01
12

30
1

51
18

03
   

  
SE

LE
C

T 
B

O
A

R
D

 M
IN

U
TE

S
4,

65
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

00
0

1.
00

0.
0%

1,
28

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
00

0
1.

00
0.

0%
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
00

0
1.

00
0.

0%
01

12
30

1
51

18
06

G
R

A
N

T 
A

LL
O

C
A

TI
O

N
 P

A
Y

R
O

LL
(5

,0
06

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
12

30
1

51
20

17
   

  
IN

TE
R

IM
 T

O
W

N
 M

A
N

A
G

ER
 

17
,8

97
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
12

30
1

51
40

06
5

LO
N

G
EV

IT
Y

 
2,

15
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
15

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
2,

15
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
65

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
23

.3
%

2,
65

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
23

.3
%

01
12

30
1

51
90

02
1

O
TH

ER
 -C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
TI

O
N

S 
C

O
O

R
D

IN
A

TO
R

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
65

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
 

65
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

 
01

12
30

1
51

90
19

4
V

EH
IC

LE
 A

LL
O

W
A

N
C

E 
2,

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

6,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

01
12

30
1

51
90

30
IN

TE
R

IM
 T

O
W

N
 M

A
N

A
G

ER
 

72
,5

92
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

38
,1

35
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
 

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
34

6,
89

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
38

6,
98

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
00

0
4.

00
13

.1
%

19
4,

56
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
57

4,
67

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
20

0
7.

00
48

.5
%

57
4,

67
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5.

20
0

7.
00

48
.5

%
T

O
W

N
 M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S

 
 

01
12

30
2

51
92

02
O

TH
ER

 P
A

Y
R

O
LL

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

12
30

2
52

40
03

   
  

V
EH

IC
LE

 M
A

IT
 A

N
D

 O
PE

R
-S

U
P 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

12
30

2
53

00
02

2
C

O
N

SU
LT

A
N

T 
FE

ES
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
50

.0
%

4,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
36

,8
33

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

19
4.

7%
37

,8
33

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
2.

7%
01

12
30

2
54

X
X

X
8

D
EI

 C
O

N
SU

LT
A

N
T

25
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
.0

%
30

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
.0

%
01

12
30

2
53

00
08

 
IN

SE
R

V
IC

E 
TR

A
IN

IN
G

 &
 E

D
U

C
A

TI
O

N
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
00

.0
%

12
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
12

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
12

30
2

53
02

04
6

C
O

N
FE

R
EN

C
ES

/M
EE

TI
N

G
S 

1,
14

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

70
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

0.
0%

70
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

0.
0%

01
12

30
2

53
40

01
   

  
TE

LE
PH

O
N

E 
38

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

12
30

2
53

65
05

3
TU

IT
IO

N
 R

EI
M

B
U

R
SE

M
EN

T 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
5,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

37
.5

%
5,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

37
.5

%
01

12
30

2
54

20
04

   
  

PR
IN

TI
N

G
 &

 S
TA

TI
O

N
ER

Y
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
12

30
2

55
10

03
   

  
B

O
O

K
S 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

01
12

30
2

57
10

00
   

  
TR

A
V

EL
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
25

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

12
30

2
57

10
02

9
TR

A
V

EL
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
FE

R
EN

C
E 

EX
PE

N
SE

-I
A

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
07

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
07

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

01
12

30
2

57
30

00
   

  
D

U
ES

 &
 S

U
B

SC
R

IP
TI

O
N

S 
7,

73
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
14

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

32
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
14

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
2,

14
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
12

30
2

57
30

02
   

  
M

EM
B

ER
SH

IP
 F

EE
S 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

12
30

2
57

80
17

   
  

FI
N

A
N

C
E 

C
H

A
R

G
ES

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
9,

25
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

57
,6

90
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

52
7.

7%
5,

72
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

90
,9

94
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

57
.7

%
91

,9
94

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
59

.5
%

T
O

W
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

R
-T

O
T

A
L

S
35

6,
14

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
44

5,
17

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
00

0
4.

00
26

.6
%

20
0,

28
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
66

6,
16

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
20

0
7.

00
49

.6
%

66
7,

16
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5.

20
0

7.
00

49
.9

%
N

O
T

E
S:

 
 

1
C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
TI

O
N

S 
C

O
O

R
D

IN
A

TO
R

 
 

2
 

 

3
 

 

4
C

O
N

TR
A

C
T 

FO
R

 V
EH

IC
LE

 N
O

T 
PR

O
V

ID
ED

 - 
A

LL
O

W
A

N
C

E 
IN

 L
IE

U
 O

F 
V

EH
IC

LE
 

 

5
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TU

A
L 

U
N

IO
N

 A
G

R
EE

M
EN

T
6

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

M
EE

TI
N

G
S 

A
N

D
 IN

C
R

EA
SE

D
 P

R
IC

IN
G

7
PO

SI
TI

O
N

 M
O

V
ED

 F
R

O
M

 T
O

W
N

 A
C

C
O

U
N

TA
N

T 
TO

 T
O

W
N

 M
A

N
A

G
ER

8
PL

A
N

N
ED

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
S 

TO
 B

E 
IM

PL
EM

EN
TE

D

9

IN
C

R
EA

SE
 IN

 C
O

N
SU

LT
IN

G
 R

EC
R

U
IT

M
EN

T,
 A

PP
R

A
IS

A
LS

, S
PE

C
IA

LT
Y

 IS
SU

ES

M
O

V
ED

 IN
TE

R
N

A
L 

A
U

D
IT

O
R

 C
O

N
FE

R
EN

C
E 

A
N

D
 T

R
A

V
EL

 F
R

O
M

 A
C

C
O

U
N

TI
N

G

PE
R

 M
O

A
 IN

C
R

EA
SE

D
 T

O
 $

27
50

 P
ER

 E
M

PL
O

Y
EE

Pa
ge
 6

100



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 
 

FI
N

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

-D
E

PT
 1

31
 

 
 

 
FI

N
A

N
C

E
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 S

A
L

A
R

IE
S

 
 

01
13

10
1

51
20

00
   

  
TE

M
PO

R
A

R
Y

 W
A

G
ES

 
1,

79
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

50
0

1.
00

-2
5.

0%
41

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

7,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

34
0

1.
00

0.
0%

7,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

34
0

1.
00

0.
0%

01
13

10
1

51
95

15
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L 
D

U
TI

ES
3,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

SE
N

IO
R

 C
LE

R
K

 I 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

5,
29

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
50

0
1.

00
-2

5.
0%

41
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
7,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
34

0
1.

00
0.

0%
7,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
34

0
1.

00
0.

0%
 

 
FI

N
A

N
C

E
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S
 

 
01

13
10

2
53

00
07

   
  

A
D

V
ER

TI
SI

N
G

 &
 F

R
EI

G
H

T 
1,

79
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-2

0.
0%

43
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

13
10

2
53

00
08

   
  

IN
SE

R
V

IC
E 

TR
A

IN
IN

G
 &

 E
D

U
C

A
TI

O
N

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

13
10

2
53

00
10

   
  

C
O

N
SU

LT
IN

G
 F

EE
S/

LE
G

A
L 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-5
0.

0%
26

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
13

10
2

54
20

01
   

  
PR

IN
TI

N
G

 &
 S

TA
TI

O
N

ER
Y

 
10

,1
86

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
0.

0%
2,

55
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
13

10
2

54
20

05
   

  
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

23
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
75

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

3,
41

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
75

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

75
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

13
10

2
57

10
00

   
  

TR
A

V
EL

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
13

10
2

57
30

00
   

  
D

U
ES

 &
 S

U
B

SC
R

IP
TI

O
N

S 
57

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
36

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
13

10
2

57
80

13
   

  
A

W
A

R
D

S 
&

 P
R

ES
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

13
10

2
57

80
26

G
R

A
N

T 
A

LL
O

C
A

TI
O

N
 E

X
PE

N
SE

(1
74

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

12
,6

19
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

19
,7

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

8.
2%

7,
01

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
19

,7
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
19

,7
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
 

 
R

E
SE

R
V

E
 F

U
N

D
 

 
01

13
10

2
57

81
00

   
  

R
E

SE
R

V
E

 F
U

N
D

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

33
0,

55
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
-6

.7
%

35
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5.

9%
35

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
9%

01
13

10
2

57
81

01
   

  
R

ES
ER

V
E 

FU
N

D
 F

U
EL

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
R

E
SE

R
V

E
 F

U
N

D
 -T

O
T

A
L

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
38

0,
55

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-5
.8

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
40

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

5.
1%

40
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
5.

1%
 

 
 

 
FI

N
A

N
C

E
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 -T

O
T

A
L

17
,9

13
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

40
7,

80
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
0

1.
00

-5
.7

%
7,

43
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

42
7,

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

34
0

1.
00

4.
8%

42
7,

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

34
0

1.
00

4.
8%

 
 

N
O

T
E

S:
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Pa
ge
 7

101



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

T
O

W
N

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
A

N
T

-D
E

PT
 1

35
 

 
T

O
W

N
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

A
N

T
 S

A
L

A
R

IE
S

 
 

01
13

50
1

51
10

51
4

FI
N

A
N

C
E 

D
IR

EC
TO

R
/T

O
W

N
 A

C
C

O
U

N
TA

N
T

11
2,

41
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
9,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

14
.8

%
19

,2
35

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

14
3,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

11
.2

%
14

3,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
1.

00
11

.2
%

01
13

50
1

51
10

52
1

A
SS

IS
TA

N
T 

TO
W

N
 A

C
C

O
U

N
TA

N
T 

59
,5

36
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

80
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

-5
.3

%
37

,9
61

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

87
,4

55
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

9.
3%

87
,4

55
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

9.
3%

01
13

50
1

51
10

86
 

SE
N

 C
LE

R
K

 II
 &

 P
T 

C
LK

 
77

,8
08

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
-1

00
.0

%
17

,8
18

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

01
13

50
1

51
10

85
C

LE
R

K
 P

A
R

T-
TI

M
E

25
,3

13
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

54
0

1.
00

3,
83

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
26

,0
46

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
54

0
1.

00
2.

9%
26

,0
46

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
54

0
1.

00
2.

9%
01

13
50

1
51

11
63

5
IN

TE
R

N
A

L 
A

U
D

IT
O

R
95

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
34

,5
37

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

-1
00

.0
%

01
13

50
1

51
12

66
 

PR
O

G
R

A
M

 A
D

M
IN

 I
54

,6
92

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
10

,6
61

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

56
,7

64
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

3.
8%

56
,7

64
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

3.
8%

01
13

50
1

51
18

06
G

R
A

N
T 

A
LL

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 P
A

Y
R

O
LL

(4
,8

41
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

13
50

1
51

20
00

   
  

TE
M

PO
R

A
R

Y
 W

A
G

ES
 

12
,2

40
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

 
-7

.7
%

5,
22

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
 

0.
0%

12
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

 
0.

0%
01

13
50

1
51

30
00

   
  

O
V

ER
TI

M
E 

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

-6
6.

7%
27

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
0.

0%
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

0.
0%

01
13

50
1

51
40

06
   

  
LO

N
G

EV
IT

Y
 

1,
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

40
.6

%
1,

06
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-1
00

.0
%

01
13

50
1

51
90

16
A

N
TI

C
IP

A
TE

D
 B

U
Y

O
U

T
19

,7
14

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

01
13

50
1

51
95

15
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L 
D

U
TI

ES
 S

TI
PE

N
D

3,
14

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
5,

95
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
26

1,
90

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
39

8,
75

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
54

0
5.

00
36

.7
%

15
6,

27
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
32

6,
26

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
54

0
4.

00
-1

8.
2%

32
6,

26
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

54
0

4.
00

-1
8.

2%
 

T
O

W
N

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
A

N
T

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S

 
 

01
13

50
2

53
00

03
2

C
O

N
SU

LT
A

N
T 

FE
ES

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
7,

05
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

.0
%

12
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

.0
%

01
13

50
2

53
00

07
   

  
A

D
V

ER
TI

SI
N

G
 &

 F
R

EI
G

H
T 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
25

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
13

50
2

53
00

08
 

IN
SE

R
V

IC
E 

TR
A

IN
IN

G
 &

 E
D

U
C

A
TI

O
N

 
60

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

77
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
29

.2
%

80
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3.

2%
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3.
2%

01
13

50
2

53
00

22
   

  
A

N
N

U
A

L 
A

U
D

IT
 F

EE
 

32
,3

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

32
,3

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
10

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

32
,3

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
32

,3
75

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
13

50
2

53
40

02
   

  
PO

ST
A

G
E 

39
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
13

50
2

54
20

00
   

  
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

46
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-2
5.

0%
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

13
50

2
54

20
02

   
  

PH
O

TO
ST

A
TS

 &
 P

H
O

TO
G

R
A

PH
S 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
13

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
13

50
2

57
10

00
3

TR
A

V
EL

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S 

1,
95

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

85
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

31
.0

%
3,

95
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2.
6%

3,
95

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2.

6%
01

13
50

2
57

30
00

3
D

U
ES

 &
 S

U
B

SC
R

IP
TI

O
N

S 
64

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

55
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

21
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

55
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
55

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
13

50
2

57
80

12
3

C
ER

TI
FI

C
A

TI
O

N
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
66

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
05

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

.0
%

1,
05

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

05
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
36

,7
45

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
49

,4
53

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
2.

6%
18

,9
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
51

,5
77

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
4.

3%
51

,5
77

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
4.

3%
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
T

O
W

N
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

A
N

T
 -T

O
T

A
L

29
8,

64
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

44
8,

20
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

54
0

5.
00

31
.8

%
17

5,
17

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

37
7,

84
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

54
0

4.
00

-1
5.

7%
37

7,
84

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
54

0
4.

00
-1

5.
7%

 
 

N
O

T
E

S:
 

 

1
 

 

2
 

 

3
 

 

4
 

 

5
PO

SI
TI

O
N

 M
O

V
ED

 T
O

 T
O

W
N

 M
A

N
A

G
ER

 
D

EP
A

R
TM

EN
T

EM
PL

O
Y

EE
 H

IR
ED

 A
T 

H
IR

ER
 R

A
TE

 O
F 

$8
5,

00
0 

TH
EN

 
2.

5%
 IN

C
R

EA
SE

IN
C

R
EA

SE
D

 C
O

ST
 O

F 
C

O
N

SU
LT

A
N

TS
IN

C
LU

D
ES

 T
H

R
EE

 E
M

PL
O

Y
EE

S 
FO

R
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
, D

U
ES

 
A

N
D

 S
U

B
SC

R
IP

TI
O

N
S 

- T
H

EN
 A

D
JU

ST
ED

 T
O

 T
W

O
 A

S 
IN

TE
R

N
A

L 
A

U
D

IT
O

R
 M

O
V

ED
 T

O
 T

O
W

N
 M

A
N

A
G

ER

M
A

R
K

ET
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S

Pa
ge
 8

102



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 
 

A
U

D
IT

IN
G

 A
N

D
 A

N
A

L
Y

T
IC

S-
D

E
PT

 1
36

 
 

A
U

D
IT

IN
G

 A
N

D
 A

N
A

L
Y

T
IC

S-
SA

L
A

R
IE

S
 

 

01
13

60
1

51
10

52
   

  
D

IR
EC

TO
R

 O
F 

A
U

D
IT

IN
G

 A
N

D
 A

N
A

LY
TI

C
S

29
,2

18
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

 

01
13

60
1

51
11

87
IN

TE
R

N
A

L 
A

U
D

IT
O

R
11

,4
44

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

01
13

60
1

51
18

03
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L 
D

U
TI

ES
 C

O
V

ER
A

G
E

6,
46

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

01
13

60
1

51
90

16
A

N
TI

C
IP

A
TE

D
 B

U
Y

O
U

T
12

,3
32

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
01

13
60

1
51

90
04

H
EA

LT
H

 A
N

D
 W

EL
LN

ES
S 

TR
A

IN
ER

 W
A

G
ES

 IN
 H

.R
.

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
 

 
 

 
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

62
,4

59
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

 
 

 
A

U
D

IT
IN

G
 A

N
D

 A
N

A
L

Y
T

IC
S-

E
X

PE
N

SE
S

 
 

01
13

60
2

53
02

04
   

  
C

O
N

FE
R

EN
C

ES
/M

EE
TI

N
G

S 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
13

60
2

54
20

00
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

PP
LI

ES
37

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

01
13

60
2

57
10

02
   

  
TR

A
V

EL
 E

X
PE

N
SE

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
 

 
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

37
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

 
A

U
D

IT
IN

G
 A

N
D

 A
N

A
L

Y
T

IC
S 

- T
O

T
A

L
62

,8
35

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0

0.
00

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0
0.

00
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0
0.

00
 

 
 

N
O

T
E

S:
 

 

Th
is

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t w

as
 e

lim
in

at
ed

 a
nd

 th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

ito
r i

s n
ow

 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

To
w

n 
A

cc
ou

nt
an

t d
ep

ar
tm

en
t.

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge
 9

103



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 
 

C
E

N
T

R
A

L
IZ

E
D

 P
U

R
C

H
A

SI
N

G
-D

E
PT

 1
38

 
 

E
X

PE
N

SE
S

 
 

01
13

80
2

53
00

07
   

  
A

D
V

ER
TI

SI
N

G
 &

 F
R

EI
G

H
T 

28
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-5
0.

0%
31

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

0.
0%

01
13

80
2

53
00

08
   

  
IN

SE
R

V
IC

E 
TR

A
IN

IN
G

 &
 E

D
U

C
A

TI
O

N
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

13
80

2
53

00
47

1
R

EG
IO

N
A

L 
PU

R
C

H
A

SI
N

G
 S

V
C

 
4,

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
4,

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
7.

3%
4,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

7.
3%

01
13

80
2

53
40

01
2

TE
LE

PH
O

N
E 

2,
03

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-2
1.

9%
34

,7
85

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

39
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
56

.0
%

39
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
56

.0
%

01
13

80
2

54
20

00
4

O
FF

IC
E 

SU
PP

LI
ES

 
9,

80
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
1,

93
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

15
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

.0
%

15
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

.0
%

01
13

80
2

54
20

02
3

PH
O

TO
ST

A
TS

 &
 P

H
O

TO
G

R
A

PH
S 

39
,8

49
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

52
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-1

1.
9%

20
,0

54
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
59

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
.5

%
59

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
.5

%
01

13
80

2
54

20
04

 
PR

IN
TI

N
G

 &
 S

TA
TI

O
N

ER
Y

96
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

97
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

13
80

2
57

80
26

G
R

A
N

T 
A

LL
O

C
A

TI
O

N
 E

X
PE

N
SE

(1
,5

39
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

13
80

2
55

80
30

C
O

V
ID

 1
9 

EX
PE

N
SE

S
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

 
C

E
N

T
R

A
L

IZ
E

D
 P

U
R

C
H

A
SI

N
G

 -T
O

T
A

L
54

,8
23

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
93

,6
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-1

3.
4%

62
,1

64
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
8,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
26

.5
%

11
8,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
26

.5
%

 
 

N
O

T
E

S:
 

 
1

IN
C

R
EA

SE
 IN

 R
EG

IO
N

A
L 

O
R

G
A

N
IZ

A
TI

O
N

S
 

 

2

Y
EA

R
LY

 P
H

O
N

E 
A

N
D

 F
A

X
 L

IN
E 

SU
PP

O
R

T 
A

N
D

 
M

A
IN

TE
N

A
N

C
E.

  S
U

PP
O

R
T 

IS
 N

O
 L

O
N

G
ER

 C
O

V
ER

ED
 

U
N

D
ER

 O
R

II
G

IN
A

L 
C

O
N

TR
A

C
T

3
IN

C
R

EA
SE

 IN
 M

A
C

H
IN

E 
R

EN
TA

L 

4
IN

C
R

EA
SE

 IN
 C

O
ST

 O
F 

PA
PE

R
 

 
 

 

Pa
ge
 1
0

104



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F 
A

SS
E

SS
O

R
S-

D
E

PT
 1

41
 

 
B

O
A

R
D

 O
F 

A
SS

E
SS

O
R

S 
SA

L
A

R
IE

S
 

 
01

14
10

1
51

10
51

1
D

EP
A

R
TM

EN
T 

H
EA

D
 

24
,0

42
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
2,

00
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

2.
0%

11
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

12
.7

%
11

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
1.

00
12

.7
%

01
14

10
1

51
10

53
   

  
A

PP
O

IN
TE

D
 O

FF
IC

IA
LS

 
1,

61
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
0.

0%
66

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
0.

0%
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

0.
0%

01
14

10
1

51
10

86
   

  
SE

N
IO

R
 C

LE
R

K
 II

 
73

,7
41

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
49

,8
14

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
-4

0.
7%

20
,2

53
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
51

,8
14

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
4.

0%
51

,8
14

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
4.

0%
01

14
10

1
51

11
51

IN
TE

R
IM

 D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
H

EA
D

20
,6

69
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

6,
05

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
01

14
10

1
51

12
17

 
D

A
TA

 C
O

LL
EC

TO
R

 
52

,9
73

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
56

,2
75

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
33

.3
%

22
,9

54
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
58

,1
90

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
3.

4%
58

,1
90

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
3.

4%
01

14
10

1
51

12
66

   
  

PR
O

G
R

A
M

 A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TO

R
 I 

14
,5

84
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

54
,6

91
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

-1
1.

8%
11

,5
69

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

56
,8

38
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

3.
9%

56
,8

38
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

3.
9%

01
14

10
1

51
20

00
TE

M
PO

R
A

R
Y

 W
A

G
ES

14
,4

39
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
14

10
1

51
20

09
   

  
JR

. D
A

TA
 C

O
LL

EC
TO

R
S 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
01

14
10

1
51

30
00

O
V

ER
TI

M
E

10
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

21
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
01

14
10

1
51

40
06

   
  

LO
N

G
EV

IT
Y

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

01
14

10
1

51
40

08
7

O
U

T 
O

F 
G

R
A

D
E 

W
A

G
ES

72
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
01

14
10

1
51

95
15

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

D
U

TI
ES

9,
57

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

,1
16

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

01
14

10
1

51
90

16
A

N
TI

C
IP

A
TE

D
 B

U
Y

O
U

T
13

,0
36

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

22
5,

40
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

26
4,

78
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

00
0

4.
00

-9
.3

%
73

,6
35

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
28

8,
84

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
00

0
4.

00
9.

1%
28

8,
84

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
00

0
4.

00
9.

1%
 

 
B

O
A

R
D

 O
F 

A
SS

E
SS

O
R

S 
E

X
PE

N
SE

S
 

 
01

14
10

2
51

92
02

   
  

O
TH

ER
 P

A
Y

R
O

LL
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

14
10

2
52

40
03

   
  

V
EH

IC
LE

 M
A

IN
T 

A
N

D
 O

PE
R

-S
ER

V
IC

E 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
14

10
2

52
40

07
   

  
O

FF
IC

E 
EQ

U
IP

M
EN

T 
R

EP
A

IR
S-

SE
R

V
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-6
0.

0%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

14
10

2
53

00
02

2
C

O
N

SU
LT

A
N

T 
FE

ES
 

41
,0

40
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

0.
0%

32
,9

88
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

66
.7

%
25

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

66
.7

%
01

14
10

2
53

00
07

   
  

A
D

V
ER

TI
SI

N
G

 &
 F

R
EI

G
H

T 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-2

3.
1%

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
14

10
2

53
00

08
3

IN
SE

R
V

IC
E 

TR
A

IN
IN

G
 &

 E
D

U
C

A
TI

O
N

 
35

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

72
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

37
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

89
.7

%
1,

37
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

89
.7

%
01

14
10

2
53

00
10

4
R

EV
A

LU
A

TI
O

N
19

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
22

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

46
.7

%
8,

47
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

25
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
13

.6
%

25
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
13

.6
%

01
14

10
2

53
00

25
   

  
LA

N
D

/R
EG

 R
EC

O
R

D
/S

ER
 B

U
R

EA
U

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

76
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
76

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

76
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
01

14
10

2
53

00
48

5
A

PP
EL

LA
TE

 T
A

X
 C

O
U

R
T 

EX
PE

N
SE

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

8,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
60

.0
%

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

.0
%

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

.0
%

01
14

10
2

53
00

58
   

  
A

PP
R

A
IS

A
L 

SE
R

V
IC

ES
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

6,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

15
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
01

14
10

2
54

20
00

6
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

85
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-2
5.

0%
51

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
33

.3
%

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
33

.3
%

01
14

10
2

54
80

01
   

  
G

A
SO

LI
N

E,
 O

IL
 &

 G
R

EA
SE

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
14

10
2

55
30

09
   

  
M

A
PS

 &
 C

H
A

R
TS

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

14
10

2
57

10
00

   
  

TR
A

V
EL

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S 

56
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

14
10

2
57

30
00

   
  

D
U

ES
 &

 S
U

B
SC

R
IP

TI
O

N
S 

48
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

47
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

61
,7

85
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

65
,0

01
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

37
.9

%
48

,4
49

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
81

,1
51

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
24

.8
%

81
,1

51
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

24
.8

%
 

 
 

 
B

O
A

R
D

 O
F 

A
SS

E
SS

O
R

S 
-T

O
T

A
L

28
7,

18
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

32
9,

78
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

00
0

4.
00

-2
.7

%
12

2,
08

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

36
9,

99
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

00
0

4.
00

12
.2

%
36

9,
99

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
00

0
4.

00
12

.2
%

 
 

N
O

T
E

S:
 

 
1

M
A

R
K

ET
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S 
D

IC
TA

TE
 H

IG
H

ER
 S

A
LA

R
Y

 
 

2
IN

C
R

EA
SE

 IN
 C

O
N

SU
LT

A
N

T 
R

A
TE

S 
$1

0,
00

0 
FO

R
 

B
IL

LI
N

G
 C

O
N

SU
LT

A
N

T 
A

N
D

 U
N

A
N

TI
C

IP
A

TE
D

 N
EE

D
S

 
 

3
A

SS
ES

SI
N

G
 C

ER
TI

FI
C

A
TI

O
N

 F
O

R
 A

 F
U

LL
 S

TA
FF

 
 

4
IN

TE
R

IM
 Y

EA
R

 $
25

,0
00

 P
ER

 Y
EA

R
 

 

5
IN

C
R

EA
SE

D
 A

B
A

TE
M

EN
T 

C
LA

IM
 C

A
SE

S
 

 

6
FU

LL
 S

TA
FF

 S
U

PP
LI

ES
 N

EE
D

ED
 

 

7
C

O
N

TI
N

U
IN

G
 E

D
U

C
A

TI
O

N
 F

O
R

 A
SS

ES
SI

N
G

 
C

ER
TI

FI
C

A
TI

O
N

Pa
ge
 1
1

105



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

T
R

E
A

SU
R

E
R

/C
O

L
L

E
C

T
O

R
-D

E
PT

 1
45

 
 

T
R

E
A

SU
R

E
R

/C
O

L
L

E
C

T
O

R
 S

A
L

A
R

IE
S

 
 

01
14

50
1

51
10

51
 

D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
H

EA
D

 S
A

LA
R

Y
 

95
,9

91
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

9.
4%

42
,4

02
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

8,
03

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
1.

00
2.

9%
10

8,
03

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
1.

00
2.

9%
01

14
50

1
51

10
54

   
  

A
SS

IS
TA

N
T 

TR
EA

SU
R

ER
/C

O
LL

EC
TO

R
 

72
,2

58
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

73
,4

21
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

1.
6%

29
,6

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
75

,5
44

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
2.

9%
75

,5
44

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
2.

9%
01

14
50

1
51

10
86

1
SE

N
IO

R
 C

LE
R

K
 II

 
14

0,
12

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
13

6,
26

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

2.
00

0
2.

00
1.

9%
57

,4
93

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

14
5,

76
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
2.

00
0

2.
00

7.
0%

14
5,

76
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
2.

00
0

2.
00

7.
0%

01
14

50
1

51
11

42
1

SE
N

IO
R

 C
LE

R
K

 C
A

SH
IE

R
 

98
,0

73
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

97
,0

64
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
0

2.
00

1.
9%

40
,8

66
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

5,
61

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

2.
00

0
2.

00
8.

8%
10

5,
61

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

2.
00

0
2.

00
8.

8%
01

14
50

1
51

18
06

G
R

A
N

T 
A

LL
O

C
A

TI
O

N
 P

A
Y

R
O

LL
(7

,8
06

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
14

50
1

51
20

00
   

  
TE

M
PO

R
A

R
Y

 W
A

G
ES

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

01
14

50
1

51
30

00
   

  
O

V
ER

TI
M

E 
1,

76
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
-4

0.
0%

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
66

.7
%

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
66

.7
%

01
14

50
1

51
40

06
   

  
LO

N
G

EV
IT

Y
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

75
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-1
00

.0
%

01
14

50
1

51
40

10
1

SU
PE

R
 L

O
N

G
EV

IT
Y

3,
78

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
1,

61
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
10

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
8.

4%
4,

10
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

8.
4%

01
14

50
1

51
90

16
   

  
A

N
TI

C
IP

A
TE

D
 B

U
Y

O
U

T 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
40

0,
40

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
42

0,
78

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6.
00

0
6.

00
4.

3%
17

2,
02

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

44
1,

56
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6.

00
0

6.
00

4.
9%

44
1,

56
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6.

00
0

6.
00

4.
9%

 
 

T
R

E
A

SU
R

E
R

/C
O

L
L

E
C

T
O

R
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S
 

 
01

14
50

2
51

40
05

 
IN

SE
R

V
IC

E 
TR

A
IN

IN
G

 &
 E

D
U

C
A

TI
O

N
 

1,
43

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
.0

%
95

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
14

50
2

52
40

07
   

  
O

FF
IC

E 
EQ

U
IP

 R
EP

R
S-

SE
R

V
IC

E 
49

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
54

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
14

50
2

53
00

02
   

  
C

O
N

SU
LT

A
N

T 
FE

ES
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

14
50

2
53

00
25

   
  

LA
N

D
/R

EG
 R

EC
O

R
D

/S
ER

 B
U

R
EA

U
 

36
,7

44
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
14

,0
87

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
14

50
2

53
00

33
   

  
B

A
N

K
IN

G
 S

ER
V

IC
E 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
14

50
2

53
00

56
2

M
ED

IC
A

ID
 B

IL
LI

N
G

 S
ER

V
IC

E 
13

,3
93

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
24

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

33
.3

%
4,

55
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

26
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8.

3%
26

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

8.
3%

01
14

50
2

53
40

02
3

PO
ST

A
G

E 
93

,6
58

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
75

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7.
1%

13
,6

85
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
85

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
.3

%
85

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
.3

%
01

14
50

2
53

40
04

   
  

A
D

V
ER

TI
SI

N
G

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-6

0.
0%

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
14

50
2

54
30

10
   

  
O

FF
IC

E 
EQ

U
IP

 R
EP

R
S-

SU
PP

LY
 

47
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

35
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

14
50

2
55

80
28

   
  

PE
TT

Y
 C

A
SH

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
35

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

35
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
35

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
14

50
2

57
10

00
   

  
TR

A
V

EL
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S 
13

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

.4
%

53
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

14
50

2
57

30
00

   
  

D
U

ES
 &

 S
U

B
SC

R
IP

TI
O

N
S 

30
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

31
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

14
50

2
57

80
17

   
  

FI
N

A
N

C
E 

C
H

A
R

G
ES

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

14
6,

62
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

15
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
7.

6%
34

,1
66

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
16

8,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

7.
7%

16
8,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
7.

7%
 

 
T

R
E

A
SU

R
E

R
/C

O
L

L
E

C
T

O
R

 -T
O

T
A

L
54

7,
03

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
57

6,
78

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6.
00

0
6.

00
5.

1%
20

6,
19

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

60
9,

56
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6.

00
0

6.
00

5.
7%

60
9,

56
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6.

00
0

6.
00

5.
7%

 
 

N
O

T
E

S:
 

 
1

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TU
A

L 
IN

C
R

EA
SE

S
 

 
2

IN
C

R
EA

SE
 D

U
E 

TO
 P

ER
 C

H
IL

D
 IN

 S
C

H
O

O
L 

SY
ST

EM
 

 
3

IN
C

R
EA

SE
 IN

 C
O

ST
 A

N
D

 U
SA

G
E

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge
 1
2

106



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 
 

 
H

U
M

A
N

 R
E

SO
U

R
C

E
S-

D
E

PT
 1

52
 

 
H

U
M

A
N

 R
E

SO
U

R
C

E
S 

SA
L

A
R

IE
S

 
 

01
15

20
1

51
X

X
X

1
D

IR
EC

TO
R

 H
U

M
A

N
 R

ES
O

U
R

C
ES

 A
N

D
 W

EL
LN

ES
S

11
6,

13
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

11
6,

13
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

01
15

20
1

51
10

83
   

  
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 C

O
O

R
D

IN
A

TO
R

 I 
94

,6
02

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
96

,1
33

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
1.

6%
38

,8
23

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-1
00

.0
%

01
15

20
1

2
A

SS
T 

D
IR

EC
TO

R
 H

EA
D

 H
U

M
A

N
 R

ES
O

U
R

C
ES

80
,7

06
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

80
,7

06
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

01
15

20
1

51
12

64
 

O
FF

IC
E 

A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TO

R
/B

EN
EF

IT
S 

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
72

,7
06

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
-1

00
.0

%
01

15
20

1
51

18
06

G
R

A
N

T 
A

LL
O

C
A

TI
O

N
 P

A
Y

R
O

LL
(2

,3
30

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
15

20
1

51
12

66
 

PR
O

G
R

A
M

 A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TO

R
 I

59
,4

69
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

29
,3

63
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

15
20

1
51

X
X

X
X

3
O

FF
IC

E 
A

SS
IS

TA
N

T
52

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
52

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
01

15
20

1
51

40
06

7
LO

N
G

EV
IT

Y
 

2,
15

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

15
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

0.
0%

2,
15

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

65
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

23
.3

%
2,

65
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

23
.3

%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

15
3,

89
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

17
0,

98
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
0

2.
00

9.
5%

70
,3

36
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

25
1,

48
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

00
0

3.
00

 
25

1,
48

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
00

0
3.

00
 

 
 

H
U

M
A

N
 R

E
SO

U
R

C
E

S 
E

X
PE

N
SE

S
 

 
01

15
20

2
53

00
02

C
O

N
SU

LT
A

N
T 

FE
ES

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
15

20
2

53
00

07
4

A
D

V
ER

TI
SI

N
G

 &
 F

R
EI

G
H

T 
4,

59
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
14

.3
%

57
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
.5

%
4,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
.5

%
01

15
20

2
53

00
08

5
IN

SE
R

V
IC

E 
TR

A
IN

IN
G

 &
 E

D
U

C
A

TI
O

N
 

3,
67

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-2
5.

0%
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

33
.3

%
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

33
.3

%
01

15
20

2
54

20
00

 
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

49
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

64
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

15
20

2
57

10
00

 
TR

A
V

EL
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
01

15
20

2
57

30
00

6
D

U
ES

 &
 S

U
B

SC
R

IP
TI

O
N

S 
75

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
45

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

70
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
55

.6
%

70
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
55

.6
%

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
8,

84
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
1,

22
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

8,
75

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
16

.7
%

8,
75

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
16

.7
%

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0
0.

00
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0
0.

00
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
 

H
U

M
A

N
 R

E
SO

U
R

C
E

S 
-T

O
T

A
L

16
2,

73
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

17
8,

48
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
2.

00
9.

0%
71

,5
58

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
26

0,
23

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
00

3.
00

45
.8

%
26

0,
23

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
00

3.
00

45
.8

%
 

 
N

O
T

E
S:

 
 

1
 

 

2
 

 

3
 

 

4
IN

C
R

EA
SE

 IN
 C

O
ST

 O
F 

JO
B

 P
O

ST
IN

G
S

 
 

5
IN

C
R

EA
SE

 IN
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
, A

D
D

'L
 E

M
PL

O
Y

EE
 

 

6
N

EW
 M

EM
B

ER
SH

IP
S 

A
N

D
 C

ER
TI

FI
C

A
TI

O
N

 
 

7
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TU

A
L 

IN
C

R
EA

SE

PR
O

M
O

TE
D

 T
O

 D
EP

T 
H

EA
D

 - 
H

R
 D

IR
EC

TO
R

 W
IT

H
 M

A
R

K
ET

 A
N

A
LY

SI
S 

O
F 

SA
LA

R
Y

PR
O

M
O

TE
D

 T
O

 A
SS

T 
D

EP
T 

H
EA

D
 W

IT
H

 M
A

R
K

ET
 A

N
A

LY
SI

S 
O

F 
SA

LA
R

Y

N
EW

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 W
IT

H
 C

LE
R

IC
A

L 
D

U
TI

ES
 IN

C
LU

D
IN

G
 IN

SU
R

A
N

C
E,

 B
EN

EF
IT

S,
 P

A
Y

R
O

LL
, E

TC
.

Pa
ge
 1
3

107



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 
 

PR
O

C
U

R
E

M
E

N
T

-D
E

PT
 1

53
 

 
PR

O
C

U
R

E
M

E
N

T
 S

A
L

A
R

IE
S

 
 

01
15

30
1

51
10

51
   

  
PR

O
C

U
R

EM
EN

T 
O

FF
IC

ER
 

95
,9

91
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

97
,5

34
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

1.
6%

39
,3

89
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

0,
35

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
1.

00
2.

9%
10

0,
35

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
1.

00
2.

9%
01

15
30

1
51

10
52

   
  

D
EP

U
TY

 P
R

O
C

U
R

EM
EN

T 
O

FF
IC

ER
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

15
30

1
51

10
86

1
SE

N
IO

R
 C

LE
R

K
 II

 
30

,1
76

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
46

,7
57

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
1.

9%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
-1

00
.0

%
01

15
30

1
51

X
X

X
1

PU
R

C
H

A
SI

N
G

 C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
TO

R
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

70
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

70
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

01
15

30
1

51
18

06
G

R
A

N
T 

A
LL

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 P
A

Y
R

O
LL

(2
,1

98
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

15
30

1
51

90
16

   
  

A
N

TI
C

IP
A

TE
D

 B
U

Y
O

U
T 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

12
3,

96
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

14
4,

29
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
0

2.
00

1.
7%

39
,3

89
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

17
0,

35
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
0

2.
00

18
.1

%
17

0,
35

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
00

0
2.

00
18

.1
%

 
 

PR
O

C
U

R
E

M
E

N
T

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S

 
 

01
15

30
2

53
00

07
   

  
A

D
V

ER
TI

SI
N

G
 &

 F
R

EI
G

H
T 

5,
41

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

03
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-6
9.

7%
19

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
03

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
3,

03
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
15

30
2

53
00

08
 

IN
SE

R
V

IC
E 

TR
A

IN
IN

G
 &

 E
D

U
C

A
TI

O
N

 
1,

49
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
48

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

.3
%

79
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

04
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-2
9.

7%
1,

04
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-2
9.

7%
01

15
30

2
57

10
00

   
  

TR
A

V
EL

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S 

44
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
61

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-1
1.

0%
27

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

62
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2.

1%
62

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2.
1%

01
15

30
2

57
30

00
   

  
D

U
ES

 &
 S

U
B

SC
R

IP
TI

O
N

S 
55

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-4

.0
%

55
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

7,
89

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

73
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-5
4.

4%
1,

56
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

5,
30

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-7

.5
%

5,
30

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-7

.5
%

 
 

PR
O

C
U

R
E

M
E

N
T

 -T
O

T
A

L
13

1,
86

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

0,
02

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
00

0
2.

00
-2

.9
%

40
,9

53
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

17
5,

66
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
0

2.
00

17
.1

%
17

5,
66

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
00

0
2.

00
17

.1
%

 
 

N
O

T
E

S:
 

 

1
 

 
 

 
 

 

N
O

N
-U

N
IO

N
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 C

H
A

N
G

E 
R

ES
PO

N
SI

B
LE

 F
O

R
 S

TR
A

TE
G

IC
 

PU
R

C
H

A
SI

N
G

.  
SE

N
IO

R
 C

LE
R

K
 II

 IS
 E

LI
M

IN
A

TE
D

 A
N

D
 A

 N
EW

 P
U

R
C

H
A

SI
N

G
 

C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
TO

R
.  

N
O

 N
EW

 F
TE

's

Pa
ge
 1
4

108



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 
 

IN
FO

R
M

A
T

IO
N

 S
Y

ST
E

M
S-

D
E

PT
 1

55
 

 
IN

FO
R

M
A

T
IO

N
 S

Y
ST

E
M

S 
SA

L
A

R
IE

S
 

 
01

15
50

1
51

10
51

2
IT

 D
IR

EC
TO

R
 

10
5,

96
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
7,

67
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

1.
6%

43
,4

83
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

2,
67

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
1.

00
13

.9
%

12
2,

67
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

13
.9

%
01

15
50

1
51

11
21

   
  

C
O

M
PU

TE
R

 T
EC

H
N

IC
IA

N
 

61
,2

89
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

81
,6

20
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

20
0

2.
00

2.
0%

28
,6

83
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
83

,8
66

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
20

0
2.

00
2.

8%
83

,8
66

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
20

0
2.

00
2.

8%
01

15
50

1
51

11
91

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

TI
O

N
S 

SP
EC

IA
LI

ST
7,

65
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
95

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

20
0

1.
00

1.
6%

3,
21

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
8,

18
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
20

0
1.

00
2.

9%
8,

18
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
20

0
1.

00
2.

9%
01

15
50

1
51

18
06

G
R

A
N

T 
A

LL
O

C
A

TI
O

N
 P

A
Y

R
O

LL
(3

,0
14

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
15

50
1

51
20

00
TE

M
PO

R
A

R
Y

 W
A

G
ES

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

15
50

1
51

30
00

   
  

O
V

ER
TI

M
E 

19
,3

14
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

18
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0

0.
00

0.
0%

8,
17

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
18

,3
60

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0
0.

00
2.

0%
18

,3
60

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0
0.

00
2.

0%
01

15
50

1
51

40
06

1
LO

N
G

EV
IT

Y
65

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

65
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
75

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

15
.4

%
75

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

15
.4

%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

19
1,

20
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

21
5,

89
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

40
0

4.
00

-0
.2

%
84

,2
11

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
23

3,
83

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
40

0
4.

00
8.

3%
23

3,
83

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
40

0
4.

00
8.

3%
 

 
IN

FO
R

M
A

T
IO

N
 S

Y
ST

E
M

S 
E

X
PE

N
SE

S
 

 
01

15
50

2
53

00
00

   
  

PU
R

C
H

A
SE

 O
F 

SE
R

V
IC

ES
 

23
2,

43
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

28
4,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

8%
23

4,
59

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

28
4,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
28

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

01
15

50
2

53
00

00
A

D
V

ER
TI

SI
N

G
 &

 F
R

EI
G

H
T

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

15
50

2
53

40
02

PO
ST

A
G

E
14

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

01
15

50
2

53
40

01
   

  
TE

LE
PH

O
N

E 
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
30

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
30

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

15
50

2
54

00
00

   
  

SU
PP

LI
ES

 
52

,4
10

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
71

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-4
.1

%
9,

71
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

74
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

2%
74

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
2%

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
28

5,
98

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
35

6,
30

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-0
.2

%
24

4,
31

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

35
9,

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

8%
35

9,
30

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
8%

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
IN

FO
R

M
A

T
IO

N
 S

Y
ST

E
M

S 
-T

O
T

A
L

47
7,

19
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

57
2,

19
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

40
0

4.
00

0.
6%

32
8,

52
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
59

3,
13

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
40

0
4.

00
3.

7%
59

3,
13

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
40

0
4.

00
3.

7%
 

 
N

O
T

E
S:

 
 

1
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TU

A
L 

IN
C

R
EA

SE
 

 

2
B

A
SE

 S
A

LA
R

Y
 IN

C
R

EA
SE

D
 B

Y
 $

15
K

 F
O

R
 M

A
R

K
ET

 
C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S 
A

N
D

 IN
C

R
EA

SE
D

 D
U

TI
ES

.
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Pa
ge
 1
5

109



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 
T

O
W

N
 C

L
E

R
K

-D
E

PT
 1

61
 

 
T

O
W

N
 C

L
E

R
K

 S
A

L
A

R
IE

S
 

 
01

16
10

1
51

10
51

   
  

D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
H

EA
D

 
94

,6
20

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
96

,1
43

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
1.

6%
38

,8
30

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

98
,9

33
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

2.
9%

98
,9

33
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

2.
9%

01
16

10
1

51
10

53
   

  
C

LE
R

K
 T

O
 T

H
E 

R
EG

IS
TR

A
R

 S
TI

PE
N

D
 

95
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
95

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

-4
.9

%
38

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
5.

2%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

5.
2%

01
16

10
1

51
10

86
4

SE
N

IO
R

 C
LE

R
K

 II
 

49
,0

37
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

47
,9

26
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

1.
8%

20
,4

33
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

4,
35

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

2.
00

0
2.

00
11

7.
8%

10
4,

35
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
2.

00
0

2.
00

11
7.

8%
01

16
10

1
51

10
98

4
C

LE
R

K
 -P

U
B

LI
C

 R
EC

O
R

D
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

45
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

-1
00

.0
%

6
PA

R
T 

TI
M

E 
C

LE
R

K
18

,2
40

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
55

0
1.

00
18

,2
40

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
55

0
1.

00
01

16
10

1
51

11
51

   
  

IN
TE

R
IM

 D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
H

EA
D

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

01
16

10
1

51
12

02
   

  
SA

LA
R

IE
S 

C
LE

R
IC

A
L 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

 
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

 
01

16
10

1
51

12
59

5
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 A

D
M

IN
 II

 (L
IC

/R
EG

) 
57

,5
87

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
58

,5
14

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
1.

6%
23

,6
30

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

-1
00

.0
%

01
16

10
1

51
18

04
ST

IP
EN

D
-L

IC
EN

SI
N

G
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
16

10
1

51
20

00
1

TE
M

PO
R

A
R

Y
 W

A
G

ES
 

30
,5

09
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

40
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

 
-1

1.
1%

38
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
35

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
 

-1
1.

3%
35

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
 

-1
1.

3%
01

16
10

1
51

30
00

   
  

O
V

ER
TI

M
E 

16
,8

86
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

65
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
16

10
1

51
40

06
3

LO
N

G
EV

IT
Y

 
65

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

65
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
65

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

75
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

.4
%

75
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

.4
%

01
16

10
1

51
90

16
   

  
A

N
TI

C
IP

A
TE

D
 B

U
Y

O
U

T 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
25

0,
24

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
29

6,
18

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
00

0
4.

00
17

.1
%

85
,9

69
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

26
8,

78
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

55
0

4.
00

-9
.3

%
26

8,
78

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
55

0
4.

00
-9

.3
%

 
 

T
O

W
N

 C
L

E
R

K
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S
 

 
01

16
10

2
52

40
07

   
  

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

R
EP

A
IR

S-
SE

R
V

IC
ES

 
40

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-1
6.

7%
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-1
6.

7%
01

16
10

2
53

00
07

2
A

D
V

ER
TI

SI
N

G
 &

 F
R

EI
G

H
T 

1,
76

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
89

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
.0

%
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
.0

%
01

16
10

2
53

00
08

2
IN

SE
R

V
IC

E 
TR

A
IN

IN
G

 &
 E

D
U

C
A

TI
O

N
 

94
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

33
.3

%
1,

04
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

.0
%

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

.0
%

01
16

10
2

53
00

12
   

  
D

A
TA

 P
R

O
C

ES
S 

A
N

D
 M

A
IT

-S
ER

V
 

(1
,0

24
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
.0

%
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
15

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-1

4.
2%

5,
15

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-1

4.
2%

01
16

10
2

53
40

07
   

  
B

IN
D

IN
G

 
83

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

76
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
16

10
2

53
40

10
2

C
EN

SU
S 

M
A

IL
IN

G
 

6,
03

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

4,
99

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
9,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

18
.8

%
9,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

18
.8

%
01

16
10

2
53

45
00

   
  

ST
R

EE
T 

LI
ST

IN
G

 B
O

O
K

 P
R

IN
TI

N
G

 
2,

92
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
2,

22
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-5

0.
0%

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-5

0.
0%

01
16

10
2

54
20

00
   

  
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

3,
35

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
.0

%
1,

92
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

6,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
16

10
2

54
20

01
   

  
PR

IN
TI

N
G

 &
 S

TA
TI

O
N

ER
Y

 
(2

,7
50

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

6,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
88

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

6,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
16

10
2

54
20

10
   

  
SU

PP
LI

ES
 T

O
W

N
 M

EE
TI

N
G

 C
O

M
M

. 
1,

43
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

13
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
4,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
16

10
2

55
80

19
   

  
V

O
TI

N
G

 S
U

PP
LI

ES
 

15
,8

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

4,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
47

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

4,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
4,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
16

10
2

55
80

21
   

  
A

N
N

U
A

L 
TO

W
N

 C
O

D
E 

U
PD

A
TE

S 
1,

19
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-2

0.
0%

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-2

0.
0%

01
16

10
2

57
10

00
   

  
TR

A
V

EL
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S 
1,

39
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

0.
0%

15
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

16
10

2
57

30
00

   
  

D
U

ES
 &

 S
U

B
SC

R
IP

TI
O

N
S 

55
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-2
5.

0%
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-3
3.

3%
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-3
3.

3%
 

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
32

,9
02

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
58

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
6.

4%
22

,8
94

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
56

,1
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-3

.2
%

56
,1

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-3
.2

%
 

 
 

T
O

W
N

 C
L

E
R

K
 -T

O
T

A
L

28
3,

14
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

35
4,

18
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

00
0

4.
00

15
.2

%
10

8,
86

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

32
4,

93
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

55
0

4.
00

-8
.3

%
32

4,
93

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
55

0
4.

00
-8

.3
%

 
N

O
T

E
S:

 
 

1
  

  

2
IN

C
R

EA
SE

D
 U

N
IT

 C
O

ST
S

3
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TU

A
L 

IN
C

R
EA

SE

4 5 6

25
%

 IN
C

R
EA

SE
 IN

 F
U

LL
 T

IM
E 

ST
A

FF
 R

ES
U

LT
ED

 IN
 T

H
E 

D
EC

R
EA

SE
 IN

 T
EM

PO
R

A
R

Y
 W

A
G

ES
.  

FY
22

 A
N

D
 F

Y
23

 A
C

TU
A

LS
 A

R
E 

LE
SS

 T
H

A
N

 F
Y

25
 R

EQ
U

ES
TE

D
.  

PR
ES

ID
EN

TA
L 

EL
EC

TI
O

N
 

SU
PP

O
R

TE
D

 B
Y

 S
TA

TE
 G

R
A

N
T

M
O

V
E 

PU
B

LI
C

 R
EC

O
R

D
S 

C
LE

R
K

 T
O

 S
EN

IO
R

 C
LE

R
K

 II
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
.  

N
O

 N
EW

 F
TE

S.

FU
LL

 T
IM

E 
PO

SI
TI

O
N

 M
O

V
ED

 T
O

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
SE

R
V

IC
ES

 P
ER

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

ER
 R

ES
TR

U
C

TU
R

E 
O

F 
LI

C
EN

SI
N

G
 F

U
N

C
TI

O
N

.
A

 P
A

R
T-

TI
M

E 
C

LE
R

K
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 W

A
S 

A
D

D
ED

.  
TH

E 
FU

N
D

IN
G

 F
O

R
 T

H
E 

PA
R

T-
TI

M
E 

PO
SI

TI
O

N
 W

A
S 

PR
EV

IO
U

SL
Y

 F
U

N
D

ED
 IN

 T
H

E 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 
D

EP
A

R
TM

EN
T 

B
U

D
G

ET
.  

N
O

 N
EW

 F
TE

'S
.

Pa
ge
 1
6

110



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
O

A
R

D
-D

E
PT

 1
75

 
 

 
 

01
17

50
2

53
50

02
   

  
D

EP
A

R
T 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 E
V

EN
TS

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

 
 

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
O

A
R

D
 S

A
L

A
R

IE
S

 
 

01
17

50
1

51
10

03
   

  
M

EE
TI

N
G

 W
A

G
ES

  (
6 

H
O

U
R

S 
W

EE
K

)
7,

25
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

8,
21

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

17
0

1.
00

1.
5%

2,
90

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
8,

45
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
17

0
1.

00
2.

9%
8,

45
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
17

0
1.

00
2.

9%
01

17
50

1
51

11
93

1
PL

A
N

N
ER

 
32

,7
20

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
11

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
1.

00
10

.7
%

45
,1

36
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

5,
01

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
1.

00
4.

6%
11

5,
01

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
1.

00
4.

6%
01

17
50

1
51

11
51

IN
TE

R
IM

 D
EP

T 
H

EA
D

10
,6

37
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

01
17

50
1

51
95

15
A

D
D

IT
O

N
A

L 
D

U
TI

ES
8,

01
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
17

50
1

51
90

16
   

  
A

N
TI

C
IP

A
TE

D
 B

U
Y

O
U

T 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
58

,6
29

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
11

8,
21

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
17

0
2.

00
10

.0
%

48
,0

44
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
3,

46
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

17
0

2.
00

4.
4%

12
3,

46
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

17
0

2.
00

4.
4%

 
 

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
O

A
R

D
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S
01

17
50

2
53

00
06

 
C

O
N

SU
LT

A
N

T 
FE

ES
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
23

3.
3%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
17

50
2

53
00

08
   

  
IN

SE
R

V
IC

E 
TR

A
IN

IN
G

 &
 E

D
U

C
A

TI
O

N
 

51
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
.0

%
38

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
17

50
2

53
00

25
   

  
LA

N
D

/R
EG

 R
EC

O
R

D
/S

ER
 B

U
R

EA
U

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

17
50

2
53

40
01

   
  

TE
LE

PH
O

N
E 

13
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
17

50
2

53
40

04
   

  
A

D
V

ER
TI

SI
N

G
 

10
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-8
3.

3%
10

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
17

50
2

54
20

00
   

  
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

76
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

49
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

17
50

2
55

80
06

   
  

C
LO

TH
IN

G
/U

N
IF

O
R

M
S 

19
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
17

50
2

57
10

00
   

  
TR

A
V

EL
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
74

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
17

50
2

57
30

00
2

D
U

ES
 &

 S
U

B
SC

R
IP

TI
O

N
S 

62
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

75
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
87

.5
%

75
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
87

.5
%

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
2,

35
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

53
,7

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

15
8.

2%
1,

72
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

54
,0

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
7%

54
,0

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
7%

 
 

 
PL

A
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

 -T
O

T
A

L
60

,9
79

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
17

2,
41

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
17

0
2.

00
34

.4
%

49
,7

73
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

17
8,

01
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

17
0

2.
00

3.
2%

17
8,

01
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

17
0

2.
00

3.
2%

 
 

N
O

T
E

S:
 

 
1

H
IR

ED
 A

T 
M

A
R

K
ET

 R
A

TE
 H

IG
H

ER
 T

H
A

N
 F

Y
23

 B
U

D
G

ET
 T

H
EN

 R
EC

EI
V

ED
 2

%
 IN

C
R

EA
SE

 
 

2
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

IN
C

R
EA

SE
 D

U
E 

TO
 IN

C
R

EA
SE

 IN
 F

EE
S

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
O

A
R

D
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 E

V
E

N
T

Pa
ge
 1
7

111



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 
 

E
C

O
N

O
M

IC
 D

E
V

E
L

O
PM

E
N

T
-D

E
PT

 1
76

 
 

E
C

O
N

O
M

IC
 D

E
V

E
L

O
PM

E
N

T
 S

A
L

A
R

IE
S

 
 

01
17

60
1

51
11

17
   

  
M

EE
TI

N
G

 W
A

G
ES

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

01
17

60
1

51
12

26
1

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
D

IR
EC

TO
R

 
91

,3
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
92

,8
20

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
1.

6%
37

,4
85

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
0,

32
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

8.
1%

10
0,

32
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

8.
1%

C
O

M
M

 D
EV

 F
U

N
D

 C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
TO

R
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

91
,3

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

92
,8

20
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
00

0
1.

00
1.

6%
37

,4
85

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

0,
32

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
8.

1%
10

0,
32

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
8.

1%
 

 
E

C
O

N
O

M
IC

 D
E

V
E

L
O

PM
E

N
T

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S

 
 

01
17

60
2

53
50

02
   

  
D

EP
A

R
T 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 E
V

EN
TS

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

 
 

E
C

O
N

O
M

IC
 D

E
V

E
L

O
PM

E
N

T
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S
 

 
01

17
60

2
53

00
07

   
  

A
D

V
ER

TI
SI

N
G

 &
 F

R
EI

G
H

T 
1,

50
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

80
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

6.
2%

80
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
17

60
2

53
00

02
C

O
N

SU
LT

A
N

T 
FE

ES
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
01

17
60

2
53

00
08

   
  

IN
SE

R
V

IC
E 

TR
A

IN
IN

G
 &

 E
D

U
C

A
TI

O
N

 
20

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
60

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

60
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
60

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
17

60
2

53
40

01
   

  
TE

LE
PH

O
N

E 
49

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

17
60

2
54

20
00

   
  

O
FF

IC
E 

SU
PP

LI
ES

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

75
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-2

5.
0%

63
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
75

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

75
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

17
60

2
54

20
04

   
  

PR
IN

TI
N

G
 &

 S
TA

TI
O

N
ER

Y
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

17
60

2
57

10
00

   
  

TR
A

V
EL

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-3

7.
5%

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-3

7.
5%

01
17

60
2

57
30

00
2

D
U

ES
 &

 S
U

B
SC

R
IP

TI
O

N
S

7,
87

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

6.
7%

8,
40

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
8,

68
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

8.
5%

8,
68

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
8.

5%
01

17
60

2
57

30
02

   
  

M
EM

B
ER

SH
IP

 F
EE

S 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
57

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
27

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-3

0.
2%

1,
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-3

0.
2%

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
9,

88
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

22
,7

30
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

3.
1%

9,
30

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
22

,7
87

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

3%
22

,7
87

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

3%
 

 
 

E
C

O
N

O
M

IC
 D

E
V

E
L

O
PM

E
N

T
 -T

O
T

A
L

10
1,

23
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
6,

05
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

1.
9%

46
,7

94
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
3,

60
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

6.
5%

12
3,

60
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

6.
5%

 
 

N
O

T
E

S:
  

  

1
M

A
R

K
ET

 A
D

JU
ST

M
EN

T,
 W

IT
H

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

G
R

A
N

T 
M

A
N

A
G

EM
EN

T 
D

U
TI

ES
 

 

2
 

 

C
O

ST
 O

F 
D

IS
C

O
V

ER
 S

TO
U

G
H

TO
N

 A
PP

 N
O

W
 

IN
C

LU
D

ED
 IN

 T
H

IS
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

Pa
ge
 1
8

112



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

PO
L

IC
E

 D
E

PA
R

T
M

E
N

T
-D

E
PT

 2
10

 
 

 
PO

L
IC

E
 D

E
PT

. C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 E
V

E
N

T
S

 
 

01
21

00
2

53
00

41
D

EP
A

R
TM

EN
TA

L 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 P

O
LI

C
IN

G
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
 

01
21

00
2

53
50

02
   

  
D

EP
A

R
T 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 E
V

EN
TS

 
1,

97
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

66
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
1,

97
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
1,

66
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

 
 

 
 

PO
L

IC
E

 D
E

PA
R

T
M

E
N

T
 S

A
L

A
R

IE
S

 
 

 
 

 
 

01
21

00
1

51
10

51
   

  
D

EP
A

R
TM

EN
T 

H
EA

D
 

19
7,

98
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
1,

94
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

7.
9%

81
,5

53
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

6,
98

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
1.

00
2.

5%
20

6,
98

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
1.

00
2.

5%
01

21
00

1
51

10
52

 
D

EP
U

TY
 P

O
LI

C
E 

C
H

IE
F 

13
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

19
0,

08
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

50
0

2.
00

48
.6

%
52

,4
68

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
3,

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

-2
9.

9%
13

3,
25

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
1.

00
-2

9.
9%

01
21

00
1

51
10

62
4,

 9
SE

R
G

EA
N

TS
 

74
5,

32
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

85
5,

82
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
9.

00
0

9.
00

1.
5%

33
4,

80
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
95

7,
66

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
.0

00
10

.0
0

11
.9

%
1,

00
4,

12
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

10
.0

00
10

.0
0

17
.3

%
01

21
00

1
51

10
63

4,
 9

LI
EU

TE
N

A
N

TS
 

42
4,

39
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

32
4,

22
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

00
0

3.
00

2.
7%

12
6,

99
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
43

5,
32

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

4.
00

0
4.

00
34

.3
%

45
7,

52
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
4.

00
0

4.
00

41
.1

%
01

21
00

1
51

10
64

9
PA

TR
O

L 
O

FF
IC

ER
S

3,
26

5,
98

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
01

7,
99

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
54

.0
00

54
.0

0
1.

5%
1,

25
5,

11
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

4,
16

7,
77

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
54

.0
00

54
.0

0
3.

7%
3,

92
7,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

54
.0

00
54

.0
0

-2
.3

%
01

21
00

1
51

11
35

3
TO

W
N

 D
ET

A
IL

S 
37

,2
95

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
25

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
 

0.
0%

81
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
46

,1
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
 

80
.8

%
46

,1
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
 

80
.8

%
01

21
00

1
51

12
59

1
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 A

D
M

IN
IS

TR
A

TO
R

 II
 

92
,1

90
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

77
,9

38
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

1.
6%

31
,4

79
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
86

,9
47

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
11

.6
%

86
,9

47
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

11
.6

%
01

21
00

1
51

12
66

2
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 A

D
M

IN
IS

TR
A

TO
R

 I 
80

,2
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
76

,9
97

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
3.

6%
32

,9
11

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

83
,4

58
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

8.
4%

83
,4

58
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

8.
4%

01
21

00
1

51
30

00
   

  
O

V
ER

TI
M

E 
59

0,
66

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
57

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

11
.8

%
30

0,
82

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

60
6,

67
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
6.

4%
60

6,
67

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

6.
4%

01
21

00
1

51
30

05
   

  
C

O
U

R
T 

TI
M

E 
40

,9
85

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
75

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

21
,2

73
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
75

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

75
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
01

21
00

1
51

30
09

3
O

V
ER

TI
M

E/
IN

 S
ER

V
IC

E 
TR

A
IN

IN
G

 
46

,4
83

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
42

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
0%

14
,5

49
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
47

,8
78

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

14
.0

%
47

,8
78

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

14
.0

%
01

21
00

1
51

40
02

3,
 9

H
O

LI
D

A
Y

 P
A

Y
 

22
0,

01
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

30
2,

19
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
7.

8%
10

5,
05

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

32
5,

40
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
7.

7%
32

9,
12

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

8.
9%

01
21

00
1

51
40

04
   

  
N

IG
H

T 
D

IF
FE

R
EN

TI
A

L 
18

8,
79

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
22

5,
57

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

71
,1

22
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
22

5,
57

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

22
5,

57
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
01

21
00

1
51

40
06

   
  

LO
N

G
EV

IT
Y

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
65

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-4

6.
2%

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-4

6.
2%

01
21

00
1

51
40

08
   

  
O

U
T 

O
F 

G
R

A
D

E 
W

A
G

ES
 

2,
42

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

26
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

21
00

1
51

40
10

   
  

SU
PE

R
 L

O
N

G
EV

IT
Y

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

4,
17

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
17

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

01
21

00
1

51
90

07
3,

 9
ED

U
C

A
TI

O
N

 IN
C

EN
TI

V
E 

PA
Y

 
48

2,
13

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
54

2,
82

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

8.
7%

47
9,

02
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
81

1,
83

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

49
.6

%
97

9,
82

4.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
80

.5
%

01
21

00
1

51
90

11
SE

TT
LE

M
EN

TS
/A

R
B

IT
R

A
TI

O
N

S
10

8,
75

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

33
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
01

21
00

1
51

90
16

   
  

A
N

TI
C

IP
A

TE
D

 B
U

Y
O

U
T 

63
,7

53
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

01
21

00
1

51
90

20
   

  
SP

EC
IA

LI
ST

S 
ST

IP
EN

D
S 

50
,4

77
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

54
,6

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
13

,3
15

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

54
,6

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
54

,6
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
21

00
1

51
X

X
X

4
W

EL
LN

ES
S 

C
O

O
D

IN
A

TO
R

37
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
0

1.
00

37
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
0

1.
00

01
21

00
1

51
90

96
PE

A
C

E 
ST

IP
EN

D
4,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

01
21

00
1

51
90

22
   

  
A

C
C

R
ED

IT
A

TI
O

N
 S

TI
PE

N
D

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
6,

77
7,

84
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
7,

62
8,

84
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

70
.5

00
71

.0
0

3.
9%

2,
95

9,
58

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
8,

30
9,

63
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

72
.5

00
73

.0
0

8.
9%

8,
30

9,
63

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
72

.5
00

73
.0

0
8.

9%
 

 
 

PO
L

IC
E

 D
E

PA
R

T
M

E
N

T
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S
 

 
01

21
00

2
51

90
03

   
  

D
ET

 C
LE

A
N

 /C
LO

TH
IN

G
 A

LL
O

W
 

31
,9

25
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

36
,4

25
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
31

,4
25

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

36
,4

25
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
36

,4
25

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
21

00
2

52
30

01
   

  
W

A
TE

R
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3,

31
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

31
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
01

21
00

2
52

40
01

   
  

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 R
EP

A
IR

S-
SE

R
V

IC
ES

 
1,

59
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
01

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

21
00

2
52

40
03

8
V

EH
IC

LE
 M

A
IN

T 
A

N
D

 O
PE

R
-S

ER
V

IC
E 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
8.

3%
2,

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

8.
3%

01
21

00
2

52
40

06
   

  
R

A
D

IO
 R

EP
A

IR
S-

SE
R

V
IC

ES
 

6,
28

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
23

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

91
.7

%
2,

21
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

19
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-1

7.
4%

19
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-1

7.
4%

01
21

00
2

52
40

07
   

  
EQ

U
IP

M
EN

T 
R

EP
A

IR
S-

SE
R

V
IC

ES
 

6,
66

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
.0

%
6,

44
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

9,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-1

8.
2%

9,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-1

8.
2%

01
21

00
2

52
70

08
   

  
O

FF
IC

E 
EQ

U
IP

M
EN

T 
R

EN
TA

L 
73

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
84

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
21

00
2

53
00

02
C

O
N

SU
LT

A
N

T 
FE

ES
34

,3
18

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
32

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
,4

67
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
33

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
1%

33
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

1%
01

21
00

2
53

00
07

   
  

A
D

V
ER

TI
SI

N
G

 &
 F

R
EI

G
H

T 
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

21
00

2
53

00
08

6
IN

 S
ER

V
IC

E 
TR

A
IN

IN
G

 T
U

IT
IO

N
 

75
,0

59
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

51
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

6%
17

,5
62

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

81
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
58

.8
%

81
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
58

.8
%

01
21

00
2

53
00

09
5

B
IL

LI
N

G
 &

 C
O

LL
EC

/A
D

M
IN

 S
ER

V
IC

E 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
6,

58
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

55
8.

8%
6,

58
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

55
8.

8%
01

21
00

2
53

00
16

   
  

V
ET

ER
IN

A
R

IA
N

 F
EE

S 
33

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

21
00

2
53

03
04

 
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TE

D
 S

ER
V

IC
ES

 
17

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

9.
4%

6,
30

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
6,

80
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

6,
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%

Pa
ge
 1
9

113



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

01
21

00
2

53
40

01
   

  
TE

LE
PH

O
N

E 
30

,9
85

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
40

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
3%

5,
57

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

40
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
01

21
00

2
53

80
01

8
LA

U
N

D
R

Y
 

7,
31

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

2,
81

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
7,

80
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

30
.0

%
7,

80
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

30
.0

%
01

21
00

2
54

00
00

   
  

SU
PP

LI
ES

 
40

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
21

00
2

54
20

00
8

O
FF

IC
E 

SU
PP

LI
ES

 
8,

72
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

14
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
40

.0
%

6,
35

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7.
1%

15
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7.

1%
01

21
00

2
54

20
02

   
  

PH
O

TO
ST

A
TS

 &
 P

H
O

TO
G

R
A

PH
S 

1,
46

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

65
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
31

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

65
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

3,
65

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

21
00

2
54

20
04

   
  

PR
IN

TI
N

G
 &

 S
TA

TI
O

N
ER

Y
 

1,
74

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

21
00

2
54

20
07

8
D

A
TA

 P
R

O
C

ES
SI

N
G

 S
U

PP
LI

ES
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

55
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

59
.0

%
1,

31
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
21

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
26

.1
%

3,
21

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
26

.1
%

01
21

00
2

54
20

08
   

  
PH

O
TO

G
R

A
PH

IC
 S

U
PP

LI
ES

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

21
00

2
54

30
01

 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

U
PP

LI
ES

 
5,

15
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

.0
%

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-1

6.
7%

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-1

6.
7%

01
21

00
2

54
30

10
   

  
EQ

U
IP

M
EN

T 
R

EP
A

IR
S-

SU
PP

LI
ES

 
64

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
40

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
21

00
2

54
30

14
   

  
R

A
D

IO
 R

EP
A

IR
S-

SU
PP

LI
ES

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
66

.7
%

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
21

00
2

54
80

01
   

  
G

A
SO

LI
N

E,
 O

IL
 &

 G
R

EA
SE

 
91

,0
06

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

21
00

2
54

90
00

FO
O

D
56

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

70
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
51

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

70
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
70

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
21

00
2

54
90

05
   

  
FE

ED
IN

G
 D

ET
A

IN
EE

S
1,

92
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
60

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
21

00
2

54
90

06
   

  
FE

ED
IN

G
 D

O
G

S 
79

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

.0
%

52
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

21
00

2
55

00
01

 
M

ED
IC

A
L 

&
 F

IR
ST

 A
ID

 
3,

33
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

9,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
28

.6
%

32
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
9,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

9,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

21
00

2
55

10
03

8
B

O
O

K
S 

13
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

9.
1%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

70
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
16

.7
%

70
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
16

.7
%

01
21

00
2

55
80

06
   

  
C

LO
TH

IN
G

/U
N

IF
O

R
M

S 
99

,7
17

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
11

0,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
5%

54
,2

56
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

0,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

11
0,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
01

21
00

2
55

80
12

   
  

C
H

EM
IC

A
LS

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

21
00

2
55

80
13

   
  

A
M

M
U

N
IT

IO
N

 
59

,2
83

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
57

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
6%

10
,0

72
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
57

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

57
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
01

21
00

2
55

80
14

   
  

PA
TR

O
L 

SU
PP

LI
ES

 
2,

05
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
60

.0
%

2,
47

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

80
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

4,
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

21
00

2
55

80
15

   
  

C
LO

TH
IN

G
/R

EP
LA

C
EM

EN
T 

(6
4)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

22
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

21
00

2
57

10
00

   
  

TR
A

V
EL

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S 

4,
64

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

85
.7

%
1,

16
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

6,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
6,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
21

00
2

57
30

00
7

D
U

ES
 &

 S
U

B
SC

R
IP

TI
O

N
S 

11
,5

87
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

.0
%

12
,9

51
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
23

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

91
.7

%
23

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

91
.7

%
01

21
00

2
57

30
01

   
  

B
A

Y
PE

R
N

 M
EM

B
ER

SH
IP

 
1,

90
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
90

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

90
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
90

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

90
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
21

00
2

57
80

15
   

  
U

N
D

ER
C

O
V

ER
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

21
00

2
57

80
17

   
  

FI
N

A
N

C
E 

C
H

A
R

G
ES

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

21
00

2
58

50
01

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

M
O

TO
R

 
1,

38
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

49
,1

95
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
01

21
00

2
57

80
30

   
  

PE
TT

Y
 C

A
SH

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

49
1,

79
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

46
6,

32
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
19

.5
%

22
9,

14
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
51

2,
99

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
.0

%
51

2,
99

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
.0

%
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
PO

L
IC

E
 D

E
PA

R
T

M
E

N
T

 -T
O

T
A

L
7,

27
1,

60
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
8,

09
8,

17
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

70
.5

00
71

.0
0

4.
7%

3,
19

0,
39

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
8,

82
5,

62
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

72
.5

00
73

.0
0

9.
0%

8,
82

5,
62

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
72

.5
00

73
.0

0
9.

0%
 

 
N

O
T

E
S:

 
 

1
 

 

2
 

 

3
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TU

A
L 

IN
C

R
EA

SE
 

 
 

4 5 6 7
IN

C
R

EA
SE

D
 C

O
ST

S 
IN

 S
O

FT
W

A
R

E
8

IN
C

R
EA

SE
D

 C
O

ST
S 

9

PA
TR

IO
L 

O
FF

IC
ER

S 
FT

E'
S 

W
IL

L 
R

EM
A

IN
 A

T 
54

.  
H

O
W

EV
ER

, $
24

0,
37

6.
88

 H
A

S 
B

EE
N

 R
EM

O
V

ED
 

FR
O

M
 T

H
E 

PA
TR

O
L 

O
FF

IC
ER

 L
IN

E 
IT

EM
 T

O
 F

U
N

D
 T

H
E 

SU
PE

R
IO

R
 R

EC
EN

TL
Y

 R
A

TI
FI

ED
 T

H
R

EE
 

Y
EA

R
 C

O
N

TR
A

C
T.

  I
T 

IS
 IM

PO
R

TA
N

T 
TO

 U
N

D
ER

ST
A

N
D

 T
H

A
T 

TH
IS

 A
D

JU
ST

M
EN

T 
TO

 P
A

TR
O

L 
O

FF
IC

ER
 L

IN
E 

IT
EM

 M
U

ST
 B

E 
R

ES
TO

R
ED

 IN
 F

Y
26

 IN
 O

R
D

ER
 T

O
 M

A
IN

TA
IN

 M
IN

IM
U

M
 P

A
TR

O
L 

ST
A

FF
IN

G
 L

EV
EL

S.

2.
5 

N
EW

 F
TE

'S
 L

T,
 S

G
T,

 W
EL

LN
ES

S 
C

O
O

R
D

IN
A

TO
R

 (H
A

LF
 IN

 P
O

LI
C

E/
H

A
LF

 IN
 F

IR
E)

PU
R

C
H

A
SE

D
 A

 P
O

LI
C

E 
D

ET
A

IL
 B

IL
LI

N
G

 S
O

FT
W

A
R

E 
A

N
D

 W
A

N
T 

IT
 F

U
N

D
ED

 O
U

T 
O

F 
TH

E 
D

ET
A

IL
 A

D
M

IN
 F

EE
 (1

0%
)

N
EW

 C
A

D
ET

 A
C

A
D

EM
Y

 T
R

A
IN

IN
G

 ($
45

00
 P

ER
 S

TU
D

EN
T)

 A
N

D
 IN

 S
ER

V
IC

E 
TR

A
IN

IN
G

N
O

N
-U

N
IO

N
 S

A
LA

R
Y

 A
D

JU
ST

M
EN

T 
D

U
E 

TO
 M

A
R

K
ET

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TU
A

L 
TH

EA
 M

O
A

  L
O

N
G

EV
IT

Y
 T

O
 B

A
SE

Pa
ge
 2
0

114



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 
 

 
C

R
O

SS
IN

G
 G

U
A

R
D

S-
D

E
PT

 2
13

 
 

C
R

O
SS

IN
G

 G
U

A
R

D
S 

SA
L

A
R

IE
S

 
 

01
21

30
1

51
10

07
1

SC
H

O
O

L 
C

R
O

SS
IN

G
 G

U
A

R
D

S 
99

,5
01

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
12

2,
16

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

18
.0

00
18

.0
0

1.
8%

26
,8

22
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

4,
98

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
.0

00
20

.0
0

2.
3%

12
4,

98
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

.0
00

20
.0

0
2.

3%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

99
,5

01
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
2,

16
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
18

.0
00

18
.0

0
1.

8%
26

,8
22

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

4,
98

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
.0

00
20

.0
0

2.
3%

12
4,

98
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

.0
00

20
.0

0
2.

3%
 

 
 

C
R

O
SS

IN
G

 G
U

A
R

D
S 

E
X

PE
N

SE
S

 
 

01
21

30
2

54
00

00
   

  
SU

PP
LI

ES
  A

N
D

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

EX
PE

N
SE

S
1,

62
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

67
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
33

.3
%

2,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
33

.3
%

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
1,

62
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
1,

67
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
33

.3
%

2,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
33

.3
%

 
 

 
C

R
O

SS
IN

G
 G

U
A

R
D

S 
-T

O
T

A
L

10
1,

12
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
3,

96
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
18

.0
0

18
.0

0
1.

8%
28

,4
92

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

7,
38

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
.0

0
20

.0
0

2.
8%

12
7,

38
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

.0
0

20
.0

0
2.

8%
 

 
N

O
T

E
S:

 
 

1
20

 P
O

ST
S 

- P
A

R
T 

TI
M

E 
EM

PL
O

Y
EE

S 
IN

C
LU

D
IN

G
 

SU
B

ST
IT

U
TE

S.
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge
 2
1

115



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

C
IV

IL
IA

N
 D

IS
PA

T
C

H
E

R
S-

D
E

PT
 2

17
 

 
C

IV
IL

IA
N

 D
IS

PA
T

C
H

 S
A

L
A

R
IE

S
 

 
01

21
70

1
51

11
33

   
  

C
IV

IL
IA

N
 D

IS
PA

TC
H

ER
S 

33
1,

50
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

49
8,

71
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
9.

00
0

9.
00

1.
6%

12
5,

62
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
-1

00
.0

%
01

21
70

1
51

12
59

   
  

PR
O

G
R

A
M

 A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TO

R
 II

 
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
80

,2
88

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
1.

6%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
-1

00
.0

%
01

21
70

1
51

X
X

X
C

IV
IL

IA
N

 P
U

B
LI

C
 S

A
FE

TY
 A

ID
E

63
,7

32
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

63
,7

32
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

01
21

70
1

51
20

23
   

  
D

IS
PA

TC
H

ER
S 

PE
R

 D
IE

M
 

10
,6

14
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

35
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
6,

00
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

01
21

70
1

51
30

00
   

  
O

V
ER

TI
M

E 
15

6,
84

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
13

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

68
,8

49
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
01

21
70

1
51

40
02

   
  

H
O

LI
D

A
Y

 P
A

Y
 

21
,8

96
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

29
,4

53
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

0%
6,

20
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

01
21

70
1

51
40

06
   

  
LO

N
G

EV
IT

Y
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

21
70

1
51

40
15

   
  

D
IF

FE
R

EN
TI

A
LS

 
23

,9
55

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
36

,8
63

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

9,
89

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
01

21
70

1
51

90
21

EM
ER

G
EN

C
Y

 M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

21
70

1
51

90
16

   
  

A
N

TI
C

IP
A

TE
D

 B
U

Y
O

U
T 

1,
13

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
16

,3
48

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
55

5,
94

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
81

5,
32

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
.0

00
10

.0
0

1.
2%

23
2,

92
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
63

,7
32

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

00
0

1.
00

-9
2.

2%
63

,7
32

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

00
0

1.
00

-9
2.

2%
 

 
C

IV
IL

IA
N

 D
IS

PA
T

C
H

E
R

S 
E

X
PE

N
SE

S
 

 
01

21
70

2
52

40
07

   
  

O
FF

IC
E 

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

R
EP

A
IR

S 
8,

47
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

8,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
6.

3%
8,

07
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

8,
03

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-5

.4
%

8,
03

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-5

.4
%

01
21

70
2

53
00

08
   

  
IN

SE
R

V
IC

E 
TR

A
IN

IN
G

 &
 E

D
U

C
A

TI
O

N
 

(4
,9

97
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
8,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
57

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
01

21
70

2
53

00
27

   
  

SO
FT

W
A

R
E 

4,
11

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
14

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

01
21

70
2

54
20

00
   

  
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

54
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

88
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
01

21
70

2
55

80
06

   
  

C
LO

TH
IN

G
/U

N
IF

O
R

M
S 

3,
58

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

45
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

3,
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

11
,7

18
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

38
,4

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
3%

14
,1

32
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

8,
03

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-7

9.
1%

8,
03

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-7

9.
1%

 
 

 
C

IV
IL

IA
N

 D
IS

PA
T

C
H

E
R

S 
-T

O
T

A
L

56
7,

66
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

85
3,

77
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

.0
00

10
.0

0
1.

2%
24

7,
05

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

71
,7

69
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
00

0
1.

00
-9

1.
6%

71
,7

69
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
00

0
1.

00
-9

1.
6%

 
 

N
O

T
E

S:
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Pa
ge
 2
2

116



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

FI
R

E
 D

E
PA

R
T

M
E

N
T

-D
E

PT
 2

20
 

 
FI

R
E

 D
E

PA
R

T
M

E
N

T
 S

A
L

A
R

IE
S

 
 

01
22

00
1

51
10

51
9

D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
H

EA
D

 
16

8,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
17

1,
36

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
1.

00
2.

0%
69

,2
08

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

19
6,

36
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

14
.6

%
19

1,
36

1.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
1.

00
0

1.
00

11
.7

%
01

22
00

1
51

10
52

9
A

SS
IS

TA
N

T 
C

H
IE

F 
13

5,
63

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
13

3,
97

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
1.

00
5.

3%
57

,5
15

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

14
3,

97
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

7.
5%

14
3,

97
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

7.
5%

01
22

00
1

51
10

60
   

  
C

A
PT

A
IN

(S
) 

62
0,

83
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

63
5,

15
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
6.

00
0

6.
00

1.
8%

25
6,

49
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
66

1,
53

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

6.
00

0
6.

00
4.

2%
66

1,
53

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

6.
00

0
6.

00
4.

2%
01

22
00

1
51

10
61

   
  

D
EP

U
TY

 F
IR

E 
C

H
IE

F 
11

3,
80

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

8,
35

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
1.

00
1.

6%
47

,7
95

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
1,

17
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

2.
4%

12
1,

17
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

2.
4%

01
22

00
1

51
10

63
   

  
LI

EU
TE

N
A

N
TS

 
83

1,
77

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
84

6,
62

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

9.
00

0
9.

00
1.

8%
34

1,
31

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

87
5,

49
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
9.

00
0

9.
00

3.
4%

87
5,

49
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
9.

00
0

9.
00

3.
4%

01
22

00
1

51
10

65
 

FI
R

EF
IG

H
TE

R
S 

3,
29

4,
18

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
78

8,
48

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
48

.0
00

48
.0

0
7.

4%
1,

35
5,

24
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

3,
92

9,
19

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
48

.0
00

48
.0

0
3.

7%
3,

92
9,

19
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

48
.0

00
48

.0
0

3.
7%

01
22

00
1

51
10

71
   

  
M

O
TO

R
 E

Q
U

IP
M

EN
T 

R
EP

A
IR

M
A

N
 

82
,6

43
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

85
,5

37
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

3.
5%

34
,4

15
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
87

,6
76

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
2.

5%
87

,6
76

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
2.

5%
01

22
00

1
51

12
20

1
PA

R
A

M
ED

IC
 S

ER
V

IC
ES

 &
 E

V
EN

TS
 

8,
32

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
 

10
.5

%
6,

86
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

 
19

.0
%

12
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

 
19

.0
%

01
22

00
1

51
12

66
 

O
FF

IC
E 

A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TO

R
65

,0
62

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
69

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
9.

0%
26

,6
95

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

70
,8

90
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

2.
0%

70
,8

90
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

2.
0%

01
22

00
1

51
13

81
3

FI
TN

ES
S

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

32
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

32
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

01
22

00
1

51
30

00
4

O
V

ER
TI

M
E 

55
3,

47
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

57
0,

17
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-8

.8
%

21
9,

68
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
58

0,
25

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
8%

58
0,

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

8%
01

22
00

1
51

30
03

   
  

FI
R

E 
A

LA
R

M
 D

U
TY

 
19

,3
53

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

6,
71

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
01

22
00

1
51

30
04

   
  

B
O

X
 A

LA
R

M
S 

31
,8

36
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

30
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
3,

09
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

30
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
30

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
22

00
1

51
30

07
   

  
O

V
ER

TI
M

E-
 E

M
S 

65
,4

92
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

73
,5

02
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6.

5%
13

,0
32

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

76
,4

59
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

0%
76

,4
59

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
0%

01
22

00
1

51
30

09
5

O
V

ER
TI

M
E/

IN
 S

ER
V

IC
E 

TR
A

IN
IN

G
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
27

,1
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

8.
4%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
84

.5
%

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
84

.5
%

01
22

00
1

51
40

02
6

H
O

LI
D

A
Y

 P
A

Y
 

23
1,

11
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

25
7,

08
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
6.

9%
1,

84
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

27
0,

45
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
5.

2%
27

0,
45

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

5.
2%

01
22

00
1

51
40

08
 

O
U

T 
O

F 
G

R
A

D
E 

W
A

G
ES

 
17

,8
51

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
30

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
.0

%
5,

82
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

30
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
30

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
22

00
1

51
90

05
   

  
IN

SE
R

V
IC

E 
TR

A
IN

IN
G

 &
 E

D
U

C
A

TI
O

N
 

66
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
19

,7
23

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
22

00
1

51
90

07
6

ED
U

C
A

TI
O

N
 IN

C
EN

TI
V

E 
PA

Y
 

68
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

75
,6

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-0

.8
%

70
,3

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
22

2,
50

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

19
4.

3%
22

2,
50

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

19
4.

3%
01

22
00

1
51

90
16

   
  

A
N

TI
C

IP
A

TE
D

 B
U

Y
O

U
T 

98
,5

13
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
22

00
1

51
90

20
6

SP
EC

IA
LI

ST
S 

ST
IP

EN
D

S 
22

,0
36

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
22

,3
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

27
.4

%
23

,0
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

29
,8

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
33

.6
%

29
,8

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
33

.6
%

01
22

00
1

51
90

21
   

  
EM

ER
G

EN
C

Y
 M

A
N

A
G

 S
TI

PE
N

D
 

7,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
14

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

86
.7

%
5,

17
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

19
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
35

.7
%

19
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
35

.7
%

01
22

00
1

51
X

X
2

W
EL

LN
ES

S 
C

O
O

R
D

IN
A

TO
R

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

37
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
0

1.
00

37
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
0

1.
00

01
22

00
1

51
90

25
6

SU
PP

O
R

T 
EQ

U
IP

M
EN

T 
12

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
14

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

9.
4%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
,4

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
45

.7
%

20
,4

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
45

.7
%

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
6,

44
8,

10
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
6,

99
3,

24
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

68
.0

00
68

.0
0

4.
4%

2,
56

4,
00

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
7,

51
7,

16
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

68
.5

00
69

.0
0

7.
5%

7,
51

2,
16

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
68

.5
00

69
.0

0
7.

4%
 

 
FI

R
E

 D
E

PA
R

T
M

E
N

T
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S
 

 
01

22
00

2
52

40
03

   
  

V
EH

 M
A

IN
T 

A
N

D
 O

PE
R

-S
ER

V
IC

E 
21

,1
72

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
18

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-1
0.

0%
1,

99
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

18
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
18

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
22

00
2

52
40

06
   

  
R

A
D

IO
 R

EP
A

IR
S-

SE
R

V
IC

ES
 

51
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

64
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

4,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

22
00

2
52

40
07

   
  

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

R
EP

A
IR

S-
SE

R
V

IC
ES

 
16

,1
09

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

14
,3

39
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
.0

%
24

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
.0

%
01

22
00

2
53

00
01

   
  

M
ED

IC
A

L 
D

IR
EC

TO
R

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

22
00

2
53

00
07

   
  

A
D

V
ER

TI
SI

N
G

 &
 F

R
EI

G
H

T 
28

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
27

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
22

00
2

53
00

08
   

  
IN

SE
R

V
IC

E 
TR

A
IN

IN
G

 &
 E

D
U

C
A

TI
O

N
 

15
,5

87
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
4,

95
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
12

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
22

00
2

53
00

09
7

B
IL

LI
N

G
 &

 C
O

LL
EC

/A
D

M
IN

 S
ER

V
IC

E 
10

7,
52

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
85

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

36
,9

63
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
95

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
.8

%
95

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
.8

%
01

22
00

2
53

00
12

   
  

D
A

TA
 P

R
O

C
ES

S 
A

N
D

 M
A

IT
-S

ER
V

 
5,

99
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
4,

55
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

6,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
6,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
22

00
2

53
00

30
C

A
N

C
ER

 S
C

R
EE

N
IN

G
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
,8

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
01

22
00

2
53

40
01

   
  

TE
LE

PH
O

N
E 

7,
64

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-8
.3

%
3,

74
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
11

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
22

00
2

53
80

01
   

  
LA

U
N

D
R

Y
 

22
,1

72
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-2

.0
%

19
,3

65
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

25
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
01

22
00

2
53

80
15

   
  

A
PP

LI
C

A
TI

O
N

 F
EE

S 
2,

81
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

22
00

2
54

20
00

   
  

O
FF

IC
E 

SU
PP

LI
ES

 
3,

74
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

07
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
4,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
22

00
2

54
20

07
   

  
D

A
TA

 P
R

O
C

ES
SI

N
G

 S
U

PP
LI

ES
 

9,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
9,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

6,
31

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
9,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

9,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

22
00

2
54

30
01

   
  

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
U

PP
LI

ES
 

12
,5

86
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

14
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
2,

91
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

14
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
14

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
22

00
2

54
30

10
7

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

R
EP

A
IR

S-
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

7,
58

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

4,
26

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
8,

70
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
.0

%
8,

70
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
.0

%

Pa
ge
 2
3

117



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

01
22

00
2

54
30

14
   

  
R

A
D

IO
 R

EP
A

IR
S-

SU
PP

LI
ES

 
11

,5
84

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
19

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

19
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
19

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
22

00
2

54
80

01
   

  
G

A
SO

LI
N

E,
 O

IL
 &

 G
R

EA
SE

 
73

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

22
00

2
54

80
06

   
  

V
EH

IC
LE

 M
A

IT
 A

N
D

 O
PE

R
-S

U
PP

LI
ES

 
59

,9
80

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
57

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-1
.3

%
31

,3
96

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

57
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
57

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
22

00
2

54
90

00
   

  
FO

O
D

 
1,

31
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
68

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
22

00
2

55
00

01
7

M
ED

IC
A

L 
&

 F
IR

ST
 A

ID
 

55
,0

70
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

54
,1

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
24

,1
94

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

58
,4

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7.

9%
58

,4
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7.
9%

01
22

00
2

55
00

03
   

  
EM

T 
R

EC
ER

TI
FI

C
A

TI
O

N
 

3,
31

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

61
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

22
00

2
55

00
04

   
  

EM
ER

G
EN

C
Y

 M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

EX
PE

N
SE

S 
5,

82
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
5,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
22

00
2

55
10

03
   

  
B

O
O

K
S 

34
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

26
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

22
00

2
55

80
01

   
  

SM
A

LL
 T

O
O

LS
 

5,
85

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

63
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

6,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

22
00

2
55

80
03

8
FI

R
E 

H
O

SE
S

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

01
22

00
2

55
80

06
6

C
LO

TH
IN

G
/U

N
IF

O
R

M
S 

10
,7

76
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
4,

79
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
19

.0
%

12
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
19

.0
%

01
22

00
2

55
80

12
   

  
C

H
EM

IC
A

LS
 

43
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
22

00
2

55
80

22
   

  
FI

R
E 

A
LA

R
M

 C
A

B
LE

S 
&

 F
IX

TU
R

ES
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

4,
07

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

22
00

2
57

10
00

   
  

TR
A

V
EL

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S 

37
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

80
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

32
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

80
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

22
00

2
57

30
00

   
  

D
U

ES
 &

 S
U

B
SC

R
IP

TI
O

N
S 

1,
40

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
40

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

22
00

2
57

80
17

   
  

FI
N

A
N

C
E 

C
H

A
R

G
ES

 
39

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

22
00

2
58

50
20

R
A

D
IO

 M
A

IN
TA

N
EN

A
C

E/
R

EP
LA

C
EM

EN
T

6,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

2,
29

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

6,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

22
00

2
58

50
22

EM
ER

G
EN

C
Y

 IN
C

ID
EN

T 
R

EH
A

B
IL

IT
A

TI
O

N
1,

13
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

22
00

2
58

50
23

PP
E 

EM
ER

G
EN

C
Y

 M
ED

IC
A

L 
SE

R
V

IC
ES

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
56

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
22

00
2

58
50

24
7

SE
LF

 C
O

N
TA

IN
ED

 B
R

EA
TH

IN
G

 A
PP

A
R

A
TU

S
9,

44
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
14

0.
0%

3,
44

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
28

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
.7

%
28

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
.7

%
01

22
00

2
58

50
25

TH
ER

M
A

L 
IM

A
G

IN
G

 C
A

M
ER

A
S

2,
39

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

2,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
2,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
22

00
2

58
50

26
TO

X
IC

 G
A

S 
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 M

ET
ER

S
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

22
00

2
58

50
27

7
PP

E 
FI

R
EF

IG
H

TI
N

G
29

,4
06

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
34

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

41
.7

%
2,

27
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

38
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
13

.2
%

38
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
13

.2
%

01
22

00
2

58
50

28
R

ES
C

U
E 

A
N

D
 E

X
TR

IC
A

TI
O

N
 E

Q
U

IP
M

EN
T

2,
51

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
69

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

22
00

2
58

50
29

IC
S 

A
C

C
O

U
N

TA
B

IL
IT

Y
 S

Y
ST

EM
95

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
15

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
22

00
2

58
50

30
FI

R
E 

C
A

U
SE

 IN
V

ES
TI

G
A

TI
O

N
 E

Q
U

IP
 &

 M
A

IN
T

1,
00

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
22

00
2

58
50

01
   

  
A

D
D

L 
EQ

 M
O

TO
R

 V
EH

IC
LE

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

52
5,

89
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
4,

90
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
8.

5%
19

8,
44

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

54
1,

90
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
7.

3%
54

1,
90

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

7.
3%

 
 

 
 

FI
R

E
 D

E
PA

R
T

M
E

N
T

 -T
O

T
A

L
6,

97
4,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
7,

49
8,

14
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

68
.0

00
68

.0
0

4.
6%

2,
76

2,
45

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
8,

05
9,

06
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

68
.5

00
69

.0
0

7.
5%

8,
05

4,
06

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
68

.5
00

69
.0

0
7.

4%
 

 
N

O
T

E
S:

 
 

1
 

 

2
N

O
TE

 F
O

R
 W

EL
LN

ES
S 

FR
O

M
 P

O
LI

C
E

 
 

3
 

 

4
N

EW
 C

O
N

TR
A

C
T 

R
A

TE
S

 
 

5
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TU

A
L 

D
U

E 
TO

 C
B

A

6
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TU

A
L 

IN
C

R
EA

SE
7

 
 

8
FI

R
E 

H
O

SE
S 

M
O

V
ED

 O
U

T 
O

F 
C

A
PI

TA
L

9

D
U

E 
TO

 C
O

N
TR

A
C

T 
A

G
R

EE
M

EN
T 

$5
00

 P
ER

 F
IR

E 
FI

G
H

TE
R

IN
C

R
EA

SE
 D

U
E 

TO
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L 
EV

EN
TS

 A
N

D
 C

O
N

TR
A

C
T 

R
A

TE
S

IN
C

R
EA

SE
 IN

 C
O

ST

N
O

N
-U

N
IO

N
 S

A
LA

R
Y

 A
D

JU
ST

M
EN

T 
D

U
E 

TO
 M

A
R

K
ET

Pa
ge
 2
4

118



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 
 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 &
 Z

O
N

IN
G

-D
E

PT
 2

41
 

 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 D

E
PA

R
T

M
E

N
T

 S
A

L
A

R
IE

S
 

 
01

24
10

1
51

10
51

2
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

SI
O

N
ER

 
10

0,
35

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

1,
97

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
1.

00
1.

6%
42

,3
41

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
1,

97
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

9.
8%

11
5,

97
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

13
.7

%
01

24
10

1
51

11
81

3,
 9

C
O

D
E 

EN
FO

R
C

EM
EN

T 
M

A
N

A
G

ER
26

,3
16

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
71

,5
26

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
1.

6%
24

,0
02

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

79
,8

77
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

11
.7

%
79

,8
77

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
11

.7
%

01
24

10
1

51
10

86
 

SE
N

IO
R

 C
LE

R
K

 II
 

64
,8

55
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
01

24
10

1
51

10
91

4
D

EP
U

TY
 IN

SP
EC

TO
R

 
6,

30
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
65

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0.
0%

7,
18

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
8,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

27
.8

%
8,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

27
.8

%
01

24
10

1
51

10
92

7
W

IR
IN

G
 IN

SP
EC

TO
R

 
32

,1
55

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
36

,4
77

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
54

0
1.

00
1.

6%
10

,6
70

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

39
,6

72
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

54
0

1.
00

8.
8%

39
,6

72
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

54
0

1.
00

8.
8%

01
24

10
1

51
10

93
7

PL
U

M
B

IN
G

 &
 G

A
S 

IN
SP

EC
TO

R
 

35
,5

94
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

36
,4

77
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
54

0
1.

00
1.

6%
14

,0
30

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
39

,6
72

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

54
0

1.
00

8.
8%

39
,6

72
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
54

0
1.

00
8.

8%
01

24
10

1
51

95
20

1
SE

A
LE

R
 O

F 
W

EI
G

H
TS

 A
N

D
 M

EA
SU

R
ES

 S
TI

PE
N

D
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

87
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-1

00
.0

%
01

24
10

1
51

11
90

C
O

N
ST

IT
U

EN
T 

LI
A

IS
O

N
 F

O
R

 C
O

D
E 

EN
FO

R
C

EM
N

T
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

01
24

10
1

51
11

07
8

SE
C

R
ET

A
R

IA
L 

14
,3

79
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

19
,2

17
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
0

1.
00

10
.3

%
4,

09
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-1
00

.0
%

01
24

10
1

51
X

X
X

PA
R

K
IN

G
 E

N
FO

R
C

EM
EN

T 
ST

IP
EN

D
11

,4
11

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
,4

11
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
01

24
10

1
51

11
17

   
  

M
EE

TI
N

G
 W

A
G

ES
 

3,
45

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8,

21
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

23
.6

%
71

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

8,
45

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
2.

9%
8,

45
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

2.
9%

01
24

10
1

51
11

51
IN

TE
R

IM
 D

EP
A

R
TM

EN
T 

H
EA

D
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
24

10
1

51
11

62
7

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 IN
SP

EC
TO

R
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

37
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
0

1.
00

39
,6

72
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
0

1.
00

5.
8%

39
,6

72
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
0

1.
00

5.
8%

01
24

10
1

51
11

82
   

  
A

SS
IS

T 
B

U
IL

D
 IN

SP
EC

TI
O

N
 O

FF
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
01

24
10

1
51

12
23

ZO
N

IN
G

 B
O

A
R

D
 S

EC
R

ET
A

R
Y

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

01
24

10
1

51
12

66
 

PR
O

G
R

A
M

 A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TO

R
 I 

28
,9

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

57
,3

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

23
,3

29
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
59

,1
59

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
3.

2%
59

,1
59

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
3.

2%
01

24
10

1
51

40
06

6
LO

N
G

EV
IT

Y
 

65
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

-6
4.

3%
1,

06
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
10

.0
%

1,
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
10

.0
%

01
24

10
1

51
40

10
   

  
SU

PE
R

 L
O

N
G

EV
IT

Y
 

92
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

01
24

10
1

51
20

00
TE

M
PO

R
A

R
Y

 W
A

G
ES

17
,6

62
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

01
24

10
1

51
30

00
O

V
ER

TI
M

E
4,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

01
24

10
1

51
95

15
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L 
D

U
TI

ES
4,

74
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
87

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
01

24
10

1
51

90
14

A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TI

V
E 

ST
IP

EN
D

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

24
10

1
51

90
16

A
N

TI
C

IP
A

TE
D

 B
U

Y
O

U
T

4,
68

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

35
1,

13
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

38
3,

34
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5.

08
0

7.
00

2.
4%

13
2,

18
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
39

9,
49

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
58

0
6.

00
4.

2%
40

3,
49

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
58

0
6.

00
5.

3%
 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 D
E

PA
R

T
M

E
N

T
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S
 

 
01

24
10

2
52

40
03

   
  

V
EH

IC
LE

 M
A

IN
T 

A
N

D
 O

PE
R

-S
ER

V
IC

E 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
24

10
2

52
40

07
   

  
O

FF
IC

E 
EQ

U
IP

M
EN

T 
R

EP
A

IR
S 

(5
0)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
30

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
30

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
24

10
2

53
00

07
   

  
A

D
V

ER
TI

SI
N

G
 &

 F
R

EI
G

H
T 

47
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

24
10

2
53

00
08

   
  

IN
SE

R
V

IC
E 

TR
A

IN
IN

G
 &

 E
D

U
C

A
TI

O
N

 
34

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
13

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
24

10
2

53
00

28
   

  
IN

SE
R

V
IC

E 
TR

A
IN

IN
G

 Z
B

A
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
30

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
30

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
24

10
2

53
03

04
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TE

D
 S

ER
V

IC
ES

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

24
10

2
53

40
01

TE
LE

PH
O

N
E

1,
77

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
24

10
2

54
20

00
   

  
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

1,
13

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
60

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

24
10

2
54

20
02

   
  

PH
O

TO
ST

A
TS

 &
 P

H
O

TO
G

R
-S

ER
V

 
96

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

24
10

2
54

30
15

   
  

SM
A

LL
 T

O
O

LS
 

24
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
30

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

24
10

2
54

80
01

   
  

G
A

SO
LI

N
E,

 O
IL

 &
 G

R
EA

SE
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

24
10

2
55

10
03

   
  

B
O

O
K

S 
40

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
71

.4
%

1,
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
24

10
2

55
30

04
   

  
SA

FE
TY

 S
U

PP
LI

ES
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
24

10
2

55
80

06
   

  
C

LO
TH

IN
G

/U
N

IF
O

R
M

S 
72

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

.0
%

27
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

24
10

2
57

10
00

5
TR

A
V

EL
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S 
2,

36
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-7

5.
0%

81
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0.

0%
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0.

0%
01

24
10

2
57

30
00

   
  

D
U

ES
 &

 S
U

B
SC

R
IP

TI
O

N
S 

14
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%

Pa
ge
 2
5

119



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

01
24

10
2

57
80

22
 

SE
A

LE
R

 O
F 

W
EI

G
H

TS
 A

N
D

 M
EA

SU
R

ES
 S

U
PP

LI
ES

15
,2

38
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-8

3.
3%

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
24

10
2

58
50

11
   

  
O

FF
IC

E 
FU

R
N

IT
U

R
E 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

23
,1

18
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
,4

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-4
1.

2%
2,

90
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

16
,4

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

6.
5%

16
,4

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

6.
5%

 
 

 
 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 &
 Z

O
N

IN
G

 -T
O

T
A

L
37

4,
25

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
39

8,
74

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
08

0
7.

00
-0

.4
%

13
5,

08
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
41

5,
89

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
58

0
6.

00
4.

3%
41

9,
89

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
58

0
6.

00
5.

3%
N

O
T

E
S:

 
 

1
 

 

2
 

 

3
N

EW
LY

 H
IR

ED
 A

T 
M

A
R

K
ET

 R
A

TE
 

 

4
 

 

5
IN

C
R

EA
SE

 D
U

E 
TO

 A
C

TU
A

L 
M

IL
EA

G
E

6
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TU

A
L 

IN
C

R
EA

SE

7
IN

C
R

EA
SE

 D
U

E 
TO

 M
A

R
K

ET
 A

D
JU

ST
M

EN
T

8
PO

SI
TI

O
N

 M
O

V
ED

 T
O

 C
O

A

9

 
 

TH
E 

N
U

M
B

ER
 O

F 
H

O
U

R
S 

W
O

R
K

ED
 F

O
R

 T
H

E 
C

O
D

E 
EN

FO
R

C
EM

EN
T 

M
A

N
A

G
ER

 W
IL

L 
C

H
A

N
G

E 
FR

O
M

 3
5 

TO
 4

0 
H

O
U

R
S.

JO
B

 D
U

TI
ES

 E
X

TE
N

D
ED

 T
O

 B
E 

A
D

A
 C

O
O

R
D

IN
A

TO
R

, T
O

 M
A

N
A

G
E 

A
D

A
 

IM
PR

O
V

EM
EN

T 
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 A

N
D

 T
O

 A
TT

EN
D

 Z
B

A
 N

IG
H

T 
M

EE
TI

N
G

S.
  R

A
IS

E 
R

EF
LE

C
TS

 M
A

R
K

ET
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S 
FO

R
 T

H
E 

PO
SI

TI
O

N
.

A
C

TU
A

L 
TI

M
E 

SP
EN

T

C
ER

TI
FI

C
A

TI
O

N
 N

O
W

 O
B

TA
IN

ED
 S

TI
PE

N
D

 R
O

LL
ED

 
IN

TO
 B

A
SE

 P
A

Y
 IN

 B
O

A
R

D
 O

F 
H

EA
LT

H

Pa
ge
 2
6

120



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 
A

N
IM

A
L

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L
-D

E
PT

 2
92

 
 

A
N

IM
A

L
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L

 S
A

L
A

R
IE

S
 

 
01

29
20

1
51

10
51

1
D

EP
A

R
TM

EN
T 

H
EA

D
 

52
,7

43
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

53
,6

02
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

1.
6%

29
,4

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
74

,5
42

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
39

.1
%

74
,5

42
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

39
.1

%
01

29
20

1
51

18
03

   
  

ST
IP

EN
D

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
29

20
1

51
30

00
   

  
O

V
ER

TI
M

E 
3,

05
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
5,

98
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

9,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
26

.7
%

9,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
26

.7
%

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
55

,7
94

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
61

,1
02

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

00
0

1.
00

1.
4%

35
,3

85
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

84
,0

42
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
00

0
1.

00
37

.5
%

84
,0

42
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
00

0
1.

00
37

.5
%

 
 

A
N

IM
A

L
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S

 
 

01
29

20
2

52
10

01
   

  
EL

EC
TR

IC
IT

Y
 

(3
,1

60
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

29
20

2
52

30
01

   
  

W
A

TE
R

 
(3

31
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
29

20
2

52
40

01
   

  
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 R

EP
A

IR
S-

SE
R

V
IC

ES
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

29
20

2
52

40
03

   
  

V
EH

IC
LE

 M
A

IN
T 

A
N

D
 O

PE
R

-S
ER

V
IC

E 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
29

20
2

53
00

07
   

  
A

D
V

ER
TI

SI
N

G
 &

 F
R

EI
G

H
T 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-5

0.
0%

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-5

0.
0%

01
29

20
2

53
00

08
   

  
IN

SE
R

V
IC

E 
TR

A
IN

IN
G

 &
 E

D
U

C
A

TI
O

N
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
75

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

75
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
75

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
29

20
2

53
40

01
2

TE
LE

PH
O

N
E 

1,
77

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

77
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

45
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

35
.1

%
2,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

35
.1

%
01

29
20

2
53

80
31

   
  

V
ET

ER
IN

A
R

IA
N

 F
EE

S.
 

(1
,3

52
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
29

20
2

53
80

32
2

D
IS

PO
SA

L 
O

F 
A

N
IM

A
LS

 
(8

67
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

96
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

.1
%

37
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

13
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

18
.1

%
1,

13
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

18
.1

%
01

29
20

2
54

20
01

   
  

PR
IN

TI
N

G
 &

 S
TA

TI
O

N
ER

Y
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-5

0.
0%

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-5

0.
0%

01
29

20
2

54
30

01
   

  
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

U
PP

LI
ES

 
(1

44
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-4

0.
0%

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-6

6.
7%

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-6

6.
7%

01
29

20
2

54
80

01
   

  
G

A
SO

LI
N

E,
 O

IL
 &

 G
R

EA
SE

 
74

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
29

20
2

54
90

06
   

  
FE

ED
IN

G
 D

O
G

S 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

29
20

2
55

80
06

   
  

C
LO

TH
IN

G
/U

N
IF

O
R

M
S 

34
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

20
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

29
20

2
57

80
17

   
  

FI
N

A
N

C
E 

C
H

A
R

G
ES

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
10

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

10
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

(2
,9

99
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
7,

49
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-3
.5

%
1,

04
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

7,
79

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
4.

0%
7,

79
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

4.
0%

 
 

 
 

A
N

IM
A

L
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L

 -T
O

T
A

L
S

52
,7

95
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

68
,5

98
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
00

0
1.

00
0.

8%
36

,4
31

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
91

,8
36

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

00
0

1.
00

33
.9

%
91

,8
36

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

00
0

1.
00

33
.9

%

N
O

T
E

S:

1
FY

24
 M

ID
 Y

EA
R

 IN
C

R
EA

SE
 D

U
E 

TO
 M

A
R

K
ET

 
C

O
M

PA
R

IS
O

N

2
IN

C
R

EA
SE

D
 C

O
ST

S

Pa
ge
 2
7

121



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 
E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
A

L
-R

E
G

IO
N

A
L

 S
C

H
O

O
L

-D
E

PT
 3

01
 

 
R

E
G

IO
N

A
L

 S
C

H
O

O
L

S 
E

X
PE

N
SE

S
 

 
01

30
10

2
52

00
00

   
  

SO
U

TH
EA

ST
ER

N
 R

EG
IO

N
A

L 
1,

34
4,

47
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

52
5,

02
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

13
.4

%
1,

34
4,

47
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1,
59

6,
54

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
4.

7%
1,

59
6,

54
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

4.
7%

01
30

10
2

53
80

03
   

  
N

O
R

FO
LK

 C
TY

 A
G

R
IC

U
LT

U
R

A
L 

29
,7

08
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

38
,8

08
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-3

5.
9%

60
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
36

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-7
.2

%
36

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-7
.2

%
 

 
 

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

A
L

-R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 S

C
H

-T
O

T
A

L
S

1,
37

4,
18

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
56

3,
83

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
11

.3
%

1,
40

4,
97

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

63
2,

54
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4.
4%

1,
63

2,
54

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
4.

4%

N
O

T
E

S:
  

Pa
ge
 2
8

122



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
-D

E
PT

 4
11

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 S

A
L

A
R

IE
S

01
41

10
1

51
10

51
   

  
D

EP
T 

H
EA

D
-E

N
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
 - 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
SV

C
 

89
,0

54
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
2,

53
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

1.
6%

23
,4

67
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

6,
95

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
80

0
1.

00
2.

9%
15

6,
95

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
80

0
1.

00
2.

9%
01

41
10

1
51

10
52

1
A

SS
T 

D
IR

 D
EV

 S
V

C
 / 

A
SS

IS
TA

N
T 

TO
W

N
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
30

,5
86

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

8,
16

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
1.

00
1.

6%
42

,9
02

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
8,

16
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

9.
2%

11
8,

16
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

9.
2%

01
41

10
1

51
10

56
   

  
EN

V
IR

O
N

M
EN

TA
L 

A
FF

A
IR

S 
O

FF
IC

ER
 

10
4,

90
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
6,

58
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

1.
6%

43
,1

08
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

9,
17

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
1.

00
2.

4%
10

9,
17

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
1.

00
2.

4%
01

41
10

1
51

11
17

 
M

EE
TI

N
G

 W
A

G
ES

 
39

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-1
00

.0
%

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
 

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
 

01
41

10
1

51
11

20
 

O
FF

IC
E 

A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TO

R
67

,9
84

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
79

,9
55

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
18

.5
%

32
,2

88
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
81

,8
68

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
2.

4%
81

,8
68

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
2.

4%
01

41
10

1
51

11
25

   
  

A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

 
39

,0
17

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
34

,1
85

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

01
41

10
1

51
11

32
 

PR
O

JE
C

T 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

42
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
0

1.
00

14
.5

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
43

,3
46

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

0
1.

00
2.

0%
43

,3
46

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

0
1.

00
2.

0%
01

41
10

1
51

11
95

   
  

G
IS

 C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
TO

R
 

61
,6

17
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

62
,6

08
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

70
0

1.
00

1.
6%

25
,2

83
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
65

,7
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
70

0
1.

00
4.

9%
65

,7
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
70

0
1.

00
4.

9%
01

41
10

1
51

12
22

5
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
R

V
IC

ES
 S

EC
R

ET
A

R
Y

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
17

,7
17

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
55

0
1.

00
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
-1

00
.0

%
01

41
10

1
51

12
59

4
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 A

D
M

IN
 II

 (L
IC

/R
EG

) 
59

,9
08

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
59

,9
08

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
01

41
10

1
51

12
66

   
  

PR
O

G
R

A
M

 A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TO

R
 I 

1,
55

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
01

41
10

1
51

30
00

   
  

O
V

ER
TI

M
E 

33
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
01

41
10

1
51

40
06

V
EH

IC
LE

 A
LL

O
W

A
N

C
E

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
01

41
10

1
51

90
16

A
N

TI
C

IP
A

TE
D

 B
U

Y
O

U
T

5,
55

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
01

41
10

1
51

95
15

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

D
U

TI
ES

 S
TI

PE
N

D
2,

72
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

01
41

10
1

51
40

06
IN

TE
R

IM
 T

O
W

N
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
89

,0
85

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
77

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

01
41

10
1

51
40

10
3

SU
PE

R
 L

O
N

G
EV

IT
Y

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

46
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

46
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
01

41
10

1
51

40
06

   
  

LO
N

G
EV

IT
Y

 
4,

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
0.

0%
3,

58
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
90

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
-9

.3
%

4,
90

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
-9

.3
%

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
49

6,
90

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
57

5,
47

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
75

0
7.

00
4.

5%
20

5,
59

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

65
0,

47
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6.

00
0

7.
00

13
.0

%
65

0,
47

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6.
00

0
7.

00
13

.0
%

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S
01

41
10

2
52

40
07

   
  

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

R
EP

A
IR

S-
SE

R
V

IC
ES

 
6,

56
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
6,

93
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

13
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
13

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
41

10
2

52
40

20
G

R
O

U
N

D
S 

M
A

IN
TE

N
A

N
C

E
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
41

10
2

53
00

00
   

  
C

O
N

SU
LT

A
N

T 
FE

ES
 

1,
70

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

7,
79

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

15
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
01

41
10

2
53

00
08

   
  

IN
SE

R
V

IC
E 

TR
A

IN
IN

G
 &

 E
D

U
C

A
TI

O
N

 
67

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

00
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
41

10
2

53
00

14
   

  
R

EC
O

R
D

IN
G

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

B
U

R
EA

U
 

1,
02

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
41

10
2

53
00

40
2

G
IS

 O
PE

R
A

TI
O

N
A

L 
EX

PE
N

SE
 

8,
24

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
9,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5.
9%

8,
65

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
9,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5.
6%

9,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5.

6%
01

41
10

2
53

00
51

 
ST

O
R

M
 W

A
TE

R
 C

O
O

R
D

IN
A

TO
R

 
11

,5
42

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
95

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

37
5.

0%
95

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

95
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
01

41
10

2
53

40
01

   
  

TE
LE

PH
O

N
E 

2,
06

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
4,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
41

10
2

53
40

04
   

  
A

D
V

ER
TI

SI
N

G
 &

 F
R

EI
G

H
T 

15
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-7
5.

0%
14

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
41

10
2

54
20

00
   

  
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

4,
15

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
83

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

41
10

2
54

30
10

   
  

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

R
EP

A
IR

S-
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

4,
01

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
25

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

41
10

2
54

80
01

   
  

G
A

SO
LI

N
E,

 O
IL

 &
 G

R
EA

SE
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

41
10

2
54

80
06

   
  

V
EH

IC
LE

 M
A

IT
 A

N
D

 O
PE

R
-S

U
PP

LI
ES

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
41

10
2

55
80

06
   

  
C

LO
TH

IN
G

/U
N

IF
O

R
M

S 
80

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
23

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
41

10
2

57
10

00
   

  
TR

A
V

EL
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S 
86

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

92
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

41
10

2
57

30
00

   
  

D
U

ES
 &

 S
U

B
SC

R
IP

TI
O

N
S 

98
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

34
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

42
,0

11
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

14
7,

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

1.
2%

29
,1

27
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

14
7,

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

3%
14

7,
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
3%

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 -T

O
T

A
L

S
53

8,
91

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
72

2,
57

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
75

0
7.

00
15

.8
%

23
4,

71
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
79

8,
07

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6.
00

0
7.

00
10

.4
%

79
8,

07
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6.

00
0

7.
00

10
.4

%

N
O

T
E

S:

1 2 3 4
PO

SI
TI

O
N

 A
D

D
ED

 F
R

O
M

 T
O

W
N

 C
LE

R
K

 D
EP

T

5

IN
C

R
EA

SE
D

 C
O

ST
S 

D
U

E 
TO

 S
O

FT
W

A
R

E 
A

C
TU

A
L 

C
O

ST

PE
R

 S
PA

EA
 C

O
N

TR
A

C
T,

 S
U

PE
R

 L
O

N
G

EV
IT

Y
 5

%

TH
E 

PO
SI

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

 W
A

S 
TR

A
N

SF
ER

R
ED

 F
R

O
M

 T
H

E 
TO

W
N

 
C

LE
R

K
 D

EP
T

R
EC

LA
SS

IF
IC

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

PO
SI

TI
O

N
 B

A
SE

D
 O

N
 A

C
TU

A
L 

D
U

TI
ES

 P
ER

FO
R

M
ED

 A
N

D
 M

A
R

K
ET

 
C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S.

Pa
ge
 2
9

123



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

D
PW

 G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 &

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 A
D

M
IN

.-D
E

PT
 4

21
D

PW
 G

EN
ER

A
L 

&
 H

G
W

Y
 S

A
LA

R
IE

S
01

42
10

1
51

10
51

   
  

D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
H

EA
D

 
49

,3
66

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
35

,5
37

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
25

0
1.

00
-2

7.
5%

14
,3

51
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
36

,5
66

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
25

0
1.

00
2.

9%
36

,5
66

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
25

0
1.

00
2.

9%
01

42
10

1
51

10
66

A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

 D
PW

 S
U

PE
R

IN
TE

N
D

EN
T

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
-1

00
.0

%
36

,9
19

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

01
42

10
1

51
10

52
   

  
A

SS
IS

TA
N

T 
SU

PE
R

IN
TE

N
D

EN
T 

89
,9

68
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

91
,4

21
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

80
0

1.
00

1.
6%

94
,0

61
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

80
0

1.
00

2.
9%

94
,0

61
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

80
0

1.
00

2.
9%

01
42

10
1

51
10

57
8

FO
R

EM
A

N
 

70
,6

79
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

71
,8

22
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

2.
9%

29
,0

05
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
77

,2
77

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
7.

6%
77

,2
77

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
7.

6%
01

42
10

1
51

10
70

   
  

H
EA

V
Y

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T 
O

PE
R

/M
EC

H
A

N
IC

 
26

4,
75

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
28

6,
01

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

4.
00

0
4.

00
5.

4%
11

4,
20

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

28
8,

19
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
4.

00
0

4.
00

0.
8%

28
8,

19
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
4.

00
0

4.
00

0.
8%

01
42

10
1

51
10

75
   

  
M

O
TO

R
 E

Q
U

IP
 O

PE
R

A
TO

R
/C

R
A

FT
SM

A
N

 
21

1,
97

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

5,
94

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

4.
20

0
5.

00
9.

5%
64

,3
36

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

18
7,

36
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

00
0

4.
00

-2
6.

8%
18

7,
36

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

3.
00

0
4.

00
-2

6.
8%

01
42

10
1

51
10

80
   

  
LA

B
O

R
ER

 
13

0,
41

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
61

,5
59

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
-4

3.
6%

24
,8

89
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
63

,0
31

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
2.

4%
63

,0
31

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
2.

4%
01

42
10

1
51

10
86

   
  

SE
N

IO
R

 C
LE

R
K

 II
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
01

42
10

1
51

10
96

   
  

PR
O

G
R

A
M

 C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
TO

R
 II

 
8,

87
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

01
42

10
1

51
11

30
   

  
C

ER
TI

FI
ED

 M
EC

H
A

N
IC

 
38

,4
82

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
-1

00
.0

%
6,

51
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

01
42

10
1

51
11

51
IN

TE
R

IM
 D

EP
A

R
TM

EN
T 

H
EA

D
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
42

10
1

51
11

95
   

  
G

IS
 C

O
O

R
D

IN
A

TO
R

 
8,

80
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

8,
94

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

10
0

1.
00

1.
6%

3,
61

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
9,

38
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
10

0
1.

00
4.

9%
9,

38
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
10

0
1.

00
4.

9%
01

42
10

1
51

12
66

   
  

PR
O

G
R

A
M

 A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TO

R
 I 

25
,6

78
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

65
,8

36
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

90
0

4.
00

90
.9

%
23

,4
27

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

46
,2

21
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

60
0

2.
00

-2
9.

8%
46

,2
21

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
60

0
2.

00
-2

9.
8%

01
42

10
1

51
29

01
ST

IP
EN

D
S 

O
TH

ER
4,

16
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
02

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
01

42
10

1
51

30
00

   
  

O
V

ER
TI

M
E 

71
,4

46
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

54
,1

20
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

 
0.

0%
28

,2
42

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

54
,1

20
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

 
0.

0%
54

,1
20

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
 

0.
0%

01
42

10
1

51
90

16
A

N
TI

C
IP

A
TE

D
 B

U
Y

O
U

T
10

,5
15

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

42
10

1
51

95
15

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

D
U

TI
ES

5,
33

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

61
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
42

10
1

51
40

06
   

  
LO

N
G

EV
IT

Y
 

2,
04

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

95
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

-6
4.

2%
2,

54
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
28

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
-2

2.
9%

2,
28

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
-2

2.
9%

01
42

10
1

51
40

08
   

  
O

U
T 

O
F 

G
R

A
D

E 
W

A
G

ES
 

93
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

-5
0.

0%
82

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
-6

0.
0%

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
-6

0.
0%

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
99

3,
43

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
93

9,
16

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
.2

50
18

.0
0

-1
3.

4%
35

3,
50

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

86
0,

50
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

.7
50

15
.0

0
-8

.4
%

86
0,

50
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

.7
50

15
.0

0
-8

.4
%

D
PW

 G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 &

 A
D

M
IN

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S

01
42

10
2

52
10

01
   

  
EL

EC
TR

IC
IT

Y
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
01

42
10

2
52

10
02

   
  

G
A

S 
56

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

01
42

10
2

52
40

03
   

  
V

EH
IC

LE
 M

A
IN

T 
A

N
D

 O
PE

R
-S

ER
V

IC
E 

47
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
01

42
10

2
52

40
07

   
  

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

R
EP

A
IR

S-
SE

R
V

IC
ES

 
42

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

19
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
01

42
10

2
52

70
02

1
M

A
C

H
IN

ER
Y

/T
R

U
C

K
 R

EN
TA

L 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
12

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
00

.0
%

12
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

00
.0

%
01

42
10

2
53

00
07

   
  

A
D

V
ER

TI
SI

N
G

 &
 F

R
EI

G
H

T 
72

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-2

5.
0%

83
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

42
10

2
53

00
08

   
  

IN
SE

R
V

IC
E 

TR
A

IN
IN

G
 &

 E
D

U
C

A
TI

O
N

 
1,

07
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
13

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
42

10
2

53
00

18
   

  
C

D
L 

D
R

U
G

/A
LC

O
H

O
L 

TE
ST

IN
G

 
74

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
30

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
42

10
2

53
00

35
M

ED
IC

A
L 

A
N

D
 F

IR
ST

 A
ID

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
01

42
10

2
53

00
55

   
  

D
O

T 
PH

Y
SI

C
A

LS
/M

ED
IC

A
L 

EX
A

M
S 

55
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-2
5.

0%
33

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

01
42

10
2

53
40

01
2

TE
LE

PH
O

N
E 

14
,6

35
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

6,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
4,

18
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
,3

60
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

6.
0%

12
,3

60
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

6.
0%

01
42

10
2

53
40

02
   

  
PO

ST
A

G
E 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

42
10

2
53

80
06

   
  

SA
FE

TY
 S

ER
V

IC
ES

 
1,

84
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
42

10
2

53
80

10
PO

LI
C

E 
D

ET
A

IL
S

22
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

42
10

2
53

00
62

3
ST

O
R

M
W

A
TE

R
 M

A
IN

TE
N

A
N

C
E

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-2
0.

0%
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
.0

%
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
.0

%
01

42
10

2
54

20
00

4
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

2,
58

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

48
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

66
.7

%
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

66
.7

%

Pa
ge
 3
0

124



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

01
42

10
2

54
20

01
   

  
PR

IN
TI

N
G

 &
 S

TA
TI

O
N

ER
Y

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

42
10

2
54

30
01

   
  

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
U

PP
LI

ES
 

4,
24

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

16
,7

13
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

6,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

42
10

2
54

30
02

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 R
EP

A
IR

S 
48

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
42

10
2

54
30

10
5

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

R
EP

A
IR

S-
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

77
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-5
0.

0%
7,

85
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

0.
0%

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

0.
0%

01
42

10
2

54
30

11
   

  
O

FF
IC

E 
EQ

U
IP

M
EN

T 
R

EP
R

S-
SU

PP
LY

 
3,

03
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

71
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
01

42
10

2
54

30
14

6
R

A
D

IO
 R

EP
A

IR
 S

V
C

/S
U

PP
LI

ES
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

66
.7

%
7,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0.

0%
7,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0.

0%
01

42
10

2
54

30
21

   
  

W
EL

D
IN

G
 S

U
PP

LI
ES

 
6,

93
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
60

.0
%

33
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

42
10

2
54

80
01

   
  

G
A

SO
LI

N
E,

 O
IL

 &
 G

R
EA

SE
 

39
,8

24
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(4
,0

48
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
42

10
2

54
80

03
   

  
G

A
SO

LI
N

E/
D

IE
SE

L 
PU

R
C

H
A

SE
S 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

42
10

2
54

80
06

   
  

V
EH

IC
LE

 M
A

IT
 A

N
D

 O
PE

R
-S

U
PP

 
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
42

10
2

54
90

00
   

  
M

EA
L 

A
LL

O
W

A
N

C
E 

- C
O

N
TR

A
C

TU
A

L 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

42
10

2
55

30
04

   
  

SA
FE

TY
 S

U
PP

LI
ES

 
9,

64
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
2,

78
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
42

10
2

55
30

11
   

  
M

IS
C

 C
O

N
ST

R
 M

A
TE

R
IA

LS
 &

 S
U

PP
L 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
7,

12
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

01
42

10
2

55
80

06
7

C
LO

TH
IN

G
/U

N
IF

O
R

M
S 

15
,9

39
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

19
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

.2
%

10
,7

43
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
27

,2
80

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

43
.6

%
27

,2
80

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

43
.6

%
01

42
10

2
56

50
53

   
  

V
A

R
IO

U
S 

LI
C

EN
SE

S 
32

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
80

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
42

10
2

57
10

00
   

  
TR

A
V

EL
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

75
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
75

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

75
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

42
10

2
57

30
00

   
  

D
U

ES
 &

 S
U

B
SC

R
IP

TI
O

N
S 

32
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
75

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

75
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
75

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
42

10
2

57
80

08
   

  
M

IS
C

 O
TH

ER
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
01

42
10

2
57

80
17

   
  

FI
N

A
N

C
E 

C
H

A
R

G
ES

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
42

10
2

57
80

30
   

  
PE

TT
Y

 C
A

SH
 

65
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

42
10

2
57

80
99

   
  

IN
TE

R
D

EP
A

R
TM

EN
TA

L 
R

EI
M

B
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
42

10
2

58
50

07
   

  
C

A
P 

O
U

TL
A

Y
 E

Q
U

IP
 M

EC
H

A
N

IC
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

10
5,

43
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

93
,6

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-9
.0

%
47

,9
05

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
14

2,
04

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

51
.8

%
14

2,
04

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

51
.8

%
D

PW
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 &
 A

D
M

IN
 -T

O
T

A
L

1,
09

8,
87

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
03

2,
76

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
12

.2
50

18
.0

0
-1

3.
0%

40
1,

41
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
2,

54
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

10
.7

50
15

.0
0

-2
.9

%
1,

00
2,

54
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

10
.7

50
15

.0
0

-2
.9

%

D
PW

 G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 &

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 A
D

M
IN

.-D
E

PT
 4

21
 - 

C
on

tin
ue

d
N

O
T

E
S:

1
W

E 
R

EN
T 

M
IS

C
EL

A
N

EO
U

S 
EQ

U
IP

M
EN

T 
PO

ST
 

A
U

C
TI

O
N

2
G

PS
 U

N
IT

S 
FO

R
 V

EH
IC

LE
S 

A
N

D
 E

Q
U

IP
M

EN
T

3
M

A
N

D
A

TE
D

 P
ER

 M
S4

 P
ER

M
IT

4
IN

C
R

EA
SE

 IN
 C

O
ST

 A
N

D
 S

TA
FF

5
SU

PP
LI

ES
 T

O
 R

EP
A

IR
 E

Q
U

IP
M

EN
T

6
A

D
D

IN
G

 R
A

D
IO

S 
TO

 N
EW

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T
7

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TU
A

L 
IN

C
R

EA
SE

8
M

A
R

K
ET

 A
D

JU
ST

M
EN

T
 

 

Pa
ge
 3
1

125



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 A
N

D
 M

A
IN

T
 - 

D
E

PT
 4

22
H

IG
H

W
A

Y
 C

O
N

ST
 &

 M
A

IN
T-

EX
PE

N
SE

S
01

42
20

2
52

30
06

   
  

H
A

ZA
R

D
O

U
S 

W
A

ST
E 

D
IS

PO
SA

L 
2,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
40

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-2
0.

0%
40

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-2
0.

0%
01

42
20

2
52

40
07

   
  

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

R
EP

A
IR

S-
SE

R
V

IC
ES

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
11

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
42

20
2

52
40

14
   

  
ST

R
T,

SW
R

,S
ID

W
LK

,W
EL

L 
SE

V
IC

ES
 

14
,3

64
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

8,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-1

6.
7%

4,
13

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
8,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

8,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

42
20

2
52

40
44

   
  

ST
R

EE
T 

PA
IN

TI
N

G
13

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-4

0.
0%

30
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
30

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
42

20
2

52
70

00
   

  
M

A
C

H
IN

ER
Y

/T
R

U
C

K
 R

EN
TA

L 
14

,4
95

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

6,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
42

20
2

52
90

18
   

  
SI

D
EW

A
LK

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

42
20

2
53

00
02

   
  

C
O

N
SU

LT
A

N
T 

FE
ES

 
89

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-5
0.

0%
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-5
0.

0%
01

42
20

2
53

80
10

1
PO

LI
C

E 
D

ET
A

IL
S 

21
,4

13
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

30
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
43

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

36
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

.0
%

36
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

.0
%

01
42

20
2

54
30

10
   

  
EQ

U
IP

M
EN

T 
R

EP
A

IR
S-

SU
PP

LI
ES

 
18

,8
23

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

17
,5

12
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
01

42
20

2
54

60
01

2
LO

A
M

 &
 G

R
A

SS
 S

EE
D

 
14

,3
23

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

4,
29

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
7,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

38
0.

0%
7,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

38
0.

0%
01

42
20

2
55

30
02

3
M

A
N

H
O

LE
S,

C
A

TC
H

B
A

SI
N

S 
&

 C
U

R
B

S 
32

,7
54

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

3,
66

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
.0

%
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
.0

%
01

42
20

2
55

30
30

   
  

PA
V

IN
G

 M
A

TE
R

IA
LS

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
13

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

42
20

2
55

30
32

4
ST

R
EE

T 
SI

G
N

S 
&

 P
O

ST
S 

12
,5

95
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

22
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
19

,4
37

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

35
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
59

.1
%

35
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
59

.1
%

01
42

20
2

55
30

33
   

  
LU

M
B

ER
 

1,
47

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

39
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
01

42
20

2
55

30
35

   
  

M
IS

C
 C

O
N

ST
R

 M
A

TE
R

IA
LS

 &
 S

U
PP

L 
55

,2
51

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
25

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

39
,7

02
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

25
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
01

42
20

2
55

30
36

   
  

R
ES

U
R

FA
C

IN
G

 S
U

PP
LI

ES
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

42
20

2
55

30
38

   
  

ST
R

EE
T,

SW
R

, S
ID

EW
A

LK
 S

U
PP

 
8,

33
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
01

42
20

2
55

30
40

 
C

EM
EN

T,
 G

R
A

V
EL

, S
A

N
D

 P
A

V
IN

G
 

10
7,

08
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

65
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

.0
%

13
,3

12
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
65

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

65
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
01

42
20

2
55

30
45

   
  

SM
A

LL
 T

O
O

LS
 

11
,2

84
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-2

5.
0%

8,
48

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

42
20

2
55

30
47

G
U

A
R

D
 R

A
IL

S
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
42

20
2

55
30

49
FE

N
C

IN
G

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

42
20

2
58

80
01

5
R

ES
U

R
FA

C
E 

ST
R

EE
TS

/S
U

PP
LI

ES
  (

ST
R

EE
T 

R
EP

A
IR

S)
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

90
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-5

.3
%

85
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-5

.6
%

85
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-5

.6
%

 
 

 
H

IG
H

W
A

Y
 C

O
N

ST
 &

 M
A

IN
T

 -T
O

T
A

L
S

31
5,

42
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

38
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
-3

.0
%

15
6,

31
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
39

4,
70

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
3%

39
4,

70
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

3%
 

 
N

O
T

E
S:

1
IN

C
R

EA
SE

D
 R

A
TE

 O
F 

C
O

N
TR

A
C

T 
D

ET
A

IL
S

2
IN

C
R

EA
SE

 IN
 C

O
ST

 A
N

D
 W

O
R

K
 L

O
A

D
3

IN
C

R
EA

SE
 IN

 C
O

ST
 A

N
D

 W
O

R
K

 L
O

A
D

4
IN

C
R

EA
SE

D
 T

R
A

FF
IC

 C
A

LM
IN

G
 M

EA
SU

R
ES

5
IN

C
R

EA
SE

 D
U

E 
TO

 M
A

TE
R

IA
L 

A
N

D
 L

A
B

O
R

 

 
 

Pa
ge
 3
2

126



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

FA
C

IL
IT

IE
S-

D
E

PT
 1

59
FA

C
IL

IT
IE

S 
SA

L
A

R
IE

S
01

15
90

1
51

10
51

   
  

D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
H

EA
D

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

35
,5

37
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

25
0

1.
00

14
,3

51
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
36

,5
66

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
25

0
1.

00
2.

9%
36

,5
66

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
25

0
1.

00
2.

9%
01

15
90

1
51

10
59

   
  

SK
IL

LE
D

 C
R

A
FT

SM
A

N
 

59
,0

49
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

60
,0

09
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

1.
8%

24
,4

78
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
62

,0
62

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
3.

4%
62

,0
62

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
3.

4%
01

15
90

1
51

11
14

   
  

C
U

ST
O

D
IA

N
 

24
9,

25
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

18
1,

31
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

00
0

3.
00

-2
8.

4%
63

,4
66

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

14
9,

68
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

00
0

3.
00

-1
7.

4%
14

9,
68

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

3.
00

0
3.

00
-1

7.
4%

01
15

90
1

51
11

18
   

  
PA

R
T 

TI
M

E 
W

A
G

ES
 

1,
39

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
10

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

01
15

90
1

51
11

36
2

FA
C

IL
IT

IE
S 

A
N

D
 F

LE
ET

 M
A

N
A

G
ER

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
31

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
35

0
1.

00
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
-1

00
.0

%
01

15
90

1
10

FA
C

IL
IT

IE
S 

M
A

N
A

G
ER

 S
TI

PE
N

D
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
01

15
90

1
51

12
66

1
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 A

D
M

IN
 I

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

,7
63

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
20

0
1.

00
 

15
,7

63
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

20
0

1.
00

 
01

15
90

1
51

18
06

G
R

A
N

T 
A

LL
O

C
A

TI
O

N
 P

A
Y

R
O

LL
(1

3,
53

8)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
15

90
1

51
30

00
   

  
O

V
ER

TI
M

E 
7,

75
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

8,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
33

.3
%

4,
71

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
8,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

0.
0%

8,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
0.

0%
01

15
90

1
51

90
16

A
N

TI
C

IP
A

TE
D

 B
U

Y
O

U
T

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
17

,3
91

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

01
15

90
1

55
80

06
C

LO
TH

IN
G

 / 
U

N
IF

O
R

M
52

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

01
15

90
1

51
95

15
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L 
D

U
TI

ES
 S

TI
PE

N
D

1,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

61
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

61
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
01

15
90

1
51

40
06

   
  

LO
N

G
EV

IT
Y

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
34

.2
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-1
00

.0
%

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
30

4,
44

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
32

1,
45

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
60

0
6.

00
-0

.2
%

12
5,

90
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
29

4,
68

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
45

0
6.

00
-8

.3
%

29
4,

68
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

45
0

6.
00

-8
.3

%
FA

C
IL

IT
IE

S 
E

X
PE

N
SE

S
01

15
90

2
52

10
01

 
EL

EC
TR

IC
IT

Y
 

19
6,

49
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

29
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
11

.5
%

96
,2

57
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
26

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
0.

3%
26

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
0.

3%
01

15
90

2
52

10
02

3
G

A
S 

 (N
A

TU
R

A
L 

G
A

S)
77

,8
99

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-2
3.

1%
7,

08
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

.0
%

11
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

.0
%

01
15

90
2

52
30

01
4

W
A

TE
R

 
20

,7
39

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
24

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-1
0.

1%
16

,7
37

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

40
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
66

.7
%

40
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
66

.7
%

01
15

90
2

52
40

01
5

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 R
EP

A
IR

S-
SE

R
V

IC
ES

 
18

4,
91

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
14

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
.0

%
11

2,
38

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

16
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
17

.9
%

16
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
17

.9
%

01
15

90
2

52
40

08
EQ

U
IP

M
EN

T 
R

EP
A

IR
S 

SE
R

V
IC

ES
5,

69
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

42
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

15
90

2
52

40
10

   
  

FI
R

E 
A

LA
R

M
 IN

SP
 F

EE
S/

SE
R

V
IC

ES
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-2
3.

1%
3,

18
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
15

90
2

53
00

00
   

  
C

O
N

TR
A

C
T 

SE
R

V
IC

ES
 

8,
93

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

15
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
30

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

30
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
01

15
90

2
53

00
08

   
  

IN
SE

R
V

IC
E 

TR
A

IN
IN

G
 &

 E
D

U
C

A
TI

O
N

 
29

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
15

90
2

53
00

13
 

EL
EV

A
TO

R
 IN

SP
EC

TI
O

N
S 

-S
ER

V
IC

ES
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

23
.3

%
5,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
11

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
15

90
2

53
00

54
   

  
SP

R
IN

K
LE

R
 IN

SP
 F

EE
S 

2,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

5,
23

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

3,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

15
90

2
53

00
59

6
EN

ER
G

Y
 S

U
ST

A
IN

A
B

IL
IT

Y
 C

O
O

R
D

IN
A

TO
R

14
,8

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
87

.5
%

8,
88

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
17

,7
60

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

18
.4

%
17

,7
60

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

18
.4

%
01

15
90

2
53

40
01

7
TE

LE
PH

O
N

E 
1,

11
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

0.
0%

21
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

33
.3

%
1,

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

33
.3

%
01

15
90

2
54

30
00

   
  

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 R
EP

A
IR

 S
U

PP
LI

ES
 

36
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

15
90

2
54

30
02

8
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 R

EP
A

IR
S-

SU
PP

LI
ES

 
32

,8
77

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-3
1.

0%
17

,6
69

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

.0
%

25
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

.0
%

01
15

90
2

54
80

01
   

  
G

A
SO

LI
N

E,
 O

IL
 &

 G
R

EA
SE

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
15

90
2

55
80

06
9

C
LO

TH
IN

G
/U

N
IF

O
R

M
S 

83
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

35
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

60
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

33
.8

%
1,

60
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

33
.8

%
01

15
90

2
53

00
65

C
U

ST
O

D
IA

L 
SE

R
V

IC
ES

 - 
TO

W
N

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
23

,4
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

90
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-1

0.
0%

90
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-1

0.
0%

01
15

90
2

57
30

02
   

  
M

EM
B

ER
SH

IP
 F

EE
S 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
27

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

27
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
27

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
54

7,
03

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
74

1,
17

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

17
.7

%
29

6,
99

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

76
0,

74
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

6%
76

0,
74

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
6%

 
 

FA
C

IL
IT

IE
S 

-T
O

T
A

L
85

1,
47

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

06
2,

63
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4.
60

0
6.

00
11

.6
%

42
2,

89
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

05
5,

42
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4.
45

0
6.

00
-0

.7
%

1,
05

5,
42

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
4.

45
0

6.
00

-0
.7

%
N

O
T

E
S:

 
 

1 2
3 

&
 4 5 6

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TU
A

L 
IN

C
R

EA
SE

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

SU
LT

A
N

T
7

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

C
EL

L 
PH

O
N

ES

8
SU

PP
LI

ES
 T

O
 M

A
IN

TA
IN

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
9

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TU
A

L 
IN

C
R

EA
SE

  

10

TO
 M

A
N

A
G

E 
A

LL
 T

O
W

N
 F

A
C

IL
IT

IE
S 

A
N

D
 F

LE
ET

IN
C

R
EA

SE
D

 R
A

TE

C
O

ST
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
D

 W
IT

H
 M

A
IN

TE
N

A
N

C
E 

O
F 

TO
W

N
 S

TR
U

C
TU

R
ES

PA
R

T 
TI

M
E 

R
ES

PO
N

SI
B

IL
IT

Y
 F

O
R

 F
U

LL
 T

IM
E 

PE
R

SO
N

R
EA

LL
O

C
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
EM

PL
O

Y
EE

 T
O

 R
EF

LE
C

T 
A

C
TU

A
L 

TI
M

E 
SP

EN
T 

IN
 T

H
E 

D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T

Pa
ge
 3
3

127



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

SN
O

W
 R

E
M

O
V

A
L

-D
E

PT
 4

23
SN

O
W

 R
EM

O
V

A
L 

EX
PE

N
SE

S
01

42
30

1
51

30
00

   
  

O
V

ER
TI

M
E 

98
,3

29
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

74
,3

40
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
4,

18
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

74
,3

40
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
74

,3
40

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
42

30
2

51
90

13
   

  
A

SS
T.

 S
U

PT
. S

N
O

W
 S

TI
PE

N
D

 
3,

33
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

6,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

42
30

2
52

40
07

   
  

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

R
EP

A
IR

S-
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

60
,8

64
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
3,

81
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
42

30
2

52
70

00
   

  
M

A
C

H
IN

ER
Y

/T
R

U
C

K
 R

EN
TA

L 
93

,6
22

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
14

7,
66

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
14

7,
66

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

14
7,

66
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
01

42
30

2
53

00
08

   
  

IN
SE

R
V

IC
E 

TR
A

IN
IN

G
 &

 E
D

U
C

A
TI

O
N

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

13
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
13

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

13
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

42
30

2
53

40
04

   
  

A
D

V
ER

TI
SI

N
G

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

22
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
22

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

22
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

42
30

2
53

40
05

   
  

G
PS

 
22

,4
39

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

51
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
42

30
2

53
80

10
   

  
PO

LI
C

E 
D

ET
A

IL
S 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

42
30

2
53

80
21

   
  

W
EA

TH
ER

 S
ER

V
IC

ES
 

1,
49

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
42

30
2

54
30

15
   

  
SM

A
LL

 T
O

O
LS

 
1,

39
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
96

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
42

30
2

54
30

21
   

  
W

EL
D

IN
G

 S
U

PP
LI

ES
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
65

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

65
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
65

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
42

30
2

54
80

01
   

  
G

A
SO

LI
N

E,
 O

IL
 &

 G
R

EA
SE

 
26

,8
68

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
12

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

12
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
12

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
42

30
2

54
90

00
   

  
M

EA
L 

A
LL

O
W

A
N

C
E 

- C
O

N
TR

A
C

TU
A

L 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

42
30

2
55

30
01

   
  

C
H

EM
IC

A
LS

 
18

9,
76

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

11
,4

12
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

12
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
01

42
30

2
55

30
03

   
  

PA
V

IN
G

 M
A

TE
R

IA
LS

 
41

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
01

42
30

2
57

80
03

   
  

ST
A

TE
 D

IE
SE

L 
TA

X
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
42

30
2

58
50

00
   

  
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L 
EQ

U
IP

M
EN

T 
4,

94
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
99

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
7,

97
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
99

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
3,

99
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
42

30
2

58
70

00
   

  
R

EP
LA

C
EM

EN
T 

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
SN

O
W

 R
E

M
O

V
A

L
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S 
T

O
T

A
L

S
50

3,
46

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0
0.

00
0.

0%
32

,3
64

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0
0.

00
0.

0%
40

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0
0.

00
0.

0%
 

 
N

O
T

E
S:

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Pa
ge
 3
4

128



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

ST
R

E
E

T
 L

IG
H

T
IN

G
-D

E
PT

 4
24

 
 

ST
R

E
E

T
 L

IG
H

T
IN

G
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S
 

 
01

42
40

2
52

10
01

1
EL

EC
TR

IC
IT

Y
 

11
4,

76
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
14

.3
%

34
,9

99
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
14

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

16
.7

%
14

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

16
.7

%
01

42
40

2
52

40
16

2
ST

R
EE

T 
LI

G
H

T 
M

A
IN

TE
N

A
N

C
E 

48
,4

09
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
23

,4
49

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

65
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

.0
%

65
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

.0
%

01
42

40
2

52
40

45
3

TR
A

FF
IC

 L
IG

H
T 

R
EP

A
IR

S 
30

,8
67

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-2
5.

0%
11

,4
35

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
60

.0
%

24
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
60

.0
%

01
42

40
2

55
30

39
   

  
TR

A
FF

IC
 L

IG
H

T 
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
42

40
2

57
80

17
   

  
FI

N
A

N
C

E 
C

H
A

R
G

ES
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

42
40

2
58

80
10

   
  

ST
R

EE
T 

LI
G

H
T 

R
EP

LA
C

EM
EN

T 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

15
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-4

0.
0%

81
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

15
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
 

 
 

ST
R

E
E

T
 L

IG
H

T
IN

G
 -T

O
T

A
L

19
4,

04
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

21
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0

0.
00

0.
0%

70
,6

99
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

25
4,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0

0.
00

21
.0

%
25

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0
0.

00
21

.0
%

 
 

N
O

T
E

S:
 

 
1

IN
C

R
EA

SE
D

 C
O

ST
S 

PR
EV

IO
U

SL
Y

 U
N

D
ER

B
U

D
G

ET
ED

 
 

2
A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
D

 W
IT

H
 P

O
LE

 R
EP

LA
C

EM
EN

T
 

 
3

IN
C

R
EA

SE
D

 C
O

ST
S 

PR
EV

IO
U

SL
Y

 U
N

D
ER

B
U

D
G

ET
ED

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge
 3
5

129



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

FL
E

E
T

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 - 
D

E
PT

 4
26

 
 

FL
E

E
T

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 S
A

L
A

R
IE

S
 

 
01

42
60

1
51

11
23

1
C

ER
TI

FI
ED

 W
EL

D
ER

/L
A

B
O

R
ER

42
,9

65
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

80
0

1.
00

17
,3

51
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
55

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
80

0
1.

00
28

.0
%

55
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

80
0

1.
00

28
.0

%
01

42
60

1
51

11
30

C
ER

TI
FI

ED
 M

EC
H

A
N

IC
12

7,
45

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
75

0
2.

00
54

,1
48

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
0,

50
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

75
0

2.
00

2.
4%

13
0,

50
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

75
0

2.
00

2.
4%

01
42

60
1

51
30

00
O

V
ER

TI
M

E
8,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
01

42
60

1
51

12
66

2
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 A

D
M

IN
 I

7,
88

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

10
0

1.
00

 
7,

88
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
10

0
1.

00
 

01
42

60
1

51
11

36
FL

EE
T 

M
G

R
./F

A
C

IL
IT

IE
S 

A
SS

T.
58

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
65

0
1.

00
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
-1

00
.0

%
01

42
60

1
51

11
36

4
FL

EE
T 

M
A

N
A

G
ER

 S
TI

PE
N

D
7,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

7,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
01

42
60

1
51

11
43

FO
R

EM
A

N
77

,0
02

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
1,

48
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

76
,9

27
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

-0
.1

%
76

,9
27

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
-0

.1
%

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
30

5,
92

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
20

0
5.

00
72

,9
80

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
28

5,
81

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
65

0
5.

00
-6

.6
%

28
5,

81
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

65
0

5.
00

-6
.6

%
 

 
FL

E
E

T
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S
 

 
01

42
60

2
52

40
03

3
V

EH
IC

LE
 M

A
IT

 A
N

D
 O

PE
R

-S
ER

V
IC

E
31

,3
27

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
85

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
.0

%
14

,7
24

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
29

.4
%

11
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
29

.4
%

01
42

60
2

54
80

01
   

  
G

A
SO

LI
N

E,
 O

IL
 &

 G
R

EA
SE

 
5,

46
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

40
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-6

.5
%

15
0,

21
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
40

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

40
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
01

42
60

2
54

80
07

IN
V

EN
TO

R
Y

 A
D

JU
ST

M
EN

T 
G

A
S 

/ D
IE

SE
L

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

42
60

2
54

80
06

   
  

V
EH

IC
LE

 M
A

IT
 A

N
D

 O
PE

R
-S

U
PP

LI
ES

 
19

7,
75

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-9
.1

%
97

,7
83

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

15
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
15

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
63

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-3
.9

%
26

2,
72

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

66
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

9%
66

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
9%

 
 

FL
E

E
T

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 T
O

T
A

L
23

4,
54

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
94

0,
92

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
20

0
5.

00
42

.4
%

33
5,

70
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
94

5,
81

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
65

0
5.

00
0.

5%
94

5,
81

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
65

0
5.

00
0.

5%
 

 
N

O
T

E
S:

 
 

1
 

 

2
 

 

3
IN

C
R

EA
SE

D
 C

O
ST

 A
N

D
 IN

 H
O

U
SE

 R
EP

A
IR

S
 

 

4
LE

A
D

 M
EC

H
A

N
IC

 W
IL

L 
M

A
K

E 
PU

R
C

H
A

SI
N

G
 A

N
D

 P
R

O
JE

C
T 

D
EC

IS
IO

N
S

 
 

 
 

LA
B

O
R

ER
 P

R
O

M
O

TE
D

 T
O

 C
ER

TI
FI

ED
 W

EL
D

ER
R

EA
LL

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

EM
PL

O
Y

EE
 T

O
 R

EF
LE

C
T 

A
C

TU
A

L 
TI

M
E 

SP
EN

T 
IN

 T
H

E 
D

EP
A

R
TM

EN
T

Pa
ge
 3
6

130



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

  
 

W
A

ST
E

 D
IS

PO
SA

L
/S

A
N

IT
A

T
IO

N
-D

E
PT

 4
33

 
 

 
 

SA
L

A
R

IE
S

 
 

01
43

30
1

51
10

51
   

  
D

EP
A

R
TM

EN
T 

H
EA

D
 

55
,5

56
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

35
,5

37
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

25
0

1.
00

-3
6.

5%
14

,3
51

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

36
,5

66
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

25
0

1.
00

2.
9%

36
,5

66
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

25
0

1.
00

2.
9%

01
43

30
1

51
10

57
   

  
FO

R
EM

A
N

 
16

,0
26

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
93

,1
42

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
20

0
2.

00
52

2.
2%

39
,5

84
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
78

,8
44

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
-1

5.
4%

78
,8

44
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

-1
5.

4%
01

43
30

1
51

10
58

   
  

A
SS

IS
TA

N
T 

SU
PE

R
IN

TE
N

D
EN

T 
11

,2
46

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
11

,4
28

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
10

0
1.

00
1.

6%
4,

61
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
,7

59
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

10
0

1.
00

2.
9%

11
,7

59
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

10
0

1.
00

2.
9%

01
43

30
1

51
10

70
   

  
H

EA
V

Y
 E

Q
U

IP
M

EN
T 

O
PE

R
A

TO
R

/M
EC

H
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 

01
43

30
1

51
10

75
1

M
O

TO
R

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T 
O

PE
R

/C
R

A
FT

SM
A

N
  (

TR
U

C
K

 
D

R
IV

ER
S)

53
1,

17
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
4,

30
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
8.

40
0

10
.0

0
-1

4.
0%

24
1,

85
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
60

1,
12

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

7.
00

0
7.

00
19

.2
%

60
1,

12
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
7.

00
0

7.
00

19
.2

%
01

43
30

1
51

10
80

   
  

LA
B

O
R

ER
 

22
3,

89
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

35
9,

43
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
5.

40
0

7.
00

49
.0

%
10

6,
30

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

18
3,

35
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
6.

00
0

6.
00

-4
9.

0%
18

3,
35

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

6.
00

0
6.

00
-4

9.
0%

01
43

30
1

51
10

86
   

  
SE

N
IO

R
 C

LE
R

K
 II

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

01
43

30
1

51
10

96
   

  
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 C

O
O

R
D

IN
A

TO
R

 II
 

8,
87

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
01

43
30

1
51

11
23

1
C

ER
TI

FI
ED

 W
EL

D
ER

/L
A

B
O

R
ER

10
,7

42
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

20
0

1.
00

4,
33

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

,8
04

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
20

0
1.

00
19

.2
%

12
,8

04
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

20
0

1.
00

19
.2

%
01

43
30

1
51

11
30

   
  

C
ER

TI
FI

ED
 M

EC
H

A
N

IC
 

12
9,

70
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-1
00

.0
%

6,
52

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
01

43
30

1
51

11
41

M
O

TO
R

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T 
O

P/
C

R
A

FT
SM

A
N

 
10

,2
14

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

43
30

1
51

12
66

2
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 A

D
M

IN
IS

TR
A

TO
R

 I 
25

,6
78

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
35

,1
02

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

0
2.

00
1.

8%
11

,7
73

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

74
,5

44
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

2.
00

11
2.

4%
74

,5
44

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
2.

00
11

2.
4%

01
43

30
1

51
20

06
 

SE
A

SO
N

A
L 

W
A

G
ES

 
21

,8
41

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
48

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
20

0
6.

00
17

.1
%

11
,6

60
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
48

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
40

0
6.

00
0.

0%
48

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
40

0
6.

00
0.

0%
01

43
30

1
51

30
00

   
  

O
V

ER
TI

M
E 

55
,1

54
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

42
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
13

,9
81

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

42
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
42

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
43

30
1

51
95

15
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L 
D

U
TI

ES
66

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

43
30

1
51

40
06

   
  

LO
N

G
EV

IT
Y

 
54

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

66
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-9

1.
6%

54
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
56

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-1
5.

0%
56

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-1
5.

0%
01

43
30

1
51

40
08

3
O

U
T 

O
F 

G
R

A
D

E 
W

A
G

ES
 

41
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-5
0.

0%
1,

13
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

0.
0%

01
43

30
1

51
90

16
   

  
A

N
TI

C
IP

A
TE

D
 B

U
Y

O
U

T 
1,

90
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
1,

09
2,

89
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

14
1,

35
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
.2

50
30

.0
0

2.
0%

45
6,

84
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

09
1,

06
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

16
.9

50
25

.0
0

-4
.4

%
1,

09
1,

06
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

16
.9

50
25

.0
0

-4
.4

%

Pa
ge
 3
7

131



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

E
X

PE
N

SE
S

 
 

01
43

30
2

52
30

06
   

  
H

A
ZA

R
D

O
U

S 
W

A
ST

E 
D

IS
PO

SA
L

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

43
30

2
52

40
01

   
  

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 R
EP

A
IR

S-
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

43
30

2
52

40
03

   
  

V
EH

IC
LE

 M
A

IN
T 

A
N

D
 O

PE
R

-S
ER

V
IC

E 
33

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
52

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

43
30

2
52

90
01

   
  

SO
LI

D
 W

A
ST

E 
D

IS
PO

SA
L 

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TS
 

67
1,

34
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

88
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
2.

4%
33

4,
25

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

88
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

6%
88

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
6%

01
43

30
2

52
90

02
   

  
W

A
ST

E 
O

IL
 D

IS
PO

SA
L 

SE
R

V
IC

ES
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
43

30
2

52
90

08
   

  
TI

R
E 

D
IS

PO
SA

L 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

3,
90

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

43
30

2
52

90
10

   
  

B
A

C
K

U
P 

LA
N

D
FI

LL
 P

ER
M

IT
 F

EE
S 

1,
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
43

30
2

52
90

15
4

R
EC

Y
C

LA
B

LE
S 

EX
PE

N
SE

 
62

,6
71

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
.0

%
34

,7
96

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
25

.0
%

12
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
25

.0
%

01
43

30
2

53
00

07
   

  
A

D
V

ER
TI

SI
N

G
 &

 F
R

EI
G

H
T 

2,
53

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
75

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

2,
27

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
75

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

75
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

43
30

2
53

00
08

   
  

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

43
30

2
53

00
18

   
  

C
D

L 
D

R
U

G
/A

LC
O

H
O

L 
TE

ST
IN

G
 

64
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

29
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

43
30

2
53

00
36

M
ED

IC
A

L 
A

N
D

 F
IR

ST
 A

ID
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

43
30

2
53

00
55

   
  

D
O

T 
PH

Y
SI

C
A

LS
/M

ED
IC

A
L 

EX
A

M
S 

1,
79

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-2
0.

0%
70

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
4,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
43

30
2

53
40

01
5

TE
LE

PH
O

N
E 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
30

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

3,
38

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

,8
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

35
00

.0
%

10
,8

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
35

00
.0

%
01

43
30

2
53

40
02

 
PO

ST
A

G
E 

9,
08

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

14
.3

%
85

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-1

2.
5%

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-1

2.
5%

01
43

30
2

54
20

00
   

  
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

32
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

2,
62

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

43
30

2
54

20
01

   
  

PR
IN

TI
N

G
 &

 S
TA

TI
O

N
ER

Y
 

3,
89

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

7,
91

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

43
30

2
54

30
01

   
  

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 R
EP

A
IR

S-
SE

R
V

IC
ES

 
48

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

97
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

43
30

2
54

30
10

   
  

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

R
EP

A
IR

S-
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

3,
72

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
6,

59
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
43

30
2

54
30

15
   

  
SM

A
LL

 T
O

O
LS

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

01
43

30
2

54
80

01
   

  
G

A
SO

LI
N

E,
 O

IL
 &

 G
R

EA
SE

 
87

,5
29

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

43
30

2
54

80
06

   
  

V
EH

IC
LE

 M
A

IT
 A

N
D

 O
PE

R
-S

U
PP

LI
ES

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

42
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

43
30

2
54

90
00

FO
O

D
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
43

30
2

55
30

01
   

  
C

H
EM

IC
A

LS
 

1,
89

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

60
.0

%
1,

52
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
4,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
43

30
2

55
30

04
   

  
SA

FE
TY

 S
U

PP
LI

ES
 

7,
62

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

40
.0

%
3,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

3,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

43
30

2
55

80
06

   
  

C
LO

TH
IN

G
/U

N
IF

O
R

M
S 

20
,1

38
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

30
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
29

,5
06

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

26
,2

20
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-1

2.
6%

26
,2

20
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-1

2.
6%

01
43

30
2

56
50

53
   

  
V

A
R

IO
U

S 
LI

C
EN

SE
S 

23
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

87
5,

69
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
04

2,
05

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
3.

7%
43

1,
99

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
07

7,
87

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
3.

4%
1,

07
7,

87
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

3.
4%

W
A

ST
E

 D
IS

PO
SA

L
/S

A
N

IT
A

T
IO

N
-T

O
T

A
L

S
1,

96
8,

59
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

18
3,

40
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
.2

50
30

.0
0

2.
8%

88
8,

84
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

16
8,

93
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

16
.9

50
25

.0
0

-0
.7

%
2,

16
8,

93
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

16
.9

50
25

.0
0

-0
.7

%

N
O

T
E

S:
 

 

1
 

 

2
 

 

3
IN

C
R

EA
SE

 T
O

 C
O

V
ER

 F
O

R
 P

A
ID

 T
IM

E 
O

FF
 

 
4

N
EW

 C
O

N
TR

A
C

T 
A

N
D

 V
O

LU
M

E
 

 
5

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

G
PS

 U
N

IT
S 

FO
R

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T

IN
C

R
EA

SE
D

 IN
 C

ER
TI

FI
C

A
TI

O
N

 / 
R

EC
LA

SS
IF

IC
A

TI
O

N

R
EA

LL
O

C
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
EM

PL
O

Y
EE

 T
O

 R
EF

LE
C

T 
A

C
TU

A
L 

TI
M

E 
SP

EN
T 

IN
 T

H
E 

D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T

Pa
ge
 3
8

132



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 
 

H
U

M
A

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S-

50
5

 
 

H
U

M
A

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S 

SA
L

A
R

IE
S

 
 

01
50

50
1

51
10

51
1

D
IR

EC
TO

R
12

,2
17

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
12

,4
15

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
10

0
1.

00
1.

6%
2,

11
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

-1
00

.0
%

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
12

,2
17

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
12

,4
15

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

10
0

1.
00

1.
6%

2,
11

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0

0.
00

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0
0.

00
-1

00
.0

%
 

 
 

H
U

M
A

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S 

T
O

T
A

L
12

,2
17

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
12

,4
15

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

10
0

1.
00

1.
6%

2,
11

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0

0.
00

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0
0.

00
-1

00
.0

%
 

 
N

O
T

E
S:

 
 

1
TH

IS
 D

EP
A

R
TM

EN
T 

W
A

S 
EL

IM
IN

A
TE

D
 F

O
R

 F
Y

20
25

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Pa
ge
 3
9

133



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F 
H

E
A

L
T

H
-D

E
PT

 5
10

 
 

   
 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 S

A
L

A
R

IE
S

 
 

01
51

00
1

51
10

51
   

  
TO

W
N

 S
A

N
IT

A
R

IA
N

 
90

,4
76

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
91

,9
32

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
1.

6%
37

,1
23

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

94
,1

56
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

2.
4%

94
,1

56
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

2.
4%

01
51

00
1

51
10

86
SE

N
IO

R
 C

LE
R

K
 II

36
,0

66
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

52
,7

44
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

21
,0

43
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
53

,3
67

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
1.

2%
53

,3
67

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
1.

2%
01

51
00

1
51

11
52

1
A

SS
T 

SA
N

IT
A

R
IA

N
/C

O
D

E 
EN

FO
R

C
EM

EN
T 

32
,3

47
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

32
,8

68
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
0

1.
00

1.
6%

13
,2

51
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
37

,3
08

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

0
1.

00
13

.5
%

37
,3

08
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
0

1.
00

13
.5

%
01

51
00

1
51

12
66

   
  

PR
O

G
R

A
M

 A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TO

R
 I 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
01

51
00

1
51

40
06

2
LO

N
G

EV
IT

Y
 

1,
30

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

0.
0%

1,
23

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

89
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

45
.4

%
1,

89
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

45
.4

%
01

51
00

1
51

30
00

O
V

ER
TI

M
E

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

01
51

00
1

51
90

14
B

O
H

 A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TI

V
E 

ST
IP

EN
D

12
,5

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
51

00
1

51
90

16
A

N
TI

C
IP

A
TE

D
 B

U
Y

O
U

T
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

R
ev

ol
vi

ng
 fu

nd
ed

 P
os

iti
on

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
SS

T 
SA

N
IT

A
R

IA
N

/C
O

D
E 

EN
FO

R
C

EM
EN

T 
- H

A
LF

 O
F 

SA
LA

R
Y

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

50
0

1.
00

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
50

0
1.

00
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
50

0
1.

00
 

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
17

2,
78

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
17

8,
84

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
00

0
4.

00
2.

4%
72

,6
53

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
18

6,
72

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
00

0
4.

00
4.

4%
18

6,
72

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
00

0
4.

00
4.

4%
 

 
B

O
A

R
D

 O
F 

H
E

A
L

T
H

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S

 
 

01
51

00
2

53
00

00
   

  
PR

O
FE

SS
IO

N
A

L 
SE

R
V

IC
ES

 
1,

84
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
92

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
2,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
51

00
2

53
00

07
   

  
A

D
V

ER
TI

SI
N

G
 &

 F
R

EI
G

H
T 

(9
6)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-3
3.

3%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

51
00

2
53

00
08

   
  

IN
SE

R
V

IC
E 

TR
A

IN
IN

G
 &

 E
D

U
C

A
TI

O
N

 
12

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-3

3.
3%

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

51
00

2
53

00
19

   
  

LA
B

O
R

A
TO

R
Y

 F
EE

S 
36

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
57

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
51

00
2

53
40

01
   

  
TE

LE
PH

O
N

E 
50

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

51
00

2
54

20
00

   
  

O
FF

IC
E 

SU
PP

LI
ES

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
51

00
2

54
20

01
   

  
PR

IN
TI

N
G

 &
 S

TA
TI

O
N

ER
Y

 
85

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

51
00

2
54

80
01

   
  

G
A

SO
LI

N
E,

 O
IL

 &
 G

R
EA

SE
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

51
00

2
54

80
06

   
  

V
EH

IC
LE

 M
A

IT
 A

N
D

 O
PE

R
-S

U
PP

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
51

00
2

55
80

06
   

  
C

LO
TH

IN
G

/U
N

IF
O

R
M

S 
36

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
56

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
51

00
2

57
10

00
   

  
TR

A
V

EL
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
30

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

51
00

2
57

30
00

   
  

D
U

ES
 &

 S
U

B
SC

R
IP

TI
O

N
S 

37
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

22
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

80
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

4,
32

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
9,

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-9
.4

%
1,

85
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

9,
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
9,

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

 
 

 
B

O
A

R
D

 O
F 

H
E

A
L

T
H

 -T
O

T
A

L
S

17
7,

11
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

18
8,

44
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

00
0

4.
00

1.
8%

74
,5

06
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

19
6,

32
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

00
0

4.
00

4.
2%

19
6,

32
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

00
0

4.
00

4.
2%

 
 

N
O

T
E

S:
 

 

1
C

ER
TI

FI
C

A
TI

O
N

 N
O

W
 O

B
TA

IN
ED

 S
TI

PE
N

D
 R

O
LL

ED
 

IN
TO

 B
A

SE
 P

A
Y

 IN
 B

O
A

R
D

 O
F 

H
EA

LT
H

 
 

2
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TU
A

L 
PE

R
 S

PA
EA

 M
O

A

Pa
ge
 4
0

134



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 O
N

 A
G

IN
G

-D
E

PT
 5

41
 

 
C

O
U

N
C

IL
 O

N
 A

G
IN

G
 S

A
L

A
R

IE
S

 
 

01
54

10
1

51
10

51
1

C
O

A
 M

A
N

A
G

ER
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

7,
22

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
37

,7
04

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
30

0
1.

00
 

37
,7

04
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

30
0

1.
00

 
01

54
10

1
51

10
83

   
  

PR
O

G
R

A
M

 C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
TO

R
 I 

75
,1

45
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

76
,3

49
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

1.
6%

22
,0

24
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
76

,6
43

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
0.

4%
76

,6
43

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
0.

4%
01

54
10

1
51

11
15

2
B

U
S/

V
A

N
 D

R
IV

ER
 

95
,1

02
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

89
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
0

2.
00

-1
4.

2%
51

,8
62

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
2,

14
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

00
0

3.
00

48
.5

%
13

2,
14

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

3.
00

0
3.

00
48

.5
%

01
54

10
1

51
11

18
2

PA
R

T 
TI

M
E 

D
R

IV
ER

S 
35

,4
24

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
61

,7
04

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
30

0
7.

00
-5

.4
%

6,
06

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
22

,2
17

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
08

0
2.

00
-6

4.
0%

22
,2

17
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

08
0

2.
00

-6
4.

0%
01

54
10

1
51

11
24

   
  

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

 W
O

R
K

ER
(S

) 
44

,8
26

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
47

,2
25

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
70

0
1.

00
1.

8%
16

,8
59

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

43
,1

44
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

52
0

1.
00

-8
.6

%
43

,1
44

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
52

0
1.

00
-8

.6
%

01
54

10
1

51
12

66
   

  
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 A

D
M

IN
IS

TR
A

TO
R

 I 
27

,8
98

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
28

,3
47

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

0
1.

00
1.

6%
11

,4
48

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

28
,4

56
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
0

1.
00

0.
4%

28
,4

56
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
0

1.
00

0.
4%

01
54

10
1

51
11

07
4

SE
C

R
ET

A
R

IA
L

19
,7

77
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
0

1.
00

19
,7

77
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
0

1.
00

01
54

10
1

51
13

67
   

  
V

O
LU

N
TE

ER
 C

O
O

R
D

IN
A

TO
R

 
49

,2
01

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
49

,4
86

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
1.

8%
20

,1
90

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

51
,1

93
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

3.
4%

51
,1

93
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

3.
4%

01
54

10
1

51
30

11
   

  
W

A
R

M
IN

G
 C

EN
TE

R
 T

IM
E 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
0.

0%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

0.
0%

01
54

10
1

51
40

06
   

  
LO

N
G

EV
IT

Y
 

2,
47

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

47
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

-2
2.

6%
2,

02
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

37
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
-9

3.
2%

37
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
-9

3.
2%

01
54

10
1

51
40

10
SU

PE
R

LO
N

G
EV

IT
Y

3,
81

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

08
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

01
54

10
1

51
90

16
A

N
TI

C
IP

A
TE

D
 B

U
Y

O
U

T
4,

55
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

5,
13

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

33
4,

62
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

36
2,

40
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
9.

50
0

13
.0

0
-5

.4
%

14
3,

91
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
41

2,
65

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

7.
90

0
11

.0
0

13
.9

%
41

2,
65

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

7.
90

0
11

.0
0

13
.9

%
 

G
R

A
N

T
 F

U
N

D
E

D
 P

O
SI

T
IO

N
S

 
 

R
EC

EP
TI

O
N

IS
T

 
 

B
IL

IN
G

U
A

L 
O

U
TR

EA
C

H
 W

O
R

K
ER

 
 

TO
TA

L 
PO

SI
TI

O
N

S
 

 
 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 O
N

 A
G

IN
G

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S

 
 

01
54

10
2

52
40

03
   

  
V

EH
IC

LE
 M

A
IN

T 
&

 O
PE

R
-S

ER
V

IC
E 

62
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
18

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
54

10
2

52
40

07
   

  
O

FF
IC

E 
EQ

U
IP

M
EN

T 
R

EP
A

IR
S 

43
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

30
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

54
10

2
53

00
07

   
  

A
D

V
ER

TI
SI

N
G

 &
 F

R
EI

G
H

T 
23

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

54
10

2
53

00
08

   
  

IN
SE

R
V

IC
E 

TR
A

IN
IN

G
 &

 E
D

U
C

A
TI

O
N

 
31

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

75
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
75

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

75
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

54
10

2
53

40
01

   
  

TE
LE

PH
O

N
E 

3,
48

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

15
.4

%
92

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
54

10
2

53
40

02
   

  
PO

ST
A

G
E 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

25
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

54
10

2
53

50
01

   
  

SE
N

IO
R

 C
IT

IZ
EN

S 
A

C
TI

V
IT

IE
S 

3,
78

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

15
.4

%
1,

65
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

7,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
7,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
54

10
2

54
20

00
   

  
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

2,
60

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
94

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

3,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

54
10

2
54

30
01

   
  

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
U

PP
LI

ES
 

3,
13

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

25
.0

%
31

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
54

10
2

55
80

06
   

  
C

LO
TH

IN
G

/U
N

IF
O

R
M

S 
89

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

54
10

2
57

10
00

   
  

TR
A

V
EL

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S 

55
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-6
6.

7%
28

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
25

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
54

10
2

57
30

00
3

D
U

ES
 &

 S
U

B
SC

R
IP

TI
O

N
S 

2,
83

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

25
.0

%
2,

83
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

.0
%

2,
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

.0
%

01
54

10
2

57
80

17
   

  
FI

N
A

N
C

E 
C

H
A

R
G

ES
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

18
,9

14
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
,4

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
.4

%
8,

70
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
,7

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
2%

25
,7

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
2%

 
C

O
U

N
C

IL
 O

N
 A

G
IN

G
 -T

O
T

A
L

35
3,

53
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

38
7,

80
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
9.

50
0

13
.0

0
-4

.5
%

15
2,

61
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
43

8,
35

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

7.
90

0
11

.0
0

13
.0

%
43

8,
35

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

7.
90

0
11

.0
0

13
.0

%
 

 
N

O
T

E
S:

 
 

1
PR

EV
IO

U
SL

Y
 P

A
ID

 O
U

T 
O

F 
H

EA
LT

H
 A

N
D

 H
U

M
A

N
 

SE
R

V
IC

ES
 B

U
D

G
ET

.  
N

O
 B

EN
EF

IT
S

 
 

2
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L 
FU

LL
 T

IM
E 

V
A

N
 D

R
IV

ER
 

 
 

3
IN

C
R

EA
SE

 IN
 C

O
ST

 
 

4
TH

IS
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

 W
A

S 
TR

A
N

SF
ER

R
ED

 F
R

O
M

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 D
EP

T.
 

 
 

 

Pa
ge
 4
1

135



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 
 

V
E

T
E

R
A

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S-

D
E

PT
 5

43
 

 
V

E
T

E
R

A
N

S 
SE

R
V

IC
E

S 
SA

L
A

R
IE

S
 

 
01

54
30

1
51

10
51

1
V

ET
ER

A
N

S'
 A

G
EN

T 
62

,2
09

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
72

,3
63

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
0.

5%
4,

65
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

34
,7

13
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
0

1.
00

-5
2.

0%
34

,7
13

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

0
1.

00
-5

2.
0%

01
54

30
1

51
10

86
 

SE
N

IO
R

 C
LE

R
K

 II
24

,5
20

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
-1

00
.0

%
4,

73
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

01
54

30
1

51
10

99
 

PR
IN

C
IP

A
L 

C
LE

R
K

 I 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

01
54

30
1

51
11

19
   

  
V

ET
ER

A
N

S'
 G

R
A

V
E 

O
FF

IC
ER

 
2,

06
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
07

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

05
0

1.
00

0.
0%

1,
03

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

12
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
05

0
1.

00
2.

5%
2,

12
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
05

0
1.

00
2.

5%
01

54
30

1
51

12
66

2
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 A

D
M

IN
IS

TR
A

TO
R

 I
54

,6
92

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
20

,8
24

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

76
,8

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

40
.6

%
76

,8
75

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
40

.6
%

01
54

30
1

51
20

00
   

  
PA

R
T-

TI
M

E 
W

A
G

ES
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
01

54
30

1
51

40
06

   
  

LO
N

G
EV

IT
Y

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

01
54

30
1

51
90

16
   

  
A

N
TI

C
IP

A
TE

D
 B

U
Y

O
U

T 
4,

18
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
92

,9
72

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
12

9,
12

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
05

0
3.

00
31

.1
%

31
,2

43
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
3,

71
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

55
0

3.
00

-1
1.

9%
11

3,
71

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
55

0
3.

00
-1

1.
9%

 
 

V
E

T
E

R
A

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S 

E
X

PE
N

SE
S

 
 

01
54

30
2

53
00

07
   

  
A

D
V

ER
TI

SI
N

G
 &

 F
R

EI
G

H
T 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
90

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5.
9%

90
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
90

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
54

30
2

53
00

08
   

  
C

O
N

FE
R

EN
C

E 
EX

PE
N

SE
S 

92
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-3
3.

3%
90

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
.5

%
90

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
.5

%
01

54
30

2
53

40
01

TE
LE

PH
O

N
E

49
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
70

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

70
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
70

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
54

30
2

53
50

03
3

FL
A

G
S 

&
 G

R
A

V
E 

D
EC

O
R

A
TI

O
N

S 
43

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

25
.0

%
5,

31
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

0.
0%

11
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

0.
0%

01
54

30
2

53
80

37
3

C
EM

ET
A

R
IE

S/
SO

LD
IE

R
'S

 G
R

A
V

ES
 

8,
46

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

,8
20

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

1,
09

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
01

54
30

2
54

20
00

   
  

O
FF

IC
E 

SU
PP

LI
ES

 
77

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-3
7.

5%
14

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
54

30
2

57
10

00
   

  
TR

A
V

EL
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S 
36

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-2
5.

9%
27

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
54

30
2

57
30

00
   

  
D

U
ES

 &
 S

U
B

SC
R

IP
TI

O
N

S 
63

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

75
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

0.
0%

65
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

33
.3

%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

33
.3

%
01

54
30

2
57

70
05

V
ET

ER
A

N
S 

SP
EC

IA
L 

C
O

LA
 P

A
Y

M
EN

T
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
54

30
2

57
70

00
   

  
V

ET
ER

A
N

S 
B

EN
EF

IT
S 

23
5,

17
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

38
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

.0
%

74
,3

77
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-2
0.

8%
30

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-2
0.

8%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

24
5,

85
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

40
6,

47
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
9.

8%
81

,8
61

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
32

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-2
1.

0%
32

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-2
1.

0%
 

 
 

V
E

T
E

R
A

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S 

-T
O

T
A

L
33

8,
82

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
53

5,
59

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
05

0
3.

00
14

.3
%

11
3,

10
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
43

4,
71

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
55

0
3.

00
-1

8.
8%

43
4,

71
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

55
0

3.
00

-1
8.

8%
 

 
N

O
T

E
S:

 
 

1
ST

A
TE

 T
O

 M
A

K
E 

D
ET

ER
M

IN
A

TI
O

N
 O

N
 F

U
LL

-T
IM

E 
V

S.
 

PA
R

T-
TI

M
E 

ST
A

TU
S.

  M
A

Y
 H

A
V

E 
B

U
D

G
ET

 IM
PA

C
T

 
 

2
PO

SI
TI

O
N

 R
EC

LA
SS

IF
IC

A
TI

O
N

 
 

3
C

O
M

B
IN

ED
 T

W
O

 A
C

C
O

U
N

TS

Pa
ge
 4
2

136



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 
 

SU
B

ST
A

N
C

E
 A

B
U

SE
 A

N
D

 P
R

E
V

E
N

T
IO

N
-D

E
PT

 5
44

 
 

SU
B

ST
A

N
C

E 
A

B
U

SE
 A

N
D

 P
R

EV
EN

TI
O

N
-S

A
LA

R
IE

S
 

 
01

54
40

1
51

95
15

   
  

ST
IP

EN
D

 / 
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L 
D

U
TI

ES
7,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

00
0

1.
00

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-1
00

.0
%

01
54

40
1

51
10

96
   

  
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 C

O
O

R
D

IN
A

TO
R

 II
 

82
,7

83
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

84
,1

15
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

1.
6%

33
,9

73
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
85

,7
98

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
2.

0%
85

,7
98

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
2.

0%
01

54
40

1
51

18
06

G
R

A
N

T 
A

LL
O

C
A

TI
O

N
(2

1,
07

4)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
54

40
1

51
40

06
1

LO
N

G
EV

IT
Y

65
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

53
.8

%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

.0
%

1,
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

.0
%

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
69

,8
59

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
92

,6
15

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

00
0

2.
00

1.
9%

34
,9

73
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

86
,8

98
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
00

0
1.

00
-6

.2
%

86
,8

98
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
00

0
1.

00
-6

.2
%

 
 

SU
B

ST
A

N
C

E 
A

B
U

SE
 A

N
D

 P
R

EV
EN

TI
O

N
-E

X
PE

N
SE

S
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
01

54
40

2
53

80
20

N
U

 A
M

ER
IC

O
R

PS
8,

43
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
,2

40
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

1%
5,

18
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
,2

40
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
11

,2
40

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
8,

43
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
,2

40
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

1%
5,

18
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
,2

40
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
11

,2
40

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

 
 

G
R

A
N

T
 F

U
N

D
E

D
 P

O
SI

T
IO

N
S

 
 

PR
EV

EN
TI

O
N

 C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
TO

R
1.

00
0

1.
00

1.
00

0
1.

00
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
 

 
 

SU
B

ST
A

N
C

E
 A

B
U

SE
 A

N
D

 P
R

E
V

-T
O

T
A

L
78

,2
89

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

3,
85

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
00

0
3.

00
2.

1%
40

,1
53

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
98

,1
38

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
2.

00
0

2.
00

-5
.5

%
98

,1
38

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
2.

00
0

2.
00

-5
.5

%
 

 
N

O
T

E
S:

 
 

1
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TU

A
L 

IN
C

R
EA

SE
 

 
 

 

 
 

C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

 O
N

 D
IS

A
B

IL
IT

IE
S-

D
E

PT
 5

49
 

 
 

 
C

O
M

M
IS

SI
O

N
 O

N
 D

IS
A

B
IL

IT
IE

S-
SA

L
A

R
IE

S
 

 
01

54
90

1
51

11
18

PA
R

T 
TI

M
E 

W
A

G
ES

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

0.
0%

0.
00

0
0.

00
0.

0%
 

 
C

O
M

M
IS

SI
O

N
 O

N
 D

IS
A

B
IL

IT
IE

S-
E

X
PE

N
SE

S
 

 
01

54
90

2
54

20
00

1
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
27

5
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
 

C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

 O
N

 D
IS

A
B

IL
IT

IE
S 

T
O

T
A

L
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

00
0.

00
0.

0%
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
00

0.
00

0.
0%

 
 

N
O

T
E

S:
 

 

**
 N

E
W

 D
E

PA
R

T
M

E
N

T
 F

O
R

 F
Y

24
 

 

1
Fu

nd
s i

n 
th

is
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

t a
re

 to
 b

e 
us

ed
 fo

r p
ub

lic
 o

ut
re

ac
h 

an
d 

ed
uc

at
io

n.
 

 
 

 

Pa
ge
 4
3

137



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

L
IB

R
A

R
Y

-D
E

PT
 6

10
 

 
L

IB
R

A
R

Y
 S

A
L

A
R

IE
S

 
01

61
00

1
51

10
51

1
LI

B
R

A
R

Y
 D

IR
EC

TO
R

 
99

,2
06

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

0,
81

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
1.

00
-1

.2
%

40
,7

12
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

0,
31

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
1.

00
9.

4%
11

0,
31

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
1.

00
9.

4%
01

61
00

1
51

10
85

2
LI

B
R

A
R

Y
 A

SS
IS

TA
N

TS
 

20
0,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

21
4,

78
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
5.

00
0

5.
00

2.
7%

94
,7

37
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
23

5,
48

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

5.
00

0
5.

00
9.

6%
23

5,
48

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

5.
00

0
5.

00
9.

6%
01

61
00

1
51

11
18

   
  

PA
R

T-
TI

M
E 

W
A

G
ES

 
16

2,
67

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
17

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

5.
30

0
12

.0
0

0.
0%

59
,9

58
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
17

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

4.
49

0
13

.0
0

0.
0%

17
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
4.

49
0

13
.0

0
0.

0%
01

61
00

1
51

11
47

2
LI

TE
R

A
C

Y
 C

O
O

R
D

IN
A

TO
R

 
48

,0
68

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
49

,8
19

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
1.

9%
22

,0
86

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

53
,0

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

6.
5%

53
,0

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

6.
5%

01
61

00
1

51
11

55
2

LI
B

R
A

R
IA

N
 1

  (
FY

25
 L

IB
R

A
R

IA
N

S)
18

4,
84

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
17

8,
82

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

2.
00

0
2.

00
2.

8%
62

,8
28

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

26
6,

83
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
4.

00
0

4.
00

49
.2

%
26

6,
83

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

4.
00

0
4.

00
49

.2
%

01
61

00
1

51
11

56
2

LI
B

R
A

R
IA

N
 II

 
74

,1
21

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
76

,8
21

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
00

0
2.

00
1.

9%
32

,5
04

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-1
00

.0
%

01
61

00
1

51
11

58
3

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

45
,7

67
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

 
45

,7
67

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
 

01
61

00
1

51
12

66
   

  
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 A

D
M

IN
IS

TR
A

TO
R

 I 
54

,4
08

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
55

,2
88

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
1.

6%
22

,3
26

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

56
,6

15
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

2.
4%

56
,6

15
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

2.
4%

01
61

00
1

51
30

00
   

  
O

V
ER

TI
M

E 
1,

97
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
03

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

4%
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-0

.7
%

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-0

.7
%

01
61

00
1

51
40

04
 

N
IG

H
T 

D
IF

FE
R

EN
TI

A
L 

9,
19

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

,4
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
.9

%
3,

13
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-3

.8
%

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-3

.8
%

01
61

00
1

51
40

06
2

LO
N

G
EV

IT
Y

 
5,

03
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
53

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
29

.8
%

5,
71

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
9,

11
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

39
.5

%
9,

11
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

39
.5

%
01

61
00

1
51

50
05

FI
TN

ES
S 

IN
C

EN
TI

V
E

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

61
00

1
51

90
16

   
  

A
N

TI
C

IP
A

TE
D

 B
U

Y
O

U
T 

90
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

84
0,

93
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

86
7,

31
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
17

.3
00

24
.0

0
1.

8%
34

4,
09

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

96
1,

19
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
17

.4
90

26
.0

0
10

.8
%

96
1,

19
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
17

.4
90

26
.0

0
10

.8
%

L
IB

R
A

R
Y

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S

 
 

01
61

00
2

52
10

01
   

  
EL

EC
TR

IC
IT

Y
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

61
00

2
52

10
02

   
  

FU
EL

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
61

00
2

52
30

01
   

  
W

A
TE

R
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

61
00

2
52

40
01

   
  

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 R
EP

A
IR

S-
SE

R
V

IC
ES

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
61

00
2

52
40

07
4

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

R
EP

A
IR

S-
SE

R
V

IC
ES

 
2,

16
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

0.
0%

89
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

33
.3

%
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

33
.3

%
01

61
00

2
52

40
20

   
  

G
R

O
U

N
D

S 
M

A
IN

TE
N

A
N

C
E 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

61
00

2
52

70
08

   
  

O
FF

IC
E 

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

R
EN

TA
L 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

61
00

2
53

00
07

   
  

A
D

V
ER

TI
SI

N
G

 &
 F

R
EI

G
H

T 
3,

00
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

61
00

2
53

00
08

   
  

IN
SE

R
V

IC
E 

TR
A

IN
IN

G
 &

 E
D

U
C

A
TI

O
N

 
26

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-4

0.
0%

46
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

61
00

2
53

00
17

5
A

U
TO

M
A

TI
O

N
 - 

O
C

LN
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S 
28

,0
80

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
29

,1
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
3%

28
,8

20
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
31

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6.
5%

31
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6.

5%
01

61
00

2
53

40
01

   
  

TE
LE

PH
O

N
E 

86
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-2
5.

0%
31

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-3

3.
3%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-3

3.
3%

01
61

00
2

53
40

02
   

  
PO

ST
A

G
E 

20
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-3

7.
5%

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
25

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
61

00
2

53
40

07
   

  
B

IN
D

IN
G

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-1

6.
7%

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-5

0.
0%

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-5

0.
0%

01
61

00
2

53
50

07
   

  
LI

B
R

A
R

Y
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 L
EC

TU
R

ES
 

13
,3

40
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

18
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
4,

97
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

18
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
18

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
61

00
2

53
65

05
TU

IT
IO

N
 R

EI
M

B
U

R
SE

M
EN

T
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
61

00
2

54
20

01
   

  
PR

IN
TI

N
G

 &
 S

TA
TI

O
N

ER
Y

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
61

00
2

54
30

01
   

  
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 R

EP
A

IR
S-

SU
PP

LI
ES

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
71

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-2

0.
0%

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-2

0.
0%

01
61

00
2

54
30

10
4

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

R
EP

A
IR

S-
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

2,
09

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
6.

7%
1,

88
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

0.
0%

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

0.
0%

01
61

00
2

54
80

01
   

  
G

A
SO

LI
N

E,
 O

IL
 &

 G
R

EA
SE

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
61

00
2

55
80

02
   

  
D

A
TA

 P
R

O
C

ES
SI

N
G

 S
U

PP
LI

ES
 

12
,9

94
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

8,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
5,

55
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

8,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
8,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
61

00
2

55
80

06
   

  
C

LO
TH

IN
G

/U
N

IF
O

R
M

S 
75

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

15
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
15

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
61

00
2

55
80

07
   

  
LI

B
R

A
R

Y
 S

U
PP

LI
ES

 
21

,6
52

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
30

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

9,
80

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
30

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

30
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
01

61
00

2
57

10
00

   
  

TR
A

V
EL

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S 

95
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-4
0.

0%
46

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

Pa
ge
 4
4

138



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

01
61

00
2

57
30

00
   

  
D

U
ES

 &
 S

U
B

SC
R

IP
TI

O
N

S 
3,

56
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
14

.3
%

37
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

61
00

2
57

80
17

   
  

FI
N

A
N

C
E 

C
H

A
R

G
ES

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
61

00
2

58
60

00
   

  
C

A
P 

O
U

TL
A

Y
-B

O
O

K
S 

&
 P

ER
IO

D
IC

L 
14

6,
52

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
14

8,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
4%

73
,7

11
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

4.
7%

15
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
4.

7%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

23
5,

58
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
24

7,
90

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

1%
12

7,
98

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
25

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

7%
25

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

7%
 

L
IB

R
A

R
Y

 -T
O

T
A

L
S

1,
07

6,
52

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
11

5,
21

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
17

.3
00

24
.0

0
1.

6%
47

2,
07

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
21

8,
19

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
17

.4
90

26
.0

0
9.

2%
1,

21
8,

19
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
.4

90
26

.0
0

9.
2%

 
 

N
O

T
E

S:
 

 

1
EX

C
EP

TI
O

N
A

L 
M

A
N

A
G

ER
 P

A
ID

 L
ES

S 
TH

A
N

 M
A

R
K

ET
 

 

2
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TU

A
L 

C
H

A
N

G
ES

 T
O

 C
B

A
 A

G
R

EE
M

EN
T 

- 
R

EA
LL

IG
N

 T
O

 C
O

R
R

EC
T 

A
C

C
O

U
N

TS
 

 

3
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L 
H

O
U

R
S 

FO
R

 O
U

TR
EA

C
H

 C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
TO

R
 - 

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TU
A

L 
- M

O
V

ED
 F

R
O

M
 G

R
A

N
T 

TO
 B

U
D

G
ET

 
 

4
H

IS
TO

R
IC

A
L 

U
SA

G
E 

A
N

D
 IN

C
R

EA
SE

 IN
 C

O
ST

 - 
R

EV
EN

U
E 

EX
C

EE
D

 E
X

PE
N

SE
 

 
5

IN
C

R
EA

SE
 IN

 C
O

N
TR

A
C

TU
A

L 
C

O
ST

 
 

Pa
ge
 4
5

139



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
H

IS
T

O
R

IC
A

L
 C

O
M

M
IS

SI
O

N
-D

E
PT

 6
15

 
 

H
IS

TO
R

IC
A

L 
C

O
M

M
IS

SI
O

N
 S

A
LA

R
IE

S
 

 
01

61
50

1
51

11
18

   
  

PA
R

T 
TI

M
E 

W
A

G
ES

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
 

 
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

 
 

H
IS

T
O

R
IC

A
L

 C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S

 
 

01
61

50
2

53
00

07
   

  
A

D
V

ER
TI

SI
N

G
 &

 F
R

EI
G

H
T 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
61

50
2

54
20

00
   

  
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

 
 

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
S

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
30

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
30

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

 
 

H
IS

T
O

R
IC

A
L

 C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

 -T
O

T
A

L
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

80
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

80
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

0.
0%

80
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

0.
0%

 
 

N
O

T
E

S:
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Pa
ge
 4
6

140



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

R
E

C
R

E
A

T
IO

N
 A

N
D

 Y
O

U
T

H
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S-

D
E

PT
 6

30
 

 
R

E
C

R
E

A
T

IO
N

 S
A

L
A

R
IE

S
 

 
01

63
00

1
51

10
51

1
D

EP
A

R
TM

EN
T 

H
EA

D
 

77
,6

48
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

78
,8

97
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

1.
6%

31
,8

62
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
93

,8
97

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
19

.0
%

93
,8

97
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

19
.0

%
01

63
00

1
51

10
83

 
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 C

O
O

R
D

IN
A

TO
R

 I
60

,0
60

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
9,

24
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

61
,8

05
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

2.
9%

61
,8

05
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

2.
9%

01
63

00
1

51
10

96
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 C

O
O

R
D

IN
A

TO
R

 II
85

,2
84

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
86

,6
51

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
1.

6%
34

,9
93

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

88
,7

41
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

2.
4%

88
,7

41
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

2.
4%

01
63

00
1

51
11

01
2

EX
C

EP
TI

O
N

A
L 

C
H

IL
D

R
EN

S 
PR

O
G

 
8,

91
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

9,
36

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

33
0

3.
00

0.
0%

9,
26

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

,5
20

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0
0.

00
23

.0
%

11
,5

20
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0

0.
00

23
.0

%
01

63
00

1
51

11
02

   
  

W
ES

T 
SC

H
O

O
L 

A
TH

LE
TI

C
 

7,
25

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

80
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
27

0
1.

00
0.

0%
3,

25
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

6,
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

00
0

0.
00

0.
0%

6,
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

00
0

0.
00

0.
0%

01
63

00
1

51
11

06
3

C
O

U
N

SE
LO

R
50

,5
67

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
53

,6
64

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
68

0
1.

00
-3

2.
2%

21
,5

91
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
63

,8
67

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
69

0
1.

00
19

.0
%

63
,8

67
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

69
0

1.
00

19
.0

%
01

63
00

1
51

11
50

 
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 F

A
C

IL
IT

A
TO

R
 

49
,3

29
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-1
00

.0
%

15
,0

15
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
01

63
00

1
51

12
66

PR
O

G
R

A
M

 A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TO

R
 I

27
,8

98
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

28
,3

48
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
0

1.
00

1.
6%

11
,4

48
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
29

,0
24

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

0
1.

00
2.

4%
29

,0
24

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

0
1.

00
2.

4%
01

63
00

1
51

20
05

   
  

SU
M

M
ER

 P
LA

Y
G

R
O

U
N

D
 

9,
02

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8,

00
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
49

0
1.

00
0.

0%
9,

12
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

8,
00

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

00
0

0.
00

0.
0%

8,
00

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

00
0

0.
00

0.
0%

01
63

00
1

51
20

13
   

  
SU

M
M

ER
 R

EC
R

EA
TI

O
N

 
27

,5
08

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
22

,2
94

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
23

0
4.

00
0.

0%
23

,8
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

22
,2

94
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0

0.
00

0.
0%

22
,2

94
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0

0.
00

0.
0%

01
63

00
1

51
40

06
LO

N
G

EV
IT

Y
1,

62
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
62

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-4

4.
4%

1,
62

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-1
3.

8%
1,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-1
3.

8%
01

63
00

1
51

90
16

   
  

A
N

TI
C

IP
A

TE
D

 B
U

Y
O

U
T 

6,
84

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

35
1,

89
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

35
5,

70
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6.

50
0

14
.0

0
-3

.5
%

17
1,

21
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
38

7,
34

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
19

0
5.

00
8.

9%
38

7,
34

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
19

0
5.

00
8.

9%
R

E
C

R
E

A
T

IO
N

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S

 
 

01
63

00
2

52
40

01
   

  
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 R

EP
A

IR
S-

SE
R

V
IC

ES
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
55

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
63

00
2

52
40

08
   

  
EQ

U
IP

M
EN

T 
R

EP
A

IR
S 

SE
R

V
IC

ES
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
63

00
2

52
40

20
4

G
R

O
U

N
D

S 
M

A
IN

TE
N

A
N

C
E 

39
,1

86
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

35
,8

20
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
29

,7
70

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

47
,8

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
33

.6
%

47
,8

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
33

.6
%

01
63

00
2

53
00

00
   

  
C

O
N

TR
A

C
T 

SE
R

V
IC

ES
 

4,
16

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

95
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

3,
97

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

95
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

4,
95

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

63
00

2
53

00
07

   
  

A
D

V
ER

TI
SI

N
G

 &
 F

R
EI

G
H

T 
3,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

8,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
48

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

8,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
8,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
63

00
2

53
00

08
   

  
IN

SE
R

V
IC

E 
TR

A
IN

IN
G

 &
 E

D
U

C
A

TI
O

N
 

77
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
63

00
2

53
40

01
   

  
TE

LE
PH

O
N

E 
1,

00
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
2,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

2,
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

63
00

2
53

50
06

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 A
C

TI
V

IT
IE

S
7,

23
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
(4

69
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
4,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

63
00

2
53

50
08

   
  

A
C

TI
V

IT
IE

S/
R

EC
R

EA
TI

O
N

A
L 

PR
O

G
R

A
 

5,
27

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

2,
58

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

63
00

2
54

20
00

   
  

O
FF

IC
E 

SU
PP

LI
ES

 
2,

03
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-4

5.
5%

90
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

2,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

63
00

2
54

30
01

   
  

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
U

PP
LI

ES
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
70

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

36
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
70

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

70
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

63
00

2
54

30
04

 
G

R
O

U
N

D
S 

M
A

IN
TE

N
A

N
C

E-
SU

PP
LI

ES
9,

02
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

8,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
30

.8
%

8,
62

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
8,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

8,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

63
00

2
54

30
10

   
  

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

R
EP

A
IR

S-
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

47
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
63

00
2

55
80

06
   

  
C

LO
TH

IN
G

/U
N

IF
O

R
M

S 
1,

99
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
50

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
63

00
2

55
80

96
   

  
PL

A
Y

G
R

O
U

N
D

 S
U

PP
LI

ES
 

1,
69

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
63

00
2

57
10

00
   

  
TR

A
V

EL
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S 
38

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-3

0.
2%

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-3
3.

3%
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-3
3.

3%
01

63
00

2
57

30
00

   
  

D
U

ES
 &

 S
U

B
SC

R
IP

TI
O

N
S 

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

13
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

76
,8

86
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

79
,8

70
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-1
.9

%
47

,6
76

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
90

,9
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
13

.8
%

90
,9

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

13
.8

%
R

E
C

R
E

A
T

IO
N

 A
N

D
 Y

O
U

T
H

 -T
O

T
A

L
S

42
8,

78
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

43
5,

57
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6.

50
0

14
.0

0
-3

.2
%

21
8,

89
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
47

8,
24

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
19

0
5.

00
9.

8%
47

8,
24

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
19

0
5.

00
9.

8%
 

N
O

T
E

S:
 

 

1
 

 

2
 

 

3
IN

C
R

EA
SE

 IN
 H

O
U

R
S 

24
 T

O
 2

8 
D

U
E 

TO
 D

EM
A

N
D

 
 

4
 

 

 
 

IN
C

R
EA

SE
 D

U
E 

TO
 M

A
R

K
ET

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
S

M
A

R
K

ET
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S 
PL

U
S 

EX
PA

N
D

ED
 W

O
R

K
 W

EE
K

 

IN
C

R
EA

SE
 IN

 L
EV

EL
 O

F 
C

A
R

E,
 F

ER
TI

LI
ZA

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

 IR
R

IG
A

TI
O

N

Pa
ge
 4
7

141



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

PA
R

K
S-

D
E

PT
 6

50
 

 
PA

R
K

S 
SA

L
A

R
IE

S
 

 
01

65
00

1
51

10
51

   
  

D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
H

EA
D

 
13

,9
90

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
14

,2
15

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
10

0
1.

00
1.

5%
5,

74
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

14
,6

27
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

10
0

1.
00

2.
9%

14
,6

27
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

10
0

1.
00

2.
9%

01
65

00
1

51
10

57
1

FO
R

EM
A

N
 

64
,1

04
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

64
,5

60
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

80
0

1.
00

7.
8%

33
,9

47
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
75

,1
68

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
16

.4
%

75
,1

68
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

16
.4

%

01
65

00
1

51
10

75
1

M
O

TO
R

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T 
O

PE
R

/C
R

A
FT

SM
A

N
 (T

R
U

C
K

 
D

R
IV

ER
)

14
3,

31
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

15
0,

64
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
2.

40
0

3.
00

3.
5%

59
,8

34
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
18

4,
86

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

3.
00

0
3.

00
22

.7
%

18
4,

86
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

00
0

3.
00

22
.7

%
01

65
00

1
51

10
80

1
LA

B
O

R
ER

 
41

,1
49

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
50

,7
24

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
80

0
1.

00
7.

8%
20

,4
83

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

64
,9

22
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

28
.0

%
64

,9
22

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
28

.0
%

01
65

00
1

51
10

86
   

  
SE

N
IO

R
 C

LE
R

K
 II

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

01
65

00
1

51
12

66
2

PR
O

G
R

A
M

 A
D

M
IN

 I
7,

88
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
10

0
1.

00
 

7,
88

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

10
0

1.
00

 
01

65
00

1
51

30
00

   
  

O
V

ER
TI

M
E 

19
,4

31
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

27
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
7,

36
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

27
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
27

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
65

00
1

51
40

06
   

  
LO

N
G

EV
IT

Y
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

65
00

1
51

90
16

A
N

TI
C

IP
A

TE
D

 B
U

Y
O

U
T

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

65
00

1
51

40
08

   
  

O
U

T 
O

F 
G

R
A

D
E 

W
A

G
ES

 
1,

04
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
39

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
28

3,
02

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
30

8,
14

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
10

0
6.

00
3.

1%
12

7,
76

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

37
5,

46
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5.

20
0

7.
00

21
.8

%
37

5,
46

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
20

0
7.

00
21

.8
%

 
PA

R
K

S 
E

X
PE

N
SE

S
01

65
00

2
52

40
03

   
  

V
EH

IC
LE

 M
A

IN
T 

A
N

D
 O

PE
R

-S
ER

V
IC

E 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

01
65

00
2

52
40

08
   

  
EQ

U
IP

M
EN

T 
R

EP
A

IR
S 

SE
R

V
IC

ES
 

2,
85

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
65

00
2

52
70

02
3

C
O

N
TR

A
C

T 
SE

R
V

IC
ES

52
,6

92
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

43
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
6,

91
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

65
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
51

.2
%

65
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
51

.2
%

01
65

00
2

53
00

07
   

  
A

D
V

ER
TI

SI
N

G
 &

 F
R

EI
G

H
T 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
65

00
2

53
00

08
   

  
IN

SE
R

V
IC

E 
TR

A
IN

IN
G

 &
 E

D
U

C
A

TI
O

N
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
30

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
30

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
65

00
2

53
00

36
M

ED
IC

A
L 

A
N

D
 F

IR
ST

 A
ID

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

65
00

2
53

80
10

   
  

PO
LI

C
E 

D
ET

A
IL

S 
5,

86
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-4

5.
5%

1,
41

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

65
00

2
53

80
40

   
  

SA
FE

TY
 S

ER
V

IC
ES

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
65

00
2

54
X

X
X

X
 

D
O

W
N

TO
W

N
 B

EA
U

TI
FI

C
A

TI
O

N
 (T

O
W

N
 W

ID
E 

C
LE

A
N

 
U

PS
)

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
25

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
65

00
2

54
30

10
   

  
EQ

U
IP

M
EN

T 
R

EP
A

IR
S-

SU
PP

LI
ES

 
9,

51
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
75

.0
%

4,
22

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-4
2.

9%
4,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-4
2.

9%
01

65
00

2
54

30
15

   
  

SM
A

LL
 T

O
O

LS
 

(1
26

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
45

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

45
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
45

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

01
65

00
2

54
60

01
   

  
LO

A
M

 &
 G

R
A

SS
 S

EE
D

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
4,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

4,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

65
00

2
54

60
02

   
  

PE
ST

IC
ID

ES
 &

 H
ER

B
IC

ID
ES

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

65
00

2
54

60
03

4
TR

EE
 W

O
R

K
 S

U
PP

LI
ES

 
1,

30
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-3

3.
3%

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

.0
%

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

.0
%

01
65

00
2

54
80

06
   

  
V

EH
IC

LE
 M

A
IT

 A
N

D
 O

PE
R

-S
U

PP
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
01

65
00

2
55

30
04

   
  

SA
FE

TY
 S

U
PP

LI
ES

 
97

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

65
00

2
58

50
00

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

65
00

2
56

50
53

   
  

V
A

R
IO

U
S 

LI
C

EN
SE

S 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

73
,0

69
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

94
,6

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

33
.0

%
12

,5
51

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

4,
65

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

31
.7

%
12

4,
65

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

31
.7

%
 

 
PA

R
K

S 
-T

O
T

A
L

S
35

6,
09

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

2,
79

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
10

0
6.

00
8.

9%
14

0,
31

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
0,

11
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5.

20
0

7.
00

24
.2

%
50

0,
11

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
20

0
7.

00
24

.2
%

 
N

O
T

E
S:

 

1
 

 

2
 

 

3
R

EN
TA

LS
 T

O
 R

EP
LA

C
E 

A
U

C
TI

O
N

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T
 

 

4
R

EP
LA

C
EM

EN
T 

O
F 

SM
A

LL
 E

Q
U

IP
M

EN
T

N
O

 L
O

N
G

ER
 P

R
O

PO
R

TI
O

N
A

LL
Y

 A
LL

O
C

A
TE

D
 T

O
 S

A
N

IT
A

TI
O

N

R
EA

LL
O

C
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
EM

PL
O

Y
EE

 T
O

 R
EF

LE
C

T 
A

C
TU

A
L 

TI
M

E 
SP

EN
T 

IN
 T

H
E 

D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T

Pa
ge
 4
8

142



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

  
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 E

V
E

N
T

S-
D

E
PT

 6
95

 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 E

V
E

N
T

S 
SA

L
A

R
IE

S
 

01
69

50
2

51
X

X
X

X
**

30
0T

H
 A

N
N

IV
ER

SA
R

Y
 C

EL
EB

R
A

TI
O

N
 (W

A
G

ES
)

 
 

  
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 E

V
E

N
T

S 
E

X
PE

N
SE

S
 

01
69

50
2

54
X

X
X

X
X

**
30

0T
H

 A
N

N
IV

ER
SA

R
Y

 C
EL

EB
R

A
TI

O
N

 
 

01
69

50
2

53
50

20
   

  
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 E

V
EN

TS
- G

EN
ER

A
L 

1,
22

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

53
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

2,
30

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3,

53
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

3,
53

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
01

69
50

2
53

01
10

D
O

W
N

TO
W

N
 B

EU
TI

FI
C

A
TI

O
N

4,
34

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-3
.6

%
8,

09
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

8,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
8,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

01
69

50
2

53
50

21
   

  
EV

EN
TS

 4
TH

 O
F 

JU
LY

 - 
PA

R
A

D
E 

35
,6

66
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

38
,2

60
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
37

,9
60

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

38
,2

60
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
38

,2
60

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
69

50
2

53
50

24
   

  
EV

EN
TS

 H
O

LI
D

A
Y

 P
A

R
A

D
E 

6,
66

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

4,
97

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

69
50

2
53

50
27

1
ST

O
U

G
H

TO
N

 D
A

Y
 E

V
EN

TS
 

10
,0

80
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
9,

91
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

.0
%

12
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

.0
%

01
69

50
2

53
50

28
   

  
EA

ST
ER

 E
G

G
 H

U
N

T 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
69

50
2

3
M

LK
 A

N
D

 JU
N

ET
EE

N
TH

 C
EL

EB
R

A
TI

O
N

S
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
01

69
50

2
53

50
29

   
  

M
EM

 D
A

Y
/V

ET
S 

D
A

Y
 P

A
R

A
D

E 
1,

92
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
70

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
3,

70
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

3,
70

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

69
50

2
53

80
10

2
PO

LI
C

E 
D

ET
A

IL
S 

21
,0

80
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

21
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
40

.0
%

12
,3

81
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
23

,1
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
.0

%
23

,1
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
.0

%
 

 
 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 E
V

E
N

T
S 

-T
O

T
A

L
S

80
,9

77
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

91
,4

90
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
00

0
0.

00
6.

6%
75

,6
30

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

0,
59

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0
0.

00
9.

9%
10

0,
59

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0
0.

00
9.

9%
 

 
N

O
T

E
S:

 
 

1
IN

C
R

EA
SE

 D
U

E 
TO

 O
N

SI
TE

 V
EN

D
O

R
S 

FR
O

M
 2

 T
O

 4
 

H
O

U
R

S
 

 

2
IN

C
R

EA
SE

 D
U

E 
TO

 N
EW

 R
A

TE
 S

TR
U

C
TU

R
E 

A
N

D
 

LO
N

G
ER

 E
V

EN
TS

3
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L 
C

EL
EB

R
A

TI
O

N
S

 
 

Pa
ge
 4
9

143



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 
 

 
R

E
T

IR
E

M
E

N
T

 O
F 

D
E

B
T

-D
E

PT
 7

10
 

 
D

E
B

T
 A

M
O

R
T

IZ
A

T
IO

N
 &

 E
X

PE
N

SE
 

 
01

71
00

2
53

00
50

   
  

B
O

R
R

O
W

IN
G

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S 

26
,2

97
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

40
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
6,

90
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

40
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
40

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

01
71

00
2

59
10

00
   

  
TO

W
N

 D
EB

T 
PR

IN
C

IP
A

L 
1,

53
6,

55
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

56
3,

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1.
7%

1,
77

6,
42

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
13

.6
%

1,
77

6,
42

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
13

.6
%

01
71

00
2

59
10

02
   

  
SC

H
O

O
L 

D
EB

T 
PR

IN
C

IP
A

L 
79

0,
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
94

7,
39

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

19
.8

%
76

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
9.

6%
76

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
9.

6%
01

71
00

2
59

10
20

TO
W

N
 D

EB
T 

PR
IN

C
IP

A
L 

(E
X

C
LU

D
ED

)
24

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
24

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

34
7,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
44

.8
%

34
7,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
44

.8
%

01
71

00
2

59
10

22
   

  
SC

H
O

O
L 

LT
 P

R
IN

C
 (E

X
C

LU
D

ED
) 

2,
55

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
68

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
5.

1%
2,

81
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

5.
0%

2,
81

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
5.

0%
01

71
00

2
59

15
01

   
  

TO
W

N
 D

EB
T 

IN
TE

R
ES

T 
67

6,
82

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
66

4,
13

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-2
.9

%
92

6,
67

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

39
.5

%
92

6,
67

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

39
.5

%
01

71
00

2
59

15
02

   
  

SC
H

O
O

L 
D

EB
T 

IN
TE

R
ES

T 
23

1,
82

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
23

6,
10

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
8%

18
2,

60
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-2

2.
7%

18
2,

60
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-2

2.
7%

01
71

00
2

59
15

21
TO

W
N

 L
T 

IN
T 

(E
X

C
LU

D
ED

)
43

3,
23

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
43

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-0
.2

%
52

7,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

22
.0

%
52

7,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

22
.0

%
01

71
00

2
59

15
22

   
  

SC
H

O
O

L 
LT

 IN
T 

(E
X

C
LU

D
ED

) 
2,

07
0,

90
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

94
0,

15
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-6
.3

%
1,

80
2,

77
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-7
.1

%
1,

80
2,

77
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-7
.1

%
01

71
00

2
59

25
00

   
  

TO
W

N
 S

H
O

R
T-

TE
R

M
 IN

TE
R

ES
T 

21
,2

93
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
9,

69
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
36

1.
9%

15
9,

69
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
15

9,
69

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

01
71

00
2

59
25

02
   

  
SC

H
O

O
L 

SH
O

R
T-

TE
R

M
 IN

TE
R

ES
T 

13
,8

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

42
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
23

.3
%

42
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
42

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

 
 

D
E

B
T

 A
M

O
R

T
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 &
 E

X
PE

N
SE

8,
59

1,
40

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

8,
94

5,
22

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
3.

5%
6,

90
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

9,
38

2,
17

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
4.

9%
9,

38
2,

17
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4.
9%

 
 

N
O

T
E

S:
 

 
  

 
  

  
 

 

Pa
ge
 5
0

144



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 
 

H
E

A
L

T
H

 IN
SU

R
A

N
C

E
-D

E
PT

 9
09

 
 

H
E

A
L

T
H

 IN
SU

R
A

N
C

E
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S
 

 
01

90
90

1
51

70
03

 
G

R
O

U
P 

H
EA

LT
H

 IN
SU

R
A

N
C

E 
9,

67
7,

75
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

,2
50

,4
89

$ 
   

   
   

   
25

.9
%

4,
22

5,
97

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
12

,2
50

,4
89

$ 
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
12

,2
50

,4
89

$ 
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
01

90
90

1
51

70
06

   
  

G
R

O
U

P 
LI

FE
 IN

SU
R

A
N

C
E 

6,
56

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

2,
64

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

11
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
01

90
90

1
59

60
25

TR
A

N
SF

ER
 T

O
 O

PE
B

 T
R

U
ST

35
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
90

90
1

59
60

25
C

O
N

SU
LT

A
N

T
65

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

01
90

90
1

57
80

26
G

R
A

N
T 

A
LL

O
C

A
TI

O
N

(8
,5

21
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

90
90

1
51

70
07

   
  

M
ED

IC
A

R
E/

FI
C

A
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S 
96

6,
72

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

04
0,

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

3.
0%

35
2,

40
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

06
6,

30
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

2.
5%

1,
06

6,
30

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
2.

5%
H

E
A

L
T

H
 IN

SU
R

A
N

C
E

 E
X

PE
N

SE
 T

O
T

A
L

S
10

,6
78

,1
65

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
13

,3
01

,7
89

$ 
   

   
   

  
23

.3
%

4,
58

1,
02

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
13

,3
27

,7
97

$ 
   

   
   

  
0.

2%
13

,3
27

,7
97

$ 
   

   
   

  
0.

2%
 

 
N

O
T

E
S:

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

  
 

 

Pa
ge
 5
1

145



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 
T

O
W

N
W

ID
E

 IN
SU

R
A

N
C

E
-D

E
PT

 9
10

T
O

W
N

 W
ID

E
 E

X
P 

A
N

D
 IN

S
 

01
91

00
2

51
70

18
   

  
PO

LI
C

E 
A

N
D

 F
IR

E 
M

ED
IC

A
L 

IN
S 

16
4,

61
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

18
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

.0
%

15
0,

31
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

3,
28

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
.0

%
20

3,
28

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
.0

%
01

91
00

2
53

80
05

   
  

PR
E-

EM
PL

O
Y

M
EN

T 
SC

R
EE

N
IN

G
S 

8,
85

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
33

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
.0

%
12

,3
10

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

36
,9

60
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

.0
%

36
,9

60
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

.0
%

01
91

00
2

57
40

01
   

  
IN

S-
B

O
N

D
S 

3,
01

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
.0

%
52

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

6,
16

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

.0
%

6,
16

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

.0
%

01
91

00
2

57
40

02
   

  
IN

S-
U

N
IN

SU
R

ED
 C

LA
IM

S 
(3

,0
73

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

55
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

.0
%

1,
96

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
61

,6
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
.0

%
61

,6
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
.0

%
01

91
00

2
57

40
10

   
  

IN
S-

C
O

M
P:

 F
IR

E,
 T

H
EF

T,
 L

IA
B

 
97

0,
57

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

15
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

1,
14

2,
50

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

27
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

10
.4

%
1,

27
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

10
.4

%
01

91
00

2
57

40
17

   
  

W
O

R
K

M
EN

'S
 C

O
M

PE
N

SA
TI

O
N

 
64

1,
33

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
58

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

58
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
58

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

01
91

00
2

57
40

23
PO

LI
C

E 
IN

SU
R

A
N

C
E

(3
59

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

25
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

01
91

00
2

57
40

25
   

  
B

O
IL

ER
 IN

SU
R

A
N

C
E 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
01

91
00

2
57

40
27

M
IS

C
 E

X
P 

R
ET

IR
ED

 P
O

L
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

T
O

W
N

 W
ID

E
 E

X
P 

A
N

D
 IN

S 
-T

O
T

A
L

1,
78

4,
95

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
01

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0

0.
00

1.
3%

1,
30

8,
87

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
2,

16
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0
0.

00
7.

6%
2,

16
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0
0.

00
7.

6%
 

 
N

O
T

E
S:

Pa
ge
 5
2

146



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

R
E

T
IR

E
M

E
N

T
 C

O
N

T
R

IB
U

T
IO

N
-D

E
PT

 9
11

T
O

W
N

 W
ID

E
 R

E
T

IR
E

M
E

N
T

 &
 C

O
N

T
R

IB
01

91
10

1
51

70
04

   
  

C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TO
R

Y
 P

EN
SI

O
N

 S
Y

ST
 

7,
19

2,
28

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

7,
95

7,
33

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
10

.6
%

7,
95

7,
33

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
8,

05
5,

36
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

12
.0

%
8,

05
5,

36
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

12
.0

%
01

91
10

1
57

80
26

G
R

A
N

T 
A

LL
O

C
A

TI
O

N
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
T

O
W

N
 W

ID
E

 R
E

T
IR

E
M

E
N

T
 &

 C
O

N
T

R
IB

7,
19

2,
28

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

7,
95

7,
33

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0

0.
00

10
.6

%
7,

95
7,

33
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

8,
05

5,
36

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0

0.
00

12
.0

%
8,

05
5,

36
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0
0.

00
12

.0
%

N
O

T
E

S:

Pa
ge
 5
3

147



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 
U

N
E

M
PL

O
Y

M
E

N
T

 C
O

M
PE

N
SA

T
IO

N
-D

E
PT

 9
13

U
N

E
M

PL
O

Y
M

E
N

T
 C

O
M

PE
N

SA
T

IO
N

01
91

30
1

51
70

05
   

  
O

TH
ER

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S 

33
,3

71
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-5

4.
5%

24
,2

26
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
0.

0%
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
0.

0%
01

91
30

1
57

80
17

   
  

FI
N

A
N

C
E 

C
H

A
R

G
ES

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

U
N

E
M

PL
O

Y
M

E
N

T
 C

O
M

PE
N

S-
T

O
T

A
L

S
33

,3
71

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
25

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-5

4.
5%

24
,2

26
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
0.

0%
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

0.
0%

N
O

T
E

S:

Pa
ge
 5
4

148



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 
O

T
H

E
R

 F
IN

A
N

C
IN

G
 U

SE
S-

D
E

PT
 9

40
01

94
00

2
59

60
02

   
  

TR
A

N
SF

ER
 T

O
 S

PE
C

IA
L 

R
EV

 
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
01

94
00

2
59

60
03

   
  

TR
A

N
SF

ER
 T

O
 C

A
PI

TA
L 

PR
O

JE
C

TS
 

3,
42

3,
80

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

01
94

00
2

59
60

09
2

TR
A

N
SF

ER
 T

O
 T

R
U

ST
 F

U
N

D
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

01
94

00
2

59
60

12
   

  
SU

B
SI

D
Y

: C
ED

A
R

 H
IL

L 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

01
94

00
2

59
60

19
1

SU
B

SI
D

Y
: P

U
B

LI
C

 H
EA

LT
H

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
01

94
00

2
59

60
13

1
SU

B
SI

D
Y

: S
EW

ER
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

85
8,

57
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

O
T

H
E

R
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

 U
SE

S-
T

O
T

A
L

S
3,

47
3,

80
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
85

8,
57

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

N
O

T
E

S:

1
En

te
rp

ris
e 

su
bs

id
ie

s a
re

 to
 c

ov
er

 e
st

im
at

ed
 re

ve
nu

e 
sh

or
tfa

lls
.

2
FY

20
24

 T
ra

ns
fe

r $
20

0,
00

0 
fr

om
 A

rti
cl

e 
64

 A
TM

 o
f M

ay
 2

02
3 

fo
r O

PI
O

ID
 S

ta
bi

liz
at

io
n 

ac
co

un
t

Pa
ge
 5
5

149



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

SE
W

E
R

 E
N

T
E

R
PR

IS
E

 F
U

N
D

-D
E

PT
 4

40
SA

L
A

R
IE

S
 

 
60

44
00

1
51

10
51

   
  

D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
H

EA
D

 
69

,5
12

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
74

,9
70

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

0
1.

00
12

.3
%

1,
44

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
77

,1
42

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

0
1.

00
2.

9%
77

,1
42

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

0
1.

00
2.

9%
60

44
00

1
51

10
51

SU
PE

R
IN

TE
N

D
EN

T
28

,8
36

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

60
44

00
1

51
10

52
10

A
SS

IS
TA

N
T 

SU
PE

R
IN

TE
N

D
EN

T 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

25
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

30
0

1.
00

 
25

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
30

0
1.

00
 

60
44

00
1

51
10

48
1

D
PW

  S
U

PT
.

10
,4

92
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
,6

62
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

07
5

1.
00

1.
5%

4,
30

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

,7
02

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
08

0
1.

00
9.

8%
11

,7
02

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
08

0
1.

00
9.

8%
60

44
00

1
51

10
58

D
PW

 A
SS

T.
 S

U
PE

R
IN

TE
N

D
EN

T
5,

62
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
71

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

05
0

1.
00

1.
6%

2,
30

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

87
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
05

0
1.

00
2.

9%
5,

87
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
05

0
1.

00
2.

9%
60

44
00

1
51

10
66

D
PW

 A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

 S
U

PE
R

IN
TE

N
D

EN
T

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
60

44
00

1
51

10
57

8
FO

R
EM

A
N

 
89

,8
88

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
91

,3
28

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
7.

8%
36

,8
84

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
9,

06
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

50
0

2.
00

41
.3

%
12

9,
06

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
50

0
2.

00
41

.3
%

60
44

00
1

51
10

70
9

H
EA

V
Y

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T 
O

PE
R

/M
EC

H
A

N
IC

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
31

,8
42

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

0
1.

00
 

31
,8

42
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
0

1.
00

 
60

44
00

1
51

10
72

1 
/ 8

H
EA

D
 P

U
M

PI
N

G
 S

TA
TI

O
N

 O
PE

R
A

TO
R

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

 
60

44
00

1
51

10
73

9
PU

M
PI

N
G

 S
TA

TI
O

N
 O

PE
R

A
TO

R
 II

 
97

,9
63

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
12

2,
71

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

2.
00

0
4.

00
29

.3
%

40
,6

41
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
92

,6
24

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
50

0
3.

00
-2

4.
5%

92
,6

24
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

50
0

3.
00

-2
4.

5%
60

44
00

1
51

10
75

   
  

M
O

TO
R

 E
Q

U
IP

 O
PE

R
A

TO
R

/C
R

A
FT

SM
A

N
 

75
,4

09
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

14
6,

94
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
2.

00
0

2.
00

11
2.

5%
45

,0
87

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

14
5,

84
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
2.

00
0

2.
00

-0
.7

%
14

5,
84

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

2.
00

0
2.

00
-0

.7
%

60
44

00
1

51
10

86
   

  
SE

N
IO

R
 C

LE
R

K
 II

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

60
44

00
1

51
10

89
C

H
IE

F 
PU

M
P 

ST
A

TI
O

N
 M

EC
H

A
N

IC
60

,7
18

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
61

,5
02

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
70

0
1.

00
1.

9%
24

,8
37

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

62
,9

81
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

70
0

1.
00

2.
4%

62
,9

81
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

70
0

1.
00

2.
4%

60
44

00
1

51
10

96
   

  
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 C

O
O

R
D

IN
A

TO
R

 II
 

35
,4

96
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

45
,0

84
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
0

1.
00

30
.7

%
18

,2
07

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

46
,3

85
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
0

1.
00

2.
9%

46
,3

85
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
0

1.
00

2.
9%

60
44

00
1

51
11

25
   

  
A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
 

7,
53

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
60

44
00

1
51

11
30

 
C

ER
TI

FI
ED

 M
EC

H
A

N
IC

 
57

,0
17

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
9,

39
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
12

5
1.

00
-8

3.
0%

10
,4

21
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
9,

61
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
13

0
1.

00
2.

4%
9,

61
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
13

0
1.

00
2.

4%
60

44
00

1
51

11
32

 
PR

O
JE

C
T 

EN
G

IN
EE

R
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
42

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

0
1.

00
12

8.
9%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

43
,3

46
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
0

1.
00

2.
0%

43
,3

46
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
0

1.
00

2.
0%

60
44

00
1

51
11

39
   

  
PU

M
P 

ST
A

TI
O

N
 O

PE
R

A
TO

R
 I 

15
3,

90
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

86
,4

04
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

50
0

3.
00

-4
2.

0%
32

,9
93

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

57
,9

84
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

2.
00

-3
2.

9%
57

,9
84

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
2.

00
-3

2.
9%

60
44

00
1

51
11

95
   

  
G

IS
 C

O
O

R
D

IN
A

TO
R

 
8,

80
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

8,
94

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

10
0

1.
00

1.
6%

3,
61

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
9,

38
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
10

0
1.

00
4.

9%
9,

38
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
10

0
1.

00
4.

9%
60

44
00

1
51

11
51

IN
TE

R
IM

 D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
H

EA
D

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
60

44
00

1
51

12
66

   
  

PR
O

G
R

A
M

 A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TO

R
 I 

10
0,

89
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

96
,6

28
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

30
0

4.
00

-1
1.

0%
36

,5
35

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

77
,4

86
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

2.
00

-1
9.

8%
77

,4
86

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
2.

00
-1

9.
8%

60
44

00
1

51
13

66
   

  
C

H
IE

F 
PU

M
PI

N
G

 O
PE

R
A

TO
R

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

60
44

00
1

51
30

00
   

  
O

V
ER

TI
M

E 
20

,8
92

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
30

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

9,
88

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
30

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

30
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
60

44
00

1
51

40
06

   
  

LO
N

G
EV

IT
Y

 
1,

83
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
05

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-7

3.
6%

1,
35

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

98
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-3
.6

%
1,

98
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-3
.6

%
60

44
00

1
51

40
08

   
  

O
U

T 
O

F 
G

R
A

D
E 

W
A

G
ES

 
4,

26
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

00
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

60
44

00
1

51
95

15
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L 
D

U
TI

ES
 

33
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

60
44

00
1

51
90

16
   

  
A

N
TI

C
IP

A
TE

D
 B

U
Y

O
U

T 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

14
,9

78
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

80
0,

58
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

83
9,

84
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

.3
50

22
.0

0
2.

6%
31

3,
43

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

86
4,

16
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

.3
60

21
.0

0
2.

9%
86

4,
16

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
.3

60
21

.0
0

2.
9%

 
SE

W
E

R
 E

N
T

E
R

PR
IS

E
 C

A
PI

T
A

L
 O

U
T

L
A

Y
 

 
60

44
00

2
58

80
25

   
  

SE
W

ER
 C

A
PI

TA
L 

IM
PR

O
V

EM
EN

TS
 

(2
0,

60
2)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
51

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

12
,6

85
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-2
.0

%
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-2
.0

%
SE

W
E

R
 E

N
T

E
R

PR
IS

E
 C

A
PI

T
A

L
 O

U
T

L
A

Y
(2

0,
60

2)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

51
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

12
,6

85
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-2
.0

%
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-2

.0
%

 
SE

W
E

R
 E

N
T

E
R

PR
IS

E
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S
 

 
60

44
00

2
52

10
01

   
  

EL
EC

TR
IC

IT
Y

 
75

,5
48

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
94

,6
41

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

24
,7

10
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
95

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
4%

95
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

4%
60

44
00

2
52

10
02

   
  

G
A

S 
11

,9
14

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
28

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

40
.0

%
3,

88
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

25
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-1

0.
7%

25
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-1

0.
7%

60
44

00
2

52
30

02
   

  
SE

W
ER

 
12

9,
72

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

42
,5

13
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
16

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

3.
2%

16
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

2%
60

44
00

2
52

30
03

   
  

M
A

SS
 W

A
TE

R
 R

ES
O

U
R

C
E 

A
U

TH
O

R
IT

Y
 

5,
47

1,
76

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
80

7,
97

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
5.

2%
15

,1
26

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
95

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
2.

4%
5,

95
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

2.
4%

60
44

00
2

52
40

01
   

  
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 R

EP
A

IR
S-

SE
R

V
IC

ES
 

16
,2

65
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
10

,9
45

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

60
44

00
2

52
40

03
   

  
V

EH
 M

A
IN

T 
A

N
D

 O
PE

R
-S

ER
V

IC
E 

20
,1

96
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
92

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

60
44

00
2

52
40

05
   

  
SC

A
D

A
 R

EP
A

IR
 &

 M
A

IN
TE

N
A

N
C

E 
32

,5
10

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

33
.3

%
10

,3
67

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

60
44

00
2

52
40

08
   

  
EQ

U
IP

M
EN

T 
R

EP
A

IR
S-

SE
R

V
IC

ES
 

8,
12

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

14
,2

18
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

30
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
60

44
00

2
52

40
11

   
  

EL
EC

TR
IC

A
L 

SV
C

 / 
SU

PP
 

3,
28

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

85
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
60

44
00

2
52

40
12

   
  

G
EN

ER
A

TO
R

 M
A

IN
TE

N
A

N
C

E 
4,

20
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

0.
0%

3,
85

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
60

44
00

2
52

70
02

   
  

M
A

C
H

IN
ER

Y
/T

R
U

C
K

 R
EN

TA
L 

1,
35

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
0.

0%
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%

Pa
ge
 5
6

150



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

60
44

00
2

53
00

00
   

  
C

O
N

SU
LT

A
N

T 
FE

ES
 

6,
84

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

60
44

00
2

53
00

07
   

  
A

D
V

ER
TI

SI
N

G
 &

 F
R

EI
G

H
T 

47
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

45
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
60

44
00

2
53

00
12

   
  

D
A

TA
 P

R
O

C
ES

S 
A

N
D

 M
A

IT
-S

ER
V

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

60
44

00
2

53
00

18
   

  
C

D
L 

D
R

U
G

/A
LC

O
H

O
L 

TE
ST

IN
G

 
46

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
35

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

60
44

00
2

53
00

36
M

ED
IC

A
L 

A
N

D
 F

IR
ST

 A
ID

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
60

44
00

2
53

00
55

   
  

D
O

T 
PH

Y
SI

C
A

LS
/M

ED
IC

A
L 

EX
A

M
S 

33
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

33
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
60

44
00

2
53

40
01

   
  

TE
LE

PH
O

N
E 

9,
39

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

4,
06

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-2
6.

7%
11

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-2
6.

7%
60

44
00

2
53

40
02

   
  

PO
ST

A
G

E 
4,

49
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
5,

87
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

7,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
7,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

60
44

00
2

53
40

03
FR

EI
G

H
T 

&
 E

X
PR

ES
S

45
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
60

44
00

2
53

80
10

   
  

PO
LI

C
E 

D
ET

A
IL

S 
22

,1
77

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

5,
95

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

15
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
60

44
00

2
53

80
50

   
  

SA
FE

TY
 S

ER
V

IC
ES

 
1,

63
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

60
44

00
2

54
20

00
   

  
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

81
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

55
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
60

44
00

2
54

20
01

   
  

PR
IN

TI
N

G
 &

 S
TA

TI
O

N
ER

Y
 

7,
10

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
42

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
60

44
00

2
54

30
01

   
  

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 R
EP

A
IR

S-
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

10
,3

37
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
2,

43
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
12

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

60
44

00
2

54
30

10
2

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

R
EP

A
IR

S-
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

15
,0

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
53

,4
21

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

.0
%

30
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

.0
%

60
44

00
2

54
30

15
3

SM
A

LL
 T

O
O

LS
 

54
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
39

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0.

0%
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0.

0%
60

44
00

2
54

60
01

   
  

LO
A

M
 &

 G
R

A
SS

 S
EE

D
 

(2
0)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

60
44

00
2

54
80

01
   

  
G

A
SO

LI
N

E,
 O

IL
 &

 G
R

EA
SE

 
45

,2
51

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
48

,5
70

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
45

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-7
.4

%
45

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-7
.4

%
60

44
00

2
54

80
06

   
  

V
EH

IC
LE

 M
A

IT
 A

N
D

 O
PE

R
-S

U
P 

21
,7

44
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-2

0.
0%

3,
19

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
60

44
00

2
54

90
00

   
  

M
EA

L 
A

LL
O

W
A

N
C

E 
- C

O
N

TR
A

C
TU

A
L 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

60
44

00
2

55
30

01
   

  
C

H
EM

IC
A

LS
 

5,
20

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
12

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
8,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

8,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
60

44
00

2
55

30
02

   
  

M
A

N
H

O
LE

S,
C

A
TC

H
B

A
SI

N
S 

&
 C

U
R

B
S 

8,
21

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-4
0.

0%
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
60

44
00

2
55

30
03

4
PA

V
IN

G
 M

A
TE

R
IA

LS
 

2,
07

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-2
0.

0%
13

,7
36

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

15
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

.0
%

15
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

.0
%

60
44

00
2

55
30

04
   

  
SA

FE
TY

 S
U

PP
LI

ES
 

1,
68

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

42
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

66
.7

%
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

66
.7

%
60

44
00

2
55

30
05

   
  

PI
PE

 &
 F

IT
TI

N
G

S 
59

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

96
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-4

0.
0%

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-4

0.
0%

60
44

00
2

55
80

06
5

C
LO

TH
IN

G
/U

N
IF

O
R

M
S 

11
,4

56
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

13
,5

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
9,

77
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

17
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

.5
%

17
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

.5
%

60
44

00
2

56
50

53
6

V
A

R
IO

U
S 

LI
C

EN
SE

S 
15

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
25

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

0.
0%

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

0.
0%

60
44

00
2

57
30

00
   

  
D

U
ES

 &
 S

U
B

SC
R

IP
TI

O
N

S 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

60
44

00
2

57
80

00
O

TH
ER

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

60
44

00
2

57
80

12
6

C
ER

TI
FI

C
A

TI
O

N
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
40

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
60

44
00

2
57

80
17

   
  

FI
N

A
N

C
E 

C
H

A
R

G
ES

 
(1

00
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

60
44

00
2

58
80

21
7

SE
W

ER
 M

A
IN

 E
X

TE
N

SI
O

N
S 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

60
44

00
2

58
80

22
7

SE
W

ER
 S

TU
B

. E
X

TE
N

SI
O

N
S 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

60
44

00
2

58
80

23
7

SE
W

ER
 S

Y
ST

EM
 R

EH
A

B
 

7,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-2
0.

0%
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
.0

%
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
.0

%
60

44
00

2
58

80
50

   
  

EA
SE

M
EN

TS
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
SE

W
E

R
 E

N
T

E
R

PR
IS

E
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S
5,

95
9,

19
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
6,

40
7,

83
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0
0.

00
4.

8%
23

4,
82

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
56

1,
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0

0.
00

2.
4%

6,
56

1,
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0

0.
00

2.
4%

 
SE

W
E

R
 IN

D
IR

E
C

T
 C

O
ST

S 
&

 X
FE

R
 

 
60

44
00

2
55

30
06

   
  

IN
D

IR
EC

T 
C

O
ST

S 
49

6,
98

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
52

5,
54

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

5.
7%

53
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

8%
53

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
8%

SE
W

E
R

 IN
D

IR
E

C
T

 C
O

ST
S 

&
 

49
6,

98
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

52
5,

54
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5.

7%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
53

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
8%

53
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

8%
 

Pa
ge
 5
7

151



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

R
E

T
IR

E
M

E
N

T
 O

F 
D

E
B

T
 

 
71

0S
D

   
SE

W
E

R
 E

N
T

E
R

PR
IS

E
 D

E
B

T
 S

V
C

 
 

60
71

00
2

59
10

00
   

  
PR

IN
C

IP
A

L 
LT

 D
EB

T 
31

5,
69

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
47

4,
38

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

50
.3

%
56

2,
79

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

18
.6

%
56

2,
79

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

18
.6

%
60

71
00

2
59

15
00

   
  

IN
TE

R
ES

T 
LT

 D
EB

T 
79

,6
01

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
27

2,
77

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

24
2.

7%
17

6,
49

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-3
5.

3%
17

6,
49

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-3
5.

3%
60

71
00

2
59

25
00

   
  

IN
TE

R
ES

T 
ST

 D
EB

T 
12

1,
44

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

2,
86

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-4

3.
5%

14
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

26
.7

%
14

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
26

.7
%

 
SE

W
E

R
 E

N
T

E
R

PR
IS

E
 D

E
B

T
 - 

T
O

T
A

L
51

6,
74

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
86

0,
01

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

44
.5

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
88

2,
28

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
6%

88
2,

28
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

6%
 

SE
W

E
R

 E
N

T
E

R
PR

IS
E

 F
U

N
D

 
7,

75
2,

90
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
8,

68
4,

24
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

10
.3

50
22

.0
0

7.
6%

56
0,

94
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
8,

88
7,

54
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

10
.3

60
21

.0
0

2.
3%

8,
88

7,
54

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
10

.3
60

21
.0

0
2.

3%
N

O
T

E
S:

 
 

1
 

 

2
 

 

3
TO

 P
U

R
C

H
A

SE
 N

EC
ES

SA
R

Y
 T

O
O

LS
 F

O
R

 R
EP

A
IR

S
 

 

4
IN

C
R

EA
SE

D
 C

O
ST

 IN
 M

A
TE

R
IA

LS

5
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TU

A
L 

IN
C

R
EA

SE
 IN

 C
B

A

6 7 8
 

 

9 10
N

EW
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 S

PL
IT

 W
A

TE
R

 / 
SE

W
ER

 
 

 
 

M
O

V
ED

 F
R

O
M

  H
EA

D
 P

U
M

P 
ST

A
TI

O
N

 O
PE

R
A

TO
R

 T
O

 F
O

R
EM

A
N

H
EA

V
Y

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T 
O

PE
R

/M
EC

H
A

N
IC

 M
O

V
ED

 F
R

O
M

 P
U

M
P 

ST
A

TI
O

N
 

O
PE

R
A

TO
R

 II

LI
C

EN
SE

S 
A

N
D

 C
ER

TI
FI

C
A

TI
O

N
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
C

O
M

B
IN

ED
 IN

 O
N

E 
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

FY
24

 P
A

Y
R

O
LL

 C
A

LC
U

LA
TE

D
 IN

C
O

R
R

EC
TL

Y
.  

TH
IS

 IS
 T

H
E 

C
O

R
R

EC
T 

A
M

O
U

N
T 

FO
R

 F
Y

25

IN
C

R
EA

SE
D

 C
O

ST
 IN

 P
A

R
TS

 F
O

R
 IN

 H
O

U
SE

 R
EP

A
IR

S 

C
O

M
B

IN
ED

 E
X

TE
N

SI
O

N
S 

A
N

D
 S

EW
ER

 S
U

B
S 

IN
 O

N
E 

A
C

C
O

U
N

T

Pa
ge
 5
8

152



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

W
A

T
E

R
 D

E
PA

R
T

M
E

N
T

-D
E

PT
 4

50
 

 
W

A
T

E
R

 E
N

T
E

R
PR

IS
E

 S
A

L
A

R
IE

S
 

 
61

45
00

1
51

10
51

   
  

D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
H

EA
D

 
69

,5
12

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
74

,9
70

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

0
1.

00
12

.3
%

1,
44

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
77

,1
42

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

1.
00

2.
9%

77
,1

42
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
1.

00
2.

9%
61

45
00

1
51

10
49

SU
PE

R
IN

TE
N

D
EN

T
28

,8
36

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

61
45

00
1

51
10

52
5

A
SS

IS
TA

N
T 

SU
PE

R
IN

TE
N

D
EN

T 
5,

62
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

11
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
59

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
70

1.
00

 
59

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
70

1.
00

 
61

45
00

1
51

10
48

1
D

PW
 S

U
PT

.
10

,4
92

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

,6
62

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
07

5
1.

00
1.

5%
4,

30
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
,7

02
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

08
1.

00
9.

8%
11

,7
02

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
08

1.
00

9.
8%

61
45

00
1

51
10

58
D

PW
 A

SS
T.

 S
U

PE
R

IN
TE

N
D

EN
T

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

71
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
05

0
1.

00
1.

6%
2,

19
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
87

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

05
1.

00
2.

9%
5,

87
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
05

1.
00

2.
9%

61
45

00
1

51
10

66
D

PW
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
 S

U
PE

R
IN

TE
N

D
EN

T
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
61

45
00

1
51

10
57

8
FO

R
EM

A
N

 
80

,9
95

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
76

,4
37

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
4.

7%
36

,7
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
7,

81
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

50
2.

00
54

.1
%

11
7,

81
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

50
2.

00
54

.1
%

61
45

00
1

51
10

70
2

H
EA

V
Y

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T 
O

PE
R

/M
EC

H
A

N
IC

 
12

9,
77

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
75

,3
25

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
4.

7%
60

,2
64

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

17
3,

61
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
2.

50
3.

00
13

0.
5%

17
3,

61
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
2.

50
3.

00
13

0.
5%

61
45

00
1

51
10

72
8 

/ 9
H

EA
D

 P
U

M
PI

N
G

 S
TA

TI
O

N
 O

PE
R

A
TO

R
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
61

45
00

1
51

10
73

   
  

PU
M

PI
N

G
 S

TA
TI

O
N

 O
PE

R
A

TO
R

 II
 

15
7,

15
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

18
2,

86
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

00
0

5.
00

20
.6

%
64

,9
34

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

15
4,

22
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
2.

50
4.

00
-1

5.
7%

15
4,

22
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
2.

50
4.

00
-1

5.
7%

61
45

00
1

51
10

75
   

  
M

O
TO

R
 E

Q
U

IP
 O

PE
R

A
TO

R
/C

R
A

FT
SM

A
N

 
12

4,
45

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

1,
79

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

2.
00

0
2.

00
-3

0.
5%

25
,2

20
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
60

,0
51

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

1.
00

-5
0.

7%
60

,0
51

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

1.
00

-5
0.

7%
61

45
00

1
51

10
80

   
  

LA
B

O
R

ER
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
54

,5
17

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
22

,0
16

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

55
,8

13
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
1.

00
2.

4%
55

,8
13

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

1.
00

2.
4%

61
45

00
1

51
10

86
   

  
SE

N
IO

R
 C

LE
R

K
 II

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

61
45

00
1

51
10

89
C

H
IE

F 
PU

M
P 

ST
A

TI
O

N
 M

EC
H

A
N

IC
26

,0
22

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
26

,3
58

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
30

0
1.

00
1.

9%
10

,6
44

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

26
,9

92
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

30
1.

00
2.

4%
26

,9
92

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
30

1.
00

2.
4%

61
45

00
1

51
10

96
   

  
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 C

O
O

R
D

IN
A

TO
R

 II
 

35
,4

96
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

45
,0

84
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
0

1.
00

27
.0

%
18

,2
07

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

46
,3

85
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
1.

00
2.

9%
46

,3
85

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

1.
00

2.
9%

61
45

00
1

51
11

25
   

  
A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
 

7,
53

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
61

45
00

1
51

11
30

 
C

ER
TI

FI
ED

 M
EC

H
A

N
IC

 
57

,0
17

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
9,

39
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
12

5
1.

00
-8

3.
0%

10
,4

21
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
9,

61
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
13

1.
00

2.
4%

9,
61

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

13
1.

00
2.

4%
61

45
00

1
51

11
32

   
  

PR
O

JE
C

T 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

61
45

00
1

51
11

39
   

  
PU

M
PI

N
G

 S
TA

TI
O

N
 O

PE
R

A
TO

R
 I 

84
,7

01
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

86
,4

04
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

50
0

3.
00

8.
1%

31
,5

59
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
57

,9
84

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

2.
00

-3
2.

9%
57

,9
84

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

2.
00

-3
2.

9%
61

45
00

1
51

11
51

IN
TE

R
IM

 D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T 
H

EA
D

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
61

45
00

1
51

11
95

   
  

G
IS

 C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
TO

R
 

8,
80

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8,

94
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
10

0
1.

00
1.

6%
3,

61
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

9,
38

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

10
1.

00
4.

9%
9,

38
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
10

1.
00

4.
9%

61
45

00
1

51
12

66
   

  
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 A

D
M

IN
IS

TR
A

TO
R

 I 
10

0,
89

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
96

,6
28

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
30

0
4.

00
-1

1.
0%

36
,5

35
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
77

,4
86

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

2.
00

-1
9.

8%
77

,4
86

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

2.
00

-1
9.

8%
61

45
00

1
51

13
66

   
  

C
H

IE
F 

PU
M

PI
N

G
 O

PE
R

A
TO

R
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
61

45
00

1
51

30
00

   
  

O
V

ER
TI

M
E 

26
,9

17
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

70
,8

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

 
0.

0%
12

,5
13

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

70
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

 
-1

.1
%

70
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

 
-1

.1
%

61
45

00
1

51
30

12
3

W
EE

K
EN

D
 B

EE
PE

R
S 

 (O
N

 C
A

LL
)

15
,6

13
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

 
0.

0%
6,

63
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

30
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

 
50

.0
%

30
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

 
50

.0
%

61
45

00
1

51
40

06
   

  
LO

N
G

EV
IT

Y
 

2,
48

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

05
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

-7
0.

8%
1,

35
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
98

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
-3

.6
%

1,
98

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
-3

.6
%

61
45

00
1

51
40

08
   

  
O

U
T 

O
F 

G
R

A
D

E 
W

A
G

ES
 

4,
72

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
 

0.
0%

1,
27

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
 

0.
0%

15
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

 
0.

0%
61

45
00

1
51

95
15

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

D
U

TI
ES

33
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

10
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
61

45
00

1
51

90
16

   
  

A
N

TI
C

IP
A

TE
D

 B
U

Y
O

U
T 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

94
8,

56
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

98
2,

94
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

.4
50

24
.0

0
-2

.6
%

37
8,

93
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

06
0,

97
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

12
.8

60
23

.0
0

7.
9%

1,
06

0,
97

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
12

.8
60

23
.0

0
7.

9%

W
A

T
E

R
 E

N
T

E
R

PR
IS

E
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S
61

45
00

2
51

90
05

7
IN

SE
R

V
IC

E 
TR

A
IN

IN
G

 &
 E

D
U

C
A

TI
O

N
 

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
4,

12
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

61
45

00
2

52
10

01
   

  
EL

EC
TR

IC
IT

Y
 

25
2,

61
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

36
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
8.

6%
13

0,
70

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

35
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-4

.1
%

35
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-4

.1
%

61
45

00
2

52
10

02
   

  
G

A
S 

10
,6

96
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

32
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
1,

60
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

30
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-6

.3
%

30
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-6

.3
%

61
45

00
2

52
30

01
4

W
A

TE
R

 
14

2,
77

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
14

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

38
,5

89
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

7.
1%

15
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
7.

1%
61

45
00

2
52

30
04

4
W

A
TE

R
 C

O
N

N
EC

T 
M

W
R

A
 A

SS
ES

S 
11

8,
82

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

3,
51

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
2.

9%
11

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

11
.1

%
11

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

11
.1

%
61

45
00

2
52

30
05

   
  

M
W

R
A

 E
N

TR
A

N
C

E 
FE

E 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

61
45

00
2

52
30

07
4

PL
A

IN
 S

T 
W

TP
-B

A
C

K
W

A
SH

 D
IS

C
R

G
 

25
,4

42
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

16
,8

30
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
40

.3
%

23
,7

38
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
41

.0
%

23
,7

38
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
41

.0
%

61
45

00
2

52
40

01
   

  
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 R

EP
A

IR
S-

SE
R

V
IC

ES
 

6,
12

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

15
,9

54
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
61

45
00

2
52

40
03

4
V

EH
 M

A
IN

T 
A

N
D

 O
PE

R
-S

ER
V

IC
E 

13
,5

52
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
81

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

.0
%

12
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

.0
%

61
45

00
2

52
40

05
   

  
SC

A
D

A
 R

EP
A

IR
 &

 M
A

IN
TE

N
A

N
C

E 
32

,9
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
25

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-1
6.

7%
8,

41
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

25
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
25

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

61
45

00
2

52
40

07
   

  
EQ

U
IP

M
EN

T 
R

EP
A

IR
S 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
61

45
00

2
52

40
08

   
  

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

R
EP

A
IR

S 
SE

R
V

IC
ES

 
3,

03
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

4,
45

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

  

Pa
ge
 5
9

153



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

61
45

00
2

52
40

10
   

  
FI

R
E 

A
LA

R
M

 R
EP

A
IR

S 
SE

R
V

IC
ES

 
37

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
61

45
00

2
52

40
11

   
  

EL
EC

TR
IC

A
L 

SV
C

 / 
SU

PP
 

2,
43

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

2,
52

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

15
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
61

45
00

2
52

40
12

   
  

G
EN

ER
A

TO
R

 M
A

IN
TE

N
A

N
C

E 
4,

00
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

0.
0%

2,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
7,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-2
5.

0%
7,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-2
5.

0%
61

45
00

2
52

40
13

4
H

Y
D

R
A

N
TS

 
68

,9
30

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
40

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

33
.3

%
46

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

51
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
27

.5
%

51
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
27

.5
%

61
45

00
2

52
40

14
   

  
ST

R
T,

SW
R

,S
ID

W
LK

,W
EL

L 
SE

V
IC

ES
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
61

45
00

2
52

40
15

   
  

R
EP

A
IR

S 
A

N
D

 M
A

IN
TE

N
A

N
C

E 
38

,5
45

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
75

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

17
,1

85
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
75

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

75
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
61

45
00

2
52

40
17

   
  

M
EC

H
A

N
IC

A
L 

M
A

IN
TE

N
A

N
C

E 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

22
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
61

45
00

2
52

40
18

   
  

TA
N

K
 C

LE
A

N
IN

G
 

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-3
3.

3%
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

61
45

00
2

52
40

21
   

  
PU

M
P 

R
EP

A
IR

 &
 M

A
IN

TE
N

A
N

C
E 

9,
19

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

9,
23

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

25
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
61

45
00

2
52

40
22

   
  

C
R

O
SS

 C
O

N
N

EC
TI

O
N

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

21
,0

51
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

.0
%

10
,6

71
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

25
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
61

45
00

2
52

40
23

   
  

M
U

D
D

Y
 P

O
N

D
 B

Y
-P

A
SS

 P
U

M
P 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
61

45
00

2
52

40
50

   
  

M
A

C
H

IN
ER

Y
 R

EP
A

IR
S 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
61

45
00

2
52

70
02

   
  

M
A

C
H

IN
ER

Y
/T

R
U

C
K

 R
EN

TA
L 

1,
35

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

61
45

00
2

52
90

30
4

LE
A

K
 D

ET
EC

TI
O

N
 

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
.1

%
16

,3
20

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

.0
%

25
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

.0
%

61
45

00
2

53
00

02
   

  
C

O
N

SU
LT

A
N

T 
FE

ES
 

23
,4

57
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
9,

03
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

61
45

00
2

53
00

07
   

  
A

D
V

ER
TI

SI
N

G
 &

 F
R

EI
G

H
T 

57
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

76
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
61

45
00

2
53

00
18

   
  

C
D

L 
D

R
U

G
/A

LC
O

H
O

L 
TE

ST
IN

G
 

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

65
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
61

45
00

2
53

00
21

   
  

W
EL

L 
R

EH
A

B
IL

IT
A

TI
O

N
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-4
2.

9%
16

,4
78

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

61
45

00
2

53
00

36
M

ED
IC

A
L 

A
N

D
 F

IR
ST

 A
ID

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
61

45
00

2
53

00
55

   
  

D
O

T 
PH

Y
SI

C
A

LS
/M

ED
IC

A
L 

EX
A

M
S 

85
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
70

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

70
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
70

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

61
45

00
2

53
40

01
   

  
TE

LE
PH

O
N

E 
12

,5
62

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

4,
06

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
61

45
00

2
53

40
02

   
  

PO
ST

A
G

E 
8,

15
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
5,

87
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

61
45

00
2

53
40

03
FR

EI
G

H
T

16
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
61

45
00

2
53

80
10

   
  

PO
LI

C
E 

D
ET

A
IL

S 
10

,8
60

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
30

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-1
4.

3%
5,

34
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

30
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
30

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

61
45

00
2

53
80

15
   

  
A

PP
LI

C
A

TI
O

N
 F

EE
S 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
61

45
00

2
53

80
50

   
  

SA
FE

TY
 S

ER
V

IC
ES

 
1,

63
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

61
45

00
2

54
20

00
4

O
FF

IC
E 

SU
PP

LI
ES

 
5,

89
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

42
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

.0
%

4,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

.0
%

61
45

00
2

54
20

04
   

  
PR

IN
TI

N
G

 &
 S

TA
TI

O
N

ER
Y

 
3,

48
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

48
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

61
45

00
2

54
30

01
   

  
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 R

EP
A

IR
S-

SU
PP

LI
ES

 
13

,4
26

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

2,
18

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
61

45
00

2
54

30
10

   
  

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

R
EP

A
IR

S-
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

45
,6

51
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
30

,9
71

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

61
45

00
2

54
30

11
   

  
O

FF
IC

E 
EQ

U
IP

 R
EP

R
S-

SU
PP

LY
 

3,
37

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

14
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

61
45

00
2

54
30

13
   

  
PA

IN
TS

 
2,

14
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
51

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

61
45

00
2

54
30

15
   

  
SM

A
LL

 T
O

O
LS

 
76

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

58
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

61
45

00
2

54
30

51
   

  
M

A
C

H
IN

ER
Y

 R
EP

A
IR

 S
U

PP
LI

ES
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
61

45
00

2
54

60
01

   
  

LO
A

M
 &

 G
R

A
SS

 S
EE

D
 

28
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

17
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
61

45
00

2
54

80
01

   
  

G
A

SO
LI

N
E,

 O
IL

 &
 G

R
EA

SE
 

45
,7

65
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

48
,5

70
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
1,

18
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

45
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-7

.4
%

45
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-7

.4
%

61
45

00
2

54
80

06
   

  
V

EH
IC

LE
 M

A
IT

 A
N

D
 O

PE
R

-S
U

P 
35

,5
79

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
30

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

20
,3

84
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

30
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
61

45
00

2
54

90
00

   
  

M
EA

L 
A

LL
O

W
A

N
C

E 
- C

O
N

TR
A

C
TU

A
L 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

61
45

00
2

55
10

03
   

  
B

O
O

K
S 

41
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

61
45

00
2

55
30

01
   

  
C

H
EM

IC
A

LS
 

25
4,

48
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

31
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
93

.8
%

13
5,

56
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
31

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

31
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
61

45
00

2
55

30
03

   
  

PA
V

IN
G

 M
A

TE
R

IA
LS

 
14

,7
44

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-3
3.

3%
10

,6
80

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

61
45

00
2

55
30

04
   

  
SA

FE
TY

 S
U

PP
LI

ES
 

1,
05

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

46
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
61

45
00

2
55

30
05

   
  

PI
PE

 &
 F

IT
TI

N
G

S 
72

,1
49

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
80

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

33
.3

%
36

,1
10

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

80
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
80

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

61
45

00
2

55
30

07
   

  
W

A
TE

R
 M

ET
ER

S 
13

5,
27

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-1
00

.0
%

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

 
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
 

61
45

00
2

55
30

08
   

  
LA

B
O

R
A

TO
R

Y
 F

EE
S 

31
,2

94
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

60
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

.0
%

13
,8

58
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
63

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
0%

63
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5.

0%
61

45
00

2
55

30
09

   
  

M
A

PS
 &

 C
H

A
R

TS
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 

Pa
ge
 6
0

154



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

61
45

00
2

55
30

11
   

  
M

IS
C

 C
O

N
ST

R
 M

A
TE

R
IA

LS
 &

 S
U

PP
L 

19
,2

61
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
10

,3
79

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

61
45

00
2

55
30

41
ST

R
EE

T,
SW

R
,S

ID
EW

A
LK

,W
EL

L 
M

A
TL

 
4,

72
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
98

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

61
45

00
2

55
80

06
6

C
LO

TH
IN

G
/U

N
IF

O
R

M
S 

11
,7

36
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

17
,2

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
12

,5
16

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

.9
%

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

.9
%

61
45

00
2

57
10

00
   

  
TR

A
V

EL
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

75
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
75

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

75
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
61

45
00

2
57

30
00

7
D

U
ES

 &
SU

B
SC

R
IP

TI
O

N
S 

1,
39

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

9,
91

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
61

45
00

2
57

80
00

   
  

O
TH

ER
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S 
1,

57
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
35

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

61
45

00
2

57
80

12
7

C
ER

TI
FI

C
A

TI
O

N
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
7,

86
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
74

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

19
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
21

6.
7%

19
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
21

6.
7%

61
45

00
2

57
80

17
   

  
FI

N
A

N
C

E 
C

H
A

R
G

ES
 

(3
6)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
61

45
00

2
57

80
65

   
  

D
EP

 A
SS

ES
SM

EN
TS

 
7,

04
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
61

45
00

2
57

80
66

   
  

PE
TT

Y
 C

A
SH

 E
X

P 
42

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

61
45

00
2

58
80

26
   

  
W

A
TE

R
 C

A
PI

TA
L 

IM
PR

O
V

EM
EN

TS
 

35
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
63

,0
09

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

W
A

T
E

R
 E

N
T

E
R

PR
IS

E
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S
1,

56
7,

73
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

84
4,

81
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0
0.

00
1.

7%
72

6,
49

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
88

6,
38

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0

0.
00

2.
3%

1,
88

6,
38

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0

0.
00

2.
3%

 
W

A
T

E
R

 IN
D

IR
E

C
T

 C
O

ST
S 

&
 X

FE
R

S
 

 
61

45
00

2
55

30
06

   
  

IN
D

IR
EC

T 
C

O
ST

S 
59

2,
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
84

6,
97

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

42
.9

%
85

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
4%

85
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

4%
61

45
00

2
59

60
03

   
  

TR
A

N
SF

ER
 T

O
 C

A
PI

TA
L 

PR
O

JE
C

TS
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
W

A
T

E
R

 IN
D

IR
E

C
T

 C
O

ST
S-

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
59

2,
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
84

6,
97

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

38
.8

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
85

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
4%

85
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

4%
 

R
E

T
IR

E
M

E
N

T
 O

F 
D

E
B

T
 

 
 

W
A

T
E

R
 E

N
T

E
R

PR
IS

E
 D

E
B

T
 S

V
C

 
 

61
71

0
53

00
11

   
  

A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TI

V
E 

FE
ES

 
68

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

61
71

0
59

10
00

   
  

PR
IN

C
IP

A
L 

1,
89

5,
74

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
71

2,
95

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-9

.6
%

1,
76

8,
65

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
3.

3%
1,

76
8,

65
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

3.
3%

61
71

0
59

15
00

   
  

IN
TE

R
ES

T 
43

3,
30

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
53

1,
58

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

24
.7

%
93

6,
07

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

76
.1

%
93

6,
07

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

76
.1

%
61

71
00

2
59

25
00

   
  

IN
TE

R
ES

T 
- S

H
O

R
T 

TE
R

M
 D

EB
T 

9,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

27
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-6
0.

0%
16

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

21
2.

7%
16

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

21
2.

7%
R

E
T

IR
E

M
E

N
T

 O
F 

D
E

B
T

2,
33

8,
73

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
24

9,
81

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-3

.7
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
72

1,
22

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
21

.0
%

2,
72

1,
22

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
21

.0
%

 
W

A
T

E
R

 E
N

T
E

R
PR

IS
E

 F
U

N
D

 -T
O

T
A

L
5,

44
7,

62
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

92
4,

55
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

12
.4

50
24

.0
0

3.
0%

1,
10

5,
43

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
6,

51
8,

58
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

12
.8

60
23

.0
0

10
.0

%
6,

51
8,

58
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

12
.8

60
23

.0
0

10
.0

%
 

N
O

T
E

S:
 

 

1
 

 

2
 

 
3

R
O

TA
TI

N
G

 D
IS

TR
IB

U
TI

O
N

 C
A

LL
 P

H
O

N
E

 
 

4
IN

C
R

EA
SE

 IN
 C

O
ST

S
 

 
5

N
EW

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 S
PL

IT
 W

A
TE

R
 / 

SE
W

ER
 

 
6

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TU
A

L 
IN

C
R

EA
SE

 IN
 C

B
A

 
 

7 8 9  

H
EA

V
Y

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T 
O

PE
R

/M
EC

H
A

N
IC

 M
O

V
ED

 F
R

O
M

 
PU

M
P 

ST
A

TI
O

N
 O

PE
R

A
TO

R
 II

FY
24

 P
A

Y
R

O
LL

 C
A

LC
U

LA
TE

D
 IN

C
O

R
R

EC
TL

Y
.  

TH
IS

 IS
 

TH
E 

C
O

R
R

EC
T 

A
M

O
U

N
T 

FO
R

 F
Y

25

FY
24

 P
A

Y
R

O
LL

 C
A

LC
U

LA
TE

D
 IN

C
O

R
R

EC
TL

Y
.  

TH
IS

 IS
 

TH
E 

C
O

R
R

EC
T 

A
M

O
U

N
T 

FO
R

 F
Y

25

C
O

M
B

IN
ED

 IN
 S

ER
V

IC
E 

TR
A

IN
IN

G
, D

U
E 

&
 

SU
B

SC
R

IP
TI

O
N

S 
W

IT
H

 C
ER

TI
FI

C
A

TI
O

N
 S

C
H

O
O

L
M

O
V

ED
 F

R
O

M
  H

EA
D

 P
U

M
P 

ST
A

TI
O

N
 O

PE
R

A
TO

R
 T

O
 

FO
R

EM
A

N

Pa
ge
 6
1

155



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

PU
B

L
IC

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 - 
V

IS
IT

IN
G

 N
U

R
SE

S-
D

E
PT

 5
22

 
 

PU
B

L
IC

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 V
N

A
 S

A
L

A
R

IE
S

 
 

62
52

20
1

51
10

51
   

  
D

EP
A

R
TM

EN
T 

H
EA

D
 

10
9,

96
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
1,

73
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

90
0

1.
00

1.
6%

29
,1

73
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

6,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
1.

00
-5

.1
%

10
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

1.
00

-5
.1

%
62

52
20

1
51

10
87

   
  

PU
B

LI
C

 H
EA

LT
H

 N
U

R
SE

S 
21

9,
33

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
28

2,
89

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

4.
30

0
10

.0
0

-5
.6

%
95

,0
19

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

29
9,

37
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

20
0

4.
00

5.
8%

29
9,

37
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

20
0

4.
00

5.
8%

62
52

20
1

51
10

88
   

  
PA

TI
EN

T 
A

C
C

O
U

N
T 

M
A

N
A

G
ER

 
43

,1
34

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
43

,6
80

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
52

0
1.

00
1.

8%
18

,2
20

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

46
,1

97
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

80
0

1.
00

5.
8%

46
,1

97
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

80
0

1.
00

5.
8%

62
52

20
1

51
10

90
   

  
A

SS
IS

TA
N

T 
A

D
M

IN
IS

TR
A

TO
R

 
10

1,
11

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
95

,8
23

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
1.

8%
40

,9
73

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0
0.

00
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

-1
00

.0
%

62
52

20
1

51
11

12
   

  
C

LE
R

IC
A

L 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
50

0
2.

00
-1

00
.0

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0

0.
00

 
62

52
20

1
51

12
08

   
  

R
EH

A
B

IL
IT

A
TI

O
N

 
72

,7
23

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
12

3,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
48

0
8.

00
-0

.4
%

20
,5

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

2,
43

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

2.
16

0
4.

00
-9

.0
%

11
2,

43
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
2.

16
0

4.
00

-9
.0

%
62

52
20

1
51

40
06

   
  

LO
N

G
EV

IT
Y

 
1,

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
13

.7
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

-1
00

.0
%

62
52

20
1

51
90

16
   

  
A

N
TI

C
IP

A
TE

D
 B

U
Y

O
U

T 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

17
,0

27
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

54
7,

87
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

66
3,

02
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
9.

70
0

23
.0

0
-6

.4
%

22
0,

98
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
56

4,
01

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

7.
16

0
10

.0
0

-1
4.

9%
56

4,
01

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

7.
16

0
10

.0
0

-1
4.

9%
 

PU
B

L
IC

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 V
N

A
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S
 

 
62

52
20

2
51

45
00

   
  

C
O

N
TR

A
C

T 
SE

R
V

IC
ES

 
8,

29
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

27
,6

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-6

5.
1%

3,
63

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-4
5.

7%
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-4
5.

7%
62

52
20

2
1

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TE
D

 S
ER

V
IC

ES
 - 

B
IL

LI
N

G
18

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

18
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
62

52
20

2
1

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TE
D

 S
ER

V
IC

ES
 - 

C
O

D
IN

G
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
62

52
20

2
51

90
05

   
  

IN
SE

R
V

IC
E 

TR
A

IN
IN

G
 &

 E
D

U
C

A
TI

O
N

 
39

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-1

6.
7%

89
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
62

52
20

2
52

40
07

   
  

O
FF

IC
E 

EQ
U

IP
 R

EP
A

IR
S-

SE
R

V
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

62
52

20
2

53
00

07
   

  
A

D
V

ER
TI

SI
N

G
 &

 F
R

EI
G

H
T 

2,
52

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

90
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-1
4.

5%
1,

73
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-2

5.
4%

4,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-2

5.
4%

62
52

20
2

53
00

09
A

N
N

U
A

L 
A

U
D

IT
 F

EE
(3

37
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

62
52

20
2

53
00

12
   

  
D

A
TA

 P
R

O
C

ES
S 

A
N

D
 M

A
IT

-S
ER

V
 

53
,2

22
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

53
,9

35
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5.

3%
28

,1
26

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

56
,2

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

2%
56

,2
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
2%

62
52

20
2

53
00

38
   

  
A

C
C

O
U

N
TA

N
T 

FE
ES

 
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
6,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

6,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
62

52
20

2
53

02
04

   
  

C
O

N
FE

R
EN

C
ES

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-3

3.
3%

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

62
52

20
2

53
40

01
   

  
TE

LE
PH

O
N

E 
1,

16
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
33

.3
%

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
62

52
20

2
53

80
33

   
  

IM
M

U
N

IZ
A

TO
N

 
12

,7
66

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
12

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

13
,4

27
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

12
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
62

52
20

2
53

80
70

   
  

PU
B

LI
C

 H
EA

LT
H

 A
C

TI
V

IT
IE

S 
54

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
13

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

62
52

20
2

53
80

72
   

  
M

ED
IC

A
R

E 
PA

Y
B

A
C

K
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

62
52

20
2

54
20

00
   

  
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

4,
63

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

2,
72

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

6,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
62

52
20

2
54

20
04

   
  

PR
IN

TI
N

G
 &

 S
TA

TI
O

N
ER

Y
 

13
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

80
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
.5

%
1,

80
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
62

52
20

2
55

00
01

   
  

M
ED

IC
A

L 
&

 F
IR

ST
 A

ID
 

6,
52

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
9,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

2,
97

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
9,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

9,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
62

52
20

2
55

80
06

   
  

C
LO

TH
IN

G
/U

N
IF

O
R

M
S 

15
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
25

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

62
52

20
2

57
10

00
   

  
TR

A
V

EL
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S 
52

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
62

52
20

2
57

10
01

   
  

M
IL

EA
G

E 
R

EI
M

B
U

SR
EM

EN
T 

4,
21

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

2,
24

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
62

52
20

2
57

30
00

   
  

D
U

ES
 &

 S
U

B
SC

R
IP

TI
O

N
S 

2,
45

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-8
.6

%
1,

95
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
3,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

62
52

20
2

57
40

26
   

  
PR

O
FE

SS
IO

N
A

L 
LI

A
B

 IN
SU

R
A

N
C

E 
15

,2
58

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-6
.3

%
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

15
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
62

52
20

2
57

80
00

   
  

O
TH

ER
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
30

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

11
8,

45
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

17
4,

08
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
-2

2.
8%

57
,2

91
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

17
5,

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

7%
17

5,
25

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
7%

 
PU

B
L

IC
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 IN

D
 C

O
ST

 &
 X

FE
R

 
 

62
52

20
2

55
30

06
   

  
IN

D
IR

EC
T 

C
O

ST
S 

25
8,

29
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

28
6,

05
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

.7
%

26
6,

80
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-6

.7
%

26
6,

80
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-6

.7
%

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
28

6,
05

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
.7

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
26

6,
80

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-6
.7

%
26

6,
80

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-6
.7

%
PU

B
L

IC
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 V

N
A

 -T
O

T
A

L
92

4,
62

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

12
3,

17
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

9.
70

0
23

.0
0

-5
.8

%
27

8,
27

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

6,
07

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
7.

16
0

10
.0

0
-1

0.
4%

1,
00

6,
07

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
7.

16
0

10
.0

0
-1

0.
4%

 
N

O
T

E
S:

83
7,

11
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
73

9,
26

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
1.

7%
73

9,
26

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
1.

7%

 
 

1
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

C
O

N
SU

LT
A

N
TS

 T
O

 P
ER

FO
R

M
 P

R
O

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L 

C
O

D
IN

G
 A

N
D

 B
IL

LI
N

G
 S

ER
V

IC
ES

FY
20

24
 B

U
D

G
ET

A
D

JU
ST

M
EN

T 
D

O
N

E 
A

T 
SP

EC
IA

L 
TO

W
N

 M
EE

TI
N

G
 IN

 N
O

V
EM

B
ER

 2
02

3 
D

U
E 

TO
 

LO
W

ER
 R

EV
EN

U
ES

 T
H

A
N

 P
R

O
JE

C
TE

D
 F

O
R

 F
Y

20
23

Pa
ge
 6
2

156



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

C
E

D
A

R
 H

IL
L

 G
O

L
F 

C
O

U
R

SE
 

 
 

 
C

E
D

A
R

 H
IL

L
 S

A
L

A
R

IE
S

 
 

63
65

10
1

51
10

51
1

G
EN

ER
A

L 
M

A
N

A
G

ER
 

78
,7

59
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

85
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

7.
9%

37
,4

56
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
95

,0
66

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

0
1.

00
11

.8
%

95
,0

66
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
0

1.
00

11
.8

%
63

65
10

1
51

10
52

   
  

PA
R

T 
TI

M
E 

A
SS

IS
TA

N
T 

TO
 G

EN
ER

A
L 

M
A

N
A

G
ER

8,
89

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
13

,7
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
25

0
1.

00
4.

8%
5,

35
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

13
,7

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

25
0

1.
00

0.
0%

13
,7

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

25
0

1.
00

0.
0%

63
65

10
1

51
10

58
 

A
SS

IS
TA

N
T 

SU
PE

R
IN

TE
N

D
EN

T
35

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
54

0
1.

00
35

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
54

0
1.

00
0.

0%
35

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
54

0
1.

00
0.

0%
63

65
10

1
51

20
06

   
  

SE
A

SO
N

A
L 

EM
PL

O
Y

EE
S 

40
,7

48
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

56
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

38
0

4.
00

36
.6

%
34

,5
53

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

56
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

38
0

4.
00

0.
0%

56
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

38
0

4.
00

0.
0%

63
65

10
1

51
30

00
   

  
O

V
ER

TI
M

E 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

SU
B

T
O

T
A

L
12

8,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
18

9,
75

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
17

0
7.

00
42

.8
%

77
,3

63
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

19
9,

81
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

17
0

7.
00

5.
3%

19
9,

81
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

17
0

7.
00

5.
3%

 
 

C
E

D
A

R
 H

IL
L

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S

 
 

63
65

10
2

52
10

01
   

  
EL

EC
TR

IC
IT

Y
 

15
,7

64
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

27
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
16

.4
%

14
,4

67
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
27

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

27
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
63

65
10

2
52

10
02

   
  

FU
EL

 
4,

36
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

.0
%

1,
76

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

6,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
63

65
10

2
52

30
01

2
W

A
TE

R
 

95
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
65

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

74
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

69
.2

%
1,

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

69
.2

%
63

65
10

2
52

40
01

   
  

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 R
EP

A
IR

S-
SE

R
V

IC
ES

 
1,

73
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
12

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
22

.5
%

5,
15

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
6,

12
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

6,
12

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
63

65
10

2
52

40
07

   
  

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

R
EP

A
IR

S-
SE

R
V

IC
ES

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
1,

94
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

63
65

10
2

52
70

09
   

  
G

O
LF

 C
A

R
T 

R
EN

TA
L 

11
,4

32
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

35
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
16

.7
%

23
,9

90
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
35

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

35
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
63

65
10

2
53

00
07

   
  

A
D

V
ER

TI
SI

N
G

 &
 F

R
EI

G
H

T 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
77

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-5

0.
0%

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-5

0.
0%

63
65

10
2

53
00

08
IN

SE
R

V
IC

E 
TR

A
IN

IN
G

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
63

65
10

2
53

00
26

2
C

R
ED

IT
 C

A
R

D
 F

EE
S 

14
,6

49
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

14
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
2,

79
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

19
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
35

.7
%

19
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
35

.7
%

63
65

10
2

53
40

01
   

  
TE

LE
PH

O
N

E 
2,

83
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
79

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
2,

80
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

63
65

10
2

53
82

64
   

  
IR

IG
A

TI
O

N
 S

ER
V

IC
ES

 
7,

58
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

0.
0%

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
3,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

63
65

10
2

53
00

00
PU

R
C

H
A

SE
 O

F 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

- D
A

TA
 P

R
O

C
ES

SI
N

G
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

2,
16

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
63

65
10

2
54

20
00

   
  

O
FF

IC
E 

SU
PP

LI
ES

 
1,

49
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
87

.5
%

1,
08

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
63

65
10

2
54

30
01

   
  

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 R
EP

A
IR

S-
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

48
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

46
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

4,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
63

65
10

2
54

30
10

   
  

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

R
EP

A
IR

S-
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

76
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

1,
42

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

11
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
63

65
10

2
54

60
01

   
  

LO
A

M
 &

 G
R

A
SS

 S
EE

D
 

(4
9)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
8,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

33
.3

%
2,

60
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

8,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
8,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

63
65

10
2

54
60

05
2

IR
R

IG
A

TI
O

N
 S

U
PP

LY
 

11
,2

14
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
2,

62
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

6,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

.0
%

6,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

.0
%

63
65

10
2

54
60

06
2

PR
O

-S
H

O
P 

M
ER

C
H

A
N

D
IS

E 
9,

02
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

.0
%

4,
15

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
.0

%
12

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
.0

%
63

65
10

2
54

60
07

2
G

R
O

U
N

D
S 

M
A

IN
TE

N
A

N
C

E-
SU

PP
LI

ES
 

21
,4

71
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

.0
%

5,
78

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
.0

%
11

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
.0

%
63

65
10

2
54

80
01

2
G

A
SO

LI
N

E,
 O

IL
 &

 G
R

EA
SE

 
10

,1
05

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
7,

37
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

26
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
9,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

22
.0

%
9,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

22
.0

%
63

65
10

2
55

10
03

B
O

O
K

S
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

15
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
15

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

15
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
63

65
10

2
55

30
01

2
C

H
EM

IC
A

LS
 

16
,4

78
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

21
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7.

7%
8,

47
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

25
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
19

.0
%

25
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
19

.0
%

63
65

10
2

57
10

00
   

  
TR

A
V

EL
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S 
(7

8)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
63

65
10

2
57

30
00

2
D

U
ES

 &
 S

U
B

SC
R

IP
TI

O
N

S 
1,

54
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
61

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
38

.9
%

2,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
38

.9
%

63
65

10
2

57
80

17
   

  
FI

N
A

N
C

E 
C

H
A

R
G

ES
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
63

65
10

2
57

80
66

   
  

PE
TT

Y
 C

A
SH

 E
X

P 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
25

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
0%

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

0%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

13
3,

77
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

17
9,

05
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

.7
%

81
,3

77
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

19
8,

62
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

.9
%

19
8,

62
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

.9
%

C
E

D
A

R
 H

IL
L

 IN
D

E
R

E
C

T
 C

O
ST

 &
 X

FE
 

 
63

65
10

2
55

30
06

   
  

IN
D

IR
EC

T 
C

O
ST

S 
53

,5
78

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
59

,3
14

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
.7

%
55

,1
85

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-7
.0

%
55

,1
85

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-7
.0

%
SU

B
T

O
T

A
L

53
,5

78
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

59
,3

14
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
.7

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
55

,1
85

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-7

.0
%

55
,1

85
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-7
.0

%
 

 
C

E
D

A
R

 H
IL

L
 G

O
L

F 
C

O
U

R
SE

 -S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L

31
5,

74
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

42
8,

11
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

17
0

7.
00

23
.0

%
15

8,
74

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

45
3,

62
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

17
0

7.
00

6.
0%

45
3,

62
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

17
0

7.
00

6.
0%

 

Pa
ge
 6
3

157



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

R
E

T
IR

E
M

E
N

T
 O

F 
D

E
B

T
 

 
C

E
D

A
R

 H
IL

L
 D

E
B

T
 S

V
C

 
 

 
63

71
0

59
10

00
   

  
PR

IN
C

IP
A

L 
O

N
 L

T 
D

EB
T 

14
,4

20
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-3

0.
7%

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

63
71

0
59

15
00

   
  

IN
TE

R
ES

T 
O

N
 L

T 
D

EB
T 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

82
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-1
4.

9%
2,

37
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-1
5.

9%
2,

37
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-1
5.

9%
63

71
0

59
15

01
   

  
TO

W
N

 D
EB

T 
IN

TE
R

ES
T 

3,
31

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
63

71
0

59
25

00
IN

TE
R

ES
T 

O
N

 S
H

O
R

T 
TE

R
M

 D
EB

T
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

R
E

T
IR

E
M

E
N

T
 O

F 
D

E
B

T
 -T

O
T

A
L

17
,7

37
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
,8

25
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-3

4.
4%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
,3

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-3

.5
%

12
,3

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-3

.5
%

 
C

E
D

A
R

 H
IL

L
 E

N
T

E
R

PR
IS

E
 

33
3,

48
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

44
0,

93
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

17
0

7.
00

19
.9

%
15

8,
74

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

46
6,

00
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

17
0

7.
00

5.
7%

46
6,

00
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

17
0

7.
00

5.
7%

 
N

O
T

E
S:

1 2
IN

C
R

EA
SE

D
 C

O
ST

S 

M
ID

-Y
EA

R
 A

D
JU

ST
M

EN
T 

D
U

E 
TO

 E
M

PL
O

Y
EE

 R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

T 
A

S 
A

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
 O

F 
ST

A
Y

IN
G

 
W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
TO

W
N

.  
TH

IS
 IS

 A
 2

.5
%

 IN
C

R
EA

SE
 F

O
R

 F
Y

20
25

Pa
ge
 6
4

158



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

C
A

B
L

E
 P

U
B

L
IC

 A
C

C
E

SS
-D

E
PT

 1
58

65
00

15
85

51
45

00
1

C
O

N
TR

A
C

T 
SE

R
V

IC
ES

 
32

3,
33

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
46

7,
38

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
.5

%
19

4,
74

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

49
1,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
5.

1%
49

1,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

5.
1%

C
A

B
L

E
 P

U
B

L
IC

 A
C

C
E

SS
 T

O
T

A
L

32
3,

33
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

46
7,

38
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0

0.
00

20
.5

%
19

4,
74

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

49
1,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0

0.
00

26
.6

%
49

1,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0
0.

00
26

.6
%

N
O

T
E

S:

1
IN

C
R

EA
SE

D
 A

M
O

U
N

T 
D

U
E 

TO
 N

EW
 C

A
B

LE
 

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TS

Pa
ge
 6
5

159



T
O

W
N

 O
F 

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

N
E

X
T

 Y
E

A
R

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 R
E

PO
R

T
   

   
 

SE
L

E
C

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
O

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 - 
01

-1
7-

20
24

PR
O

JE
C

T
IO

N
:  

   
  2

50
01

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S 
FY

20
25

   
   

   
   

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 T

O
W

N
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
24

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25
FY

20
25

FY
20

25

O
R

G
O

B
JE

C
T

PA
G

E
D

E
PT

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

 T
O

W
N

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 
A

PP
R

O
V

E
D

 
FT

E
'S

# 
E

E
'S

PC
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 N
O

V
 

20
23

 

 T
O

W
N

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

 
R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

 B
O

A
R

D
 

FT
E

'S
# 

E
E

'S
PC

T
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

ST
O

U
G

H
T

O
N

 P
U

B
L

IC
 S

C
H

O
O

L
S

A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TI

O
N

1,
53

9,
48

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
22

.6
%

 
2,

59
9,

36
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

68
.8

%
2,

59
9,

36
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

68
.8

%
IN

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
43

,5
15

,9
38

$ 
   

   
   

   
2.

2%
 

49
,3

60
,0

60
$ 

   
   

   
   

13
.4

%
49

,3
60

,0
60

$ 
   

   
   

   
13

.4
%

O
TH

ER
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
SE

R
V

IC
ES

6,
31

3,
57

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
37

.1
%

 
7,

23
7,

40
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

14
.6

%
7,

23
7,

40
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

14
.6

%
O

PE
R

A
TI

O
N

S/
M

A
IN

TE
N

A
N

C
E

4,
13

1,
92

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-0

.3
%

 
4,

40
2,

19
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

6.
5%

4,
40

2,
19

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
6.

5%
FI

X
ED

 C
H

A
R

G
ES

12
0,

45
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
13

.2
%

 
12

1,
30

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
7%

12
1,

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

7%
A

C
Q

U
IS

IT
IO

N
S

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
O

TH
ER

 D
IS

TR
IC

TS
3,

07
9,

29
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

26
.0

%
 

4,
16

2,
50

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
35

.2
%

4,
16

2,
50

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
35

.2
%

A
D

JU
ST

M
EN

TS
 

 
(5

,0
14

,4
06

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
 

T
O

T
A

L
 P

U
B

L
IC

 S
C

H
O

O
L

S
50

,9
32

,1
06

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
58

,7
00

,6
81

$ 
   

   
   

  
6.

4%
67

,8
82

,8
35

$ 
   

   
   

  
15

.6
%

62
,8

68
,4

29
$ 

   
   

   
  

7.
1%

N
O

T
E

S:

Pa
ge
 6
6

160



 
 
 
 
 

 
Education 

161



162



163



164



165



166



STOUGHTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS FY 2025 BUDGET BY ACCOUNT

 1/16/24 

Account FY23 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY24/25

DEPT Number
Approved Expended Approved Requested Difference

011 5133-02 7,000 2,550 7,000 7,000 0
5300-04 Attorney's Fees - Collective Bargaining 40,000 42,740 25,000 25,000 0
5301-04 Attorney's Fees - General Purpose 55,000 25 55,000 25,000 (30,000)

5302-04
MASC/other 

conferences 0 0 0 0 0
5340-04 6,500 547 6,500 0 (6,500)
5520-05 500 0 500 0 (500)
5730-06 6,200 7,543 8,100 8,100 0

115,200 53,405 102,100 65,100 (37,000)

012 5111-01 531,490 1,045,042 594,985 609,699 14,714
$233,515
$185,364

Moved to HR 

Dept

Moved to HR 

Dept

$86,275 84,169
 $61,915

$42,630
137,660 137,660

5112-02 210,992 306,147 201,620 211,438 9,818
5302-04 3,000 1,578 3,000 2,000 (1,000)
5307-04 3,300 2,525 3,150 3,150 0
5420-05 3,500 5,553 3,500 2,000 (1,500)
5730-06 7,000 5,564 7,000 3,000 (4,000)

759,282 1,450,578 813,255 968,947 155,692

014 5111-01 138,823 126,953 160,000 167,500 7,500

5111-01

Restructured 

Grants Specialist 

budgeted in FY24 

to this position, 

reduced 60k in 

Admin. Asst. line 

before contractual 

increases 0 105,000 105,000

5112-02 224,621 183,515 233,883 215,938 (17,945)
5132-02 250 1,720 250 0 (250)

5302-04

State 

procurement law 

courses and cert. - 

4 staff 1,000 1,424 3,000 2,000 (1,000)
5303-04 2,000 3,579 2,000 1,000 (1,000)
5308-04 10,500 9,625 10,500 11,000 500
5420-05 4,000 4,515 4,000 2,000 (2,000)

5730-06 Contractual 500 0 500 3,100 2,600
381,694 331,331 414,133 507,538 93,405

New Dept. 5111-01 Assistant Supt. of Human Resources & Wellness
Move from Supt. 

Budget 150,000 $150,000 0

5111-01
Move from Supt. 

Budget 60,000 $67,000 7,000
5302-04 0 $1,000 1,000

5303-04 Advertising 0 $2,000 $2,000

5519-05

Deleted 

onboarding 

software & 

implementation 0 $0 0

5420-05
Includes job fair 

supplies 0 $500 500
5730-06 0 $2,000 2,000

0 0 210,000 222,500 12,500

Administrative Assistants                                                                 3.00

Assistant Director of Finance & Operations 

Assistant Superintendent of Finance & Operations

   Assistant Supt. Curriculum & Technology

   Assistant Supt. Of Human Resources & Wellness

   Registration and Residency Coordinator

1000 ADMINISTRATION

Dues/Subscriptions

SCHOOL BUSINESS SERVICES

SUPERINTENDENT'S OFFICE

SCHOOL COMMITTEE

Conferences
Advertising
School Committee Materials
Dues and Subscriptions

Recording Secretary

   Human Resources Specialist
   Media Relations Manager

   Superintendent
Administrative Salaries

Contracted Services
DESE and Annual Audits

Conferences

Secretary/Clerical Substitute

Conferences
Administrative Assistants (add'l 1.0 - bldg rental rev.)                      4.00

 

DESCRIPTION

Mileage
Office Supplies
Dues & Subscriptions

Contracted Services

Human Resources Specialist
Conferences

Dues & Subscriptions

Office Supplies

Software 

Office Supplies

HUMAN RESOURCES

   Set-aside for FY25 salary increases  - paras, non-aligned, turnover 

   Registration and Residency Supervisor

 1167



STOUGHTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS FY 2025 BUDGET BY ACCOUNT

 1/16/24 

Account FY23 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY24/25

DEPT Number
Approved Expended Approved Requested Difference

 

DESCRIPTION

New Dept. 5118-01 Deleted $0 0
5302-04 Deleted $0 0
5303-04 Deleted $0 0
5540-05 Deleted $0 0

0 0

1000 ADMINISTRATION GRAND TOTAL 1,256,176 1,835,314 1,539,488 1,764,085 224,597

000 5111-01 Parent-Child Home Program Coordinators (0.5) 32,003 29,294 32,803 0 (32,803)
5123-03 30,000 31,770 30,000 0 (30,000)
5303-04 15,000 12,752 15,000 0 (15,000)
5302-04 2,000 0 2,000 0 (2,000)
5511-05 0 0 0 0 0
5123-03 4,500 0 4,500 0 (4,500)
5303-04 7,500 3,938 7,500 0 (7,500)
5130-02 500 0 500 0 (500)
5190-01 Early Retirement Incentive / Sick Leave Buy Back Contractual 157,075 190,883 125,000 175,000 50,000

248,578 268,637 217,303 175,000 (42,303)

091 5120-03 Mandated 18,000 20,011 20,000 20,000 0
18,000 20,011 20,000 20,000 0

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT (& CURRICULUM UPDATE CYCLE)

095 5117-01 5,280 0 5,250 5,250 0
5118-01 Stipends/Curriculum/Teacher Training 26,335 179,468 23,486 23,486 0
5302-04 32,850 33,851 32,850 15,000 (17,850)
5303-04 Contracted Services/Professional Development 77,850 46,070 77,850 15,000 (62,850)
5365-04 Course Reimbursement (Contractual-Article XVII) Contractual 80,000 71,378 80,000 80,000 0
554005/ 
551105 19,650 31,995 20,700 20,000 (700)
5730-06 Dues & Subscriptions SW-OMS-SHS 27,893 28,446 26,535 26,535 0

269,858 391,208 266,671 185,271 -81,400

096 5111-01 Curriculum Supervisor Secondary 94,361 112,736 104,687 126,258 21,571
5111-01 Curriculum Supervisor Elementary 111,072 111,071 113,574 123,783 10,209
5117-01 8,500 0 8,500 8,500 0
5118-01 Professional Development Stipends 1,989 1,860 2,002 2,075 73
5122-01 12,852 6,637 12,320 6,000 (6,320)
5302-04 15,750 7,908 17,250 647 (16,603)
5303-04 34,450 44,545 61,250 25,090 (36,160)
5511-05 2,000 531 2,000 0 (2,000)
5540-05 Instructional Supplies/Equipment 90,473 92,949 105,800 75,000 (30,800)
5730-06 247 0 614 614 0

371,694 378,237 427,997 367,967 (60,030)

CURRICULUM STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering, Math, Health & PE)

097 5111-01 Curriculum Supervisor Secondary 102,135 102,103 104,687 121,402 16,715
5111-01 Curriculum Supervisor Elementary 111,072 111,071 113,848 123,783 9,935
5117-01 6,290 0 6,290 6,290 0
5118-01 Professional Development Stipends 3,672 930 3,080 6,355 3,275
5122-01 15,570 4,131 15,256 10,000 (5,256)
5302-04 19,296 6,570 19,296 4,000 (15,296)
5303-04 23,250 15,023 61,250 31,296 (29,954)
5511-05 2,000 500 2,000 2,000 0
5513-05 0
5540-05 Instructional Supplies/Equipment 66,601 82,365 66,601 39,149 (27,452)

CURRICULUM HUMANITIES                 (English, World Language & Social Studies)

Parent-Child Home Materials (books, materials, dues, literacy events)
Contracted Services
Parent Engagement Supplies
Printing 
Homework Center Tutoring
Clerical Overtime/Substitute

SYSTEM WIDE

Conferences
Contracted Services
General Supplies

Dues & Subscriptions

Summer Curric Dev/Training

Home/Hospital Tutoring

Salaries/Substitutes

2000 INSTRUCTION

HOME INSTRUCTION

Parent-Child Home Visitors

Conferences

Salaries/Substitutes

Instr. Supplies/Equipment/Annual Curriculum Update Cycle purchases 

Salaries/Substitutes

Conferences
Contracted Services
General Supplies
Textbooks

Summer Curric Dev/Training

Stipends
Conferences
Prof. Development
Instructional Materials 

Diversity, Equity, Inclusion & Belonging (DEIB)

 2168



STOUGHTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS FY 2025 BUDGET BY ACCOUNT

 1/16/24 

Account FY23 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY24/25

DEPT Number
Approved Expended Approved Requested Difference

 

DESCRIPTION

5730-06 992 365 992 992 0
350,878 323,058 393,300 345,267 (48,033)

STEP/CLASS CHANGE

099 5116-01 Degree Reclassification (Contractual-Article XVIII)

Budget here, 

expend in salary 

lines 128,000 0 120,000 200,000 80,000

128,000 0 120,000 200,000 80,000

ADMINISTRATION/ELEMENTARY

100 5111-01 607,678 611,449 625,545 625,545 0(133,990, 117,667, 115,228, 128,043, 112,750)

5111-01
Del - 4 Assistant 

Principals 0 0

 5111-01 Data Intervention/ESY Supervisor 109,776 105,718 108,362 119,022 10,660
5112-02 294,006 299,595 305,708 305,708 0

5117-03 Substitute Teaching (All Elementary Schools )
Inc. 5 Building 

Subs added FY24 156,622 320,214 156,622 230,238 73,6165118-01 MCAS Tutoring
5118-01 Assistant Principal Stipends (5) 13,743 13,745 13,950 13,950 0

5118-01 Elementary Enrichment Program 177,630 341,369 177,630 0 (177,630)
5118-01 Elementary Targeted Intervention Program 40,600 40,600 40,600 0
5118-01 Elementary Building-Based Remediation Program 28,420 28,420 28,420 0
5118-01 Knights Summer 8/9 Transition Program 6,000 6,000 0 (6,000)
5118-01 Knights Summer 6-8 Transition Program 60,000 60,000 0 (60,000)
5118-01 Knights of Summer 5/6 Transition Program 6,000 6,000 0 (6,000)
5307-04 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 0
5420-05 Office Supplies - All Elementary Schools 13,540 12,962 13,540 10,000 (3,540)
5540-05 1,500 996 1,500 1,000 (500)

1,518,515 1,709,048 1,546,877 1,377,483 (169,394)

101 5116-01

Position deleted, 

incumbent 

budgeted in 

teacher line + 

stipend below 95,000 84,057 95,000 0 (95,000)
5118-01 see above 1,681  5,719 0 (5,719)
5118-01 HS Visual Arts Dept. Head Stipend 5,949 5,949
5118-01 MS Visual Arts Head Teacher Stipend 2,831 2,831

5118-05 PK-Grade 5 Visual Arts Liaison Stipend 2,469 2,469
5116-01 911,445 959,140 960,228 1,000,891 40,663
5303-04 2,040 0 2,040 2,040 0

5540-05 Instructional Supplies/Equipment 48,350 55,058 54,104 54,104 0
5730-06 2,345 2,056 2,345 2,345 0

1,060,861 1,100,311 1,119,436 1,070,629 -48,807

MUSIC

108 5116-01 987,891 937,974 1,019,928 1,141,278 121,350

5118-01 Music K -12 Dept Head Stipend See below 8,658 8,475 5,719 0 (5,719)
5118-01 HS Performing Arts Dept. Head Stipend 5,949 5,949
5118-01 MS Performing Arts Head Teacher Stipend 2,831 2,831
5118-01 PK-Grade 5 Performing Arts Liaison Stipend 2,469 2,469

5113-03 3,800 17,189 3,200 3,200 0

5275-04

Delete10k - Band 

Comp. hosting 

and plus reduction 

from prior year 4,000 4,000 4,200 0 (4,200)
5303-04 61,805 56,777 63,115 42,960 (20,155)5513-05 Textbooks 0

5307-04 1,400 0 1,400 1,400 0

5513-05 10,695 2,360 10,695 4,000 (6,695)
5540-05 Instructional Supplies/Equipment 19,320 12,892 20,000 20,000 0
5730-06 13,250 10,343 16,912 16,912 0

1,110,819 1,050,010 1,145,169 1,240,999 95,830

114 5116-01 65,878 67,964 72,839 79,435 6,596Professional Salaries                                                                     1.00

NEW - Fine and 

Performing Arts  

stipends ea. Level 

instead of K-12

NEW - Fine and 

Performing Arts  

stipends ea. Level 

instead of K-12

Art K -12 Dept Head Stipend

Contracted Services

 

Professional Salaries  - Elementary Principals                                 5.00    

Professional Salaries - Elementary Assistant Principals                   0.00

Fine Arts Director

Professional Salaries

ART

Professional Salaries (Elementary 5/Secondary 8)                        13.00

DRAMA

Contracted Services

Mileage

Dues & Subscriptions

Textbooks (and sheet music)

Dues & Subscriptions

Dues & Subscriptions

Custodial Overtime

Summer Band Program

Admin Assistants (5.0)

Mileage Principals (5 @ $600)

Instructional Equipment

 3169



STOUGHTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS FY 2025 BUDGET BY ACCOUNT

 1/16/24 

Account FY23 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY24/25

DEPT Number
Approved Expended Approved Requested Difference

 

DESCRIPTION

5303-04 4,000 15,795 12,000 12,000 0
5513-05 200 0 200 200 0
5540-05 Instructional Supplies/Equipment 3,300 3,462 3,500 3,500 0

5730-06 258 0 400 400 0
73,636 87,221 88,939 95,535 6,596

102 5116-01 1,985,143 1,934,058 2,005,533 2,074,892 69,359
5118-01 5,719 5,719 5,804 5,978 174

5118-01 2,749 2,749 2,790 2,874 84
5118-01 0
5122-01 0
5302-04 2,500 744 2,500 1,000 (1,500)
5303-04 5,000 3,793 5,000 5,000 0
5511-05 3,500 3,615 3,500 3,439 (61)
5513-05 10,000 13,934 10,000 10,000 0

5515-05 350 0 350 350 0
5540-05 2,100 5,779 400 461 61

5730-06

Delete request to 

implement MS 

Book Clubs 2,200 1,701 2,200 2,200 0
2,019,260 1,972,092 2,038,077 2,106,194 68,117

103 5116-01 1,594,091 1,438,045 1,577,798 1,500,203 (77,595)
5118-01 5,719 0 5,804 5,978 174
5118-01 2,749 2,749 2,790 2,874 84
5122-01 0
5511-05 3,000 4,504 3,300 5,842 2,542
5513-05 5,000 2,226 3,600 4,800 1,200
5515-05 600 600 0 (600)
5303-04 2,500 2,113 3,000 0 (3,000)
5730-06 3,000 3,007 3,000 2,858 (142)

1,619,659 1,454,504 1,602,892 1,524,555 (78,337)

104 5513-05 0 0 0 0

5540-05 Instructional Supplies/Equipment 600 519 600 600 05730-06 Dues & Subscriptions 0 0 0
600 519 600 600 0

107 5116-01 2,397,839 2,307,292 2,432,388 2,648,232 215,844

 5123-03
Delete (prior 

ESSER funded) 0 0

5118-01 5,719 5,719 5,804 5,978 174
5118-01 2,749 2,749 2,790 2,874 84
5118-01 0
5122-01 0
5303-04 1,500 1,193 1,500 1,500 0
5307-04 0
5511-05 1,513 2,185 1,535 695 (840)
5513-05 750 0 750 1,590 840
5540-05 Instructional Supplies/Equipment 2,478 6,165 0 0 0
5540-05 9,446 9,653 9,653 0
5730-06 850 370 750 750 0

2,422,844 2,325,673 2,455,170 2,671,272 216,102

109 5116-01 1,042,235 1,039,986 1,112,992 1,171,090 58,098
5118-01 0 5,719 5,949 230
5118-01 New - contractual 2,831 2,831
5118-01 New - contractual 2,469 2,469

Professional Salaries                                                                     11.50

Professional Salaries (Secondary)                                                 23.00

Elementary Math Support (Interventionists)                                     0.00

Dept Head Stipend

ENGLISH

Curriculum Stipend
Summer Work

Teacher Lead Stipend

Contracted Services

PK - Grade 5 Liaison

Dues & Subscriptions

Contracted Services
Mileage
General Supplies
Textbooks 

Elementary Math Supplies

Textbooks

Dept Head Stipend
Teacher Lead Stipend
Curriculum Stipend
Summer Work

General Supplies
Textbooks

HS PE Director Stipend
MS Head Teacher Stipend

Contracted Services
Audio/Visual

Dues & Subscriptions

Instructional Supplies/Equipment

Dues & Subscriptions

Dept Head Stipend
Lead Teacher Stipend
Summer Work

Conferences
Contracted Services
General Supplies
Textbooks

Audio/Visual

Textbooks (and scripts)

Dues & Subscriptions

FOREIGN LANGUAGE

HEALTH CURRICULUM

Professional Salaries (Secondary)                                                 18.00

MATH

PHYSICAL EDUCATION

Professional Salaries (4 Elem./25.6 Secondary                              30.00

 4170



STOUGHTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS FY 2025 BUDGET BY ACCOUNT

 1/16/24 

Account FY23 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY24/25

DEPT Number
Approved Expended Approved Requested Difference

 

DESCRIPTION

5540-05 Instructional Supplies/Equipment 9,285 8,381 9,285 8,400 (885)
1,051,520 1,048,367 1,127,996 1,190,739 62,743

110 5116-01 1,051,565 1,094,270 1,167,452 1,417,752 250,300
5511-05 100 71 200 0 (200)
5540-05 Elementary Literacy Consumables 60,000 71,634 60,000 60,220 220
5540-05 Instructional Supplies/Equipment 13,200 0 12,775 13,023 248
5730-06 250 0 268 0 (268)

1,125,115 1,165,975 1,240,695 1,490,995 250,300

112 5116-01 1,939,864 1,995,057 1,917,047 2,185,205 268,158
5118-01 5,719 5,719 5,804 5,978 174
5118-01 2,749 2,220 2,790 2,874 84
5302-04 1,000 1,300 1,185 (115)
5303-04 6,404 1,662 5,465 6,250 785
5540-05 Instructional Supplies/Equipment 32,494 59,469 33,170 32,697 (473)
5540-05 Elementary Science Consumables 10,540 11,570 7,896 (3,674)

 5730-06 1,750 2,530 2,150 2,150 0
2,001,426 2,068,220 1,980,434 2,245,379 264,945

113 5116-01
Delete add'l 1.0 

fte 1,897,343 1,860,083 1,947,320 2,101,481 154,161
5118-01 5,719 5,719 5,804 5,978 174
5118-01 2,749 2,749 2,790 2,874 84
5303-04 2,200 428 2,200 2,200 0
5511-05 1,251 1,775 1,560 (215)
5513-05 2,964 8,412 3,410 1,732 (1,678)
5540-05 Instructional Supplies/Equipment 1,995 5,718 5,600 7,493 1,893
5730-06 0 0 0 0 0

1,914,221 1,883,109 1,968,899 2,123,318 154,419

116 5116-01 528,395 460,382 475,722 450,403 (25,319)
5302-04 1,520 0 930 1,210 280
5303-04 2,000 4,200 4,000 2,000 (2,000)
5511-05 269 1,271 355 375 20
5513-05 1,600 974 1,600 3,300 1,700
5730-06 720 994 720 720 0

534,504 467,821 483,327 458,008 (25,319)

118 5511-05  Field Trips 500 614 500 0 (500)
5540-05 Instructional Supplies/Equipment 800 513 5,000 0 (5,000)
5730-06 609 385 610 0 (610)Total 1,909 1,512 6,110 0 (6,110)

1,909 1,512 6,110 0 -6,110

119 5515-05 6,198 3,450 6,198 5,776 (422)
6,198 3,450 6,198 5,776 (422)

121 5116-01 Professional Salaries (Secondary) 69,517 69,517 74,245 81,645 7,400
5123-03 142,555 148,505 148,168 198,451 50,283
5511-05 500 0 500 500 0
5581-05 5,000 15,411 5,000 5,000 0

5730-06

Online Database - 

Delete new 

funding request 0
217,572 233,433 227,913 285,596 57,683

123 5118-01 105,000 101,500 105,000 112,530 7,530
5116-01 1,188,537 1,059,887 1,063,864 1,168,141 104,277

Professional Salaries (Elem. 10  / Secondary 3)                             12.00

Professional Salaries (Secondary)                                                 23.00

Professional Salaries (Secondary)                                                 21.00

Professional Salaries (Secondary)                                                   5.00

Director of Guidance 6-12
Professional Salaries (Elem. 4.5 / OMS 3 / HS 5.4)                        12.60

SCHOOL COUNSELING (Guidance)

Library books, periodicals

Dues/Subscriptions 

Audio/Visual

Conferences
Contracted Services
General Supplies
Textbooks

Library Assistants 
General Supplies

AUDIO/VISUAL

MULTIMEDIA SERVICES

SCIENCE

Dues & Subscriptions

General Supplies

READING

 

SOCIAL STUDIES

BUSINESS EDUCATION

 

OMS AFTER SCHOOL ACTIVITIES

Dues & Subscriptions

Contracted Services
Conferences
Teacher Lead Stipend
Dept Head Stipend

Dept Head Stipend
Teacher Lead Stipend
Contracted Services
General Supplies
Textbooks 

Dues & Subscriptions

Dues & Subscriptions

Dues & Subscriptions

General Supplies

 5171



STOUGHTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS FY 2025 BUDGET BY ACCOUNT

 1/16/24 

Account FY23 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY24/25

DEPT Number
Approved Expended Approved Requested Difference

 

DESCRIPTION

5122-01 Head Counselor Stipend/Stipends 13,702 2,831 2,831
5112-02 35,875 29,799 37,645 44,350 6,705
5122-01 31,000 0 33,000 25,000 (8,000)
5302-04 1,350 225 1,150 1,150 0
5303-04 3,900 0 2,250 1,050 (1,200)
5511-05 500 4,908 500 500 0

 554005 Instructional Supplies/Equipment 14,500 15,367 14,500 10,000 (4,500)
5730-06 2,000 599 2,000 1,685 (315)

1,382,662 1,225,987 1,259,909 1,367,237 107,328

124 5116-01 832,352 723,086 841,139 809,010 (32,129)
341,441
124,160

85,169
78,000

 60,000

110,740

9,500

0 0
5303-04 Various vendors 41,517 0

5511-05 Batteries, cords 31,250 0

5240-04
Rosetta Stone not 

renewed 36,432 66,750 66,750 0
5307-04 8,000 6,117 8,000 8,000 0
5302-04 5,000 0 5,000 2,000 (3,000)

5519-05 550,220 721,748 745,340 628,352 (116,988)

5540-05

Enrollment, staff 

device repl, 

annual student 

devices 215,000 480,844 217,800 178,281 (39,519)

5540-05
iMacs need 

replacing 40,500 40,000 40,000 0
1,687,504 2,004,562 1,924,029 1,732,393 (191,636)

131 5540-05 Instructional Supplies/Equipment (5 Elementary Schools) 12,308 13,783 9,725 9,725 0
12,308 13,783 9,725 9,725 0

133 5123-03 292,508 183,740 304,857 0 (304,857)
292,508 183,740 304,857 0 -304,857

133 5116-01 1,143,076 1,158,365 1,226,115 1,171,563 (54,552)
134 5116-01 1,509,436 1,381,242 1,450,976 1,352,379 (98,597)
135 5116-01 1,387,882 1,425,604 1,311,026 1,589,569 278,543
136 5116-01 1,174,851 1,141,064 1,227,373 1,304,916 77,543
137 5116-01 1,240,337 1,147,427 1,144,592 1,181,724 37,132
138 5116-01 1,135,108 1,047,187 1,086,652 1,013,677 (72,975)

7,590,690 7,300,889 7,446,734 7,613,828 167,094

030 5111-01 114,384 127,000 128,270 128,270 0
5112-02 45,685 44,765 46,376 46,376 0

 5116-01 65,000 0 65,000 65,000 0

5116-01

Delete 1.0 FTE 

requested to be 

added 

(enrollment) 421,770 443,705 253,388 438,943 185,555

5117-03 17,500 76,156 17,500 20,000 2,500
5307-04 600 600 600 0
5420-05 950 2,503 1,900 1,900 0

Elementary Teachers                                                                       3.80
Educ Technology Supervisor
Data Coordinator 
Technology Coordinator
Technology Integration Specialist

Technicians                                                                                     2.5

Contracted Services

General Supplies

Online Textbook 
Mileage

Support Contracts (Software)

Conferences

Hardware Replacement

Instructional Equipment

ELEMENTARY LANGUAGE ARTS

KINDERGARTEN AIDES

Professional Salaries

Overtime

Summer Assistance

Summer Curric Dev/Training/Scheduling 
Conferences
Contracted Services
General Supplies

Dues & Subscriptions

Admin Assistant (10-month position)

TECHNOLOGY

Professional Salaries (Kindergarten Aides)                                   

ELEMENTARY PROFESSIONAL SALARIES

Professional Salaries (Kindergarten)                                              13.00
Professional Salaries (Grade 1)                                                     16.00
Professional Salaries (Grade 2)                                                     16.00
Professional Salaries (Grade 3)                                                     14.00
Professional Salaries (Grade 4)                                                     12.00
Professional Salaries (Grade 5)                                                     12.00

 

JONES EARLY CHILDHOOD CENTER

Professional Salaries (5.0 Addtl. Fr: Grant/Revolving)                    10.00 

School Psychologist

Substitutes
Mileage
Office Supplies

Director
Admin Assistant

          ($165,000 has been offset from Preschool Revolving Account)

 6172



STOUGHTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS FY 2025 BUDGET BY ACCOUNT

 1/16/24 

Account FY23 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY24/25

DEPT Number
Approved Expended Approved Requested Difference

 

DESCRIPTION

5511-05 2,250 3,500 3,500 0
5303-04 500 500 500 0
5540-05 3,500 3,500 900 (2,600)

672,139 694,129 520,534 705,989 185,455

140 5116-01 257,592 229,446 244,597 317,217 72,620
5122-01 500 0 0 420 420
5303-04 3,000 250 3,000 4,000 1,000
5511-05 4,200 1,322 4,200 1,000 (3,200)
5513-05 500 500 700 200
5540-05 Instructional Supplies/Equipment 0 200 1,700 1,500
5730-06 583 583 590 7

266,375 231,018 253,080 325,627 72,547

180 5111-01
Contractual 

change 110,804 110,804 113,574 136,560 22,986
5111-01 110,323 110,323

5116-01 Professional Salaries (0 District / 10.6 Elem. / 6.4 Secondary)

Delete 1.0 FTE 

ESL/SEI coach/co-

teacher 998,060 1,006,864 1,166,056 1,572,294 406,238
5112-02 Delete 1.0 FTE 0

5123-03

Delete 2.0 FTE 

Community 

Liaison and 

Translation 

Specialists 80,000 457 80,000 136,904 56,904
5118-03 2,000 7,675 2,000 2,000 0

5303-04
Translation 

Services 10,600 47,472 90,000 45,000 (45,000)
5511-05 1,000 18,054 6,000 6,604 604
5302-04 0 1,300 1,300 1,300
5540-05 Instructional Supplies/Equipment 14,824 14,824 12,920 (1,904)

1,217,288 1,191,326 1,473,754 2,023,905 551,451

183 5511-05 500 0 0 0 0
500 0 0 0 0

185 5116-01 Professional Salaries (Secondary) 220,466 253,366 232,500 304,880 72,380

220,466 253,366 232,500 304,880 72,380

199 5511-05

Copy Paper 60k 

plus other shared 

supply stock 85,000 85,973 60,000 60,000 0
85,000 85,973 60,000 60,000 0

200 5111-01 351,312 332,288 354,723 350,222 (4,501)

Delete 1.0 FTE 0 0
5112-02 165,264 175,882 176,891 179,619 2,728

22,342
5118-01 18,000 8,209 18,000 18,000 0
5118-01 6,000 6,210 5,710 (500)

2,500 2,500 2,500 0
5117-03 55,511 130,890 55,500 55,500 05118-01 3 Morning Duty Teachers (café, gym, parking lot)  0 0 0 0
5303-04 4,500 3,056 4,500 4,500 0

Contracted Services
General Supplies
Textbooks

Dues/Subscriptions

Summer Curric Dev/Training

ELE Supervisor
ELE Coordinator

Summer Intakes

Contracted Services

 

ELE

Contracted Services

Professional Salaries (Secondary)                                                   3.50

Admin Assistant

Aides                                                                                              5.00

General Supplies

General Supplies 

Extended Day

MS After School  Sports

ALTERNATIVE HS PROGRAM

General Supplies
Contracted Services
Instr. Equip. (majority of supply expense is paid from the Spec. Ed Budget 766)

SYSTEMWIDE 504

STEM

GENERAL SUPPLIES (ALL SCHOOLS)

General Supplies
Conferences 

ADMINISTRATION - MIDDLE SCHOOL

Professional Salaries

Salaries -Admin. Assistants

Salaries - Substitute Teachers 

  Administrative Principal                                                             125,000

  Dean of Students                                                                      104,000
  Dean of Students                                                                     

  Assistant Principal                                                                    121,222

  Admin Assistant                                                                         74,551
  Admin Assistant                                                                         63,288
  10 month Admin Assistant                                                          41,780

MS Activities

  Admin - Aides- Corridor

 7173



STOUGHTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS FY 2025 BUDGET BY ACCOUNT

 1/16/24 

Account FY23 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY24/25

DEPT Number
Approved Expended Approved Requested Difference

 

DESCRIPTION

5307-04 600 600 600 600 0
5420-05 1,500 1,747 1,500 1,500 0

605,187 675,014 620,424 618,151 (2,273)

300 5111-01 561,420 445,688 548,628 619,915 71,287

5112-02 169,705 148,661 178,962 198,364 19,402

5117-03 70,000 164,828 70,000 88,558 18,558
5118-01 9,000 9,567 9,500 18,000 8,500
5118-01 12,000 0 12,000 12,000 0
5129-03 Hourly - After School Suspension Coverage 9,000 2,875 9,000 9,000 0
5130-02 500 910 900 900 0
5303-04 18,125 6,542 23,000 23,000 0
5304-04 2,300 211 2,300 0 (2,300)
5307-04 850 850 850 850 0
5420-05 1,500 2,991 3,500 3,000 (500)
5511-05 6,173 10,626 6,750 15,000 8,250
5516-05 15,281 19,981 20,000 13,000 (7,000)
5512-05 1,200 1,200 0 (1,200)
5517-05 7,945 1,292 20,000 0 (20,000)

884,999 815,022 906,590 1,001,587 94,997

301 5303-04 25,908 30,010 28,870 30,250 1,380
5540-05 754 388 754 400 (354)

26,662 30,398 29,624 30,650 1,026

350 5511-05 615 0 750 2,781 2,031
5513-05 200 0 1,568 0 (1,568)
5540-05 Instructional Supplies/Equipment 2,800 5,662 2,379 1,916 (463)

3,615 5,662 4,697 4,697 0

500 5271-04 Contract Service (Photocopiers) 132,000 65,375 134,300 134,300 0
5511-05 Materials & Supplies (toner & staples) 20,000 24,429 7,000 7,000 0

152,000 89,804 141,300 141,300 0

550 5272-04 3,700 5,161 3,700 3,700 0
5420-05 7,500 15,000 7,500 7,500 0

11,200 20,161 11,200 11,200 0

766 5111-01 134,665 152,665 138,032 138,032 0
24,230 31,149 19,500 0 (19,500)

 93,000.00 115,423 93,000 14,886 (78,114)
 116,688 116,688

110,000 110,000
5112-02 Salaries - Admin Assistant  3.00 170,439 131,977 159,104 161,859 2,755
5116-01 5,293,813 4,198,212 5,395,093 6,521,806 1,126,713

 2,250,005
1,106,282
1,253,156

Accreditation Expenses

Overtime/Substitute - Clerical

Unit B Administrator Stipends

General/AV Supplies
Textbooks

   Middle School (+ 3 grant-funded), del. add 1.0 team facilitator               12.00
   High School (+ 1.8 funded from grant)                                         16.20

Spec Ed PK-5 Supervisor (partially grant funded)

Professional Salaries

Graduation Supplies
Advisory Supplies

PHOTO COPY  LEASE /MAINTENANCE

 Spec. Ed. Director
Contracted Services 

Mileage
Office Supplies

  10 Month Admin  Assistant (1)

Meter Rental
Postage

POSTAGE MACHINE

  Admin Assistants (2)

PEER MEDIATION

Peer Mediation Coordinator 
Peer Mediation Supplies

TV STUDIO - SYSTEM-WIDE

ADMINISTRATION - HIGH SCHOOL 

  Administrative Principal                                                            148,858
  Assistant Principal                                                                   131,258
  Assistant Principal                                                                   116,688
  Dean                                                                                       106,080
  Dean                                                                                       117,031

Professional Salaries

Salaries - Adm Assistant

Extended Day

Contracted Services
Book Rebinds
Mileage

Salaries - Sub. Teachers 

Office Supplies
General Supplies

  Registrar (1)

 

SPECIAL EDUCATION

Spec Ed 6-12 Supervisor 
Out of District Coordinator 

   Elem. (+ 3.5 grant funded), add  1.0 RISE prog . /2.0 fte team facilitator    25.00

 8174



STOUGHTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS FY 2025 BUDGET BY ACCOUNT

 1/16/24 

Account FY23 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY24/25

DEPT Number
Approved Expended Approved Requested Difference

 

DESCRIPTION

1,912,363 1,386,320
148,000 169,000 97,725 169,000 230,000 61,000

5118-03 Dept Head/Teacher Lead Stipends 7,975 8,668 8,095 8,338 243

5118-03 New - contractual 2,469 2,469
5137-01 589,793 509,444 588,101 628,360 40,259
5123-03 Salaries Aides/Teachers Assistants/Assistive Aides 2,324,718 1,586,305 2,328,120 2,639,199 311,079

 Totals reflect 

PreS Revolving 

Fund offset

5302-04 1,560 1,521 2,229 2,229 0

5303-04 524,577 770,858 834,121 841,431 7,310
5305-04 13,650 25,977 23,710 20,000 (3,710)
5307-04 5,000 9,154 5,000 5,000 0
5420-05 2,000 1,321 2,000 2,000 0
5522-05 Psychological Supplies/Materials 25,000 25,000 25,000 0
5521-05 34,781 24,235 39,250 27,500 (11,750)5583-05 Adjustment Counselor Supplies 0 0
5730-06 1,500 4,190 3,623 3,650 3,650

9,415,701 9,055,144 9,832,978 11,498,447 1,669,092

2000 INSTRUCTION GRAND TOTAL 42,591,970 41,828,394 43,515,938 46,630,200 3,119,185

115 5111-01 105,182 102,617 105,182 115,000 9,818

5111-01 Currently vacant 40,000 40,000 0 (40,000)

5112-04
Training Svcs, 

Police details 45,000 87,143 45,000 51,000 6,000

5113-03 10,640 12,369 12,000 11,628 (372)

 5125-03

Now includes MS 

and Unified 

Teams 395,669 250,096 405,879 384,776 (21,103)

5126-03
Shift most to 

Contracted line 55,600 13,875 55,600 16,315 (39,285)
5240-04 8,661 7,513 8,661 8,661 0
5274-04 Not discretionary 15,350 60,342 13,100 43,962 30,862
5302-04 1,450 1,430 1,450 1,200 (250)

5306-04
Contracted 

Officials 55,604 0 55,604 55,604
5307-04 600 600 600 0
5330-04 92,810 109,750 91,203 91,203 0
5517-05 33,531 51,339 33,531 33,531 0
5730-06 21,490 20,621 21,490 21,490 0

825,983 772,699 833,696 834,970 1,274

145 5116-01 810,417 700,387 847,874 754,151 (93,723)
106,080 106,080

5118-03 12,579 13,433 15,412 15,412 0
7,500 0 7,500 7,500 0

5117-03 20,000 150 31,000 5,000 (26,000)
5123-03 22,371 10,331 31,204 0 (31,204)
5302-04 1,000 1,139 1,000 1,000 0
5500-05 5,500 6,213 10,724 10,724 0
5730-06 400 0 500 500 0

879,767 731,653 945,214 900,367 (44,847)

399 5118-01 Appendix B & D stipend positions 77,350 65,582 79,284 81,663 2,379
77,350 65,582 79,284 81,663 2,379

   Related Service Providers  del. add'l  1.0 fte BCBA                                21.50

  Elem., inc. PreK (add'l 2.0 funded from grant)  add  3.0 fte RISE prog .  62.50
  Middle School                                                                              14.50

  High School                                                                                 14.00

3000 OTHER SCHOOL SERVICES

HEALTH SERVICES

Conferences

Contracted Services
Professional Development
Mileage
Office Supplies

Instructional Supplies, Equipment &Tech

Dues & Subscriptions

Coaches, per Unit A Contract 

Home Game Officials

Athletic Director Assistant

Contracted Service/Athletic Trainer

Athletic Director

Conferences

Conferences
Supplies
Dues & Subscriptions

Substitutes

Health Services Summer Work

Mileage
Contracted Services

Bldg. Coverage Custodian

Pk- Grade 5 Counselor Liaison Stipend
Salaries - School Psychologists                                                       6.00

Summer Programs

ATHLETICS

Transportation - Away Contests & Practices

Reconditioning & Inspection of Equipment
Rental Offsite Facilities (hockey, swim, golf)

Athletic & Medical Supplies - tapes, replacement uniforms
Dues & Subscriptions  MIAA fees, Hockomock dues

Clinic Aide                                                                                       

Health Services Supervisor                                                              1.00

School Physician (prescriptions)

Professional Salaries                                                                       9.00

STUDENT ACTIVITIES

HALL MONITORS (SECURITY)

 9175



STOUGHTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS FY 2025 BUDGET BY ACCOUNT

 1/16/24 

Account FY23 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY24/25

DEPT Number
Approved Expended Approved Requested Difference

 

DESCRIPTION

300 5123-03 Hall Monitors (OMS 4 / HS 7) 207,360 185,861 207,360 207,360 0
207,360 185,861 207,360 207,360 0

000 5330-04 ATI - Alice Training Institute 0 0 0 0 0

5145-03 School Security Supervisor Stipend 5,000 3,000 5,000 0 (5,000)

 5303-04 Maintenance for School Security Equipment

 Cameras, 

speakers,etc. - 

adds & 

replacements 30,000 0 30,000 0 (30,000)
35,000 3,000 35,000 0 (35,000)

000 5118-03 50,000 17,675 50,750 30,450 (20,300)
50,000 17,675 50,750 30,450 (20,300)

150 5330-04
Contractual 

increase 859,506 1,018,140 1,058,080 1,028,033 (30,047)

5332-04 160,245 105,004 164,521 0 (164,521)
$175k estimated 

net of State 

funding 100,000 120,441 50,000 175,000 125,000
5480-05 6,000 8,660 6,000 6,000 0

1,125,751 1,252,245 1,278,601 1,209,033 (69,568)

766 5119-03
5307-04 3,500 5,654 4,000 4,000 0
5330-04 1,400,000 2,595,024 2,879,674 2,879,674 0

1,403,500 2,600,678 2,883,674 2,883,674 0

3000 OTHER SCHOOL SERVICES GRAND  TOTAL 4,604,711 5,629,393 6,313,579 6,147,517 (166,062)

4000 5240-04 1,038 1,038 0 (1,038)

1,000 1,000 0 (1,000)
9,286 6,725 9,286 0 (9,286)
3,500 3,500 0 (3,500)
1,800 1,216 1,800 0 (1,800)

0 0 0 0
1,899 1,899 0 (1,899)

Moved to TECH 

Budget 119,500 0 0 0
0 0 0 0

3,500 3,500 0 (3,500)
700 500 0 (500)

3,000 3,000 0 (3,000)
145,223 7,941 25,523 0 (25,523)

162 5113-03 1,311,508 1,222,840 1,337,381 1,372,112 34,731

 

5131-03 40,000 27,082 40,000 40,000 05179-03 0 0 0 0
5273-04 Contractual 5,000 11,228 7,300 13,000 5,700

Contracted Transportation (FY24 count plus add another bus) 

Reimbursement/Parent Travel
Special Edu. Transportation 

Salaries - Monitors

100-Elementary Schools

4000 OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE

   Part-time Security Person

109-Phys. Ed
112-Science
121-Library/Media
145-Health Services

124-Computer Technology

Salaries

   Middle School                                                                              5.00

   Team Cleaning                                                                            8.00
   Maint/Operations Coordinator

CUSTODIAL                        6 Elementary Schools, 1 Middle School, 1 High School

   Elementary & Jones                                                                     6.00

101-Art

   Mail delivery

   High School                                                                                 6.00

108-Music

200-Middle School
300-High School/Athletics
350-TV Studio
766-Special Education

Uniform Rental/Repair

RESIDENCY/TRUANCY OFFICER

TRANSPORTATION/REGULAR DAY (Not included in Net School Spending)

TRANSPORTATION/SPECIAL EDUCATION (Not included in Net School Spending)

MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT IN DEPTS.

Overtime/Custodial Services Request

 

SCHOOL SECURITY

Late Bus Run (5 elem, 2 secondary) 

Homeless and Foster Care Transportation 
Gas/Oil for School-Owned Vehicles

 10176



STOUGHTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS FY 2025 BUDGET BY ACCOUNT

 1/16/24 

Account FY23 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY24/25

DEPT Number
Approved Expended Approved Requested Difference

 

DESCRIPTION

5450-05 87,350 157,832 87,350 87,350 0
1,443,858 1,418,982 1,472,031 1,512,462 40,431

164 5210-04 597,000 564,584 597,000 500,000 (97,000)
5211-04 475,000 367,605 473,000 550,000 77,000
5230-04 147,500 184,656 144,500 200,000 55,500
5231-04 55,000 72,924 56,000 70,000 14,000
5341-04 20,000 24,480 26,500 26,500 0
5342-04 20,000 19,522 24,000 24,000 0

1,314,500 1,233,771 1,321,000 1,370,500 49,500

165 5114-03

Del .5/ current .5 

funded by Bldg 

Rental 0 0 0 0 0
5303-04 55,000 78,230 83,300 83,300 0
5430-05 29,500 6,449 25,800 25,800 0

84,500 84,679 109,100 109,100 0

166 5114-03 364,212 357,879 371,101 349,466 (21,635)

5132-03 10,000 1,366 10,000 10,000 0

5240-04 21,000 20,939 0 348,524 348,524
5242-
5440 531,477 785,272 593,524 245,000 (348,524)
5350-04 223,700 61,061 223,700 138,121 (85,579)
5307-04 3,450 8,160 3,450 3,450 0
5730-06 2,500 0 2,500 2,500 0

1,156,339 1,234,677 1,204,275 1,097,061 (107,214)

4000 OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE GRAND TOTAL 4,144,420 3,980,050 4,131,929 4,089,123 (42,806)

115 5740-06 18,956 19,619 20,455 0 (20,455)
37,427 46,009 50,000 50,000 0
56,383 65,628 70,455 50,000 (20,455)

600 5170-01 50,000 28,509 50,000 25,000 (25,000)

50,000 28,509 50,000 25,000 (25,000)

5000 FIXED CHARGES GRAND TOTAL 106,383 94,137 120,455 75,000 (45,455)DEPARTMENTS

766 5320-09 0 0 0 0 0
5321-09 2,662,966 1,871,069 2,721,772 5,218,730 2,496,958
5322-09 1,067,893 684,184 1,957,520 943,775 (1,013,745)

(1,286,248) (1,600,000) (2,000,000) (400,000)
2,444,611 2,555,253 3,079,292 4,162,505 1,083,213

9000 PROGRAMS W/OTHER DISTRICTS GRAND TOTAL 2,444,611 2,555,253 3,079,292 4,162,505 1,083,213

Extraordinary Maintenance

Salaries

Water and Sewer
Waste Disposal
Telephone
Communication System

Mileage
Dues and Subscriptions

UNEMPLOYMENT

 

   Maintenance                                                                                4.00

5000 FIXED CHARGES

Circuit Breaker Offset

Overtime Maintenance

Unemployment

Athletic Liability Insurance
Cyber Liability Insurance

**'Private School (38 students)

INSURANCE

SPECIAL EDUCATION

UTILITIES

Salaries - Part time Custodian/Grounds 
Contracted Services (repairs, lawn mowing, etc.)
Grounds Supplies (fertilizer, marking paint, gas)

   Maint/Operations Supervisor                                                        1.00

Contracted  Serv/Main Alarm System Contracts 

Materials and Supplies/Services (8 school buildings)

   Longevity

MAINTENANCE OF GROUNDS

MAINTENANCE OF BUILDINGS

9000 PROGRAMS WITH OTHER DISTRICTS

Electricity
Gas

Collaboratives (11 students) 

Public School 

Material and Supplies

 11177



STOUGHTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS FY 2025 BUDGET BY ACCOUNT

 1/16/24 

Account FY23 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY24/25

DEPT Number
Approved Expended Approved Requested Difference

 

DESCRIPTION

55,148,272 55,922,541 58,700,681 62,868,429 4,172,671

1,125,751 1,252,245 1,278,601 1,209,033 -69,568

Less: 1,403,500 2,600,678 2,883,674 2,883,674 0

52,619,021 52,069,618 54,538,406 58,775,722 4,242,239

 

Special Education 766 Programs with Other DistrictsPercentage Increase FY25 over FY24 35.18%   
  

Total Budget Increase FY25 over FY24 7.11%  

Regular Transportation
Special Education Transportation
NET SCHOOL SPENDING

 GRAND TOTAL

3087630

 12178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Budget Supplemental 

Information 

263



F
Y

2
5
 D

E
B

T
 B

U
D

G
E

T
 

J
u

ly
 1

, 
2
0
2
4
 -

 J
u

n
e
 3

0
, 
2
0
2
5

 T
O

W
N

 D
E

B
T

R
a
te

Is
s
u

e
 D

a
te

E
x
p

ir
e
 D

a
te

P
ri

n
c
ip

a
l 
P

a
y
m

e
n

ts
In

te
re

s
t 

P
a
y
m

e
n

ts
 B

a
la

n
c
e
 a

ft
e
r 

F
Y

2
5
 

P
a
y
m

e
n

ts
 

 
 

 
 

 

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
1

2
.8

3
9
%

0
5
/1

2
/1

1
0
3
/0

1
/3

1
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,7

2
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

6
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
2

1
.8

8
5
%

0
9
/2

0
/1

2
0
2
/0

1
/3

3
1
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
,2

9
6
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
2
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
4

2
.0

2
9
%

0
3
/2

7
/1

4
0
3
/1

5
/3

4
4
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
0
,3

7
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
8
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
5

1
.9

7
1
%

0
6
/2

9
/1

5
0
6
/1

5
/2

9
3
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,5

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
6

1
.2

6
1
%

0
6
/2

9
/1

6
0
6
/1

5
/2

6
8
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
,4

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

8
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
7

2
.6

9
5
%

1
0
/1

9
/1

7
1
0
/1

5
/3

7
2
5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
3
,5

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
,0

7
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
7
 R

1
.8

7
4
%

1
2
/2

1
/1

7
0
5
/0

1
/2

9
1
7
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
,4

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

6
8
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
8

3
.4

0
2
%

1
0
/2

5
/1

8
1
0
/1

5
/3

8
2
3
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
2
4
,2

8
7
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
,7

9
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
9

1
.5

5
7
%

1
0
/2

4
/1

9
1
0
/1

5
/3

4
1
2
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
9
,3

1
3
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

6
9
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
2
0

1
.3

4
9
%

1
0
/2

9
/2

0
1
0
/1

5
/4

0
2
2
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
1
,9

6
3
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,4

0
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
2
2

2
.9

0
0
%

0
3
/1

0
/2

2
0
9
/0

1
/5

1
2
1
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
5
5
,8

7
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

7
,2

2
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
2
3

3
.7

0
0
%

0
6
/1

5
/2

3
0
6
/1

5
/4

0
1
7
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
4
,6

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
3
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
it

le
 V

 2
0
1
0
 M

W
P

A
T

 (
T

5
-9

7
-1

2
0
1
-A

)
0
.0

0
0
%

0
7
/0

8
/1

0
0
7
/1

5
/3

1
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

In
te

re
s
t 
F

re
e

 
6
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
it

le
 V

 2
0
1
3
 M

W
P

A
T

 (
9
7
-1

2
0
1
-B

)
0
.0

0
0
%

0
5
/2

2
/1

3
0
1
/1

5
/3

3
1
7
,5

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

In
te

re
s
t 
F

re
e

1
4
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
it

le
 V

 2
0
1
5
 M

W
P

A
T

 (
T

5
-9

7
-1

2
0
1
-C

)
0
.0

0
0
%

0
1
/0

7
/1

5
0
1
/1

5
/3

5
1
2
,5

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

In
te

re
s
t 
F

re
e

1
2
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
it

le
 V

 2
0
1
6
 M

W
P

A
T

 (
T

5
-9

7
-1

2
0
1
-D

)
0
.0

0
0
%

0
2
/1

1
/1

6
0
1
/1

5
/3

6
7
,5

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

In
te

re
s
t 
F

re
e

8
2
,5

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
it

le
 V

 2
0
1
9
 M

W
P

A
T

 (
C

W
T

-1
7
-0

2
)

2
.0

0
0
%

1
0
/2

4
/1

9
0
7
/1

5
/3

9
1
7
,6

3
4
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
,4

8
6
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
1
5
,5

0
4
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
it

le
 V

 2
0
2
3
 M

W
P

A
T

 (
C

W
T

-2
0
-0

1
)

2
.0

0
0
%

1
1
/2

1
/2

3
0
1
/1

5
/4

4
1
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
,9

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
8
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
O

T
A

L
 P

 &
 I
  
P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
:

1
,4

8
2
,1

3
4
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
 

6
0
0
,6

1
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
6
,1

7
1
,0

0
4
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
u

th
o

ri
z
e
d

 a
n

d
 U

n
is

s
u

e
d

:

A
T

M
 5

/1
8
 A

2
0
 T

ra
ff

ic
 S

tu
d

y
 

4
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
,2

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
TM

 0
5/

19
 A

27
D

 P
o

lic
e 

St
at

io
n

 B
ld

 &
 G

ro
u

n
d

s 
48

,9
99

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
-

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
,6

9
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
TM

 0
5/

19
 A

35
 P

ar
k 

St
 T

ra
ff

ic
 Im

p
ro

ve
32

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
7
,8

7
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
T

M
 5

/2
3
 A

4
5
 R

o
a
d

w
a
y
 R

e
s
u

rf
a
c
in

g
2
,6

0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
4
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
TM

 5
/2

3 
A

48
 P

o
lic

e 
St

at
io

n
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

7
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
,1

2
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

S
T

M
 1

1
/2

3
 A

1
2
 E

M
S

 L
if

e
 S

a
ft

e
y
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t
1
4
7
,9

7
6
.0

0
$
  
  
  
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

8
,1

3
9
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
T

M
 0

5
/2

3
 A

1
1
 S

e
w

e
r 

C
o

n
n

e
c
ti

o
n

, 
R

 &
 R

 &
 U

p
g

ra
d

e
 

S
e
p

ti
c
 S

y
s
te

m
s
 (

C
W

T
-2

0
-0

1
)

1
0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
,5

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

S
T

M
 1

1
/2

3
 A

1
6
 R

o
a
d

w
a
y
 R

e
s
u

rf
a
c
in

g
2
,1

8
9
,8

4
3
.0

0
$
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
2
0
,4

4
1
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

T
O

T
A

L
 A

 &
 U

  
P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
:

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
0
3
,9

7
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

T
O

W
N

 (
D

E
B

T
 E

X
C

L
U

S
IO

N
)

R
a
te

Is
s
u

e
 D

a
te

E
x
p

ir
e
 D

a
te

P
ri

n
c
ip

a
l 
P

a
y
m

e
n

ts
In

te
re

s
t 

P
a
y
m

e
n

ts
 B

a
la

n
c
e
 a

ft
e
r 

F
Y

2
5
 

P
a
y
m

e
n

ts
 

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
2
2

2
.9

0
0
%

0
3
/1

0
/2

2
0
9
/0

1
/5

1
2
5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
2
0
,2

5
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
2
,2

4
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

T
O

T
A

L
 P

 &
 I
  
P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
:

2
5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
2
0
,2

5
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
2
,2

4
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
u

th
o

ri
z
e
d

 a
n

d
 U

n
is

s
u

e
d

:

S
T

M
 1

2
/2

1
 &

 B
A

L
L

O
T

 2
/2

2
 F

ir
e
 S

ta
ti

o
n

6
,8

1
6
,0

0
1
.0

0
$
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
7
4
,8

8
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

T
O

T
A

L
 A

 &
 U

  
P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
:

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
7
4
,8

8
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L

 P
 &

 I
 A

N
D

 A
 &

 U
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
:

1
,7

3
2
,1

3
4
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,6

9
9
,7

2
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
O

T
A

L
 P

 &
 I
 T

O
W

N
 D

E
B

T
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
:

3
,4

3
1
,8

5
4
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

P
ag

e 
1

264



F
Y

2
5
 D

E
B

T
 B

U
D

G
E

T
 

J
u

ly
 1

, 
2
0
2
4
 -

 J
u

n
e
 3

0
, 
2
0
2
5

S
C

H
O

O
L

 D
E

B
T

R
a
te

Is
s
u

e
 D

a
te

E
x
p

ir
e
 D

a
te

P
ri

n
c
ip

a
l 
P

a
y
m

e
n

ts
In

te
re

s
t 

P
a
y
m

e
n

ts
 B

a
la

n
c
e
 a

ft
e
r 

F
Y

2
5
 

P
a
y
m

e
n

ts
 

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
1

2
.8

3
9
%

0
5
/1

2
/1

1
0
3
/0

1
/3

1
2
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
3
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
2

1
.8

8
5
%

0
9
/2

0
/1

2
0
2
/0

1
/3

3
5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
,8

0
6
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
1
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
4

2
.0

2
9
%

0
3
/2

7
/1

4
0
3
/1

5
/2

9
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,5

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
5

1
.9

7
1
%

0
6
/2

9
/1

5
0
6
/1

5
/3

0
1
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,5

5
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

7
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
6

1
.2

6
1
%

0
6
/2

9
/1

6
0
6
/1

5
/2

6
4
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
7

2
.6

9
5
%

1
0
/1

9
/1

7
1
0
/1

5
/3

7
2
3
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
0
2
,3

2
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
,6

2
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
7
 R

1
.8

7
4
%

1
2
/2

1
/1

7
0
5
/0

1
/2

9
2
3
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
1
,2

1
2
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
9
8
,3

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
9

1
.5

5
7
%

1
0
/2

4
/1

9
1
0
/1

5
/3

4
6
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
2
0

1
.3

4
9
%

1
0
/2

9
/2

0
1
0
/1

5
/4

0
3
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
4
,0

8
8
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
6
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
2
2

2
.9

0
0
%

0
3
/1

0
/2

2
0
9
/0

1
/5

1
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,8

7
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
O

T
A

L
 P

 &
 I
  
P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
:

7
0
7
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
6
8
,3

5
6
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
,2

1
8
,3

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
u

th
o

ri
z
e
d

 a
n

d
 U

n
is

s
u

e
d

:

A
T

M
 5

/1
9
 A

3
6
 D

a
w

e
 E

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
S

to
rm

w
a
te

r 

R
u

n
o

ff
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t
28

,5
94

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
-

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,5

7
3
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

S
T

M
 1

2
/2

1
 A

5
 S

o
u

th
 E

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
F

e
a
s
ib

il
it

y
 

S
tu

d
y
  

4
0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

S
T

M
 1

2
/2

3
 A

6
7
 A

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
S

o
u

th
 E

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l 

F
e
a
s
ib

il
it

y
 S

tu
d

y
 

2
5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
3
,7

5
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

T
O

T
A

L
 A

 &
 U

  
I 
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
:

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
7
,3

2
3
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

S
C

H
O

O
L

 (
D

E
B

T
 E

X
C

L
U

S
IO

N
)

R
a
te

Is
s
u

e
 D

a
te

E
x
p

ir
e
 D

a
te

P
ri

n
c
ip

a
l 
P

a
y
m

e
n

ts
In

te
re

s
t 

P
a
y
m

e
n

ts
 B

a
la

n
c
e
 a

ft
e
r 

F
Y

2
5
 

P
a
y
m

e
n

ts
 

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
7

2
.6

9
5
%

1
0
/1

9
/1

7
1
0
/1

5
/3

7
2
,8

1
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,8

0
2
,7

7
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
9
,0

4
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

T
O

T
A

L
 P

 &
 I
  
P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
:

2
,8

1
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,8

0
2
,7

7
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
9
,0

4
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
u

th
o

ri
z
e
d

 a
n

d
 U

n
is

s
u

e
d

:

S
T

M
 0

5
/1

6
 S

1
 H

ig
h

 S
c
h

o
o

l
5
,0

2
3
,3

2
5
.0

0
$
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
7
6
,2

8
3
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

T
O

T
A

L
 A

 &
 U

  
P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
:

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
7
6
,2

8
3
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L

 P
 &

 I
 A

N
D

 A
 &

 U
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
:

3
,5

2
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
,2

8
4
,7

3
7
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
O

T
A

L
 P

 &
 I
 S

C
H

O
O

L
 D

E
B

T
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
:

5
,8

0
6
,7

3
7
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

P
ag

e 
2

265



F
Y

2
5
 D

E
B

T
 B

U
D

G
E

T
 

J
u

ly
 1

, 
2
0
2
4
 -

 J
u

n
e
 3

0
, 
2
0
2
5

W
A

T
E

R
 D

E
B

T
R

a
te

Is
s
u

e
 D

a
te

E
x
p

ir
e
 D

a
te

P
ri

n
c
ip

a
l 
P

a
y
m

e
n

ts
In

te
re

s
t 

P
a
y
m

e
n

ts
 B

a
la

n
c
e
 a

ft
e
r 

F
Y

2
5
 

P
a
y
m

e
n

ts
 

 
 

 
 

 

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
1

2
.8

3
9
%

0
5
/1

2
/1

1
0
3
/0

1
/3

1
2
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
,2

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
5

1
.9

7
1
%

0
6
/2

9
/1

5
0
6
/1

5
/2

6
2
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
6

1
.2

6
1
%

0
6
/2

9
/1

6
0
6
/1

5
/2

6
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
7

2
.6

9
5
%

1
0
/1

9
/1

7
1
0
/1

5
/3

7
1
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
5
,3

5
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

8
6
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
7
 R

1
.8

7
4
%

1
2
/2

1
/1

7
0
5
/0

1
/2

9
1
4
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,5

0
8
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
8
,7

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
8

3
.4

0
2
%

1
0
/2

5
/1

8
1
0
/1

5
/3

8
3
6
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
0
5
,7

0
6
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
,6

6
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
9

1
.5

5
7
%

1
0
/2

4
/1

9
1
0
/1

5
/3

4
4
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
,5

3
8
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
2
0

1
.3

4
9
%

1
0
/2

9
/2

0
1
0
/1

5
/4

0
1
7
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
7
,6

6
3
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
,6

7
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
2
2

2
.9

0
0
%

0
3
/1

0
/2

2
0
9
/0

1
/5

1
4
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
6
,3

7
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
0
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
2
3

3
.7

0
0
%

0
6
/1

5
/2

3
0
6
/1

5
/4

0
2
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
2
,8

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
6
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

M
W

R
A

 2
0
1
5
 L

o
a
n

0
.0

0
0
%

0
8
/2

4
/1

5
0
8
/1

5
/2

6
2
5
0
,6

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

In
te

re
s
t 
F

re
e

2
5
0
,6

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

M
W

R
A

 2
0
2
2
 L

o
a
n

0
.0

0
0
%

0
9
/1

2
/2

2
0
9
/1

2
/3

2
1
6
2
,2

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

In
te

re
s
t 
F

re
e

1
,2

9
7
,6

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

T
O

T
A

L
 P

 &
 I
  
P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
:

1
,2

2
6
,8

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
5
6
,5

4
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
,6

7
6
,9

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
u

th
o

ri
z
e
d

 a
n

d
 U

n
is

s
u

e
d

:

S
T

M
 1

1
/1

5
 A

7
 M

u
d

d
y
 P

o
n

d
 R

e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n

t 
W

e
ll
 &

 

T
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
F

a
c
il
it

y

1
0
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
,7

7
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

S
T

M
 1

0
/2

0
 A

1
7
 P

ra
tt

s
 C

o
u

rt
 W

e
ll
 T

e
s
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 

R
e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n

t

1
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

8
2
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

A
T

M
 5

/2
2
 A

2
2
 W

a
te

r 
M

in
 U

p
g

ra
d

e
s
/I
m

p
ro

v
e

6
8
2
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
8
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

S
T

M
 1

1
/2

2
 A

2
2
 M

u
d

d
y
 P

o
n

d
 W

a
te

r 
T

re
a
tm

e
n

t 
P

la
n

t 

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

ts
 

5
,6

5
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
1
1
,0

2
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
T

M
 5

/2
3
 A

5
4
 P

h
a
s
e
 5

 W
a
te

r 
M

a
in

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
1
,8

7
8
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
3
,2

9
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

S
T

M
 1

1
/2

3
 A

1
7
 W

a
te

r 
M

a
in

 U
p

g
ra

d
e

3
,0

0
4
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
6
5
,2

2
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

T
O

T
A

L
 A

 &
 U

  
P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
:

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
8
6
,1

7
3
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L

 P
 &

 I
 A

N
D

 A
 &

 U
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
:

1
,2

2
6
,8

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
 

9
4
2
,7

1
3
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

T
O

T
A

L
 P

 &
 I
 W

A
T

E
R

 D
E

B
T

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

:
2
,1

6
9
,5

1
3
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

C
E

D
A

R
 H

IL
L

 D
E

B
T

R
a
te

Is
s
u

e
 D

a
te

E
x
p

ir
e
 D

a
te

P
ri

n
c
ip

a
l 
P

a
y
m

e
n

ts
In

te
re

s
t 

P
a
y
m

e
n

ts
 B

a
la

n
c
e
 a

ft
e
r 

F
Y

2
5
 

P
a
y
m

e
n

ts
 

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
2
0

1
.3

4
9
%

1
0
/2

9
/2

0
1
0
/1

5
/4

0
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
2
2

2
.9

0
0
%

0
3
/1

0
/2

2
0
9
/0

1
/5

1
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,8

7
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
O

T
A

L
 P

 &
 I
  
P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
:

1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,3

7
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

A
u

th
o

ri
z
e
d

 a
n

d
 U

n
is

s
u

e
d

:

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
O

T
A

L
 A

 &
 U

  
P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
:

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L

 P
 &

 I
 A

N
D

 A
 &

 U
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
:

1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,3

7
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

T
O

T
A

L
 P

 &
 I
 C

E
D

A
R

 H
IL

L
 D

E
B

T
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
:

1
2
,3

7
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

P
ag

e 
3

266



F
Y

2
5
 D

E
B

T
 B

U
D

G
E

T
 

J
u

ly
 1

, 
2
0
2
4
 -

 J
u

n
e
 3

0
, 
2
0
2
5

S
E

W
E

R
 D

E
B

T
R

a
te

Is
s
u

e
 D

a
te

E
x
p

ir
e
 D

a
te

P
ri

n
c
ip

a
l 
P

a
y
m

e
n

ts
In

te
re

s
t 

P
a
y
m

e
n

ts
 B

a
la

n
c
e
 a

ft
e
r 

F
Y

2
5
 

P
a
y
m

e
n

ts
 

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
1

2
.8

3
9
%

0
5
/1

2
/1

1
0
3
/0

1
/3

1
1
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
,0

8
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

9
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
2

1
.8

8
5
%

0
9
/2

0
/1

2
0
2
/0

1
/3

3
2
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
,3

9
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
6
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
6

1
.2

6
1
%

0
6
/2

9
/1

6
0
6
/1

5
/2

6
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
7
 R

1
.8

7
4
%

1
2
/2

1
/1

7
0
5
/0

1
/2

9
5
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
,6

8
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

9
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
8

3
.4

0
2
%

1
0
/2

5
/1

8
1
0
/1

5
/3

8
7
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
9
,0

8
8
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

8
8
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
2
0

1
.3

4
9
%

1
0
/2

9
/2

0
1
0
/1

5
/4

0
2
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
,4

5
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
6
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
2
3

3
.7

0
0
%

0
6
/1

5
/2

3
0
6
/1

5
/4

0
9
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
8
,4

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,1

9
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

M
W

R
A

 2
0
1
6
 L

o
a
n

0
.0

0
0
%

0
2
/2

2
/1

6
0
2
/1

5
/2

6
1
9
,2

2
3
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

In
te

re
s
t 
F

re
e

1
9
,2

2
2
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

M
W

R
A

 2
0
1
7
 L

o
a
n

0
.0

0
0
%

0
2
/2

7
/1

7
0
2
/1

5
/2

7
4
,7

2
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

In
te

re
s
t 
F

re
e

9
,4

5
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

M
W

R
A

 2
0
1
8
 L

o
a
n

0
.0

0
0
%

0
3
/2

2
/1

8
0
2
/1

5
/2

8
2
,3

4
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

In
te

re
s
t 
F

re
e

7
,0

3
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

M
W

R
A

 2
0
1
8
 L

o
a
n

0
.0

0
0
%

1
2
/1

7
/1

8
1
1
/1

5
/2

8
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

In
te

re
s
t 
F

re
e

4
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

M
W

R
A

 2
0
1
9
 L

o
a
n

0
.0

0
0
%

0
6
/1

7
/1

9
0
5
/1

5
/2

9
3
,2

5
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

In
te

re
s
t 
F

re
e

1
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

M
W

R
A

 2
0
1
9
 L

o
a
n

0
.0

0
0
%

1
2
/1

6
/1

9
1
1
/1

5
/2

9
2
9
,3

7
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

In
te

re
s
t 
F

re
e

1
4
6
,8

7
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

M
W

R
A

 2
0
2
0
 L

o
a
n

0
.0

0
0
%

1
0
/2

6
/2

0
1
1
/1

5
/3

0
7
,4

0
6
.2

5
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

In
te

re
s
t 
F

re
e

4
4
,4

3
7
.5

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

M
W

R
A

 2
0
2
1
 L

o
a
n

0
.0

0
0
%

0
3
/1

5
/2

1
0
2
/1

5
/3

1
2
,9

6
8
.7

5
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

In
te

re
s
t 
F

re
e

1
7
,8

1
2
.5

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

M
W

R
A

 2
0
2
3
 L

o
a
n

0
.0

0
0
%

0
3
/1

3
/2

3
0
2
/1

5
/3

3
2
6
,5

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

In
te

re
s
t 
F

re
e

2
1
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
O

T
A

L
 P

 &
 I
  
P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
:

3
8
2
,7

9
3
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
2
1
,4

9
3
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
,2

9
9
,8

3
2
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
u

th
o

ri
z
e
d

 a
n

d
 U

n
is

s
u

e
d

:

A
T

M
 5

/1
9
 A

3
4
 P

a
rk

 S
tr

e
e
t 

S
e
w

e
r 

P
la

n
1
9
1
,8

6
1
.0

0
$
  
  
  
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
,5

5
2
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
T

M
 6

/2
0
 A

2
5
 S

e
w

e
r 

I 
&

 I
5
3
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
9
,1

5
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
T

M
 6

/2
0
 A

2
7
 P

a
rk

 S
t.

 S
e
w

e
r 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

7
,4

9
8
,0

7
2
.0

0
$
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
1
2
,3

9
4
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
T

M
 5

/2
1
 A

2
1
 S

e
w

e
r 

I 
&

 I
 

4
0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
T

M
 0

5
/2

2
 A

2
0
 S

e
w

e
r 

I 
&

 I
4
0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
T

M
 0

5
/2

3
 A

5
5
 S

e
w

e
r 

I 
&

 I
4
0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

T
O

T
A

L
 A

 &
 U

  
P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
:

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
1
8
,0

9
6
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L

 P
 &

 I
 A

N
D

 A
 &

 U
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
:

3
8
2
,7

9
3
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
3
9
,5

8
9
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

T
O

T
A

L
 P

 &
 I
 S

E
W

E
R

 D
E

B
T

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

:
1
,0

2
2
,3

8
2
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

P
ag

e 
4

267



F
Y

2
5
 D

E
B

T
 B

U
D

G
E

T
 

J
u

ly
 1

, 
2
0
2
4
 -

 J
u

n
e
 3

0
, 
2
0
2
5

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 P
R

E
S

E
R

V
A

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

 D
E

B
T

R
a
te

Is
s
u

e
 D

a
te

E
x
p

ir
e
 D

a
te

P
ri

n
c
ip

a
l 
P

a
y
m

e
n

ts
In

te
re

s
t 

P
a
y
m

e
n

ts
 B

a
la

n
c
e
 a

ft
e
r 

F
Y

2
5
 

P
a
y
m

e
n

ts
 

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
2

1
.8

8
5
%

0
9
/2

0
/1

2
0
2
/0

1
/3

3
6
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
3
,1

8
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
8
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
5

1
.9

7
1
%

0
6
/2

9
/1

5
0
6
/1

5
/3

0
3
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
,5

5
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
8

3
.4

0
2
%

1
0
/2

5
/1

8
1
0
/1

5
/3

8
7
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
5
,8

6
3
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
4
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
1
9

1
.5

5
7
%

1
0
/2

4
/1

9
1
0
/1

5
/3

4
1
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
,6

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
1
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
2
0

1
.3

4
9
%

1
0
/2

9
/2

0
1
0
/1

5
/4

0
5
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
5
,0

5
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
0
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
2
2

2
.9

0
0
%

0
3
/1

0
/2

2
0
9
/0

1
/5

1
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
,5

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

6
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 2
0
2
3

3
.7

0
0
%

0
6
/1

5
/2

3
0
6
/1

5
/4

0
2
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
2
,5

5
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
5
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
O

T
A

L
 P

 &
 I
  
P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
:

2
6
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
0
,2

9
8
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
,1

1
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
u

th
o

ri
z
e
d

 a
n

d
 U

n
is

s
u

e
d

:

A
T

M
 6

/1
1
 A

5
5
 G

le
n

 E
c
h

o
 P

ro
p

e
rt

y
7
3
,5

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
,0

4
3
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
T

M
 5

/1
5
 A

4
5
 C

a
p

e
n

-R
e
y
n

o
ld

s
 O

u
td

o
o

r 
R

e
c
 F

a
c
il
it

y
1
1
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

6
,2

1
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
T

M
 5

/1
5
 A

4
5
 C

a
p

e
n

-R
e
y
n

o
ld

s
 O

u
td

o
o

r 
R

e
c
 F

a
c
il
it

y
 

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t 

5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
7
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
O

T
A

L
 A

 &
 U

  
P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
:

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
,5

3
3
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L

 P
 &

 I
 A

N
D

 A
 &

 U
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
:

2
6
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
0
,8

3
1
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

T
O

T
A

L
 P

 &
 I
 C

P
A

 D
E

B
T

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

:
3
5
5
,8

3
1
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

P
ri

n
c

ip
a

l 

P
a

y
m

e
n

ts

In
te

re
s

t 

P
a

y
m

e
n

ts

F
Y

2
5

 P
 &

 I
  
A

N
D

 A
 &

 U
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
:

7
,1

3
8

,7
2

7
.0

0
$

  
  
 

5
,6

5
9

,9
6

5
.0

0
$

  
  
  

F
Y

2
5

 G
R

A
N

D
 T

O
T

A
L

 P
 &

 I
 D

E
B

T
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
:

1
2

,7
9

8
,6

9
2

.0
0

$
  
  
  

R
E

M
A

IN
IN

G
 P

R
IN

C
IP

A
L

 D
E

B
T

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 A

F
T

E
R

 F
Y

2
5

 P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
:

9
7

,8
0

6
,0

3
6

.0
0

$
  
  
  

P
ag

e 
5

268



TOWN OF STOUGHTON

ANALYSIS OF BUDGET EXPENDITURE TURNBACKS

GENERAL FUND

FY 2023

Department Original Budget

Budget Transfers 

& Adjustments Revised Budget Expended Encumbered

Amount of 

Turnbacks

% of Budget 

Turned Back

Town Counsel 296,000.00             120,976.11             416,976.11             353,493.57             49,167.04              14,315.50              3.43%

Town Moderator 6,000.00                4,500.00                10,500.00              1,817.95                1,101.75                7,580.30                72.19%

Select Board 17,960.00              9,569.60                27,529.60              4,649.36                12,956.02              9,924.22                36.05%

Town Manager 351,751.00             20,800.00              372,551.00             367,440.84             -                         5,110.16                1.37%

Finance Committee 432,353.00             411.21                   432,764.21             18,324.47              1,642.76                412,796.98            95.39%

Town Accountant 339,976.00             176.78                   340,152.78             298,825.64             6,714.84                34,612.30              10.18%

Auditing and Analytics 93,417.00              (23,710.00)             69,707.00              62,835.93              23.92                     6,847.15                9.82%

Centralized Purchasing 108,100.00             16,805.85              124,905.85             71,846.91              28,875.95              24,182.99              19.36%

Board of Assessors 338,961.00             3,359.00                342,320.00             290,546.73             19,355.42              32,417.85              9.47%

Treasurer Collector 548,577.00             21,866.53              570,443.53             553,396.67             10,734.77              6,312.09                1.11%

Human Resources 163,722.00             4,387.60                168,109.60             163,417.05             1,118.56                3,573.99                2.13%

Procurement 154,457.00             -                         154,457.00             131,867.90             2,678.75                19,910.35              12.89%

Information Systems 568,822.00             33,344.62              602,166.62             510,537.65             22,953.65              68,675.32              11.40%

Facilities 951,777.00             59,543.51              1,011,320.51          913,426.20             77,198.82              20,695.49              2.05%

Town Clerk 307,466.00             14,715.53              322,181.53             297,860.73             21,444.78              2,876.02                0.89%

Conservation -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                        0.00%

Planning Board 128,271.00             2,870.27                131,141.27             61,159.55              16,773.98              53,207.74              40.57%

Economic Development 113,900.00             1,050.68                114,950.68             102,289.20             885.00                   11,776.48              10.24%

Police Department 7,734,301.00          34,724.65              7,769,025.65          7,382,203.56          118,314.76             268,507.33            3.46%

Crossing Guards 121,779.00             130.72                   121,909.72             101,253.39             130.72                   20,525.61              16.84%

Civilian Dispatchers 843,533.00             1,641.16                845,174.16             578,801.16             17,018.14              249,354.86            29.50%

Fire Department 7,165,078.00          17,269.74              7,182,347.74          6,991,269.59          7,722.17                183,355.98            2.55%

Building & Zoning 400,536.00             3,532.92                404,068.92             377,790.99             2,782.92                23,495.01              5.81%

Animal Control 68,023.00              8,199.09                76,222.09              60,990.53              10,861.08              4,370.48                5.73%

Education-Stoughton 56,290,603.00        -                         56,290,603.00        54,765,203.80        1,525,399.64          (0.44)                     0.00%

Education-Regional 1,404,976.00          1,404,976.00          1,374,184.00          -                         30,792.00              2.19%

Engineering 623,955.00             9,150.92                633,105.92             548,063.10             10,727.85              74,314.97              11.74%

DPW General & Highway 1,187,032.00          (33,099.61)             1,153,932.39          1,107,747.27          41,210.02              4,975.10                0.43%

Highway Construction & main 398,100.00             162,669.53             560,769.53             478,052.88             82,270.13              446.52                   0.08%

Snow Removal 400,000.00             9.96                       400,009.96             503,469.01             53,536.81              (156,995.86)           -39.25%

Street Lighting 210,000.00             27,372.60              237,372.60             220,502.80             15,973.43              896.37                   0.38%

Fleet Maintenance 660,925.00             175,498.06             836,423.06             261,422.78             57,520.95              517,479.33            61.87%

Waste Disposal/Sanitation 2,123,656.00          43,628.78              2,167,284.78          2,043,759.10          103,767.46             19,758.22              0.91%

Human Services 12,218.00              12,218.00              12,217.09              0.91                      0.01%

Board of Health 185,189.00             256.00                   185,445.00             177,366.80             1,118.50                6,959.70                3.75%

Council on Aging 406,073.00             98.51                     406,171.51             353,635.65             981.27                   51,554.59              12.69%

Veterans Services 468,749.00             7,038.00                475,787.00             346,700.53             58,795.21              70,291.26              14.77%

Substance Abuse Prevention 101,728.00             -                         101,728.00             78,288.77              2,370.00                21,069.23              20.71%

Library 1,097,240.00          3,236.00                1,100,476.00          1,079,758.27          9,638.09                11,079.64              1.01%

Historical Commission 800.00                   -                         800.00                   -                         -                         800.00                   100.00%

Recreation 450,147.00             4,655.00                454,802.00             433,438.98             6,079.03                15,283.99              3.36%

Parks 370,032.00             2,173.00                372,205.00             358,846.55             135.73                   13,222.72              3.55%

Community Events 85,790.00              706.00                   86,496.00              83,022.92              3,470.45                2.63                      0.00%

Retirement of Debt 8,645,742.00          -                         8,645,742.00          8,591,407.25          4,400.00                49,934.75              0.58%

State Assessments 5,623,395.00          5,623,395.00          5,152,538.38          -                         470,856.62            8.37%

Health Insurance 10,788,622.00        1,795.00                10,790,417.00        10,679,960.70        19,147.13              91,309.17              0.85%

Town-wide Expenses/Insurance 1,985,000.00          72,994.00              2,057,994.00          1,862,420.33          124,302.85             71,270.82              3.46%

Retirement Contribution 7,192,286.00          7,192,286.00          7,192,286.00          -                        0.00%

Unemployment Compensation 55,000.00              8.00                       55,008.00              33,380.33              23,164.88              (1,537.21)              -2.79%

Other Financing Uses -                         3,473,806.00          3,473,806.00          3,473,805.76          0.24                      0.00%

-                        

122,022,018           4,308,161              125,913,203           120,554,031           2,525,298              2,833,874              

269



T
O

W
N

 O
F

 S
T

O
U

G
H

T
O

N

M
U

L
T

I-
Y

E
A

R
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

 O
F

 H
E

A
L
T

H
 C

A
R

E
 T

R
U

S
T

 F
U

N
D

 (
8

7
0

0
)

F
is

c
a

l 
Y

e
a

rs
 2

0
1

7
-2

0
2

3

 F
Y

2
0

2
3

 
F

Y
2

0
2

2
F

Y
2

0
2

1
F

Y
2

0
2

0
F

Y
2

0
1

9
F

Y
2

0
1

8

B
e
g

in
n

in
g

 B
a

la
n

c
e

6
,2

4
6

,1
8

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
6

,5
2

7
,4

8
7

  
  

  
  

 
7

,3
3

5
,5

0
6

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
7

,9
5

2
,4

7
6

  
  

  
  

7
,9

6
3

,7
2

6
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

7
,1

0
0

,2
2

2
  

  
  

R
e
v
e

n
u

e
s

E
a

rn
in

g
s
 o

n
 I

n
v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
1

0
,2

1
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
4

,4
4

4
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2

7
,6

4
7

1
3

3
,2

0
6

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
6

4
,9

5
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

5
8

,3
6

8
  

  
  

  
  

 

O
th

e
r 

M
is

c
e

lla
n

e
o

u
s
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
9

1
2

,5
6

4
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1

,9
0

8
,8

7
4

  
  

  
  

 
1

,4
2

9
,4

3
4

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2

,4
2

7
,6

3
3

  
  

  
  

8
8

3
,6

0
9

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

6
1

1
,2

7
4

  
  

  
  

 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 I

n
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

3
,9

6
0

,5
4

4
  

  
  

  
  

  
3

,8
2

1
,2

7
2

  
  

  
  

 
3

,9
1

0
,5

9
2

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
3

,9
8

5
,0

5
8

3
,8

6
8

,3
0

9
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

3
,8

2
0

,1
3

2
  

  
  

T
o

w
n

 I
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

9
,0

5
3

,2
3

7
  

  
  

  
  

  
8

,5
6

6
,0

6
3

  
  

  
  

 
8

,6
2

5
,4

4
6

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
8

,5
7

9
,8

6
0

8
,7

0
6

,0
6

3
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

8
,2

7
2

,1
5

5
  

  
  

P
h

a
rm

a
c
y
 R

e
b

a
te

s
1

,0
4

8
,4

8
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

8
5

6
,5

1
6

  
  

  
  

  
  

4
1

0
,4

5
9

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
2

4
4

,6
3

5
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

T
o

ta
l 

R
e
v
e

n
u

e
s

1
4

,9
8

5
,0

3
7

  
  

  
  

  
1

5
,1

5
7

,1
6

9
  

  
  

 
1

4
,4

0
3

,5
7

8
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

5
,3

7
0

,3
9

2
  

  
  

1
3

,6
2

2
,9

3
7

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
2

,7
6

1
,9

2
9

  
  

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
s

C
la

im
s
 P

a
id

 -
 H

M
O

 B
lu

e
(2

5
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(1
6

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(3
7

9
,6

9
5

)
  

  
  

  
  

(2
,2

2
2

,0
0

3
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

(2
,2

0
2

,4
1

9
)

  
  

 

S
to

p
 L

o
s
s
 I

n
s
 P

re
m

iu
m

s
 -

 H
M

O
 B

lu
e

(2
9

,2
6

8
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

(1
5

8
,6

6
5

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(1

4
3

,8
4

8
)

  
  

  
  

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
v
e

 F
e

e
s
 -

 H
M

O
 B

lu
e

(1
8

,5
2

3
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

(1
0

5
,5

4
6

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(9

7
,2

7
1

)
  

  
  

  
  

C
la

im
s
 P

a
id

 -
 H

a
rv

a
rd

 P
ilg

ri
m

1
8

8
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
3

3
,0

1
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(6
1

1
,7

0
6

)
  

  
  

  
  

(3
,0

0
0

,3
8

7
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

(2
,2

7
2

,8
5

6
)

  
  

 

S
to

p
 L

o
s
s
 I

n
s
 P

re
m

iu
m

s
 -

 H
P

H
C

(3
6

,5
9

2
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

(1
9

9
,1

3
5

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(1

7
1

,3
5

6
)

  
  

  
  

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
v
e

 F
e

e
s
 -

 H
a
rv

a
rd

 P
ilg

ri
m

(1
5

,2
1

8
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

(1
6

1
,7

0
8

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(2

2
4

,0
6

8
)

  
  

  
  

C
la

im
s
 P

a
id

 -
 T

u
ft

s
2

1
,3

7
2

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1

0
,4

2
6

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(3

9
6

2
)

(1
,5

3
0

,8
2

4
)

  
  

  
 

(6
,4

8
2

,5
8

2
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

(5
,5

8
9

,6
4

4
)

  
  

 

S
to

p
 L

o
s
s
 I

n
s
 P

re
m

iu
m

s
 -

 T
u

ft
s

(9
2

,8
1

5
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

(5
1

6
,3

6
4

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(4

6
4

,2
1

5
)

  
  

  
  

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
v
e

 F
e

e
s
 -

 T
u

ft
s

(4
3

,1
5

9
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

(3
8

2
,2

2
4

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(3

7
3

,8
6

1
)

  
  

  
  

C
la

im
s
 P

a
id

 -
 M

e
d

e
x

(8
6

,4
1

3
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

(3
2

5
,7

9
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(2

8
9

,6
4

5
)

  
  

  
  

M
e

d
e

x
 -

 S
to

p
 L

o
s
s
 I

n
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 P
re

m
iu

m
s

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
v
e

 F
e

e
s
 -

 M
e

d
e

x
(7

,7
7

7
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(4

5
,7

0
3

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(4
1

,5
0

6
)

  
  

  
  

  

C
la

im
s
 P

a
id

 -
 H

e
a

lt
h

 P
la

n
s

(1
5

,5
6

0
,8

7
5

)
  

  
  

  
 

(1
3

,3
2

1
,9

1
9

)
  

  
  

(1
3

,4
7

2
,1

3
1

)
  

  
  

  
  

 
(1

1
,7

4
0

,5
9

5
)

  
  

 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
v
e

 F
e

e
s
 -

 H
e
a

lt
h

 P
la

n
s

(4
1

9
,6

6
8

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(4
5

6
,5

5
4

)
  

  
  

  
  

 
(4

4
7

,0
0

8
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(4
5

8
,8

1
2

)
  

  
  

  
  

S
to

p
 L

o
s
s
 I

n
s
 P

re
m

iu
m

s
 -

 H
e
a

lt
h

 P
la

n
s

(1
,9

3
8

,3
1

5
)

  
  

  
  

  
 

(1
,5

8
3

,6
0

5
)

  
  

  
  

(1
,2

8
2

,7
9

5
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(9

0
2

,3
5

6
)

  
  

  
  

  

C
la

im
s
 P

a
id

 A
b

a
c
u

s
 P

re
s
c
ri

p
ti
o

n
(7

1
,0

0
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(3

4
,0

0
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(7
,0

0
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
v
e

 F
e

e
s
 -

 B
a

y
 S

ta
te

 
1

7
5

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

C
o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
t 

F
e

e
s

(4
9

,5
5

5
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(4
9

,5
4

3
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(2

8
,6

2
4

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(3
0

,8
5

5
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

(3
1

,3
5

0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(2

2
,7

9
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

P
a

ti
e

n
t 

C
e
n

te
re

d
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
 F

e
e

(3
,3

7
2

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(3
,4

5
3

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(3

,0
8

7
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(2
,9

3
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(2
,7

3
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(4

,9
4

6
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

T
ra

n
s
it
io

n
a

l 
R

e
in

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

T
o

ta
l 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
s

(1
8

,0
2

1
,4

3
8

)
  

  
  

  
 

(1
5

,4
3

8
,4

7
6

)
  

  
  

(1
5

,2
1

1
,5

9
7

)
  

  
  

  
  

 
(1

5
,9

8
7

,3
6

3
)

  
  

 
(1

3
,6

3
4

,1
8

7
)

  
  

  
  

  
(1

1
,8

9
8

,4
2

5
)

  
 

E
n

d
in

g
 F

u
n

d
 B

a
la

n
c

e
3

,2
0

9
,7

7
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

6
,2

4
6

,1
8

0
  

  
  

  
 

6
,5

2
7

,4
8

7
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

7
,3

3
5

,5
0

6
  

  
  

  
7

,9
5

2
,4

7
6

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
7

,9
6

3
,7

2
6

  
  

  

270



TOWN OF STOUGHTON

MWRA INFRASTRUCTURE FUND

Year Beginning Balance Receipts Transfers Out Net Amount Ending Balance 

2006 0 191,321.45                          -$                              191,321.45$                   191,321.45$                

2007 191,321.45$                    691,794.13                          (191,321.00)$              500,473.13$                   691,794.58$                

2008 691,794.58$                    103,462.47                          (691,794.00)$              (588,331.53)$                 103,463.05$                

2009 103,463.05$                    651,206.08                          (754,669.00)$              (103,462.92)$                 0.13$                             

2010 0.13$                                798,848.97                          (648,837.00)$              150,011.97$                   150,012.10$                

2011 150,012.10$                    659,546.38                          (783,679.00)$              (124,132.62)$                 25,879.48$                  

2012 25,879.48$                      891,229.87                          (779,030.00)$              112,199.87$                   138,079.35$                

2013 138,079.35$                    881,189.53                          (775,292.00)$              105,897.53$                   243,976.88$                

2014 243,976.88$                    1,297,703.58                       (751,734.00)$              545,969.58$                   789,946.46$                

2015 789,946.46$                    1,045,237.13                       (729,110.00)$              316,127.13$                   1,106,073.59$             

2016 1,106,073.59$                959,592.68                          (722,854.00)$              236,738.68$                   1,342,812.27$             

2017 1,342,812.27$                840,878.99                          (749,897.88)$              90,981.11$                     1,433,793.38$             

2018 1,433,793.38$                945,069.66                          (718,018.00)$              227,051.66$                   1,660,845.04$             

2019 1,660,845.04$                982,743.72                          (825,000.00)$              157,743.72$                   1,818,588.76$             

2020 1,818,588.76$                992,644.45                          (1,600,000.00)$           (607,355.55)$                 1,211,233.21$             

2021 1,211,233.21$                576,191.14                          -$                              576,191.14$                   1,787,424.35$             

2022 1,787,424.35$                1,582,980.51                       -$                              1,582,980.51$               3,370,404.86$             

2023 3,370,404.86$                648,916.60                          -$                              648,916.60$                   4,019,321.46$             

2/29/2024 4,019,321.46$                363,787.18                          (1,289,836.00)$           (926,048.82)$                 3,093,272.64$             

As recorded through 2/29/2024

271



272



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Annual Town 

Meeting Reports 

273



 

 
 

March 27, 2024 

 
Thomas Calter 
Town Manager 
Town of Stoughton 
10 Pearl Street 
Stoughton, MA 02072 
 
Re: Litigation Status Report – March 2024 
 
Dear Mr. Calter, 
 
 In accordance with the provisions of the Stoughton General Bylaw, 
Chapter 47, § 47-4, please find enclosed a Litigation Status Report.  I have 
also enclosed legal expense summaries for FY2024 to date for both general 
municipal services and labor services.       
 
 Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions.  
 

 
 
 
Very truly yours, 

 
Brian Winner 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Enc. 
cc: Committee on Finance and Taxation 

730 Main Street, Suite 1F 

Millis, MA 02054 

Phone/Fax 508.376.8400 

 

www.mtclawyers.com 

Newburyport Office 
30 Green Street 

  

Newburyport, MA  01950 

Phone 978.463.7700 

 

 

 

Phobe  

_____________________ 

New Bedford Office 

227 Union Street, Suite 606 

New Bedford, MA  02740 

 

274



TOWN OF STOUGHTON 

LITIGATION STATUS REPORT 

MATTERS PENDING WITH  

MEAD, TALERMAN AND COSTA, LLC 

MARCH 26, 2024 

 
 
1. Stoughton Post 89, Inc. American Legion v. Sprissler, et al. 

Norfolk Superior Court, C.A. No. 2282CV00029    
 

The plaintiff’s Complaint in this matter, filed January 10, 2022, concerns property in the Town of 
Stoughton known and numbered as 400 Prospect Street.  The parties dispute the validity of a prior 
sale of the property and each claim to be due damages for alleged wrongful actions of the others.  
The Town is not a party to this matter, however on April 29, 2022, the Town took the subject 
property by eminent domain.  As the Town must award damages owing to the taking of the 
property, the Town filed a limited intervention in order to seek the Court’s instructions on how to 
handle the funds awarded as damages.  The Court ordered that the funds be deposited with the 
Town Treasurer in accordance with G.L. c. 79, § 7D until further order of the Court.  The Town 
complied with that order and has not participated or been otherwise involved in this matter since.      
 

2. Escoto v. Conservation Commission 
Norfolk Superior Court, C.A. No. 2382CV00821 

 
By this appeal, plaintiff Anthony Escoto challenges the Conservation Commission’s July 6, 2023 
Order of Conditions denying approval to construct and operate a landscaping business at 1823 
Washington.  We are compiling the record of the Commission’s proceedings in accordance with 
the Standing Orders of the Superior Court after which the parties are required to serve Cross-
Motions for Judgment on the Pleadings.  The Court will then dispose of the appeal after a hearing 
on those motions.  
 

3. Kelley, et al. v. Board of Health 
Norfolk Superior Court, C.A. Nos. 2482CV00037 and 2482CV00040 

 
By these appeals, plaintiff Arthur J. Kelley, Jr., Trustee of Kelley Novak Realty Trust challenges 
certain actions taken by the Board of Health on December 14, 2023 regarding the Title 5 system 
at the plaintiff’s mobile home park at 1156 Park Street.  Courtesy copies of these appeals have 
been provided to Town Counsel, but they have not yet been served.                     
      

4. Sherman v. Conservation Commission 
Norfolk Superior Court, C.A. No. 202182CV01085 

 
By this appeal, plaintiff Roger Sherman, Stoughton Crossing Limited Partnership challenges the 
Conservation Commission’s October 28, 2021 Order of Conditions denying approval to construct 
a single-family home at Lot 1 Pondview Lane.  Following a negotiated remand and revisions to 
the project, the Commission held another public hearing and issued an Order of Conditions 
allowing the project, as revised, to proceed.  The parties thereafter filed a Stipulation of 
Dismissal.  This matter is concluded.              
           
 

 
 

275

https://www.masscourts.org/eservices/searchresults.page?x=JDhtFIoJlLOMjPvYziwbj8p66cdCMZfpi6Tf3uBRie214fKN*1QkD3YIrkQGWUPPLVe*Y2mgbMb7IOad2bLlQw


1 
 

STOUGHTON ANNUAL REPORT 

KP LAW, P.C. 

Fiscal Year 2023 

   

I. LITIGATION  

 

CLOSED CASES 
 

1. Lindsey v. Chief of Police 
Stoughton District Court, C.A. No. 2155CV172 
(28500-0431-JMA)  
 
This was an appeal of the denial of a license to carry.   The parties conferred on this 
appeal in an attempt to resolve this prior to a hearing.  After ongoing settlement 
discussions between the parties and a resolution of related court proceedings in 
Taunton, this matter was resolved with the filing of a Stipulation of Dismissal with 
Prejudice which was filed with the Stoughton District Court on June 1, 2023. 
  
Amount Billed in FY23:  $1,375.00  
Fees/Disbursements:  $1,375.00/$0.00 
Amount of Judgments or Settlements: N/A 

 
2. Express Towing, Inc. Individually and as purchaser of J.B.'s Towing, Inc. v. Town of 

Stoughton 
Norfolk Superior Court, C.A. No. 1982CV00786 

        (28500-0429-GXP/NJC)  

 
This was a breach of contract action brought by a tow company alleging that the 
Town removed the tow company from the towing list without due process.  On 
November 14, 2022, the Court allowed the Town’s Motion for Summary Judgment 
and entered Judgment in its favor.  The plaintiff failed to file an appeal and therefore, 
this matter is now closed. 
 
Amount Billed in FY23:  $3,072.24   
Fees/Disbursements:  $2,997.75/$74.74 
Amount of Judgments or Settlements: N/A 
 

3. Dezine Land Construction, Inc. v. Town of Stoughton  
Brockton District Court, C.A. No. 2115CV000246 
(28500-0618-DJD/MVS)  

 
This was an action by a plowing contractor against the Town, and involved one claim 
of breach of contract and one claim of quantum meruit.  The plaintiff claimed the 
Town terminated its 2018-2019 contract with the plaintiff for plowing services 
without providing the notice called for in said contract and suffered damages in 
relation to contract preparation costs and lost profits.  It is our understanding the 
Town did not call the plaintiff to service for a certain snow storm in the winter of 

276



2 
 

2018-2019, which plaintiff is characterizing as contract termination without proper 
notice.  We filed a motion for summary judgment on behalf of the Town on July 5, 
2022 based on the contract’s having reserved to the Town the sole discretion to call in 
contractors as needed for each storm, which the Plaintiff opposed on July 19, 
2022.  The Plaintiff submitted an affidavit with its opposition claiming the former 
DPW Director had told him after a particular storm for which the Plaintiff was not 
called that the Town was no longer interested in Plaintiff’s services.  After a hearing 
on July 29, 2022, the District Court denied the Town’s motion for summary 
judgment, holding that even if the Town retained discretion to call in contractors as 
needed, the DPW Director’s statements created a dispute of material fact as to 
whether the Town nevertheless intended to terminate its relationship with the 
Plaintiff.  We filed a motion for reconsideration on behalf of the Town on September 
19, 2022, arguing the Court’s decision was internally inconsistent because it had 
found the Town did have sole discretion whether to call in certain contractors, and, 
therefore, the statements of the DPW Director were irrelevant.  The Court denied that 
motion on November 2, 2022.  With authority from the then-Interim Town Manager, 
we engaged in settlement discussions with opposing counsel.  The Plaintiff agreed to 
settle their $7,500 claim for $4,000, and the Select Board approved this settlement 
figure on December 13, 2022.  It is our understanding the Town has issued payment 
and this matter is now closed.   

 
Amount Billed in FY23:  $3,862.48   
Fees/Disbursements:  $3,162.50/$699.98 
Amount of Judgments or Settlements: $4,000.00 
 

II. LEGAL SERVICES 

General Legal Services 
 

We provided a range of legal services and legal opinions including, but not limited to, 
those pertaining to property acquisitions, numerous public records requests, Town 
property projects, and cable television license renewal.   

 
Amount Billed in FY23:  $53,478.54 
Fees/Disbursements:  $51,170.00/$2,308.54 
Amount of Judgments or Settlements: N/A 

 
III. GENERAL LABOR, COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AND ARBITRATION 

General Labor, Collective Bargaining and Arbitration Fees and Expenses. 

Amount Billed in FY23:  $30,835.00 
Fees/Disbursements:  $28,627.50/$2,207.50 
 
 

911793/STOU/0001 

277



278



279



EMERSON & EMERSON 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

 
JOSEPH A. EMERSON (1957-1994)   33 WHITNEY AVENUE   TELEPHONE (781) 769-6025 
JOSEPH A. EMERSON, JR.        WESTWOOD, MASSACHUSETTS 02090  FAX NO. (781) 769-6026 
           joeemerson@earthlink.net 
 
 
 
February 26, 2024 
 
Dr. Joseph Baeta 
Superintendent of Schools 
Stoughton Public Schools 
137 Walnut Street 
Stoughton, MA 02072-2397 
 
Re: Request for Detailed Report of Legal Expenses in FY 2023 
 
Dear Dr. Baeta: 
 
Below is the summary of the legal expenses for the legal services, totaling $42,740, I have 
provided to the Stoughton School Department during Fiscal Year 2023: 
 
General Public 

Records 
Requests 

Collective 
Bargaining 

Grievances 
 

Dept. of 
Labor 
Relations 

Judgments/Awards 

$20,380 $600 
 

$18,080 $3,340 
 

$340 
 

$0 

 
 
Please let me know if you require any other information. 
 
Thank you. 
 
Very truly yours, 

 
Joseph A. Emerson, Jr. 
 
 
 

280

mailto:joeemerson@earthlink.net


STONEMAN, CHANDLER & MILLER LLP 
 

99 HIGH STREET 
BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS 02110 

  
ALAN S. MILLER                                   TELEPHONE (617) 542-6789    JOHN M. SIMON 
CAROL CHANDLER           KATE CLARK 
KAY H. HODGE                                     FACSIMILE (617) 340-8587    COLLEEN SHEA 
REBECCA L. BRYANT                                             WWW.SCMLLP.COM    JUSTIN R. GOMES 
COLBY C. BRUNT          GARRETT A. D. GEE 
NANCY N. NEVILS          THOMAS P. DELMAR 
JOAN L. STEIN          ELISABETH I. CHEE 
JOHN M. SIMON                     
 

      March 20, 2024 
 
 
 
 
Via email to r_abourjaily@stoughtonschools.org 
Ms. Rita Abourjaily 
Stoughton Public Schools 
137 Walnut Street 
Stoughton, MA 02072 
 
Dear Ms. Abourjaily: 
 
 As requested, below is a summary of legal fees billed and paid by the Stoughton Public 
Schools during the Fiscal Year 2023. 
 

FY23 
Special Education - General  $37,531.64 
School Law - General  $  7,783.96 

Total FY23  $45,315.60 
 
 Please let me know if you have any questions. 
    
      Sincerely, 
 
      /s/ Joanne Connolly 
 
      Joanne Connolly 
      Firm Administrator 

281



282



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Massachusetts 

General Laws 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
283



Part I ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT

Title III LAWS RELATING TO STATE OFFICERS

Chapter 30ASTATE ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE

Section 18 DEFINITIONS APPLICABLE TO SECS. 18 TO 25

Section 18. As used in this section and sections 19 to 25, inclusive, the
following words shall, unless the context clearly requires otherwise, have
the following meanings:

''Deliberation'', an oral or written communication through any medium,
including electronic mail, between or among a quorum of a public body
on any public business within its jurisdiction; provided, however, that
''deliberation'' shall not include the distribution of a meeting agenda,
scheduling information or distribution of other procedural meeting or the
distribution of reports or documents that may be discussed at a meeting,
provided that no opinion of a member is expressed.

''Emergency'', a sudden, generally unexpected occurrence or set of
circumstances demanding immediate action.

''Executive session'', any part of a meeting of a public body closed to the
public for deliberation of certain matters.

''Intentional violation'', an act or omission by a public body or a member
thereof, in knowing violation of the open meeting law.

284

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIII/Chapter30A


''Meeting'', a deliberation by a public body with respect to any matter
within the body's jurisdiction; provided, however, ''meeting'' shall not
include:

(a) an on-site inspection of a project or program, so long as the members
do not deliberate;

(b) attendance by a quorum of a public body at a public or private
gathering, including a conference or training program or a media, social
or other event, so long as the members do not deliberate;

(c) attendance by a quorum of a public body at a meeting of another
public body that has complied with the notice requirements of the open
meeting law, so long as the visiting members communicate only by open
participation in the meeting on those matters under discussion by the host
body and do not deliberate;

(d) a meeting of a quasi-judicial board or commission held for the sole
purpose of making a decision required in an adjudicatory proceeding
brought before it; or

(e) a session of a town meeting convened under section 9 of chapter 39
which would include the attendance by a quorum of a public body at any
such session.

''Minutes'', the written report of a meeting created by a public body
required by subsection (a) of section 22 and section 5A of chapter 66.

''Open meeting law'', sections 18 to 25, inclusive.

''Post notice'', to display conspicuously the written announcement of a
meeting either in hard copy or electronic format.

285



''Preliminary screening'', the initial stage of screening applicants
conducted by a committee or subcommittee of a public body solely for
the purpose of providing to the public body a list of those applicants
qualified for further consideration or interview.

''Public body'', a multiple-member board, commission, committee or
subcommittee within the executive or legislative branch or within any
county, district, city, region or town, however created, elected, appointed
or otherwise constituted, established to serve a public purpose; provided,
however, that the governing board of a local housing, redevelopment or
other similar authority shall be deemed a local public body; provided,
further, that the governing board or body of any other authority
established by the general court to serve a public purpose in the
commonwealth or any part thereof shall be deemed a state public body;
provided, further, that ''public body'' shall not include the general court or
the committees or recess commissions thereof, bodies of the judicial
branch or bodies appointed by a constitutional officer solely for the
purpose of advising a constitutional officer and shall not include the
board of bank incorporation or the policyholders protective board; and
provided further, that a subcommittee shall include any multiple-member
body created to advise or make recommendations to a public body.

''Quorum'', a simple majority of the members of the public body, unless
otherwise provided in a general or special law, executive order or other
authorizing provision.

286



Part I ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT

Title III LAWS RELATING TO STATE OFFICERS

Chapter 30A STATE ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE

Section 19 DIVISION OF OPEN GOVERNMENT; OPEN MEETING LAW
TRAINING; OPEN MEETING LAW ADVISORY COMMISSION;
ANNUAL REPORT

Section 19. (a) There shall be in the department of the attorney general a
division of open government under the direction of a director of open
government. The attorney general shall designate an assistant attorney
general as the director of the open government division. The director may
appoint and remove, subject to the approval of the attorney general, such
expert, clerical and other assistants as the work of the division may
require. The division shall perform the duties imposed upon the attorney
general by the open meeting law, which may include participating,
appearing and intervening in any administrative and judicial proceedings
pertaining to the enforcement of the open meeting law. For the purpose of
such participation, appearance, intervention and training authorized by
this chapter the attorney general may expend such funds as may be
appropriated therefor.

287

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIII/Chapter30A


(b) The attorney general shall create and distribute educational materials
and provide training to public bodies in order to foster awareness and
compliance with the open meeting law. Open meeting law training may
include, but shall not be limited to, instruction in:

(1) the general background of the legal requirements for the open meeting
law;

(2) applicability of sections 18 to 25, inclusive, to governmental bodies;

(3) the role of the attorney general in enforcing the open meeting law;
and

(4) penalties and other consequences for failure to comply with this
chapter.

(c) There shall be an open meeting law advisory commission. The
commission shall consist of 5 members, 2 of whom shall be the chairmen
of the joint committee on state administration and regulatory oversight; 1
of whom shall be the president of the Massachusetts Municipal
Association or his designee; 1 of whom shall be the president of the
Massachusetts Newspaper Publishers Association or his designee; and 1
of whom shall be the attorney general or his designee.

The commission shall review issues relative to the open meeting law and
shall submit to the attorney general recommendations for changes to the
regulations, trainings, and educational initiatives relative to the open
meeting law as it deems necessary and appropriate.

(d) The attorney general shall, not later than January 31, file annually
with the commission a report providing information on the enforcement
of the open meeting law during the preceding calendar year. The report
shall include, but not be limited to:

288



(1) the number of open meeting law complaints received by the attorney
general;

(2) the number of hearings convened as the result of open meeting law
complaints by the attorney general;

(3) a summary of the determinations of violations made by the attorney
general;

(4) a summary of the orders issued as the result of the determination of an
open meeting law violation by the attorney general;

(5) an accounting of the fines obtained by the attorney general as the
result of open meeting law enforcement actions;

(6) the number of actions filed in superior court seeking relief from an
order of the attorney general; and

(7) any additional information relevant to the administration and
enforcement of the open meeting law that the attorney general deems
appropriate.

289



Part I ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT

Title III LAWS RELATING TO STATE OFFICERS

Chapter 30A STATE ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE

Section 20 MEETINGS OF A PUBLIC BODY TO BE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC;
NOTICE OF MEETING; REMOTE PARTICIPATION; RECORDING
AND TRANSMISSION OF MEETING; REMOVAL OF PERSONS
FOR DISRUPTION OF PROCEEDINGS; OFFICE HOLDERS TO
CERTIFY RECEIPT OF OPEN MEETING LAW AND
EDUCATIONAL MATERIALS

Section 20. (a) Except as provided in section 21, all meetings of a public
body shall be open to the public.

(b) Except in an emergency, in addition to any notice otherwise required
by law, a public body shall post notice of every meeting at least 48 hours
prior to the meeting, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays. In
an emergency, a public body shall post notice as soon as reasonably
possible prior to the meeting. Notice shall be printed in a legible, easily
understandable format and shall contain the date, time and place of the
meeting and a listing of topics that the chair reasonably anticipates will
be discussed at the meeting.

(c) For meetings of a local public body, notice shall be filed with the
municipal clerk and posted in a manner conspicuously visible to the
public at all hours in or on the municipal building in which the clerk's

290

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIII/Chapter30A


office is located.

For meetings of a regional or district public body, notice shall be filed
and posted in each city or town within the region or district in the manner
prescribed for local public bodies. For meetings of a regional school
district, the secretary of the regional school district committee shall be
considered to be its clerk and shall file notice with the clerk of each city
or town within the district and shall post the notice in the manner
prescribed for local public bodies. For meetings of a county public body,
notice shall be filed in the office of the county commissioners and a copy
of the notice shall be publicly posted in a manner conspicuously visible to
the public at all hours in the places as the county commissioners shall
designate for the purpose.

For meetings of a state public body, notice shall be filed with the attorney
general by posting on a website under the procedures established for this
purpose and a duplicate copy of the notice shall be filed with the
regulations division in the state secretary's office.

The attorney general may prescribe or approve alternative methods of
notice where the attorney general determines the alternative methods will
afford more effective notice to the public.

(d) The attorney general may, by regulation or letter ruling, authorize
remote participation by members of a public body not present at the
meeting location; provided, however, that the absent members and all
persons present at the meeting location are clearly audible to each other;
and provided further, that a quorum of the body, including the chair, are
present at the meeting location. The authorized members may vote and
shall not be deemed absent for the purposes of section 23D of chapter 39.

291



(e) A local commission on disability may by majority vote of the
commissioners at a regular meeting authorize remote participation
applicable to a specific meeting or generally to all of the commission's
meetings. If a local commission on disability is authorized to utilize
remote participation, a physical quorum of that commission's members
shall not be required to be present at the meeting location; provided,
however, that the chair or, in the chair's absence, the person authorized to
chair the meeting, shall be physically present at the meeting location. The
commission shall comply with all other requirements of law.

(f) After notifying the chair of the public body, any person may make a
video or audio recording of an open session of a meeting of a public
body, or may transmit the meeting through any medium, subject to
reasonable requirements of the chair as to the number, placement and
operation of equipment used so as not to interfere with the conduct of the
meeting. At the beginning of the meeting, the chair shall inform other
attendees of any recordings.

(g) No person shall address a meeting of a public body without
permission of the chair, and all persons shall, at the request of the chair,
be silent. No person shall disrupt the proceedings of a meeting of a public
body. If, after clear warning from the chair, a person continues to disrupt
the proceedings, the chair may order the person to withdraw from the
meeting and if the person does not withdraw, the chair may authorize a
constable or other officer to remove the person from the meeting.

(h) Within 2 weeks of qualification for office, all persons serving on a
public body shall certify, on a form prescribed by the attorney general,
the receipt of a copy of the open meeting law, regulations promulgated
under section 25 and a copy of the educational materials prepared by the

292



attorney general explaining the open meeting law and its application
under section 19. Unless otherwise directed or approved by the attorney
general, the appointing authority, city or town clerk or the executive
director or other appropriate administrator of a state or regional body, or
their designees, shall obtain certification from each person upon entering
service and shall retain it subject to the applicable records retention
schedule where the body maintains its official records. The certification
shall be evidence that the member of a public body has read and
understands the requirements of the open meeting law and the
consequences of violating it.

293



Part I ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT

Title III LAWS RELATING TO STATE OFFICERS

Chapter 30A STATE ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE

Section 21 MEETING OF PUBLIC BODY IN EXECUTIVE SESSION

Section 21. (a) A public body may meet in executive session only for the
following purposes:

(1) To discuss the reputation, character, physical condition or mental
health, rather than professional competence, of an individual, or to
discuss the discipline or dismissal of, or complaints or charges brought
against, a public officer, employee, staff member or individual. The
individual to be discussed in such executive session shall be notified in
writing by the public body at least 48 hours prior to the proposed
executive session; provided, however, that notification may be waived
upon written agreement of the parties. A public body shall hold an open
session if the individual involved requests that the session be open. If an
executive session is held, such individual shall have the following rights:

i. to be present at such executive session during deliberations which
involve that individual;

294

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIII/Chapter30A


ii. to have counsel or a representative of his own choosing present and
attending for the purpose of advising the individual and not for the
purpose of active participation in the executive session;

iii. to speak on his own behalf; and

iv. to cause an independent record to be created of said executive session
by audio-recording or transcription, at the individual's expense.

The rights of an individual set forth in this paragraph are in addition to
the rights that he may have from any other source, including, but not
limited to, rights under any laws or collective bargaining agreements and
the exercise or non-exercise of the individual rights under this section
shall not be construed as a waiver of any rights of the individual.

2. To conduct strategy sessions in preparation for negotiations with
nonunion personnel or to conduct collective bargaining sessions or
contract negotiations with nonunion personnel;

3. To discuss strategy with respect to collective bargaining or litigation if
an open meeting may have a detrimental effect on the bargaining or
litigating position of the public body and the chair so declares;

4. To discuss the deployment of security personnel or devices, or
strategies with respect thereto;

5. To investigate charges of criminal misconduct or to consider the filing
of criminal complaints;

6. To consider the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if
the chair declares that an open meeting may have a detrimental effect on
the negotiating position of the public body;

295



7. To comply with, or act under the authority of, any general or special
law or federal grant-in-aid requirements;

8. To consider or interview applicants for employment or appointment by
a preliminary screening committee if the chair declares that an open
meeting will have a detrimental effect in obtaining qualified applicants;
provided, however, that this clause shall not apply to any meeting,
including meetings of a preliminary screening committee, to consider and
interview applicants who have passed a prior preliminary screening;

9. To meet or confer with a mediator, as defined in section 23C of chapter
233, with respect to any litigation or decision on any public business
within its jurisdiction involving another party, group or entity, provided
that:

(i) any decision to participate in mediation shall be made in an open
session and the parties, issues involved and purpose of the mediation
shall be disclosed; and

(ii) no action shall be taken by any public body with respect to those
issues which are the subject of the mediation without deliberation and
approval for such action at an open session; or

10. to discuss trade secrets or confidential, competitively-sensitive or
other proprietary information provided in the course of activities
conducted by a governmental body as an energy supplier under a license
granted by the department of public utilities pursuant to section 1F of
chapter 164, in the course of activities conducted as a municipal
aggregator under section 134 of said chapter 164 or in the course of
activities conducted by a cooperative consisting of governmental entities
organized pursuant to section 136 of said chapter 164, when such
governmental body, municipal aggregator or cooperative determines that

296



such disclosure will adversely affect its ability to conduct business in
relation to other entities making, selling or distributing electric power and
energy.

(b) A public body may meet in closed session for 1 or more of the
purposes enumerated in subsection (a) provided that:

1. the body has first convened in an open session pursuant to section 21;

2. a majority of members of the body have voted to go into executive
session and the vote of each member is recorded by roll call and entered
into the minutes;

3. before the executive session, the chair shall state the purpose for the
executive session, stating all subjects that may be revealed without
compromising the purpose for which the executive session was called;

4. the chair shall publicly announce whether the open session will
reconvene at the conclusion of the executive session; and

5. accurate records of the executive session shall be maintained pursuant
to section 23.

297



Part I ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT

Title III LAWS RELATING TO STATE OFFICERS

Chapter 30ASTATE ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE

Section 22 MINUTES OF MEETINGS

Section 22. (a) A public body shall create and maintain accurate minutes
of all meetings, including executive sessions, setting forth the date, time
and place, the members present or absent, a summary of the discussions
on each subject, a list of documents and other exhibits used at the
meeting, the decisions made and the actions taken at each meeting,
including the record of all votes.

(b) No vote taken at an open session shall be by secret ballot. Any vote
taken at an executive session shall be recorded by roll call and entered
into the minutes.

(c) Minutes of all open sessions shall be created and approved in a timely
manner. The minutes of an open session, if they exist and whether
approved or in draft form, shall be made available upon request by any
person within 10 days.

(d) Documents and other exhibits, such as photographs, recordings or
maps, used by the body at an open or executive session shall, along with
the minutes, be part of the official record of the session.

298

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIII/Chapter30A


(e) The minutes of any open session, the notes, recordings or other
materials used in the preparation of such minutes and all documents and
exhibits used at the session, shall be public records in their entirety and
not exempt from disclosure pursuant to any of the exemptions under
clause Twenty-sixth of section 7 of chapter 4. Notwithstanding this
paragraph, the following materials shall be exempt from disclosure to the
public as personnel information: (1) materials used in a performance
evaluation of an individual bearing on his professional competence,
provided they were not created by the members of the body for the
purposes of the evaluation; and (2) materials used in deliberations about
employment or appointment of individuals, including applications and
supporting materials; provided, however, that any resume submitted by
an applicant shall not be exempt.

(f) The minutes of any executive session, the notes, recordings or other
materials used in the preparation of such minutes and all documents and
exhibits used at the session, may be withheld from disclosure to the
public in their entirety under subclause (a) of clause Twenty-sixth of
section 7 of chapter 4, as long as publication may defeat the lawful
purposes of the executive session, but no longer; provided, however, that
the executive session was held in compliance with section 21.

When the purpose for which a valid executive session was held has been
served, the minutes, preparatory materials and documents and exhibits of
the session shall be disclosed unless the attorney-client privilege or 1 or
more of the exemptions under said clause Twenty-sixth of said section 7
of said chapter 4 apply to withhold these records, or any portion thereof,
from disclosure.

299



For purposes of this subsection, if an executive session is held pursuant to
clause (2) or (3) of subsections (a) of section 21, then the minutes,
preparatory materials and documents and exhibits used at the session may
be withheld from disclosure to the public in their entirety, unless and until
such time as a litigating, negotiating or bargaining position is no longer
jeopardized by such disclosure, at which time they shall be disclosed
unless the attorney-client privilege or 1 or more of the exemptions under
said clause Twenty-sixth of said section 7 of said chapter 4 apply to
withhold these records, or any portion thereof, from disclosure.

(g)(1) The public body, or its chair or designee, shall, at reasonable
intervals, review the minutes of executive sessions to determine if the
provisions of this subsection warrant continued non-disclosure. Such
determination shall be announced at the body's next meeting and such
announcement shall be included in the minutes of that meeting.

(2) Upon request by any person to inspect or copy the minutes of an
executive session or any portion thereof, the body shall respond to the
request within 10 days following receipt and shall release any such
minutes not covered by an exemption under subsection (f); provided,
however, that if the body has not performed a review pursuant to
paragraph (1), the public body shall perform the review and release the
non-exempt minutes, or any portion thereof, not later than the body's next
meeting or 30 days, whichever first occurs. A public body shall not assess
a fee for the time spent in its review.

300



Part I ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT

Title III LAWS RELATING TO STATE OFFICERS

Chapter 30A STATE ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE

Section 23 ENFORCEMENT OF OPEN MEETING LAW; COMPLAINTS;
HEARING; CIVIL ACTION

Section 23. (a) Subject to appropriation, the attorney general shall
interpret and enforce the open meeting law.

(b) At least 30 days prior to the filing of a complaint with the attorney
general, the complainant shall file a written complaint with the public
body, setting forth the circumstances which constitute the alleged
violation and giving the body an opportunity to remedy the alleged
violation; provided, however, that such complaint shall be filed within 30
days of the date of the alleged violation. The public body shall, within 14
business days of receipt of a complaint, send a copy of the complaint to
the attorney general and notify the attorney general of any remedial
action taken. Any remedial action taken by the public body in response to
a complaint under this subsection shall not be admissible as evidence
against the public body that a violation occurred in any later
administrative or judicial proceeding relating to such alleged violation.

301

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIII/Chapter30A


The attorney general may authorize an extension of time to the public
body for the purpose of taking remedial action upon the written request of
the public body and a showing of good cause to grant the extension.

(c) Upon the receipt of a complaint by any person, the attorney general
shall determine, in a timely manner, whether there has been a violation of
the open meeting law. The attorney general may, and before imposing any
civil penalty on a public body shall, hold a hearing on any such
complaint. Following a determination that a violation has occurred, the
attorney general shall determine whether the public body, 1 or more of
the members, or both, are responsible and whether the violation was
intentional or unintentional. Upon the finding of a violation, the attorney
general may issue an order to:

(1) compel immediate and future compliance with the open meeting law;

(2) compel attendance at a training session authorized by the attorney
general;

(3) nullify in whole or in part any action taken at the meeting;

(4) impose a civil penalty upon the public body of not more than $1,000
for each intentional violation;

(5) reinstate an employee without loss of compensation, seniority, tenure
or other benefits;

(6) compel that minutes, records or other materials be made public; or

(7) prescribe other appropriate action.

(d) A public body or any member of a body aggrieved by any order issued
pursuant to this section may, notwithstanding any general or special law
to the contrary, obtain judicial review of the order only through an action

302



in superior court seeking relief in the nature of certiorari; provided,
however, that notwithstanding section 4 of chapter 249, any such action
shall be commenced in superior court within 21 days of receipt of the
order. Any order issued under this section shall be stayed pending judicial
review; provided, however, that if the order nullifies an action of the
public body, the body shall not implement such action pending judicial
review.

(e) If any public body or member thereof shall fail to comply with the
requirements set forth in any order issued by the attorney general, or shall
fail to pay any civil penalty imposed within 21 days of the date of
issuance of such order or within 30 days following the decision of the
superior court if judicial review of such order has been timely sought, the
attorney general may file an action to compel compliance. Such action
shall be filed in Suffolk superior court with respect to state public bodies
and, with respect to all other public bodies, in the superior court in any
county in which the public body acts or meets. If such body or member
has not timely sought judicial review of the order, such order shall not be
open to review in an action to compel compliance.

(f) As an alternative to the procedure in subsection (b), the attorney
general or 3 or more registered voters may initiate a civil action to
enforce the open meeting law.

Any action under this subsection shall be filed in Suffolk superior court
with respect to state public bodies and, with respect to all other public
bodies, in the superior court in any county in which the public body acts
or meets.

303



In any action filed pursuant to this subsection, in addition to all other
remedies available to the superior court, in law or in equity, the court
shall have all of the remedies set forth in subsection (c).

In any action filed under this subsection, the order of notice on the
complaint shall be returnable not later than 10 days after the filing and
the complaint shall be heard and determined on the return day or on such
day as the court shall fix, having regard to the speediest possible
determination of the cause consistent with the rights of the parties;
provided, however, that orders may be issued at any time on or after the
filing of the complaint without notice when such order is necessary to
fulfill the purposes of the open meeting law. In the hearing of any action
under this subsection, the burden shall be on the respondent to show by a
preponderance of the evidence that the action complained of in such
complaint was in accordance with and authorized by the open meeting
law; provided, however, that no civil penalty may be imposed on an
individual absent proof that the action complained of violated the open
meeting law.

(g) It shall be a defense to the imposition of a penalty that the public
body, after full disclosure, acted in good faith compliance with the advice
of the public body's legal counsel.

(h) Payment of civil penalties under this section paid to or received by the
attorney general shall be paid into the general fund of the commonwealth.

304



Part I ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT

Title III LAWS RELATING TO STATE OFFICERS

Chapter 30A STATE ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE

Section 24 INVESTIGATION BY ATTORNEY GENERAL OF VIOLATIONS OF
OPEN MEETING LAW

Section 24. (a) Whenever the attorney general has reasonable cause to
believe that a person, including any public body and any other state,
regional, county, municipal or other governmental official or entity, has
violated the open meeting law, the attorney general may conduct an
investigation to ascertain whether in fact such person has violated the
open meeting law. Upon notification of an investigation, any person,
public body or any other state, regional, county, municipal or other
governmental official or entity who is the subject of an investigation,
shall make all information necessary to conduct such investigation
available to the attorney general. In the event that the person, public body
or any other state, regional, county, municipal or other governmental
official or entity being investigated does not voluntarily provide relevant
information to the attorney general within 30 days of receiving notice of
the investigation, the attorney general may: (1) take testimony under oath
concerning such alleged violation of the open meeting law; (2) examine
or cause to be examined any documentary material of whatever nature
relevant to such alleged violation of the open meeting law; and (3)

305

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIII/Chapter30A


require attendance during such examination of documentary material of
any person having knowledge of the documentary material and take
testimony under oath or acknowledgment in respect of any such
documentary material. Such testimony and examination shall take place
in the county where such person resides or has a place of business or, if
the parties consent or such person is a nonresident or has no place of
business within the commonwealth, in Suffolk county.

(b) Notice of the time, place and cause of such taking of testimony,
examination or attendance shall be given by the attorney general at least
10 days prior to the date of such taking of testimony or examination.

(c) Service of any such notice may be made by: (1) delivering a duly-
executed copy to the person to be served or to a partner or to any officer
or agent authorized by appointment or by law to receive service of
process on behalf of such person; (2) delivering a duly-executed copy to
the principal place of business in the commonwealth of the person to be
served; or (3) mailing by registered or certified mail a duly-executed
copy addressed to the person to be served at the principal place of
business in the commonwealth or, if said person has no place of business
in the commonwealth, to his principal office or place of business.

(d) Each such notice shall: (1) state the time and place for the taking of
testimony or the examination and the name and address of each person to
be examined, if known and, if the name is not known, a general
description sufficient to identify him or the particular class or group to
which he belongs; (2) state the statute and section thereof, the alleged
violation of which is under investigation and the general subject matter of
the investigation; (3) describe the class or classes of documentary
material to be produced thereunder with reasonable specificity, so as

306



fairly to indicate the material demanded; (4) prescribe a return date
within which the documentary material is to be produced; and (5) identify
the members of the attorney general's staff to whom such documentary
material is to be made available for inspection and copying.

(e) No such notice shall contain any requirement which would be
unreasonable or improper if contained in a subpoena duces tecum issued
by a court of the commonwealth or require the disclosure of any
documentary material which would be privileged, or which for any other
reason would not be required by a subpoena duces tecum issued by a
court of the commonwealth.

(f) Any documentary material or other information produced by any
person pursuant to this section shall not, unless otherwise ordered by a
court of the commonwealth for good cause shown, be disclosed to any
person other than the authorized agent or representative of the attorney
general, unless with the consent of the person producing the same;
provided, however, that such material or information may be disclosed by
the attorney general in court pleadings or other papers filed in court.

(g) At any time prior to the date specified in the notice, or within 21 days
after the notice has been served, whichever period is shorter, the court
may, upon motion for good cause shown, extend such reporting date or
modify or set aside such demand or grant a protective order in accordance
with the standards set forth in Rule 26(c) of the Massachusetts Rules of
Civil Procedure. The motion may be filed in the superior court of the
county in which the person served resides or has his usual place of
business or in Suffolk county. This section shall not be applicable to any

307



criminal proceeding nor shall information obtained under the authority of
this section be admissible in evidence in any criminal prosecution for
substantially identical transactions.

308



Part I ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT

Title III LAWS RELATING TO STATE OFFICERS

Chapter 30A STATE ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE

Section 25 AUTHORITY OF ATTORNEY GENERAL TO PROMULGATE
RULES AND REGULATIONS, LETTER RULINGS AND
ADVISORY OPINIONS

Section 25. (a) The attorney general shall have the authority to
promulgate rules and regulations to carry out enforcement of the open
meeting law.

(b) The attorney general shall have the authority to interpret the open
meeting law and to issue written letter rulings or advisory opinions
according to rules established under this section.

309

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIII/Chapter30A


Part I ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT

Title III LAWS RELATING TO STATE OFFICERS

Chapter 30BUNIFORM PROCUREMENT ACT

Section 16 REAL PROPERTY; DISPOSITION OR ACQUISITION

Section 16. (a) If a governmental body duly authorized by general or
special law to engage in such transaction determines that it shall rent,
convey, or otherwise dispose of real property, the governmental body
shall declare the property available for disposition and shall specify the
restrictions, if any, that it will place on the subsequent use of the property.

(b) The governmental body shall determine the value of the property
through procedures customarily accepted by the appraising profession as
valid.

(c) A governmental body shall solicit proposals prior to:

(1) acquiring by purchase or rental real property or an interest therein
from any person at a cost exceeding $35,000; or

(2) disposing of, by sale or rental to any person, real property or any
interest therein, determined in accordance with paragraph (b) to exceed
$35,000 dollars in value.

310

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIII/Chapter30B


(d) The governmental body shall place an advertisement inviting the
submission of proposals in a newspaper with a circulation in the locality
sufficient to inform the people of the affected locality. The governmental
body shall publish the advertisement at least once a week for two
consecutive weeks. The last publication shall occur at least eight days
preceding the day for opening proposals. The advertisement shall specify
the geographical area, terms and requirements of the proposed
transaction, and the time and place for the submission of proposals. In the
case of the acquisition or disposition of more than twenty-five hundred
square feet of real property, the governmental body shall also cause such
advertisement to be published, at least thirty days before the opening of
proposals, in the central register published by the state secretary pursuant
to section twenty A of chapter nine.

(e) The governmental body may shorten or waive the advertising
requirement if:

(1) the governmental body determines that an emergency exists and the
time required to comply with the requirements would endanger the health
or safety of the people or their property; provided, however, that the
governmental body shall state the reasons for declaring the emergency in
the central register at the earliest opportunity; or

(2) in the case of a proposed acquisition, the governmental body
determines in writing that advertising will not benefit the governmental
body's interest because of the unique qualities or location of the property
needed. The determination shall specify the manner in which the property
proposed for acquisition satisfies the unique requirements. The
governmental body shall publish the determination and the reasons for
the determination, along with the names of the parties having a beneficial

311



interest in the property pursuant to section forty J of chapter seven, the
location and size of the property, and the proposed purchase price or
rental terms, in the central register not less than thirty days before the
governmental body executes a binding agreement to acquire the property.

(f) Proposals shall be opened publicly at the time and place designated in
the advertisement. The governmental body shall submit the name of the
person selected as party to a real property transaction, and the amount of
the transaction, to the state secretary for publication in the central
register.

(g) If the governmental body decides to dispose of property at a price less
than the value as determined pursuant to paragraph (b), the governmental
body shall publish notice of its decision in the central register, explaining
the reasons for its decision and disclosing the difference between such
value and the price to be received.

(h) This section shall not apply to the rental of residential property to
qualified tenants by a housing authority or a community development
authority.

(i) Acquisitions or dispositions of real property or any interest therein
pursuant to this section between governmental bodies and the federal
government, the commonwealth or any of its political subdivisions or
another state or political subdivision thereof shall be subject to
subsections (a), (b) and (g).

312



Part I ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT

Title VII CITIES, TOWNS AND DISTRICTS

Chapter 40 POWERS AND DUTIES OF CITIES AND TOWNS

Section 5B STABILIZATION FUNDS; ESTABLISHMENT

Section 5B. Cities, towns and districts may create 1 or more stabilization
funds and appropriate any amount into the funds. Any interest shall be
added to and become part of the fund.

The treasurer shall be the custodian of all stabilization funds and may
deposit the proceeds in a trust company, co-operative bank or savings
bank, if the trust company or bank is organized or exists pursuant to the
laws of the commonwealth or any other state or may transact business in
the commonwealth and has its main office or a branch office in the
commonwealth; a national bank, federal savings bank or federal savings
and loan association, if the bank or association may transact business and
has its main office or a branch office in the commonwealth; provided,
however, that a state-chartered or federally-chartered bank shall be
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or its successor; or
may invest the funds in participation units in a combined investment fund
pursuant to section 38A of chapter 29 or in securities that are legal
investments for savings banks.

313

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter40


At the time of creating any stabilization fund the city, town or district
shall specify, and at any later time may alter, the purpose of the fund,
which may be for any lawful purpose, including without limitation, an
approved school project pursuant to chapter 70B or any other purpose for
which the city, town or district may lawfully borrow money. The
specification and any alteration of purpose, and any appropriation of
funds from any such fund, shall be approved by a two-thirds vote, except
as provided in paragraph (g) of section 21C of chapter 59 for a majority
referendum vote. Subject to said section 21C of said chapter 59, any such
vote shall be of the legislative body of the city, town or district, subject to
charter.

Notwithstanding section 53 of chapter 44 or any other general or special
law to the contrary, a city, town or district that accepts this paragraph may
dedicate, without further appropriation, all, or a percentage not less than
25 per cent, of a particular fee, charge or other receipt to any stabilization
fund established pursuant to this section; provided, however, that the
receipt is not reserved by law for expenditure for a particular purpose.
For purposes of this paragraph, a receipt shall not include taxes or excises
assessed pursuant to chapter 59, 60A, 60B, 61, 61A or 61B or surcharges
assessed pursuant to section 39M or chapter 44B. A dedication shall be
approved by a two-thirds vote of the legislative body of the city, town or
district, subject to charter, and may be terminated in the same manner. A
vote to dedicate or terminate a dedication shall be made before the fiscal
year in which the dedication or termination is to commence and shall be
effective at least for 3 fiscal years.

314



Part I ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT

Title VII CITIES, TOWNS AND DISTRICTS

Chapter 44 MUNICIPAL FINANCE

Section 7 CITIES AND TOWNS; PURPOSES FOR BORROWING MONEY
WITHIN DEBT LIMIT

Section 7. Cities and towns may incur debt, by a two-thirds vote, within
the limit of indebtedness prescribed in section 10, for the following
purposes and payable within the periods hereinafter specified not to
exceed 30 years or, except for clauses (2), (3), (6) and (7), within the
period determined by the director to be the maximum useful life of the
public work, improvement or asset being financed under any guideline
issued under section 38:

(1) For the acquisition of interests in land or the acquisition of assets, or
for the following projects: the landscaping, alteration, remediation,
rehabilitation or improvement of public land, the dredging, improvement,
restoration, preservation or remediation of public waterways, lakes or
ponds, the construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, improvement,
alteration, remodeling, enlargement, demolition, removal or extraordinary
repair of public buildings, facilities, assets, works or infrastructure,
including: (i) the cost of original equipment and furnishings of the
buildings, facilities, assets, works or infrastructure; (ii) damages under

315

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44


chapter 79 resulting from any such acquisition or project; and (iii) the
cost of engineering, architectural or other services for feasibility studies,
plans or specifications as part of any acquisition or project; provided that
the interest in land, asset acquired or project shall have a useful life of at
least 5 years; and provided further, that the period of such borrowing
shall not exceed the useful life of the interest in land, asset acquired or
project.

(2) For a revolving loan fund established under section 53E3/4; to assist
in the development of renewable energy and energy conservation projects
on privately-held buildings, property or facilities within the city or town,
20 years.

(3) For the payment of final judgments, 1 year or for a longer period of
time approved by a majority of the members of the municipal finance
oversight board after taking into consideration the ability of the city, town
or district to provide other essential public services and pay, when due,
the principal and interest on its debts and such other factors as the board
may deem necessary or advisable.

(4) In Boston, for the original construction, or the extension or widening,
with permanent pavement of lasting character conforming to
specifications approved by the Massachusetts Department of
Transportation established under chapter 6C and under the direction of
the board of park commissioners of the city of Boston, of ways, other
than public ways, within or bounding on or connecting with any public
park in said city, including land damages and the cost of pavement and
sidewalks laid at the time of said construction, or for the construction of
such ways with stone, block, brick, cement concrete, bituminous

316



concrete, bituminous macadam or other permanent pavement of similar
lasting character under specifications approved by said department of
highways, 10 years.

(5) For the cost of repairs to private ways open to the public under section
6N of chapter 40, 5 years.

(6) For the payment of charges incurred under contracts authorized by
section 4D of chapter 40, but only for those contracts for purposes
comparable to the purposes for which loans may be authorized under this
section. Each authorized issue shall constitute a separate loan, and the
loans shall be subject to the conditions of the applicable clauses of this
section.

(7) For the cost of feasibility studies or engineering or architectural
services for plans and specifications for any proposed project for which a
city, town or district is authorized to borrow, 5 years if issued before any
other debt relating to the project is authorized, otherwise the period for
the debt relating to the project.

(8) For energy audits as defined in section 3 of chapter 25A, if authorized
separately from debt for energy conservation or alternative energy
projects; 5 years.

(9) For the development, design, purchase and installation of computer
hardware or software and computer-assisted integrated financial
management and accounting systems; 10 years.

(10) For the cost of cleaning up or preventing pollution caused by
existing or closed municipal facilities not referenced in clause (20) of
section 8, including cleanup or prevention activities taken pursuant to
chapter 21E or chapter 21H, 10 years; provided, however, that no

317



indebtedness shall be incurred hereunder until plans relating to the project
shall have been submitted to and approved by the department of
environmental protection.

(11) For any other public work, improvement or asset with a maximum
useful life of at least 5 years and not otherwise specified in this section, 5
years.

318



Part I ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT

Title VII CITIES, TOWNS AND DISTRICTS

Chapter 44 MUNICIPAL FINANCE

Section 8 CITIES AND TOWNS; PURPOSES FOR BORROWING MONEY
OUTSIDE DEBT LIMIT

  Section 8. Cities and towns may incur debt, by a two-thirds vote, outside
the limit of indebtedness prescribed in section 10, for the following
purposes and payable within the periods hereinafter specified or, except
with respect to clauses (1), (2), (3A), (9) and (18), within such longer
period not to exceed 30 years determined by the director to be the
maximum useful life of the public work, improvement or asset being
financed under any guidelines issued under section 38:

  (1) For temporary loans under sections 4, 6, 6A and 17, the periods
authorized by those sections.

  (2) For maintaining, distributing and providing food, other common
necessaries of life and temporary shelter for their inhabitants upon the
occasions and in the manner set forth in section 19 of chapter 40, 2 years.

  (3) For establishing or purchasing a system for supplying a city, town, or
district and its inhabitants with water, for taking or purchasing water
sources, either from public land or private sources, or water or flowage

319

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44


rights, for the purpose of a public water supply, or for taking or
purchasing land for the protection of a water system, 30 years.

  (3A) For conducting groundwater inventory and analysis of the
community water supply, including pump tests and quality tests relating
to the development of using said groundwater as an additional source or a
new source of water supply for any city, town or district, 10 years.

  (4) For the construction or enlargement of reservoirs, the construction of
filter beds, the construction or reconstruction or making extraordinary
repairs to standpipes, buildings for pumping stations including original
pumping station equipment, and buildings for water treatment, including
original equipment therefor, and the acquisition of land or any interest in
land necessary in connection with any of the foregoing, 30 years.

  (4A) For remodeling, reconstructing or making extraordinary repairs to
reservoirs and filter beds, 30 years; provided, however, that no
indebtedness shall be incurred hereunder until plans relating to the project
shall have been submitted to the department of environmental protection,
and the approval of said department has been granted therefor.

  (5) For constructing or reconstructing, laying or relaying aqueducts or
water mains or for the extension of water mains, or for lining or relining
such mains, and for the development or construction of additional well
fields and for wells, 40 years.

  (6) For the purchase and installation of water meters, 10 years.

  (7) For the payment of the city, town or district share of the cost to
increase the storage capacity of any reservoir, including land acquisition,
constructed by the water resources commission for flood prevention or
water resources utilization, 20 years.

320



  (7A) For the purchase, replacement or rehabilitation of water
departmental equipment, 10 years.

  (8) For establishing, purchasing, extending, or enlarging a municipally
owned gas or electric lighting plant, community antenna television
system, or telecommunications system, 20 years.

  (8A) For remodeling, reconstructing, or making extraordinary repairs to
a municipally owned gas or electric lighting plant, community antenna
television system, or telecommunications system, when approved by a
majority of the members of the municipal finance oversight board, for the
number of years not exceeding 10, as said board shall fix. Each city or
town seeking approval by the board of a loan under this clause shall
submit to said board all plans and other information considered by the
board to be necessary for a determination of the probable extended use of
such plant, community television antenna system or telecommunications
system likely to result from the remodeling, reconstruction, or repair, and
in considering approval under this clause of a requested loan and the
terms thereof, special consideration shall be given to that determination.

  (9) For emergency appropriations that are approved by the director, not
more than 2 years or such longer period not to exceed 10 years as
determined by the director after taking into consideration the ability of
the city, town or district to provide other essential public services and
pay, when due, the principal and interest on its debts, the amount of
federal and state payments likely to be received for the purpose of the
appropriations and such other factors as the director may deem necessary
or advisable; provided, however, that for the purposes of this clause,
"emergency'' shall mean a sudden, unavoidable event or series of events
which could not reasonably have been foreseen or anticipated at the time

321



of submission of the annual budget for approval; provided, further, that
emergency shall not include the funding of collective bargaining
agreements or items that were previously disapproved by the
appropriating authority for the fiscal year in which the borrowing is
sought; and provided, further, that for the purposes of this clause, debt
may be authorized by the treasurer of the city, town or district, with the
approval of the chief executive officer in a city or town, or the prudential
committee, if any, or by the commissioners in a district.

  (9A) For emergency appropriations approved by a majority of the
members of the municipal finance oversight board, up to the period fixed
by law for the debt as determined by the board; provided, however, that
this clause shall apply only to appropriations for capital purposes
including, but not limited to, the acquisition, construction, reconstruction
or repair of any public building, work, improvement or asset, and upon a
demonstration by the city, town or district that the process for authorizing
debt in the manner otherwise provided by law imposes an undue hardship
in its ability to respond to the emergency; provided further, that for
purposes of this clause, "emergency'' shall mean a sudden, unavoidable
event or series of events which could not reasonably have been foreseen
or anticipated at the time of submission of the annual budget for
approval; and provided, further, that for the purposes of this clause, debt
may be authorized by the treasurer of the city, town or district, with the
approval of the chief executive officer in a city or town, or the prudential
committee, if any, or by the commissioners in a district.

  (10) For acquiring land or constructing buildings or other structures,
including the cost of original equipment, as memorials to members of the
army, navy, marine corps, coast guard, or air force, 20 years.

322



  The designation of any such memorial shall not be changed except after
a public hearing by the board of selectmen or by the city council of the
municipality wherein said memorial is located, notice of the time and
place of which shall be given, at the expense of the proponents, by the
town or city clerk as the case may be, by publication not less than 30 days
prior thereto in a newspaper, if any, published in such town or city;
otherwise, in the county in which such town or city lies; and notice of
which shall also have been given by the proponents, by registered mail,
not less than 30 days prior to such hearing, to all veterans' organizations
of such town or city.

  (11) For acquiring street railway or other transportation property under
sections 143 to 158, inclusive, of chapter 161, operating the same, or
contributing toward the sums expended or to be expended by a
transportation area for capital purposes, 10 years.

  (12) For the acquisition, construction, establishment, enlargement,
improvement or protection of public airports, including the acquisition of
land, 10 years. The proceeds of indebtedness incurred hereunder may be
expended for the acquisition, construction, establishment, enlargement,
improvement or protection of such an airport, including the acquisition of
land, jointly by 2 or more municipalities.

  (13) For the financing of a program of eradication of Dutch elm disease,
including all disbursements on account of which reimbursement is
authorized or may be authorized by the commonwealth, county, any city
or town, or by any manner of assessment or charges, pursuant to and
consistent with chapter 132, 5 years.

323



  (14) For the construction of sewers, sewerage systems and sewage
treatment and disposal facilities, or for the lump sum payment of the cost
of tie-in to such services in a contiguous city or town, for a period not
exceeding 30 years; provided, however, that either: (i) the city or town
has an enterprise or special revenue fund for sewer services, and that the
accountant, auditor or other officer having similar duties in the city or
town shall have certified to the treasurer that rates and charges have been
set at a sufficient level to cover the estimated operating expenses and debt
service related to the fund; or (ii) the issuance of the debt is approved by
a majority of the members of the municipal finance oversight board.

  (15) For the construction and rehabilitation of municipal golf courses,
including the acquisition and reconstruction of land, installation and
replacement of irrigation systems, the construction and rehabilitation of
buildings, and the cost of equipment and furnishings, 20 years.

  (16) For the payment of charges incurred under contracts authorized by
section 4D of chapter 40, but only for those contracts for purposes
comparable to the purposes for which loans may be authorized under this
section. Each authorized issue shall constitute a separate loan, and the
loans shall be subject to the conditions of the applicable clauses of this
section.

  (17) For the construction of a regional incinerator for the purpose of
disposing solid waste, refuse and garbage by 2 or more communities, 20
years.

[ Clause (18) effective until May 30, 2023. For text effective May 30,
2023, see below.]

324



  (18) For the lending or granting of money to industrial development
financing authorities and economic development and industrial
corporations, with the approval of the Massachusetts office of business
development and the director of housing and community development, 20
years.

[ Clause (18) as amended by 2023, 7, Sec. 210 effective May 30, 2023.
See 2023, 7, Sec. 298. For text effective until May 30, 2023, see above.]

  (18) For the lending or granting of money to industrial development
financing authorities and economic development and industrial
corporations, with the approval of the Massachusetts office of business
development and the secretary of economic development or predecessor
thereof for any such approval issued prior to 2023, including, without
limitation, the secretary of housing and economic development or
director of housing and community development, 20 years.

  (19) For the purposes of implementing a project financed in whole or in
part by the Farmers Home Administration of the United States
Department of Agriculture, pursuant to Chapter 50 of Title 7 of the
United States Code , up to 40 years. Regional school districts established
under any general or special law shall be authorized to incur debt for the
purposes and within the limitations described in this clause.

  (20) For the cost of cleaning up or preventing pollution caused by
existing or closed landfills or other solid waste disposal facilities,
including clean up or prevention activities taken pursuant to chapter 21E
or chapter 21H, 30 years; provided, however, that no indebtedness shall
be incurred hereunder until plans relating to the project shall have been
submitted to the department of environmental protection and the approval
of said department has been granted therefor.

325



  (21) For the construction of incinerators, refuse transfer facilities,
recycling facilities, composting facilities, resource recovery facilities or
other solid waste disposal facilities, other than landfills, for the purpose
of disposing of waste, refuse and garbage, 25 years; provided, however,
that no indebtedness shall be incurred hereunder until plans relating to the
project shall have been submitted to the department of environmental
protection and the approval of said department has been granted therefor.

  (22) For remodeling, reconstructing or making extraordinary repairs to
incinerators, refuse transfer facilities, recycling facilities, resource
recovery facilities or other solid waste disposal facilities, other than
landfills, owned by the city, town or district, and used for the purpose of
disposing of waste, refuse and garbage, 10 years; provided, however, that
no indebtedness shall be incurred hereunder until plans relating to the
project shall have been submitted to the department of environmental
protection and the approval of said department has been granted therefor.

  (23) For the purpose of closing out a landfill area, opening a new
landfill area, or making improvements to an existing landfill area, 25
years; provided, however, that no indebtedness shall be incurred
hereunder until plans relating to the project shall have been submitted to
the department of environmental protection and the approval of said
department has been granted therefor.

  (24) For the acquisition of a dam or the removal, repair, reconstruction
and improvements to a dam owned by a municipality, as may be
necessary to maintain, repair or improve such dam, 40 years; provided,
however, that this clause shall include dams as defined in section 44 of
chapter 253 acquired by gift, purchase, eminent domain under chapter 79
or otherwise and located within a municipality, including any real

326



property appurtenant thereto, if the dam and any appurtenant real
property is not at the time of such acquisition owned or held in trust by
the commonwealth.

327



Part I ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT

Title VII CITIES, TOWNS AND DISTRICTS

Chapter

44

MUNICIPAL FINANCE

Section 10 DEBT LIMIT

  Section 10. Except as otherwise provided by law, a city or town shall
not authorize indebtedness to an amount exceeding 5 per cent of the
equalized valuation of the city or town. A city or town may authorize
indebtedness in excess of 5 per cent but not in excess of 10 per cent, of
the aforesaid equalized valuation; provided, however, that the amount
of indebtedness so authorized shall be subject to the approval of the
members of the municipal finance oversight board, which approval
may be given either before or after such authorization.

  In determining the debt limit for Boston hereunder the provisions of
chapter ninety-three of the acts of eighteen hundred and ninety-one and
of section one of chapter one hundred and ninety-one of the acts of
nineteen hundred and three shall apply.

  The debt limit for a district shall be based on an amount determined
by applying to the equalized valuation of the town the same ratio which
the assessors' valuation of the taxable property of the district for the

328

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section10#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section10#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section10#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section10#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section10#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section10#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section10#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section10#


preceding fiscal year bears to the assessors' valuation of the taxable
property of the town for the preceding fiscal year. In the case of the
district which is located in two or more towns, said debt limit shall be
based on the total amount determined by applying to the equalized
valuation of each of the towns in which any part of the district is
located the same ratio which the assessors' valuation of the taxable
property of the district in the respective towns for the preceding fiscal
year bears to the assessors' valuation of the taxable property of said
town for the preceding fiscal year.

  All authorized debts, except those expressly authorized by law to be
incurred outside the debt limit, shall be reckoned in determining the
limit of indebtedness under this section.

[ Fifth paragraph added by 2023, 28, Sec. 25 effective July 1, 2023.
See 2023, 28, Sec. 115.]

  Notwithstanding this section, indebtedness authorized by a city or
town to pay costs of constructing, reconstructing, equipping and
furnishing a school facility for the education of school children for
which grant funds in support of such project from the Massachusetts
School Building Authority are not otherwise available and for which
such city or town has voted, in accordance with paragraph (k) of
section 21C of chapter 59, to exclude the repayment of such
indebtedness from the tax levy limitations set forth in said section 21C
of said chapter 59 shall not be reckoned in determining the limit of
indebtedness under this section.

329



Part I ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT

Title VII CITIES, TOWNS AND DISTRICTS

Chapter 44 MUNICIPAL FINANCE

Section 20 PROCEEDS FROM SALE OF BONDS; RESTRICTIONS ON USE;
DISPOSITION OF PREMIUMS

Section 20. The proceeds of any sale of bonds or notes shall be used
only for the purposes specified in the authorization of the loan;
provided, however, that such proceeds may also be used for costs of
preparing, issuing and marketing the bonds or notes, except as
otherwise authorized by this section. If a balance remains after the
completion of the project for which the loan was authorized, the
balance may at any time be appropriated by a city, town or district for
any purposes for which a loan may be incurred for an equal or longer
period of time than that for which the original loan, including
temporary debt, was issued. Any balance not in excess of $50,000 may
be applied, with the approval of the chief executive officer, for the
payment of indebtedness. If a loan has been issued for a specified
purpose but the project for which the loan was authorized has not been
completed and no liability remains outstanding and unpaid on account
thereof, a city, by a two-thirds vote of all of the members of the city
council, or a town or district, by a two-thirds vote of the voters present

330

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section20#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section20#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section20#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section20#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section20#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section20#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section20#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section20#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section20#


and voting thereon at an annual town or district meeting, may vote to
abandon or discontinue the project and the unexpended proceeds of the
loan may be appropriated for any purpose for which a loan may be
authorized for an equal or longer period of time than that for which the
original loan, including temporary debt, was issued. Any premium
received upon the sale of notes, less the cost of preparing, issuing and
marketing the notes, and any accrued interest received upon the
delivery of the notes, shall be applied to the first payment of interest on
the note. Any premium received upon the sale of bonds, less the cost of
preparing, issuing and marketing the bonds, and any accrued interest
received upon the delivery of bonds shall be: (i) in the case of bonds
sold by a city or town that have been excluded under section 21C of
chapter 59, or bonds sold by a regional school district for which 1 or
more member cities or towns have so excluded their share of the bond,
applied by the treasurer to pay costs of the project being financed by
the bonds and to reduce the amount authorized to be borrowed for the
project by like amount; or (ii) in the case of any other bonds, applied by
the treasurer to pay costs of the project being financed by the bonds and
to reduce the amount authorized to be borrowed for the project by like
amount; provided, however, that in the case of a bond under clause (ii),
if any such premium or accrued interest is not so applied, any such
premium or accrued interest shall be appropriated to pay costs of a
project for which the city, town or district has authorized a borrowing
or may authorize a borrowing. Notwithstanding this section, any
premium and accrued interest received on account of an issue of bonds,
less the cost of preparing, issuing and marketing the bonds, not in
excess of $50,000 may be applied, with the approval of the chief
executive officer in a city of town, for the payment of indebtedness.

331



Notwithstanding this section, no appropriation from a loan or balance
thereof shall be made that would increase the amount available from
borrowed money for any purpose to an amount in excess of any limit
imposed by general law or special act for that purpose. Additions to the
levy limit for a debt exclusion are restricted to the true interest cost
incurred to finance the excluded project.

332



Part I ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT

Title VII CITIES, TOWNS AND DISTRICTS

Chapter 44 MUNICIPAL FINANCE

Section 21A REFUNDING BONDS; ISSUANCE; PRESENT
VALUES

Section 21A. The city council of a city, the board of selectmen of a
town and the prudential committee, if any, otherwise, the
commissioners of a district, may authorize and provide for the issuance
of refunding bonds or notes of the city, town or district for the purpose
of paying or refunding all or any designated part of an issue of bonds or
notes then outstanding, including the amount of any redemption
premium thereon; provided, however, that no such refunding bonds or
notes shall be payable over a period longer than the period during
which the original bonds or notes so refunded must be paid pursuant to
law; and provided, further, that, notwithstanding any provision of any
general or special law, city charter, city ordinance or city council rule
or order to the contrary, any vote of the city council of a city
authorizing and providing for the issuance of refunding bonds or notes
of the city may be introduced and given final passage at 1 meeting of
the city council, shall not be subject to any publication requirement,
shall not be subject to any referendum provision, and shall be effective

333

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section21A#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section21A#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section21A#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section21A#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section21A#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section21A#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section21A#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section21A#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section21A#


upon passage. The first annual payment of principal on account of an
issue of refunding bonds or notes shall not be later than the last day of
the fiscal year in which any of the bonds or notes being refunded would
otherwise have been payable and the annual payments thereafter shall
be arranged in accordance with the provisions of section 19; provided,
however, that any annual payment earlier than the date on which the
first annual payment is required to be made, may be in any amount.
Except as otherwise provided in this section, the issuance of such
refunding bonds or notes shall be governed by the applicable
provisions of this chapter. Refunding bonds or notes issued under this
section shall be subject to the same limit of indebtedness, if any, as the
bonds or notes refunded by them; provided, however, that upon the
issuance of such refunding bonds or notes, the bonds or notes refunded
shall no longer be counted in determining any limit of indebtedness of
the city, town or district under this chapter or any other applicable
provision of law. If such refunding bonds or notes are issued prior to
the maturity or redemption date of the original bonds or notes refunded,
an amount of the proceeds of the refunding bonds or notes and other
moneys then available or to become available to the city, town or
district, which moneys may include income to be derived from the
investment of such proceeds, sufficient to pay or provide for the
payment of the principal, redemption premium, if any, and interest on
the bonds or notes so refunded to the date fixed for their payment or
redemption shall be held in a separate fund and in trust solely for the
payment of such principal, redemption premium and interest. The funds
so held may be invested pursuant to section 55 and the income derived
from such investment may be expended by the treasurer to pay the
principal, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the bonds or

334



notes refunded until they are paid or redeemed; provided, however, that
notwithstanding any limitations on the maturity of investments under
section 55, any such investment may have a maturity not later than the
date fixed for the payment or redemption of the bonds or notes
refunded.

The present value of the principal and interest payments due on
refunding bonds issued under this section shall not exceed the present
value of the principal and interest payments to be paid on the bonds to
be refunded, except as otherwise provided in this section. The city,
town, or regional school district shall notify the department of
education in the event that bonds or notes issued for an approved
school project under chapter 645 of the acts of 1948 are refunded under
this section and the amount of the state construction grant payable to
the city, town, or regional school district shall not be affected by any
increase in the amount of interest payable on the refunding bonds or
notes, but shall be affected by any decrease in the amount of interest
payable on the refunding bonds or notes for school building projects
approved after July 1, 1995. Upon receipt of notification from a city,
town or regional school district of a decrease in the amount of interest
payable related to such projects, the department of education shall
recalculate the amount of the state construction grant that is payable to
such city, town or regional school district.

If the mayor or city manager in a city, the board of selectmen of a town
or the prudential committee of a district determines that the issuance of
refunding bonds is reasonable and necessary in order to maintain the
tax-exempt status of outstanding bonds or notes of the city, town or
district, the official, board or committee may authorize refunding bonds

335



for that purpose, even if the present value of the principal and interest
payments due on the refunding bonds exceeds the present value of the
principal and interest payments otherwise payable on the bonds to be
refunded.

336



Part I ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT

Title VII CITIES, TOWNS AND DISTRICTS

Chapter 44 MUNICIPAL FINANCE

Section 33B TRANSFER OF APPROPRIATIONS;
RESTRICTIONS

Section 33B. (a) On recommendation of the mayor, the city council
may, by majority vote, transfer any amount appropriated for the use of
any department to another appropriation for the same department. In
addition, the city council may, by majority vote, on recommendation of
the mayor, transfer within the last 2 months of any fiscal year, or during
the first 15 days of the new fiscal year, to apply to the previous fiscal
year, any amount appropriated, other than for the use of a municipal
light department or a school department, to any other appropriation.
Except as provided in the preceding sentence, no transfer shall be made
of any amount appropriated for the use of any city department to the
appropriation for any other department except by a 2/3 vote of the city
council on recommendation of the mayor and with the written approval
of the amount of the transfer by the department having control of the
appropriation from which the transfer is proposed to be made. No
transfer involving a municipal light department or a school department
shall be made under the previous sentence without the approval of the

337

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section33b#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section33b#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section33b#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section33b#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section33b#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section33b#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section33b#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section33b#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section33b#


amount of the transfer by a vote of the municipal light department
board or by a vote of the school committee, respectively.

(b) A town may, by majority vote at any meeting duly held, transfer
any amount previously appropriated to any other use authorized by law.
Alternatively, the selectmen, with the concurrence of the finance
committee or other entity established under section 16 of chapter 39,
may transfer within the last 2 months of any fiscal year, or during the
first 15 days of the new fiscal year to apply to the previous fiscal year,
any amount appropriated, other than for the use of a municipal light
department or a school department, to any other appropriation.

(c) No approval other than that expressly provided in this section shall
be required for any transfer under this section.

338



Part I ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT

Title VII CITIES, TOWNS AND DISTRICTS

Chapter 44 MUNICIPAL FINANCE

Section

53E1/2

REVOLVING FUNDS

Section 53E1/2. Notwithstanding section 53, a city or town may
authorize by by-law or ordinance the use of 1 or more revolving funds
by 1 or more municipal agencies, boards, departments or offices, which
shall be accounted for separately from all other monies in the city or
town and to which shall be credited any fees, charges or other receipts
from the departmental programs or activities supported by the
revolving fund. Expenditures may be made from such revolving fund
without further appropriation, subject to the provisions of this section;
provided, however, that expenditures shall not be made or liabilities
incurred from any such revolving fund in excess of the balance of the
fund or in excess of the total authorized expenditures from such fund,
and no expenditures shall be made unless approved in accordance with
sections 41, 42, 52 and 56 of chapter 41.

Interest earned on any revolving fund balance shall be treated as
general fund revenue of the city or town. No revolving fund may be

339

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section53E1~2#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section53E1~2#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section53E1~2#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section53E1~2#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section53E1~2#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section53E1~2#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section53E1~2#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section53E1~2#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section53E1~2#


established under this section for receipts of a municipal water or sewer
department, a municipal hospital, a cable television access service or
facility or for receipts reserved by law or as authorized by law for
expenditure for a particular purpose. Revolving fund expenditures shall
not be made to pay wages or salaries for full-time employees unless the
revolving fund is also charged for the costs of fringe benefits associated
with the wages or salaries so paid; provided, however, that such
prohibition shall not apply to wages or salaries paid to full-time or part-
time employees who are employed as drivers providing transportation
for public school students; provided further, that only that portion of a
revolving fund which is attributable to transportation fees may be used
to pay the wages or salaries of those employees who are employed as
drivers providing transportation for public school students; and
provided further, that any such wages or salaries so paid shall be
reported in the budget submitted for the next fiscal year.

A revolving fund shall be established pursuant to this section by by-law
or ordinance. The by-law or ordinance shall specify for each fund: (1)
the programs or activities for which the revolving fund may be
expended; (2) the departmental receipts in connection with those
programs or activities that shall be credited to the revolving fund; (3)
the board, department or officer authorized to expend from such fund;
and (4) any reporting or other requirements the city or town may
impose. The establishment of any fund shall be made not later than the
beginning of the fiscal year in which the fund shall begin.
Notwithstanding this section, whenever, during the course of any fiscal
year, any new revenue source becomes available for the establishment
of a revolving fund under this section, such a fund may be established

340



in accordance with this section upon certification by the city auditor,
town accountant, or other officer having similar duties that the revenue
source was not used in computing the most recent tax levy.

The city or town shall, on or before July 1 of each year, vote on the
limit on the total amount that may be expended from each revolving
fund established under this section. In any fiscal year, the limit on the
amount that may be spent from a revolving fund may be increased with
the approval of the city council and mayor in a city or with the
approval of the board of selectmen and finance committee in a town.

Upon termination of a revolving fund, the balance in the fund at the
end of that fiscal year shall revert to surplus revenue at the close of the
fiscal year.

The director of accounts may issue guidelines further regulating
revolving funds established pursuant to this section.

341



Part I ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT

Title VII CITIES, TOWNS AND DISTRICTS

Chapter 44 MUNICIPAL FINANCE

Section

53F1/2

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Section 53F1/2. Notwithstanding the provisions of section fifty-three or
any other provision of law to the contrary, a city or town which accepts
the provisions of this section may establish a separate account
classified as an ''Enterprise Fund'', for a utility, school transportation
service, cable television public access, health care, recreational or
transportation facility, and its operation, as the city or town may
designate, hereinafter referred to as the enterprise. Such account shall
be maintained by the treasurer, and all receipts, revenues and funds
from any source derived from all activities of the enterprise shall be
deposited in such separate account. The treasurer may invest the funds
in such separate account in the manner authorized by sections fifty-five
and fifty-five A of chapter forty-four. Any interest earned thereon shall
be credited to and become part of such separate account. The books and
records of the enterprise shall be maintained in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles and in accordance with the
requirements of section thirty-eight.

342

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section53F1~2#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section53F1~2#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section53F1~2#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section53F1~2#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section53F1~2#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section53F1~2#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section53F1~2#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section53F1~2#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/Section53F1~2#


No later than one hundred and twenty days prior to the beginning of
each fiscal year, an estimate of the income for the ensuing fiscal year
and a proposed line item budget of the enterprise shall be submitted to
the mayor, board of selectmen or other executive authority of the city
or town by the appropriate local entity responsible for operations of the
enterprise; provided, that for a school transportation service the
appropriate local entity shall be the school committee. Said board,
mayor or other executive authority shall submit its recommendation to
the town meeting, town council or city council, as the case may be,
which shall act upon the budget in the same manner as all other
budgets.

The city or town shall include in its tax levy for the fiscal year the
amount appropriated for the total expenses of the enterprise and an
estimate of the income to be derived by the operations of the enterprise.
If the estimated income is less than the total appropriation, the
difference shall be added to the tax levy and raised by taxation. If the
estimated income is more than the total appropriation, the excess shall
be appropriated to a separate reserve fund and used for capital
expenditures of the enterprise, subject to appropriation, or to reduce
user charges if authorized by the appropriate entity responsible for
operations of the enterprise. If during a fiscal year the enterprise incurs
a loss, such loss shall be included in the succeeding fiscal year's
budget.

If during a fiscal year the enterprise produces a surplus, such surplus
shall be kept in such separate reserve fund and used for the purposes
provided therefor in this section.

For the purposes of this section, acceptance in a city shall be by vote of
343



the city council and approval of the mayor, in a town, by vote of a
special or annual town meeting and in any other municipality by vote
of the legislative body.

A city or town which has accepted the provisions of this section with
respect to a designated enterprise may, in like manner, revoke its
acceptance.

344



Part I ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT

Title VII CITIES, TOWNS AND DISTRICTS

Chapter

44B

COMMUNITY PRESERVATION

Section 7 COMMUNITY PRESERVATION FUND

Section 7. Notwithstanding the provisions of section 53 of chapter 44
or any other general or special law to the contrary, a city or town that
accepts sections 3 to 7, inclusive, shall establish a separate account to
be known as the Community Preservation Fund of which the municipal
treasurer shall be the custodian. The authority to approve expenditures
from the fund shall be limited to the legislative body and the municipal
treasurer shall pay such expenses in accordance with chapter 41.

The following monies shall be deposited in the fund: (i) all funds
collected from the real property surcharge or bond proceeds in
anticipation of revenue pursuant to sections 4 and 11; (ii) additional
funds appropriated or dedicated from allowable municipal sources
pursuant to subsection (b1/2) of section 3, if applicable; (iii) all funds
received from the commonwealth or any other source for such
purposes; and (iv) proceeds from the disposal of real property acquired
with funds from the Community Preservation Fund. The treasurer may

345

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44B
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44B
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44B
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44B
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44B
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44B
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44B
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44B
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44B
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44b/Section7#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44b/Section7#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44b/Section7#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44b/Section7#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44b/Section7#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44b/Section7#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44b/Section7#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44b/Section7#


deposit or invest the proceeds of the fund in savings banks, trust
companies incorporated under the laws of the commonwealth, banking
companies incorporated under the laws of the commonwealth which
are members of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or national
banks, or may invest the proceeds in paid up shares and accounts of
and in co-operative banks or in shares of savings and loan associations
or in shares of federal savings and loan associations doing business in
the commonwealth or in the manner authorized by section 54 of
chapter 44, and any income therefrom shall be credited to the fund. The
expenditure of revenues from the fund shall be limited to implementing
the recommendations of the community preservation committee and
providing administrative and operating expenses to the committee.

346



Part I ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT

Title VII CITIES, TOWNS AND DISTRICTS

Chapter 44B COMMUNITY PRESERVATION

Section 12 REAL PROPERTY INTEREST; PERMANENT RESTRICTION;
MANAGEMENT

Section 12. (a) A real property interest that is acquired with monies
from the Community Preservation Fund shall be bound by a permanent
restriction, recorded as a separate instrument, that meets the
requirements of sections 31 to 33, inclusive, of chapter 184 limiting the
use of the interest to the purpose for which it was acquired. The
permanent restriction shall run with the land and shall be enforceable
by the city or town or the commonwealth. The permanent restriction
may also run to the benefit of a nonprofit organization, charitable
corporation or foundation selected by the city or town with the right to
enforce the restriction. The legislative body may appropriate monies
from the Community Preservation Fund to pay a nonprofit organization
created pursuant to chapter 180 to hold, monitor and enforce the deed
restriction on the property.

(b) Real property interests acquired under this chapter shall be owned
and managed by the city or town, but the legislative body may delegate
management of such property to the conservation commission, the

347

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44B
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44B
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44B
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44B
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44B
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44B
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44B
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44B
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44B/Section12#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44B/Section12#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44B/Section12#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44B/Section12#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44B/Section12#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44B/Section12#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44B/Section12#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44B/Section12#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44B/Section12#


historical commission, the board of park commissioners or the housing
authority, or, in the case of interests to acquire sites for future wellhead
development by a water district, a water supply district or a fire district.
The legislative body may also delegate management of such property
to a nonprofit organization created under chapter 180 or chapter 203.

348



Part I ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT

Title VII CITIES, TOWNS AND DISTRICTS

Chapter 45 PUBLIC PARKS, PLAYGROUNDS AND THE PUBLIC
DOMAIN

Section 3 ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY FOR PARKS

Section 3. Any such board may locate public parks within its city or
town and for that purpose may take in fee by eminent domain under
chapter seventy-nine or by purchase, gift, devise or otherwise, land
which it considers desirable therefor, or may take bonds for the
conveyance thereof to its city or town, but any such taking by eminent
domain or by purchase shall be subject to the provisions of section
fourteen of chapter forty. A city or town may take and hold in trust or
otherwise any grant, gift, bequest or devise, made for the purpose of
laying out or improving any parks therein.

349

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter45
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter45
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter45
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter45
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter45
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter45
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter45
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter45
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter45
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter45/Section3#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter45/Section3#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter45/Section3#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter45/Section3#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter45/Section3#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter45/Section3#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter45/Section3#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter45/Section3#


Part I ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT

Title XIV PUBLIC WAYS AND WORKS

Chapter 82 THE LAYING OUT, ALTERATION, RELOCATION AND
DISCONTINUANCE OF PUBLIC WAYS, AND SPECIFIC
REPAIRS THEREON

Section 33 FOOTWAYS

Section 33. Cities and towns may lay out footways for the use of the
public in the manner provided for the laying out of town ways.

350

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82/Section33#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82/Section33#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82/Section33#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82/Section33#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82/Section33#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82/Section33#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82/Section33#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82/Section33#


Part I ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT

Title XIV PUBLIC WAYS AND WORKS

Chapter 82 THE LAYING OUT, ALTERATION, RELOCATION AND
DISCONTINUANCE OF PUBLIC WAYS, AND SPECIFIC
REPAIRS THEREON

Section 35 BICYCLE PATHS

Section 35. The board or officers authorized to lay out highways or
town ways may lay out, construct and maintain bicycle paths under the
provisions of law relative to the laying out, construction and
maintenance of public ways.

351

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82/Section35#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82/Section35#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82/Section35#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82/Section35#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82/Section35#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82/Section35#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82/Section35#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter82/Section35#


Part I ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT

Title XIV PUBLIC WAYS AND WORKS

Chapter 90 MOTOR VEHICLES AND AIRCRAFT

Section 17C ESTABLISHMENT OF 25-MILES-PER-HOUR SPEED LIMIT IN
THICKLY SETTLED OR BUSINESS DISTRICT IN CITY OR
TOWN; VIOLATION

Section 17C. (a) Notwithstanding section 17 or any other general or
special law to the contrary, the city council, the transportation
commissioner of the city of Boston, the board of selectmen, park
commissioners, a traffic commission or traffic director of a city or town
that accepts this section in the manner provided in section 4 of chapter
4 may, in the interests of public safety and without further authority,
establish a speed limit of 25 miles per hour on any roadway inside a
thickly settled or business district in the city or town on any way that is
not a state highway.

(b) Upon establishing a speed limit under this section, the city or town
shall notify the department. The operation of a motor vehicle at a speed
in excess of a speed limit established under this section shall be a
violation of section 17.

352

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter90
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter90
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter90
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter90
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter90
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter90
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter90
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter90
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter90/Section17c#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter90/Section17c#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter90/Section17c#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter90/Section17c#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter90/Section17c#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter90/Section17c#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter90/Section17c#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter90/Section17c#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter90/Section17c#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIV/Chapter90/Section17c#


Part II REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY AND DOMESTIC
RELATIONS

Title I TITLE TO REAL PROPERTY

Chapter 184 GENERAL PROVISIONS RELATIVE TO REAL PROPERTY

Section 31 RESTRICTIONS, DEFINED

Section 31. A conservation restriction means a right, either in
perpetuity or for a specified number of years, whether or not stated in
the form of a restriction, easement, covenant or condition, in any deed,
will or other instrument executed by or on behalf of the owner of the
land or in any order of taking, appropriate to retaining land or water
areas predominantly in their natural, scenic or open condition or in
agricultural, farming or forest use, to permit public recreational use, or
to forbid or limit any or all (a) construction or placing of buildings,
roads, signs, billboards or other advertising, utilities or other structures
on or above the ground, (b) dumping or placing of soil or other
substance or material as landfill, or dumping or placing of trash, waste
or unsightly or offensive materials, (c) removal or destruction of trees,
shrubs or other vegetation, (d) excavation, dredging or removal of
loam, peat, gravel, soil, rock or other mineral substance in such manner
as to affect the surface, (e) surface use except for agricultural, farming,
forest or outdoor recreational purposes or purposes permitting the land

353

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184/Section31#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184/Section31#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184/Section31#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184/Section31#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184/Section31#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184/Section31#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184/Section31#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184/Section31#


or water area to remain predominantly in its natural condition, (f)
activities detrimental to drainage, flood control, water conservation,
erosion control or soil conservation, or (g) other acts or uses
detrimental to such retention of land or water areas.

A preservation restriction means a right, whether or not stated in the
form of a restriction, easement, covenant or condition, in any deed, will
or other instrument executed by or on behalf of the owner of the land or
in any order of taking, appropriate to preservation of a structure or site
historically significant for its architecture, archeology or associations,
to forbid or limit any or all (a) alterations in exterior or interior features
of the structure, (b) changes in appearance or condition of the site, (c)
uses not historically appropriate, (d) field investigation, as defined in
section twenty-six A of chapter nine, without a permit as provided by
section twenty-seven C of said chapter, or (e) other acts or uses
detrimental to appropriate preservation of the structure or site.

An agricultural preservation restriction means a right, whether or not
stated in the form of a restriction, easement, covenant or condition, in
any deed, will or other instrument executed by or on behalf of the
owner of the land appropriate to retaining land or water areas
predominately in their agricultural farming or forest use, to forbid or
limit any or all (a) construction or placing of buildings except for those
used for agricultural purposes or for dwellings used for family living by
the land owner, his immediate family or employees; (b) excavation,
dredging or removal of loam, peat, gravel, soil, rock or other mineral
substance in such a manner as to adversely affect the land's overall
future agricultural potential; and (c) other acts or uses detrimental to
such retention of the land for agricultural use. Such agricultural

354



preservation restrictions shall be in perpetuity except as released under
the provisions of section thirty-two. All other customary rights and
privileges of ownership shall be retained by the owner including the
right to privacy and to carry out all regular farming practices.

A watershed preservation restriction means a right, whether or not
stated in the form of a restriction, easement, covenant or condition, in
any deed, will or other instrument executed by or on behalf of the
owner of the land appropriate to retaining land predominantly in such
condition to protect the water supply or potential water supply of the
commonwealth, to forbid or limit any or all (a) construction or placing
of buildings; (b) excavation, dredging or removal of loam, peat, gravel,
soil, rock or other mineral substance except as needed to maintain the
land and (c) other acts or uses detrimental to such watershed. Such
watershed preservation restrictions shall be in perpetuity except as
released under the provisions of section thirty-two. All other customary
rights and privileges of ownership shall be retained by the owner,
including the right to privacy.

An affordable housing restriction means a right, either in perpetuity or
for a specified number of years, whether or not stated in the form of a
restriction, easement, covenant or condition in any deed, mortgage,
will, agreement, or other instrument executed by or on behalf of the
owner of the land appropriate to (a) limiting the use of all or part of the
land to occupancy by persons, or families of low or moderate income in
either rental housing or other housing or (b) restricting the resale price
of all or part of the property in order to assure its affordability by future
low and moderate income purchasers or (c) in any way limiting or
restricting the use or enjoyment of all or any portion of the land for the

355



purpose of encouraging or assuring creation or retention of rental and
other housing for occupancy by low and moderate income persons and
families. Without in any way limiting the scope of the foregoing
definition, any restriction, easement, covenant or condition placed in
any deed, mortgage, will, agreement or other instrument pursuant to the
requirements of the Rental Housing Development Action Loan
program or the Housing Innovations Fund program established
pursuant to section three of chapter two hundred and twenty-six of the
acts of nineteen hundred and eighty-seven or pursuant to the
requirements of any program established by the Massachusetts housing
partnership fund board established pursuant to chapter four hundred
and five of the acts of nineteen hundred and eighty-five, including
without limitation the Homeownership Opportunity Program, or
pursuant to the requirements of sections twenty-five to twenty-seven,
inclusive, of chapter twenty-three B, or pursuant to the requirements of
any regulations or guidelines promulgated pursuant to any of the
foregoing, shall be deemed to be an affordable housing restriction
within the meaning of this paragraph.

356



Part II REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY AND DOMESTIC
RELATIONS

Title I TITLE TO REAL PROPERTY

Chapter 184 GENERAL PROVISIONS RELATIVE TO REAL PROPERTY

Section 32 EFFECT, ENFORCEMENT, ACQUISITION, AND RELEASE OF
RESTRICTIONS

[ First paragraph effective until May 30, 2023. For text effective May
30, 2023, see below.]

  Section 32. No conservation restriction, agricultural preservation or
watershed preservation restriction as defined in section thirty-one, held
by any governmental body or by a charitable corporation or trust whose
purposes include conservation of land or water areas or of a particular
such area, and no preservation restriction, as defined in said section
thirty-one, held by any governmental body or by a charitable
corporation or trust whose purposes include preservation of buildings
or sites of historical significance or of a particular such building or site,
and no affordable housing restriction as defined in said section thirty-
one, held by any governmental body or by a charitable corporation or
trust whose purposes include creating or retaining or assisting in the
creation or retention of affordable rental or other housing for
occupancy by persons or families of low or moderate income shall be

357

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184/Section32#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184/Section32#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184/Section32#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184/Section32#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184/Section32#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184/Section32#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184/Section32#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184/Section32#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184/Section32#


unenforceable on account of lack of privity of estate or contract or lack
of benefit to particular land or on account of the benefit being
assignable or being assigned to any other governmental body or to any
charitable corporation or trust with like purposes, or on account of the
governmental body the charitable corporation or trust having received
the right to enforce the restriction by assignment, provided (a) in case
of a restriction held by a city or town or a commission, authority or
other instrumentality thereof it is approved by the secretary of
environmental affairs if a conservation restriction, the commissioner of
the metropolitan district commission if a watershed preservation
restriction, the commissioner of food and agriculture if an agricultural
preservation restriction, the Massachusetts historical commission if a
preservation restriction, or the director of housing and community
development if an affordable housing restriction, and (b) in case of a
restriction held by a charitable corporation or trust it is approved by the
mayor, or in cities having a city manager the city manager, and the city
council of the city, or selectmen or town meeting of the town, in which
the land is situated, and the secretary of environmental affairs if a
conservation restriction, the commissioner of the metropolitan district
commission if a watershed preservation restriction, the commissioner
of food and agriculture if an agricultural preservation restriction, the
Massachusetts historical commission if a preservation restriction, or the
director of housing and community development if an affordable
housing restriction.

[ First paragraph as amended by 2023, 7, Sec. 293 effective May 30,
2023. See 2023, 7, Sec. 298. For text effective until May 30, 2023, see
above.]

358



  No conservation restriction, agricultural preservation or watershed
preservation restriction as defined in section thirty-one, held by any
governmental body or by a charitable corporation or trust whose
purposes include conservation of land or water areas or of a particular
such area, and no preservation restriction, as defined in said section
thirty-one, held by any governmental body or by a charitable
corporation or trust whose purposes include preservation of buildings
or sites of historical significance or of a particular such building or site,
and no affordable housing restriction as defined in said section thirty-
one, held by any governmental body or by a charitable corporation or
trust whose purposes include creating or retaining or assisting in the
creation or retention of affordable rental or other housing for
occupancy by persons or families of low or moderate income shall be
unenforceable on account of lack of privity of estate or contract or lack
of benefit to particular land or on account of the benefit being
assignable or being assigned to any other governmental body or to any
charitable corporation or trust with like purposes, or on account of the
governmental body the charitable corporation or trust having received
the right to enforce the restriction by assignment, provided (a) in case
of a restriction held by a city or town or a commission, authority or
other instrumentality thereof it is approved by the secretary of
environmental affairs if a conservation restriction, the commissioner of
the metropolitan district commission if a watershed preservation
restriction, the commissioner of food and agriculture if an agricultural
preservation restriction, the Massachusetts historical commission if a
preservation restriction, or the secretary of housing and livable
communities if an affordable housing restriction, and (b) in case of a
restriction held by a charitable corporation or trust it is approved by the

359



mayor, or in cities having a city manager the city manager, and the city
council of the city, or selectmen or town meeting of the town, in which
the land is situated, and the secretary of environmental affairs if a
conservation restriction, the commissioner of the metropolitan district
commission if a watershed preservation restriction, the commissioner
of food and agriculture if an agricultural preservation restriction, the
Massachusetts historical commission if a preservation restriction, or the
secretary of housing and livable communities if an affordable housing
restriction.

[ Second paragraph effective until May 30, 2023. For text effective
May 30, 2023, see below.]

  Such conservation, preservation, agricultural preservation, watershed
preservation and affordable housing restrictions are interests in land
and may be acquired by any governmental body or such charitable
corporation or trust which has power to acquire interest in the land, in
the same manner as it may acquire other interests in land. The
restriction may be enforced by injunction or other proceeding, and shall
entitle representatives of the holder to enter the land in a reasonable
manner and at reasonable times to assure compliance. If the court in
any judicial enforcement proceeding, or the decision maker in any
arbitration or other alternative dispute resolution enforcement
proceeding, finds there has been a violation of the restriction or of any
other restriction described in clause (c) of section 26 then, in addition
to any other relief ordered, the petitioner bringing the action or
proceeding may be awarded reasonable attorneys' fees and costs
incurred in the action proceeding. The restriction may be released, in
whole or in part, by the holder for consideration, if any, as the holder

360



may determine, in the same manner as the holder may dispose of land
or other interests in land, but only after a public hearing upon
reasonable public notice, by the governmental body holding the
restriction or if held by a charitable corporation or trust, by the mayor,
or in cities having a city manager the city manager, the city council of
the city or the selectmen of the town, whose approval shall be required,
and in case of a restriction requiring approval by the secretary of
environmental affairs, the Massachusetts historical commission, the
director of the division of water supply protection of the department of
conservation and recreation, the commissioner of food and agriculture,
or the director of housing and community development, only with like
approval of the release.

[ Second paragraph as amended by 2023, 7, Sec. 293 effective May 30,
2023. See 2023, 7, Sec. 298. For text effective until May 30, 2023, see
above.]

  Such conservation, preservation, agricultural preservation, watershed
preservation and affordable housing restrictions are interests in land
and may be acquired by any governmental body or such charitable
corporation or trust which has power to acquire interest in the land, in
the same manner as it may acquire other interests in land. The
restriction may be enforced by injunction or other proceeding, and shall
entitle representatives of the holder to enter the land in a reasonable
manner and at reasonable times to assure compliance. If the court in
any judicial enforcement proceeding, or the decision maker in any
arbitration or other alternative dispute resolution enforcement
proceeding, finds there has been a violation of the restriction or of any
other restriction described in clause (c) of section 26 then, in addition

361



to any other relief ordered, the petitioner bringing the action or
proceeding may be awarded reasonable attorneys' fees and costs
incurred in the action proceeding. The restriction may be released, in
whole or in part, by the holder for consideration, if any, as the holder
may determine, in the same manner as the holder may dispose of land
or other interests in land, but only after a public hearing upon
reasonable public notice, by the governmental body holding the
restriction or if held by a charitable corporation or trust, by the mayor,
or in cities having a city manager the city manager, the city council of
the city or the selectmen of the town, whose approval shall be required,
and in case of a restriction requiring approval by the secretary of
environmental affairs, the Massachusetts historical commission, the
director of the division of water supply protection of the department of
conservation and recreation, the commissioner of food and agriculture,
or the secretary of housing and livable communities, only with like
approval of the release.

  No restriction that has been purchased with state funds or which has
been granted in consideration of a loan or grant made with state funds
shall be released unless it is repurchased by the land owner at its then
current fair market value. Funds so received shall revert to the fund
sources from which the original purchase, loan, or grant was made, or,
lacking such source, shall be made available to acquire similar interests
in other land. Agricultural preservation restrictions shall be released by
the holder only if the land is no longer deemed suitable for agricultural
or horticultural purposes or unless two-thirds of both branches of the
general court, by a vote taken by yeas and nays, vote that the
restrictions shall be released for the public good. Watershed

362



preservation restrictions shall be released by the holder only if the land
is deemed by the commissioner of the metropolitan district commission
and the secretary of environmental affairs to no longer be of any
importance to the water supply or potential water supply of the
commonwealth or unless two-thirds of both branches of the general
court, by a vote taken by yeas and nays, vote that the restrictions shall
be released for the public good.

[ Fourth paragraph effective until May 30, 2023. For text effective May
30, 2023, see below.]

  Approvals of restrictions and releases shall be evidenced by
certificates of the secretary of environmental affairs or the chairman,
clerk or secretary of the Massachusetts historical commission, or the
commissioner of food and agriculture, or the director of housing and
community development or the city council, or selectmen of the town,
as applicable duly recorded or registered.

[ Fourth paragraph as amended by 2023, 7, Sec. 293 effective May 30,
2023. See 2023, 7, Sec. 298. For text effective until May 30, 2023, see
above.]

  Approvals of restrictions and releases shall be evidenced by
certificates of the secretary of environmental affairs or the chairman,
clerk or secretary of the Massachusetts historical commission, or the
commissioner of food and agriculture, or the secretary of housing and
livable communities or the city council, or selectmen of the town, as
applicable duly recorded or registered.

  In determining whether the restriction or its continuance is in the
public interest, the governmental body acquiring, releasing or

363



approving shall take into consideration the public interest in such
conservation, preservation, watershed preservation, agricultural
preservation or affordable housing and any national, state, regional and
local program in furtherance thereof, and also any public state, regional
or local comprehensive land use or development plan affecting the
land, and any known proposal by a governmental body for use of the
land.

  This section shall not be construed to imply that any restriction,
easement, covenant or condition which does not have the benefit of this
section shall, on account of any provisions hereof, be unenforceable.
Nothing in this section or section thirty-one and section thirty-three
shall diminish the powers granted by any general or special law to
acquire by purchase, gift, eminent domain or otherwise to use land for
public purposes.

  Nothing in this section shall prohibit the department of public utilities
or the department of telecommunications and cable from authorizing
the taking of easements for the purpose of utility services provided that
(a) said department shall require the minimum practicable interference
with farming operations with respect to width of easement, pole
locations and other pertinent matters, (b) the applicant has received all
necessary licenses, permits, approvals and other authorizations from
the appropriate state agencies, (c) the applicant shall compensate the
owner of the property in the same manner and the same fair market
value as if the land were not under restriction.

364



Part II REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY AND DOMESTIC
RELATIONS

Title I TITLE TO REAL PROPERTY

Chapter 184 GENERAL PROVISIONS RELATIVE TO REAL PROPERTY

Section 33 PUBLIC RESTRICTION TRACT INDEX

  Section 33. Any city or town may file with the register of deeds for
the county or district in which it is situated a map or set of maps of the
city or town, to be known as the public restriction tract index, on which
may be indexed conservation, preservation, agricultural preservation,
watershed preservation and affordable housing restrictions and
restrictions held by any governmental body. Such indexing shall
indicate sufficiently for identification (a) the land subject to the
restriction, (b) the name of the holder of the restriction, and (c) the
place of record in the public records of the instrument imposing the
restriction. Maps used by assessors to identify parcels taxed, and
approximate boundaries without distances, shall be sufficient, and,
where maps by parcels are not available, addition to other maps of
approximate boundaries of restricted land shall be sufficient. If the
names of the holders and the instrument references cannot be
conveniently shown directly on the maps, they may be indicated by
appropriate reference to accompanying lists. Such maps may also

365

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184/Section33#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184/Section33#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184/Section33#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184/Section33#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184/Section33#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184/Section33#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184/Section33#
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleI/Chapter184/Section33#


indicate similarly, so far as practicable, (a) any order or license issued
by a governmental body entitled to be recorded or registered, (b) the
approximate boundaries of any historic or architectural control district
established under chapter forty C or any special act, ordinance or by-
law where a certificate of appropriateness may be required for exterior
changes, (c) any landmark certified by the Massachusetts historical
commission pursuant to section twenty-seven of chapter nine, (d) any
other land which any governmental body may own in fee, or in which it
may hold any other interest, and (e) such additional data as the filing
governmental body may deem appropriate.

  Whenever any instrument of acquisition of a restriction or order or
other appropriate evidence entitled to be indexed in a public restriction
tract index is at the option of the holder of the right to enforce it
submitted for such indexing, the register shall make, or require the
holder of the right to enforce the restriction or order or interest to make,
appropriate additions to the tract index.

[ Third paragraph effective until May 30, 2023. For text effective May
30, 2023, see below.]

  The maps shall be in such form that they can be readily added to,
changed, and reproduced, and shall be a public record, appropriately
available for public inspection. If any governmental body, other than a
city or town in which the land affected lies, holds a right to enforce a
restriction or order or an interest entitled to be indexed in a public
restriction tract index for any city or town which has not filed such an
index, or if the secretary of environmental affairs or the Massachusetts
historical commission or the commissioner of food and agriculture or
the director of housing and community development approves a

366



conservation or preservation restriction or agricultural or watershed
preservation restriction or affordable housing restriction held by a
charitable corporation or trust so entitled, and the city or town does not
within one year after written request to the mayor or selectmen file a
sufficient map or set of maps for the purpose, the holding governmental
body or approving secretary, director or commission may do so.

[ Third paragraph as amended by 2023, 7, Secs. 294 and 295 effective
May 30, 2023. See 2023, 7, Sec. 298. For text effective until May 30,
2023, see above.]

  The maps shall be in such form that they can be readily added to,
changed, and reproduced, and shall be a public record, appropriately
available for public inspection. If any governmental body, other than a
city or town in which the land affected lies, holds a right to enforce a
restriction or order or an interest entitled to be indexed in a public
restriction tract index for any city or town which has not filed such an
index, or if the secretary of environmental affairs or the Massachusetts
historical commission or the commissioner of food and agriculture or
the secretary of housing and livable communities approves a
conservation or preservation restriction or agricultural or watershed
preservation restriction or affordable housing restriction held by a
charitable corporation or trust so entitled, and the city or town does not
within one year after written request to the mayor or selectmen file a
sufficient map or set of maps for the purpose, the holding governmental
body or approving secretary, or commission may do so.

  The registers of deeds, or a majority of them, may from time to time
make and amend rules and regulations for administration of public
restriction tract indexes, and the provisions of section thirteen A of

367



chapter thirty-six shall not apply thereto. No such rule, regulation or
any amendment thereof shall take effect until after it has been approved
by the attorney general. New tract indexes may be filed, from time to
time, upon compliance with such rules and regulations as may be
necessary to assure against omission of prior additions and references
still effective.

368



Part I ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT

Title VII CITIES, TOWNS AND DISTRICTS

Chapter 40A ZONING

Section 5 ADOPTION OR CHANGE OF ZONING ORDINANCES OR BY-
LAWS; PROCEDURE

  Section 5. Zoning ordinances or by-laws may be adopted and from time
to time changed by amendment, addition or repeal, but only in the
manner hereinafter provided. Adoption or change of zoning ordinances or
by-laws may be initiated by the submission to the city council or board of
selectmen of a proposed zoning ordinance or by-law by a city council, a
board of selectmen, a board of appeals, by an individual owning land to
be affected by change or adoption, by request of registered voters of a
town pursuant to section ten of chapter thirty-nine, by ten registered
voters in a city, by a planning board, by a regional planning agency or by
other methods provided by municipal charter. The board of selectmen or
city council shall within fourteen days of receipt of such zoning
ordinance or by-law submit it to the planning board for review.

[ Second paragraph effective until May 30, 2023. For text effective May
30, 2023, see below.]

369

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter40A


  No zoning ordinance or by-law or amendment thereto shall be adopted
until after the planning board in a city or town, and the city council or a
committee designated or appointed for the purpose by said council has
each held a public hearing thereon, together or separately, at which
interested persons shall be given an opportunity to be heard. Said public
hearing shall be held within sixty-five days after the proposed zoning
ordinance or by-law is submitted to the planning board by the city council
or selectmen or if there is none, within sixty-five days after the proposed
zoning ordinance or by-law is submitted to the city council or selectmen.
Notice of the time and place of such public hearing, of the subject matter,
sufficient for identification, and of the place where texts and maps thereof
may be inspected shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation
in the city or town once in each of two successive weeks, the first
publication to be not less than fourteen days before the day of said
hearing, and by posting such notice in a conspicuous place in the city or
town hall for a period of not less than fourteen days before the day of said
hearing. Notice of said hearing shall also be sent by mail, postage prepaid
to the department of housing and community development, the regional
planning agency, if any, and to the planning board of each abutting city
and town. The department of housing and community development, the
regional planning agency, the planning boards of all abutting cities and
towns and nonresident property owners who may not have received
notice by mail as specified in this section may grant a waiver of notice or
submit an affidavit of actual notice to the city or town clerk prior to town
meeting or city council action on a proposed zoning ordinance, by-law or
change thereto. Zoning ordinances or by-laws may provide that a
separate, conspicuous statement shall be included with property tax bills
sent to nonresident property owners, stating that notice of such hearings

370



under this chapter shall be sent by mail, postage prepaid, to any such
owner who files an annual request for such notice with the city or town
clerk no later than January first, and pays a reasonable fee established by
such ordinance or by-law. In cases involving boundary, density or use
changes within a district, notice shall be sent to any such nonresident
property owner who has filed such a request with the city or town clerk
and whose property lies in the district where the change is sought. No
defect in the form of any notice under this chapter shall invalidate any
zoning ordinances or by-laws unless such defect is found to be
misleading.

[ Second paragraph as amended by 2023, 7, Sec. 154 effective May 30,
2023. See 2023, 7, Sec. 298. For text effective until May 30, 2023, see
above.]

  No zoning ordinance or by-law or amendment thereto shall be adopted
until after the planning board in a city or town, and the city council or a
committee designated or appointed for the purpose by said council has
each held a public hearing thereon, together or separately, at which
interested persons shall be given an opportunity to be heard. Said public
hearing shall be held within sixty-five days after the proposed zoning
ordinance or by-law is submitted to the planning board by the city council
or selectmen or if there is none, within sixty-five days after the proposed
zoning ordinance or by-law is submitted to the city council or selectmen.
Notice of the time and place of such public hearing, of the subject matter,
sufficient for identification, and of the place where texts and maps thereof
may be inspected shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation
in the city or town once in each of two successive weeks, the first
publication to be not less than fourteen days before the day of said
hearing, and by posting such notice in a conspicuous place in the city or

371



town hall for a period of not less than fourteen days before the day of said
hearing. Notice of said hearing shall also be sent by mail, postage prepaid
to the executive office of housing and livable communities, the regional
planning agency, if any, and to the planning board of each abutting city
and town. The executive office of housing and livable communities, the
regional planning agency, the planning boards of all abutting cities and
towns and nonresident property owners who may not have received
notice by mail as specified in this section may grant a waiver of notice or
submit an affidavit of actual notice to the city or town clerk prior to town
meeting or city council action on a proposed zoning ordinance, by-law or
change thereto. Zoning ordinances or by-laws may provide that a
separate, conspicuous statement shall be included with property tax bills
sent to nonresident property owners, stating that notice of such hearings
under this chapter shall be sent by mail, postage prepaid, to any such
owner who files an annual request for such notice with the city or town
clerk no later than January first, and pays a reasonable fee established by
such ordinance or by-law. In cases involving boundary, density or use
changes within a district, notice shall be sent to any such nonresident
property owner who has filed such a request with the city or town clerk
and whose property lies in the district where the change is sought. No
defect in the form of any notice under this chapter shall invalidate any
zoning ordinances or by-laws unless such defect is found to be
misleading.

  Prior to the adoption of any zoning ordinance or by-law or amendment
thereto which seeks to further regulate matters established by section
forty of chapter one hundred and thirty-one or regulations authorized
thereunder relative to agricultural and aquacultural practices, the city or
town clerk shall, no later than seven days prior to the city council's or

372



town meeting's public hearing relative to the adoption of said new or
amended zoning ordinances or by-laws, give notice of the said proposed
zoning ordinances or by-laws to the farmland advisory board established
pursuant to section forty of chapter one hundred and thirty-one.

  No vote to adopt any such proposed ordinance or by-law or amendment
thereto shall be taken until a report with recommendations by a planning
board has been submitted to the town meeting or city council, or twenty-
one days after said hearing has elapsed without submission of such
report. After such notice, hearing and report, or after twenty-one days
shall have elapsed after such hearing without submission of such report, a
city council or town meeting may adopt, reject, or amend and adopt any
such proposed ordinance or by-law. If a city council fails to vote to adopt
any proposed ordinance within ninety days after the city council hearing
or if a town meeting fails to vote to adopt any proposed by-law within six
months after the planning board hearing, no action shall be taken thereon
until after a subsequent public hearing is held with notice and report as
provided.

  Except as provided herein, no zoning ordinance or by-law or
amendment thereto shall be adopted or changed except by a two-thirds
vote of all the members of the town council, or of the city council where
there is a commission form of government or a single branch, or of each
branch where there are 2 branches, or by a two-thirds vote of a town
meeting; provided, however, that the following shall be adopted by a vote
of a simple majority of all members of the town council or of the city
council where there is a commission form of government or a single
branch or of each branch where there are 2 branches or by a vote of a
simple majority of town meeting:

373



  (1) an amendment to a zoning ordinance or by-law to allow any of the
following as of right: (a) multifamily housing or mixed-use development
in an eligible location; (b) accessory dwelling units, whether within the
principal dwelling or a detached structure on the same lot; or (c) open-
space residential development;

  (2) an amendment to a zoning ordinance or by-law to allow by special
permit: (a) multi-family housing or mixed-use development in an eligible
location; (b) an increase in the permissible density of population or
intensity of a particular use in a proposed multi-family or mixed use
development pursuant to section 9; (c) accessory dwelling units in a
detached structure on the same lot; or (d) a diminution in the amount of
parking required for residential or mixed-use development pursuant to
section 9;

  (3) zoning ordinances or by-laws or amendments thereto that: (a)
provide for TDR zoning or natural resource protection zoning in
instances where the adoption of such zoning promotes concentration of
development in areas that the municipality deems most appropriate for
such development, but will not result in a diminution in the maximum
number of housing units that could be developed within the municipality;
or (b) modify regulations concerning the bulk and height of structures,
yard sizes, lot area, setbacks, open space, parking and building coverage
requirements to allow for additional housing units beyond what would
otherwise be permitted under the existing zoning ordinance or by-law;
and

  (4) the adoption of a smart growth zoning district or starter home zoning
district in accordance with section 3 of chapter 40R.

374



  Any amendment that requires a simple majority vote shall not be
combined with an amendment that requires a two-thirds majority vote.

  If, in a city or town with a council of fewer than 25 members, there is
filed with the clerk prior to final action by the council a written protest
against a zoning change under this section, stating the reasons duly
signed by owners of 50 per cent or more of the area of the land proposed
to be included in such change or of the area of the land immediately
adjacent extending 300 feet therefrom, no change of any such ordinance
shall be adopted except by a two-thirds vote of all members.

  No proposed zoning ordinance or by-law which has been unfavorably
acted upon by a city council or town meeting shall be considered by the
city council or town meeting within two years after the date of such
unfavorable action unless the adoption of such proposed ordinance or by-
law is recommended in the final report of the planning board.

  When zoning by-laws or amendments thereto are submitted to the
attorney general for approval as required by section thirty-two of chapter
forty, he shall also be furnished with a statement which may be prepared
by the planning board explaining the by-laws or amendments proposed,
which statement may be accompanied by explanatory maps or plans.

  The effective date of the adoption or amendment of any zoning
ordinance or by-law shall be the date on which such adoption or
amendment was voted upon by a city council or town meeting; if in
towns, publication in a town bulletin or pamphlet and posting is
subsequently made or publication in a newspaper pursuant to section
thirty-two of chapter forty. If, in a town, said by-law is subsequently
disapproved, in whole or in part, by the attorney general, the previous
zoning by-law, to the extent that such previous zoning by-law was

375



changed by the disapproved by-law or portion thereof, shall be deemed to
have been in effect from the date of such vote. In a municipality which is
not required to submit zoning ordinances to the attorney general for
approval pursuant to section thirty-two of chapter forty, the effective date
of such ordinance or amendment shall be the date passed by the city
council and signed by the mayor or, as otherwise provided by ordinance
or charter; provided, however, that such ordinance or amendment shall
subsequently be forwarded by the city clerk to the office of the attorney
general.

  A true copy of the zoning ordinance or by-law with any amendments
thereto shall be kept on file available for inspection in the office of the
clerk of such city or town.

  No claim of invalidity of any zoning ordinance or by-law arising out of
any possible defect in the procedure of adoption or amendment shall be
made in any legal proceedings and no state, regional, county or municipal
officer shall refuse, deny or revoke any permit, approval or certificate
because of any such claim of invalidity unless legal action is commenced
within the time period specified in sections thirty-two and thirty-two A of
chapter forty and notice specifying the court, parties, invalidity claimed,
and date of filing is filed together with a copy of the petition with the
town or city clerk within seven days after commencement of the action.

376



Part I ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT

Title IX TAXATION

Chapter 59 ASSESSMENT OF LOCAL TAXES

Section 21C LIMITATIONS ON TOTAL TAXES ASSESSED; DETERMINATION
BY VOTERS

Section 21C. (a) Whenever used in the text of this section, the following
words and terms shall have the following meanings:—

''Full and fair cash valuation'', the fair cash value of all real estate and
personal property as defined in this chapter, as certified by the
commissioner, or, if no certification has been made, as last reported by
the commissioner to the general court pursuant to section ten C of chapter
fifty-eight as updated by the commissioner for any intervening period by
an appropriate factor, if any.

''Local appropriating authority'', in a town, the board of selectmen; in a
city, the council, with the mayor's approval when required by law; in a
municipality having a town council form of government, the town
council.

''Total taxes assessed'', the net amount to be raised by any ad valorem tax
levied on the real estate and personal property located within a city or
town.

377

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIX
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIX/Chapter59


(b) The total taxes assessed within any city or town under the provisions
of this chapter shall not exceed two and one-half per cent of the full and
fair cash valuation in said city or town in any fiscal year. Any city or
town in which total taxes exceed this limit shall be subject to the
provisions of paragraph (d).

[There is no paragraph (c).]

(d) Any city or town in which total taxes assessed exceed the limits set
forth in paragraph (b) shall for each successive year until the total taxes
assessed shall not exceed said limits, reduce the total taxes assessed by
not less than fifteen per cent of the total taxes assessed for the year
immediately preceding; provided, however, that the reduction pursuant to
this paragraph shall not be so great as to require a reduction below the
limits set forth in paragraph (b); and provided, further, that said reduction
may be adjusted by those amounts approved in accordance with the
applicable provisions of paragraph (e).

(e) The local appropriating authority of any city or town which is subject
to the provisions of paragraph (d) may, by a two-thirds vote, seek voter
approval to assess taxes in excess of the amount allowed pursuant to said
paragraph (d) by a specified amount. Any question submitted to the
voters shall be worded as follows:—

''Shall the (city/town) of ___ be allowed to assess an additional $___ in
real estate and personal property taxes for the fiscal year beginning July
first, nineteen hundred and ___?

YES <\/ul> NO <\/ul>''.

378



If the amount specified in such question is not greater than one-half of the
reduction required pursuant to said paragraph (d), the proposal shall be
deemed approved if a majority of the persons voting thereon shall vote
''yes''. If the amount specified is greater than one-half of the reduction
required pursuant to said paragraph (d), the proposal shall be deemed
approved if two-thirds of the persons voting thereon shall vote ''yes''.

In no event shall the amount specified be greater than the reduction
required pursuant to said paragraph (d).

The local appropriating authority may, by a two-thirds vote, submit two
questions on the same ballot; provided that only one question shall
specify an amount which is greater than one-half of the reduction
required pursuant to paragraph (d). If both questions are approved by the
required number of voters, then the question which requires a two-thirds
vote shall apply.

(f) in any city or town in which the total taxes assessed result in a
percentage which is less than or equal to the limits imposed pursuant to
paragraph (b), the total taxes assessed for any fiscal year shall not exceed
an amount equal to one hundred and two and one-half per cent of the
maximum levy limit for the preceding fiscal year as determined by the
commissioner of revenue; provided, however, that the total taxes assessed
may be further increased by those amounts approved in accordance with
the provisions of paragraph (g); and provided further, that the total
amount of taxes assessed for the then current fiscal year may be increased
by an amount equal to the tax rate for the preceding fiscal year multiplied
by the amount of increase in the assessed valuation of any parcel of real,
or article of personal property over the assessed valuation of such
property during the prior year which shall become subject to taxation for

379



the first time, or taxed as a separate parcel for the first time during such
fiscal year, or which has had an increase in its assessed valuation over the
prior year's valuation unless such increased assessed valuation is due to
revaluation of the entire city or town.

(g) The local appropriating authority of any city or town which is subject
to the provisions of paragraph (f) may, by majority vote, seek voter
approval to assess taxes in excess of amount allowed pursuant to said
paragraph (f) by a specified amount.

Any question submitted to the voters shall be worded as follows:—

''Shall the (city/town) of ___ be allowed to assess an additional $___ in
real estate and personal property taxes for the purposes of (state the
purpose(s) for which the monies from this assessment will be used) for
the fiscal year beginning July first, nineteen hundred and ___?

YES <\/ul> NO <\/ul>''

Said question shall be deemed approved if a majority of the persons
voting thereon shall vote ''yes''.

If a question as aforesaid shall provide for assessing taxes for the purpose
of funding a stabilization fund established pursuant to section 5B of
chapter 40, the assessors shall in each successive fiscal year assess
property taxes for the same purpose in an amount equal to 102.5 per cent
of the amount assessed in the next preceding year in which additional
taxes were assessed for such purpose, but only if the local appropriating
authority votes by a 2/3 vote to appropriate such increased amount in
such year for such purpose. The voters of the city or town, by majority
vote at a referendum, may alter the purpose of a stabilization fund or
authorize the assessment of such additional property taxes for another

380



purpose. In any year in which the local appropriating authority does not
vote to appropriate such amount as aforesaid, the total property tax levy
for such year shall be reduced by the amount that could otherwise have
been assessed, so that such additional taxes may not be assessed for any
other purpose. The maximum levy limit under paragraph (f) shall not be
affected by any such reduction in the levy for such year.

(h) In a city or town, if a majority of the local appropriating authority or
the people by local initiative procedure shall so require, there shall be a
special election called in order to submit a question to the voters as to
whether said city or town should be required to assess taxes by a
specified amount below that amount allowed pursuant to this section. The
question submitted to the voters shall be worded as follows:—

''Shall the (city/town) of ___ be required to reduce the amount of real
estate and personal property taxes to be assessed for the fiscal year
beginning July first, nineteen hundred and ___ by an amount equal to
$___?

YES <\/ul> NO <\/ul>''.

If a majority of the persons voting on the question shall vote ''yes'', the
limit on total taxes assessed shall be decreased to the percentage so voted
for that fiscal year.

(i) With regard to the referenda procedures set out in this section the local
appropriating authority may direct that the questions be placed upon the
official ballot at a regular city or town election or at a special election
which the local appropriating authority may call at any time. The local
appropriating authority may also direct that not more than three such
questions be placed upon the official ballots for use in the city or town at

381



a biennial state election, by filing with the state secretary not later than
the first Wednesday of August preceding that election a copy of its vote
attested by the city or town clerk.

(i1/2) The local appropriating authority of any city or town may, by a
two-thirds vote, seek voter approval to assess taxes in excess of the levy
limitation for certain capital outlay expenditures. Amounts for such
capital outlay expenditures or for the city's or town's apportioned share
for certain capital outlay expenditures by a regional governmental unit
shall be assessed only after approval by a separate vote of the people
taken at a regular or special election held before the setting of the annual
tax rate; provided, however, that the question submitted shall be worded
as follows: ''Shall the (city/town) of ___ be allowed to assess an
additional $___ in real estate and personal property taxes for the purposes
of (state the purpose(s) for which the monies from this assessment will be
used) for the fiscal year beginning July first, two thousand and ___?

Yes <\/ul> No <\/ul>'';

and provided, further, that said question shall be deemed approved if a
majority of the persons voting thereon shall vote ''yes''.

Capital outlay expenditures may be authorized for any municipal purpose
for which the city or town would be authorized to borrow money under
section seven or eight of chapter forty-four.

(j) The local appropriating authority of any city or town may, by a two-
thirds vote, seek voter approval at a regular or special election to assess
taxes in excess of the amount allowed pursuant to this section for the
payment of principal and interest on bonds, notes or certificates of
indebtedness, excluding tax revenue anticipation notes, issued by the city
or town and for the city's or town's apportioned share of the principal and

382



interest on such bonds or notes issued by a regional governmental unit
which were outstanding as of November fourth, nineteen hundred and
eighty; provided, however, that the question submitted shall be as
follows:—

''Shall the (city/town) of ___ be allowed to exempt the total amounts
required to pay for bonded indebtedness incurred prior to the passage of
proposition two and one-half, so-called, from the (city's/town's) limit?

Yes <\/ul> No <\/ul>'';

and provided, further, that said question shall be deemed approved if a
majority of the persons voting thereon shall vote ''yes''.

(k) The local appropriating authority of any city or town may, by two-
thirds vote, seek voter approval at a regular or special election to assess
taxes in excess of the amount allowed pursuant to this section for the
payment of principal and interest on bonds, notes or certificates of
indebtedness, excluding tax revenue anticipation notes, issued by the city
or town and for the city's or town's apportioned share of the principal and
interest on such bonds or notes issued by a regional governmental unit
which were not outstanding as of November fourth, nineteen hundred and
eighty; provided, however, that the question submitted shall be as
follows:—

''Shall the (city/town) of ___ be allowed to exempt from the provisions of
proposition two and one-half, so-called, the amounts required to pay for
the bond issued in order to (state the purpose or purposes for which the
monies from the local issue will be used)?

Yes <\/ul> No <\/ul>'';

383



and provided, further, that said question shall be deemed approved if a
majority of the persons voting thereon shall vote ''yes''.

(l) Amounts exempted from the tax limit under paragraph (i1/2), (j), (k)
or (n) shall not be included in calculating the ''total taxes assessed'' in
paragraph (a) or the maximum levy limit in paragraph (f).

(m) A town may appropriate from the tax levy, from available funds, or
from borrowing, contingent on the passage of a ballot question under
paragraph (g), (i1/2) or (k), but: (1) the statement of the purpose of the
appropriation shall be substantially the same as the statement of purpose
in the ballot question; (2) the appropriation vote shall not be deemed to
take effect until the approval of the ballot question; (3) no election at
which the question appears on the ballot shall take place later than the
September 15 following the date of an appropriation vote adopted at an
annual town meeting, or 90 days after the date of the close of any other
town meeting at which an appropriation vote was adopted; and (4) after a
contingent appropriation from the tax levy, a tax rate for a town shall not
be submitted for certification by the commissioner under section 23 until
after a ballot question under paragraph (g), (i1/2) or (k) has been voted
upon, or until the expiration of the time for holding an election at which
the question appears on the ballot, whichever period is shorter.

(n) The local appropriating authority may, by accepting this paragraph,
provide that taxes may thereafter be assessed in excess of the amount
otherwise allowed by this section, solely for payment, in whole or in part,
of water or sewer debt service charges, including debt service charges of
an independent commission, authority or district and as part of any
wholesale water and sewer charges, that the board or officer responsible
for determining the water and sewer charges certifies were not in fiscal

384



year nineteen hundred and ninety-three paid by local taxes; provided,
however, that water and sewer charges shall be reduced by the amount of
any such aggregate additional taxes assessed; and provided, further, that
said additional taxes may be assessed on only residential real property as
defined in section two A, notwithstanding the failure of the city or town
to adopt a residential factor pursuant to section fifty-six of chapter forty,
but subject to any subsequent adoption of such residential factor allowed
by said section fifty-six; and provided, further, that if said additional
taxes are assessed only on residential real property, aggregate residential
water and sewer charges shall be reduced by the amount of any such
additional taxes assessed. In the case of a city or town whose water and
sewer service is provided by an independent commission, authority or
district which separately bills water and sewer users, said commission,
authority or district may enter into an agreement with said city or town to
effectuate the purposes of this paragraph, provided, however, that
immediately upon collection of all such taxes assessed for payment of
such residential water and sewer debt service charges of such
commission, authority or district, the treasurer or collector of taxes of
such city or town shall, without appropriation by such city or town, pay
over the taxes so collected to such commission, authority or district less
any amounts agreed upon to provide reasonable compensation to the city
or town for costs incurred in carrying out the agreement. Notwithstanding
the provisions of chapter twenty-nine C, chapter two hundred and
seventy-five of the acts of nineteen hundred and eighty-nine, or any other
general or special law to the contrary, any city or town which accepts this
paragraph or any independent authority, commission or district which

385



provides water or sewer services to such city or town shall remain
eligible to receive loans and grants for water pollution abatement projects
or safe drinking water projects.

386



387



388


